
CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 

Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  College Avenue Elko, Nevada 89801 ·  (775) 777-7160 Fax (775) 777-7219 

P U B L I C  M E E T I N G  N O T I C E  

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, May 1 ,  2 0 1 8  in 
the Council Chambers at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and beginning at 
5 :30  P.M., P.D.S.T. 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with 
NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at 
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov, 
and in the following locations: 

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE- 571  Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: April 25, 2 0 1 8  2 : 1 0  p.m. 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY -720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: April 25, 2 0 1 8  2:05 p.m. 

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT- 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: April 25, 2 0 1 8  2 : 1 5  p.m. 

ELKO CITY HALL- 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: April 25, 20 18  2:00 p.m. 

Posted by: Shelb Archuleta Plannin Technician 
Name Title 

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at 
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The 
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College A venue, Elko, 
NV. 

Dated this 251h day of April, 2 0 1 8 .  

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the City of Elko Planning Department, 1 7 5 1  College A venue, Elko, 
Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160. 

V g 



CITY OF ELKO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, MAY 1, 2018 
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted 
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S.  24 1 ,  this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

April 3, 20 1 8  -Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

I. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

1 .  Review and consideration of Preliminary Plat No. 3 - 1 8 ,  filed by Robert E. Morley 
on behalf of Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC, for the development of a subdivision 
entitled Riverside Villas a Condominium Development involving the proposed 
division of approximately 7 .872 acres of property into 97 lots and a common area for 
residential development within the C (General Commercial) Zoning District, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the northwest comer of the intersection 
of S. 1 2  Street and Opal Drive (APN 001-630-077). 

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1 - 1 8 ,  
Ordinance No. 829, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically 
Section 3 -2 - 1 1  IBP, IC Industrial Districts and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 



3.  Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 3 - 1 8 ,  filed by Gary & Bernice Kimber, for a change in zoning from PQP 
(Public, Quasi-Public) to R (Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential), 
approximately .22 acres of property, to zone the property one zone in conjunction 
with a parcel map to combine the parcels, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the north side of Chris Avenue 
approximately 160'  east of Sierra Drive. (309 Chris Ave, APN 001-610-083 & 
Portion of 001-610-031  ). 

4. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 4- 18 ,  filed by Lonny Reed of Legend Engineering, on behalf of JoyGlobal 
Surface Mining, Inc. and Ed and Sharon Netherton, for a change in zoning from AG 
(General Agriculture) to LI (Light Industrial), approximately 3 1 . 1 6  acres of 
property, to allow for development, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the north and south side of P&H Drive. 
(APNs 006-09N-004, 006-09N-007, 006-09N-009 & 001-679-005). 

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

1 .  Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City 
Zoning Ordinance, specifically Sections 3-3 Subdivisions, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

II. REPORTS 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings. 

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes. 

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General discussion pertaining to motions, findings, and 
other items related to meeting procedures. 

G. Staff. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 



Pursuant to N.R.S.  241 ,  this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda 
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another 
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to 
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

{Jtt1t�., lWcL, 
Cat aughliu 
Cit anner 



CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2018 
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ar Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

David Freistroff er 
Ian Montgomery 
Jeff Dailing 
John Anderson 
Kevin Hodur 
Stefan Beck (Left at 7:09 p.m.) 

Tera Hooiman 

ROLL CALL 
Roll Call. 
Present: 

City Staff: 

David Freistroffer, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commis · called the meeting to 
order at 5 :30 p.m. 

***Motion: Approve· e meeting minutes from March 6, 2018. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Ian Montgomery. 

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0) 

I. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

April 3, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 14 



1 .  Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 3 - 18 ,  filed 
by Jason B. Land on behalf on Blaine Branscomb, which would allow for a 
professional office within an RO (Residential Office) Zoning District, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the south side of Court Street, 
approximately 50 feet east of9111 Street (910  Court Street, APN 001-281-002).  

t  over 

· erest in the property, 

he City Manager's Office. 

bor and happy to see some improvements 

ire comments needed to be included in the motion. 

prove Conditional Use Permit No. 3-18 subject to the 
ko Staff Report dated March 12, 2018 and condition from Fire 

Hows: 
conditions in the C1 
Department, listed a 

Co 

Ms. Laughlin state 

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, stated the D 
Planning Department presentation. He recommen 
the Development Department conditions listed i the 

Jason Land, 1526 Sustacha Drive Lamoille, Nevada, stated that he wa 
Conditional Use Permit to move his office into an RO Zone. 

John Holmes, Fire Marshal 
International Fire Code 

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went through the City of Elko 
She recommended approval with the conditions listed in t 

Planning Department; 
1. CUP 3-18 shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of 

its issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific 
property to the use for which the permit was issued. 

2. The CUP 3-18 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after 
the commencement of the work for the conversion from single family dwelling to 
professional office. 

3 .  The garage will be demolished to develop off-street parking. 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 14 

across the street at 901 Court Street, and s . 
because it had been neglected for some tim 



Development Department; 
1. The permit is granted to the applicant Jason Land for the use of a professional 

office. 
2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use 

and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning 
Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying 
that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the 
permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be 
transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special 
conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance wit ther provisions of the 
zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property 

3. The conditions of Variance 1-18 be met prior to occup 
4. The conditions of Rezone 2-18 be met prior to occup 

to 

'\,. 

� 
· 1�8 be 

..A. 
Building Department; r-� 

1. Building Department conditions listed in 
occupancy. 

Fire Department; 
1. Must comply with the 2012 Inter 

· n are the proposed 
al Office district is consistent 

n. The proposed conditional use permit is 
icinity, The proposed conditional use 
mponent of the Master Plan. The 

ransportation Component of the Master 
use a mitations of intensity of use will not create 
the existing transportation system. The proposed 

l\he property and structure conforms to the 
pose onditional use is consistent with the City of Elko 
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the 

district do not present hazard to City wells. The proposed use 
of the property ditional use permit to conform to Section 3-2-3 of City Code. 
The proposed use conditional approval of Variance 1-18 conforms to Section 3-2- 
4 of City Code. The osed conditional use is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(F)(3) 
RO-Residential Offi based on conditional approval of Variance 1-18 and conditional 
approval of Rezone 2-18. The Planning Commission conditionally approved Variance 1-18 
on February 6, 2018. The City Council conditionally approved zone amendment 2-18 on 
February 27, 2018. The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for 
the principal permitted use as a single-family residence. Additional parking and ADA 
access is required for conformance under the proposed conditional use. The parcel is not 
located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. Development under the proposed 
conditional use will not adversely impact natural systems, or public/federal lands such as 

City Clerk; A "- � 
1. A business license must be applied for and obffl1i&.�. prior to c 

this location. 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 14 

- - -- 'r -~ -- -.... 



waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human health and 
safety. The proposed conditional use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Tera Hooiman. 

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0) 

ager re mended approval as presented by staff 
re location included in a motion. 

d the City was taking the initiative to clean up the 
roperties that the use is not correct for the zone. 

ion of the existing accessory structure shown on the site plan, 
n to City Council to adopt a resolution which conditional 

bject to the conditions listed in the City of Elko Staff Report 
ed as follows: 

The subject property is located generally o 
of College A venue and Golf Course Roa 

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Sta Re 
recommended conditional approval with the condition 

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 1 - 1 8 ,  filed by The City of Elko, for a change in zonin m R (Single-Family 
and Multiple-Family Residential) to PQP (Public, Qua · c , approximately 
1 . 3 1 4  acres of property, to allow for incorporation i lko City Parks, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTI 

zon 

approved Rezon 
dated March 13, 20 

Mr. Draper said the Development Depa 
approval of the proposed zone change. He 
Commission to accept the location of the a 

1. The location of the remaining accessory structure is approved by the Planning 
Commission under Section 3-2-8 (E)(2) as shown on the site plan included with the 
application. The approval is included in the motion of the Planning Commission. 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support his recommendation are the proposed zone 
district is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use Component. The 
proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component. 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 14 

Planning Department: 

mments. He recommended 
y the Planning 

s on the property. 



The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is 
not required. The proposed zone district and allowed uses do not present a hazard to City 
wells and is therefore in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Plan. There is not 
a minimum lot area nor dimensions stipulated for the proposed zone district. The location 
of the accessory structure requires specific approval by the Planning Commission for the 
property to be in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B). With Planning Commission 
approval of the existing accessory structure location, as shown on the site plan, the 
proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-8 of City Code. The current use of the 
property under the proposed district is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City Code. 
The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses. De ment under the 
proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, or 
waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a d 
safety. The parcel is not located within a designated Speci 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan Beck. 

sly. (7-0) 

3.  

required interior side yard set 
setback from 12 '  to 10 .7'  withi 

chased the property in August. The 
. He's been told it's a cultural relic of a 

dditions were done over 24 years ago. The property exists 
fo tprint. It has an unfinished day lit basement. They 

were told they wouldn't be able to pull a Building 
d, be se the additions were built in the setbacks. They are 

with getting the appropriate permits and developing the 
perty was previously a multi-family use. 

, stated she had no objections to the variance. 

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 13 ,  2018 .  She 
recommended conditional approval with the conditions listed in the staff report. 

Mr. Draper said the Development Department agreed with the Planning Department and had 
similar findings. He recommend approval with the Development Department conditions listed in 
the staff report, with a minor change from 15 '  to 12 '  on the Exterior Side Yard. 

Mr. Thibault recommended approval as presented by staff. 

April 3, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 14 



Mr. Holmes had nothing further. 

Ms. Laughlin stated that the Assistant City Manager recommended approval as presented by 
staff. 

Chairman Freistroffer asked if it was staying single-family if it still required a variance. 

setbacks of the existing principle structure to be 

3. 

4. 

yard setback from 12' to 10. 7' 
c. Fronts, ack from 15' to 11.6' 

2. The required off-street parking is to be developed in accordance with Elko City Code 
3-2-17. 

1. 
2. 

Ms. Laughlin said yes. There are sections of the Code that state that legal non-conforming status 
is lost when the use is changed, expanded, or enlarged. This parcel was considered a legal non 
conforming use, because the structure encroached into the setbacks. 

Dev 

***Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 3-1 
of Elko Staff Report dated March 13, 2018 listed as fol 

� 
Planning Department: 

Chairman Freistroffer said Variances are a big deal, so the Pla 
sure that this is specific to the property, and that they aren't a 
variance. They need to think about this carefully. He thou t 
variance to allow the property owner to use his propert 
him of the use of his property. They have also met al 
Variance. 

1 .  A  

Building Department: 

1. Please see Elko City building code amendments table R302.1 regarding Exterior 
walls 
• Walls: < 5 feet require 1 hour fire rating 
• Projections: 2 feet to <5 feet require 1 hour on underside. 0 to 2 feet not allowed 

April 3, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 14 

v~e is grantl, for the 
reduce~he folio . g: 

a. Inte id rd setback from 7' to 4.8' 
b. 

mmission needs to make 
body this kind of 
· ate to grant this 

ld be depriving 
ments for a 

in eighteen (18) months. This 



• Openings: 3 feet to 5 feet allowed at 25% maximum of wall area or less 
• Penetrations : < 5 feet must comply with section R317.3 

Public Works Department: 

1. Applicant must provide required off street parking. 

variance 
e developed 

e ion 3-2- 
into all of 

een in place for over 24 
stipulated in code and 

with Section 3-2-22, the 
ce preve the applicant from obtaining 
he structure depriving the applicant of full 

2- 2, the applicant has demonstrated that 
e fact that the basement daylights and 

a do not offer that potential for usable 
e wil result in material damage or prejudice to 
finding is based on the fact the variance request is not 

. In the event of that occurrence, the conversion of 
to conform to all code requirements including off- 

also based on the fact the structure was previously converted 
gle-family use. Granting of the variance will not 

t or purpose of the zoning ordinance. Single-family or 
ipal uses in the underlying zone. Neither use requires a larger 

r the district. Granting of the variance will not impair natural 
is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support its recommendation are the proposed variance 
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is consistent with 

consistent with the 
ted within the 

street par 
from a multi 
substantially im 
duplexes are listed 
lot size than specifie 
resources. The parce 

existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed varianc 
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The property is 
redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not requ] 
consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. Th 
and allowed uses under the proposed district do not pres 
property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of City C 
application is required to bring the property into 
property meets the stipulated area and dimensi 
S(G) R-Single-Family and Multiple-Family R I 

the stipulated yard areas excepting the rear yard ar 
application is required to bring the property into con 
does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of · Code. Develop 

ce approval. 
structure 

tbac 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan Beck. 

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0) 

4. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 4-18 ,  filed by Al 
Latimer on behalf of Ken worth Sales Company, for an increase in the allowable sign 

April 3 ,  2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 14 



area from 194 square feet to 275 square feet within an IBP (Industrial Business Park) 
Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the corner of the intersection of Ruby 
Vista Drive and Statice Street. (4224 Ruby Vista Dr. -APN 001-860-1 10)  

Al Latimer, Sales Manager for IG Sign Company, explained that they were asking for an 
increase in the square footage of the signage to make it possible to use Kenworth's standard 
freeway sign, which they have used in all their locations. They aren't trying to change any of the 
zoning laws. If the building were facing the other way, it would be le er the sign ordinance. 

Ms. Laughlin went through City of Elko Staff Report dated Mar 
conditional approval with the conditions listed in the staff reg . Sn 
applicant aware that the sign needed to be located outside ft 
property. 

Mr. Draper said the Development Department agr 
recommended approval for the increase of the sq a 
City wants to cut down on the blight that might be seen 
lots in this area, the concerns are not the same as with the 

Mr. Thibault recommended approval with 

Mr. Holmes had no comments. 

Ms. Laughlin stated tha 
staff. 

mstance forced by the shape of the 

ape of the building was also unique. He stated that 

rove Variance No. 4-18 subject to the conditions in the City 
rch 16, 2018 listed as follows: 

1. Compliance with all staff recommendations. 
2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months. A 

sign permit is required for the work. 
3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance. 
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the Planning 

Commission. 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 14 



or 

signs, signals and 
ill not result in visual 

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0) 

� 

TITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ration of Annexation No. 1 - 1 8  filed by Legend Engineering on 
aron Netherton and JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc., consisting of 

. 7 4 acres of property located southwest of the intersection of West 
P&H Drive, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

Moved by Kevin 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support his recommendation are the proposed variance 
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan is consistent with 
existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The property is not located within the 
redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not required. There are no signage 
regulations stipulated in Section 3-2-11 of the City Code. In accordance with Section 3-2- 
22, the applicant has demonstrated that the property has unique circumstances based on 
the fact the building orientation has the shortest length parallel to Ruby Vista and the 
longest length along Statice Street, therefore, the sign area is calculated on the shortest 
length of the building. The size and orientation of the parcel would not accommodate a 
different orientation for the structure. In accordance with Section 22, the applicant has 
demonstrated that the allowable sign area equates 196 square f the 275 square 
feet that is the standard trademark sign for the company. T mstance would require 
a custom made sign and associate design for the sign infr dditionally, visibility 
from the adjacent freeway is an important consideratio . In accordance 
with Section 3-2-22, the other two parcels in the vici · · o ing Ru · ta are already 
fully developed and the cited conditions therefore not generally appl her 
properties in the area. Granting of the varianc not re t in material 
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity. is g is d on the dista 
separation from the proposed sign to the adjacent p 
not substantially impair the intent or urpose of the zo 
currently developed, in addition to th osed signage 
obstructions that may adversely affect · · t with traffi 
other traffic control devices. In addition, · a 
clutter along streets and roadways and wi · 
effective identification an ertising by a 
freestanding signs on nting of th 

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 19 ,  2018 .  She recommended 
conditional approval with the conditions listed in the staff report. 

Mr. Draper stated that the Development Department recommended approval. He pointed out that 
the Development Department had one condition that was listed in the Staff Report. He also 
mentioned that the Development Department reached out to the property owners in this area as 
part of the agreement the City has with these properties for providing water to them. They did 
that several years ago, and requested that they consider annexation. The City had positive 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 14 

he varian 
er an opportunity for 

ntity, height and area of 
not impair natural resources. 



conditions is that 
ays. They have 

or begin 
if Legend 

from 

prior to Council Approval: 
er, not Vi comer. 

the iption. 
te who prepared it, and if it is by a licensed surveyor, it 

1 .  

Mr. Thibault recommended 
Report. They are techni 
completed prior to C 

conversations with JoyGlobal at that time, and was considering an expansion to their facility, 
then were purchased by Komatsu. They have indicated that they will be doing a large building at 
this location and demolishing the existing building. When you look at the conditions from the 
Utility Department, those conditions are set up to allow for the construction of the new facility, 
connection of that facility to the City's water system, and demolition of the old facility prior to 
the abandonment of the existing well and water system. The vacant properties, as they don't 
currently have water service, they will connect as they are developed to the City of Elko Water 
System. In the Agreement with the properties, the City granted them 56-acre feet of water back 
in the 90's, which allowed them to develop in the County. The agreement was that they would 
then annex back into the City at the City's request once we were able ovide water to the 
area. The City has fulfilled their portion of the agreement and the p rty ers are on their 
way to fulfill their portion. The City will get back 56-acre feet a the 32 acres that is 2.4 
industrial units according to the Development Plan, which wi 
water. He wanted to discuss the Utility Department Condi · on 
the property owners are to be actively constructing the 
two options. One is to connect the old facility to the 
construction of the new facility within 180 days. 
Engineering, today, he indicated that they would a 
Komatsu; unfortunately they were not able to make it. 
confident that they would be able to meet that construction 
they are able to do that, they will satisfy onditions. One 
them is, as this becomes an Ordinance it's to modify th 
by the City Council. 

Ms. Laughlin stated t t the Assistant City Manager recommended approval as presented by 
staff. 

Chairman Freistroffer said they had discussed that they had a property that was a County island. 
He asked if Ms. Laughlin could point out the property. 

Ms. Laughlin pointed the property out, and explained that the City does not have certified 
program for annexations. There needs to be a population over 100,000 in order to be required to 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 14 



have a certified program for annexation. If you did have program it would not allow leaving an 
island of less than 40 acres, therefor we are not in violation of the NRS by leaving this island. 

Chairman Freistroffer asked who Mr. Draper spoke to that stated they would be ok with 180 
days. 

Mr. Draper stated that he spoke with Lonny Reed, who is the representative from Legend 
Engineering. He stated that in his conversations with the management of Komatsu that they are 
confident that they can meet the timeframe stipulated in the conditions. 

pt an ordinance, which 
, listed in the City of 

all extend the water main on P&H Drive the full 
(Joy), 007 & 009 (Netherton), and make a point of 

t. Water service (potable and fire protection) shall be 
ys o annexation of the properties and the existing facility 
e City water system at that time; or, the water main shall be 

njun n with development of a new facility provided that Joy 
· ng has applied for and received a Building Permit from the City 

gaged in constructing the new facility within the stipulated 180 
days. Extensi of water service and connection to the City water system may be 
extended by the length of time required for development of a new facility and will be 
required to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for a new facility. 

2. Joy Global Surface Mining shall file applications with Nevada Division of Water 
Resources to transfer all City water rights back to the City as stipulated in its 
agreement with the City dated November 1, 2013. The total water rights stipulated 
in the agreement is 58 acre feet. The same point of diversion shall be listed on the 
application. The application to transfer the water rights shall be filed no later than 

Commissioner Hodur wished the applicant was present and wanted 
with the annexation, but stated that if staff was confident in the 
process then he was all right with it. 

Chairman Freistroffer pointed out that this anne tio 
linchpin for what the City is trying to do at the 298 Exi 

***Motion: Forward a recommendati 
conditionally approves Annexation No. 
Elko Staff Report dated March 19, 2018 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 14 

1. The prope-ers s receive applgval for a zone designation for the property 
to be consi "th the d Use desigltatiQJI in the City of Elko Master Plan. 

~ L..... F 



ater supply system 
ing as stipulated 

ity's water system 
rly abandoned 

60 days after extension of the water main in P & H drive and connection to either 
the existing facility or a newly developed facility. 

3. The existing well shall be dedicated to the City of Elko no later than 90 days after 
the water rights have been transferred to the City. An easement shall be granted to 
the City of Elko to include access to the well, the wellsite including a 20' perimeter 
outside of the well house, and also a 20' wide utility easement westerly to the 
westerly property boundary at the time of well dedication. 

4. Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend dry sewer mains at the time of new facility 
development or expansion of the existing use. 

5. The City shall not be responsible for operation of the existi 
pending the extension of water service by Joy Global Su 
in Item 1. 

6. Cross connections between the existing water syste 
will not be allowed. All points of cross connectio 
under City approval. 

Eneineerim: Department; 

mu 
compatib 
annexation 
outlined in the 

1. Revisions to legal description to be complete�_#"C<tuncil Appro-¢31: 
a. Description beings at the northwest corner, 
b. State a basis of bearings o e description. 
c. The description should sta repared it, a 

it must be stamped and sign 
2. Revisions to map to be complete p'4Pr to�il appro� 

a. Show the location of the no Section 30 as stated in the 
description. 

b. Label the 

Infrastructure, 
November 2012. Th 

ommendation are the petitioner is not 
ponent of the Master Plan. The existing 

nsistent with the Master Plan. The remaining 
d subsequent zone classification of the properties 

roposed annexation and existing land uses are 
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed 

he goals, objectives and supports long range planning as 
easibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer 

on Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report dated 
osed annexation is in conformance with the City's Airport 

mance with NRS 268.636(1) the property owners have submitted a 
map showing a boundary contiguous to the City of approximately 35%. In conformance 
with NRS 268.646(2), inclusive, it has been determined that the proposed annexation 
satisfies considerations and/or concerns identified as minimum factors for consideration 
under. In conformance with NRS 268.646(3), it has been determined that the proposed 
annexation will not have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent areas nor will the 
proposed annexation and development of the property have an adverse influence on the 
local government structure of the County or the City. In conformance with NRS 
268.646(4), it has been determined that the proposed annexation will not place a burden of 
the availability of water, the requirement for water or have a negative impact on other 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 14 



Motion passed unanimously. (7-0) 

egarding the existing well to be dedicated 
acent, t County has applied for the BLM to be 

s if that project goes through the well could be 

Mr. Draper explain 
to the City of Elko was tli 
granted that 
used for 

A. Summary ofC 

Co 

natural resources in the area. In addition, the City will receive 58 acre feet of water rights 
upon annexation of the properties. In conformance with NRS 268.646(5), it has been 
determined that the area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the 
Bureau of Land Management. In conformance with NRS 268.646(6), it has been 
determined that the City of Elko is not required, nor does it have an annexation program 
adopted and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625. The proposed annexation is consistent with 
the Land Use Component of the Master Plan and the adopted Development Feasibility, 
Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation 
Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. In conformance 
with NRS 268.663(3), although not required, it has been determin at all portions of 
County Roads that provide primary access to the area have be I be annexed into 
the City and will become City Streets. The annexation appli entities the zoning 
classification as Light Industrial District. At this time, a z ion has not been filed 
in conjunction with the annexation petition. Future zo 
Section 3-2-4 of City Code. The proposed annexatio 
Wellhead Protection Plan. Annexation of the pro 
the tax base for the City. Annexation of the pr 
Light Industrial Uses. The area proposed for nn 
required, utilities will be installed at developer expe 
properties. The topography of the area is well suited fo 
uses. Expanded Uses on the propertie · result in a posr 

community. 

II. REPORTS 

Ms. Laughlin reported on March 27'h the City Council accepted the annexation 
petition, and appointed Mr. Montgomery as the new Commissioner. They also 
held the public hearing for Resolution 10-18, which was for the Master Plan 
Amendment, and it was approved. The latest and greatest Master Plan is in the 
Share file for reference. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

April 3, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 14 



Ms. Laughlin reported that there would be an RDA meeting on Tuesday, April 
J01h. There will also be a RAC Meeting on April 261\ they will be reviewing the 
Storefront Grant Applications. 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings. 

to motions, findings, 

a Hooiman, Secretary 

G. Staff. 

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General discussi 
and other items related to meeting procedures. 

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes. 

ADJOURNMENT 

David Freistroffer, · 

There were no public comments made at this time. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

April 3, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 14 



Agenda Item # I .A. I 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1 .  Review, consideration and possible approval of Preliminary Plat No. 3-18, filed by 
Robert E. Morley on behalf of Riverside Villas Nevada LLC., for the development of 
a subdivision entitled Riverside Villas a Condominium Development involving the 
proposed division of approximately 7.872 acres of property into 97 lots for 
residential development within the C (General Commercial) Zoning District, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 1, 2018 

3.  Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located northwest corner of the 
intersection of S. 12th Street and Opal Drive. (APN 001-630-077). 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend to City Council to conditionally approve 
Preliminary Plat 3-18 with conditions listed in City Planner Memo 

9. Findings: 
• The subdivision is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation 
component. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with the Elko City Code sections 3-2-3. 
Multiple family residential developments which contain five (5) or more units 
are a permitted conditional use provided for in the Commercial Zoning District. 
The development has an approved Conditional Use Permit 2-15. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(E) and (G). 

• The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-17 for off street 
parking requirements. 

• The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-10(8) with the 
approved Conditional Use Permit 2-15. 

Created on 4/ 18/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item # I.A. I 

• The Redevelopment Plan does not apply to the proposed subdivision. 

• The existing development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection 
Program. 

• The subdivision will not result in undue water or air pollution. 

• The proposed development will not cause unreasonable soil erosion or the 
reduction in the capacity of the land to hold water resulting in dangerous or 
unhealthy conditions. 

• The proposed subdivision will not create an unreasonable burden on the exiting 
water supply. 

• The existing development is currently served with existing utilities. 

• The proposed development is not expected to have a negative impact on 
available public services. 

• The requirement for a traffic study has been satisfied. 

10 .  Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

1 1 .  Agenda Distribution: Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC 

180 North University Avenue, Suite 200 
Provo, UT 84601 

High Desert Engineering 
Mr. Bob Morley 
640 Idaho Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

Created on 4/18/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 5} I  
**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Tit1c-i?re�z:rv,Q0 't,1��\las a Cov01)miruornJ'MPkpnm1 
Applicantrs): _ '.  __ t J �  _ d b :s � -  _  

Site Location: I'S 25 q:n l))ct1JC. 
Current Zoning: C Date Received: 1jq, 4/Jo Date Public Notice: fd / J ]  
c_oMMENT: Tu,'s r -0 :JD C6n0e/J 4:p2ctru.uat · , af:t  Cortfovntniums 

I O\J6hh J ] . 'n :i2 ocve� c:foJded \ ah 9 d I oh, ci"GI a C'6Ylrmn 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

P/1. I Initial 

Assistant City Manager: Date:_"-#- _ 

e CJ � 

Ct)«µ c / I Ct?t1 s/ 

City Manager: Date: '-lpS-/t $ 

Ass u I.IV\•'� cu(>  ,,;2.  -  I  5:  CQ,,, 1/V\.p..,'VL.S ; 11\,-tcu...--t-.. () r zx, -::; ,'IN\.; l �c: c u e  ,'  ..  (  

Initial 
, 

I/ /r5a / o /°'';,1. Jo P' 
1 

S tf k; fJ lo [, 'ly !'<- e II )etv,, / S  

/2.1-ul-ud 

- ·---

- --- - - -----

~_,./ 
------------------ ---------..,,,,,L 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

MEMO DATE: 
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 

ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS: 

April 23, 2018 
May 1, 2018 
I.A.I 
Preliminary Plat 3-18 
Robert Morley on behalf of Riverside Villas 
Nevada, LLC 
N/A 

A Preliminary Plat for the proposed division of approximately 7.872 acres of property into 
97 lots for conversion of apartment units into condominiums within a C (General 
Commercial) Zoning District. The conversion is a portion of an apartment complex. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND to CONDITIONALLY APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions as 
stated in this report. 

Page I of8 



PRELIMl'.\ARY PLAT 3 - 1 8  

Riverside Villas 

AP1': 001-630-077 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBERS: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

001-920-079 

7.972 Acres (97 lots) 

(C) General Commercial 

(RES- HD) Residential High Density 

Developed 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by: 
North: PQP & PUD I Undeveloped 
East: Commercial (C) I Undeveloped 
South: Commercial (C) I Developed 
West: Commercial (C) I Developed 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is currently developed. 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

Applicable Master Plan Sections, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 

• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 

• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3 -2 - 1 0 ,  Commercial Zoning Districts 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3 -2 - 17  Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• City of Elko Zoning- Chapter 3-3 Subdiv isions 

• City of Elko Zoning- Title 9 Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff Control and Water 
Quality Management 

BACKGROUND: 

• The subdivision application has been filed by Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC 

• The property is owned by the applicant . 

• The area is approximately 7 .872 acres in size. 

Page 2 or 8 



PRELIMINARY PLAT 3 - 1 8  

Riverside Vi l las 

AP:\· 001-630-077 

• The area is identified as APN 001-630-077.  
• The Preliminary Plat shows a total of 97 lots which includes 96 condominiums and 1 

common area lot. The proposed density is approximately 1 2 . 3 2  units per acre. The 
preliminary plat does not include the phase 2 of the apartment complex. 

• There is no acreage offered for dedication. 
• A stage I meeting for the proposed subdivision was on January 4, 2 0 1 8  
•  The applicant has provided a copy of the CC R's of the subdivision. 
• The applicant has provided a copy of the Home Owners Association Bylaws. 
• The area is located north of S. 12th Street and west of Opal Drive. 
• The area is zoned C- General Commercial. 
• The area is  fully developed as an apartment complex. The complex includes two separate 

properties, The init ial development was approved as a condominium project and was 
processed as a subdivision of property under Final Plat 8-07. The final plat (8-07) was 
approved by the City Council on January 8, 2008. 

• The condominium project was converted to an apartment complex under Map of 
Reversion 3 - 1 1 .  The map of reversion ( 3 - 1 1 )  was approved by the City Council on 
November 8, 2 0 1 1 .  

•  There have been three Conditional Use permits applied for and approved for the 
multifamily use of the property. The permits are as follows :  

o Conditional Use Permit 3-06 ,  approved on January 3 ,  2007 for 252 multi-family 
units ( condominiums) in a general commercial district. 

o Conditional Use Permit 1 3 - 1 3 ,  approved on August 6, 2 0 1 3  for 1 5 6  multi-family 
units (apartments) in a general commercial district. 

o Conditional Use Permit 2- 1 5 ,  approved February 1 7 ,  2 0 1 5  for 1 5 6  multi-family 
units (apartments) in a general commercial and recorded with the Elko County 
Recorder as fi le #701327 on August 1 2 ,  2 0 1 5  for multi-family (apartments) 
adding phase 2 to the project. 

• Both properties are responsible for meeting the conditions outlined in the Conditional 
Use Permit. 

• There is a reciprocal easement agreement (686483) of record governing the use and 
interaction of both properties. The agreement has been amended twice as recorded and on 
file as 692683 and 7 0 1 4 1 3 .  

MASTER PLAN: 

Land use: 

• Land Use is shown as High Density Residential. H igh Density is identified as having a 
density of nine (9) units per acre or greater. The density is 12 . 3 2  units per acre. 

• C - General Commercia l is listed as a corresponding district for the High Density 
Residential Designation in the Master Plan Land Use Component 

Page 3 of8  



PRELIMINARY PLAT 3 - 1 8  

Riverside Villas 

APN 001-630-077 

• Objective I under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states "Promote a diverse 
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes. and age 
groups." 

o Best Practice I .  I  -Planfor and encourage a mix of housing types throughout the 
community. The preliminary plat appears to support this best practice. 

o Best Practice 1 . 3  -  Work toward equitable and even distribution of housing types 
throughout the community. The location of the proposed subdivision appears to 
support the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing 
types in the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure. 

• Objective 8 under the Land use component of the Master Plan states Encourage new 
development docs not negatively impact County-wide natural systems, or public/federal 
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a danger to 
human health and safety. Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural 
systems and no issue with regard to human health and safety. 

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan. 

Transportation: 

• The Master Plan identifies Opal Drive as a Residential Collector. 

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

• The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

• The property does not lie within any capture zones for city wells . The existing 
development does not have a negative impact on city we l ls. 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

Section 3-2-3(C)( 1 )  of City code specifics use restrictions. The following use restrictions shal l  
apply: 

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as "principal uses 
permitted" in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses sha l l  
be prohibited as principal uses. 

Condit ional Uses : Certain specified uses designated as "conditionally uses permitted" may be 
permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location , design, construction, 

Page 4 of 8 



PRELIMINARY PLAT 3 - 1 8  

Riverside Villas 

t\PN: 001-630-077 

operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in this chapter or imposed by the planning 
commission or city council. 

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional 
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City. 

Section 3-2-3(0) states that "No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by 
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding, 
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography, 
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the 
health, safety and general welfare of the community. The planning commission, in applying the 
provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are 
based. The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the 
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw 
the determination of unsuitability." 

The proposed development is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-3 as multiple family 
residential developments which contain five (5)  or more units arc a permitted conditional use 
provided for in the Commercial Zoning District. 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

• Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in  this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uni fonnly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection: 

• Section 3-2-4(8)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof 
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this 
title. 

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with E lko City Code 3-2-4. 

SECTION 3-2-5 Residential Zoning District 

l .  Section 3-2-5(E)6: 

• Minimum Distance Between Buildings On The Same Lot: The minimum distance 
between the opposing exterior wal ls of detached buildings , or parts of attached or 
semi-attached buildings, on the same lot, shall be : 

• If both walls are front walls, or contain main entrances or living room windows : 
Thirty feet (30') ;  

• If one wall is a front wall ,  or contains a main entrance or living room windows, 
and one wall is a side or rear wall containing no doors or windows: Twenty four 
feet (24'); 

Page 5 of 8 



PRELl:VIINARY PLAT 3 - I X  

Ri vcrside Yi llas 

APN: 001-630-077 

• If both wal ls are side or rear walls containing windows or secondary entrances: 
Twenty four feet (24'); 

• If one wall is a side or rear wall containing windows or secondary entrances and 
one wall contains no doors or windows: Eighteen feet ( 18 ' ) ;  

•  If neither wall contains windows or doors: Ten feet ( I 0') .  

The existing development contemns with Elko City Code 3-2-5(E)6 

2.  Section 3-2-5(0) Setback Schedule 

• Front yard setback= 15'-0",  rear yard setback= 20'-0", interior s ide yard setback 
= 7'-0", exterior side yard setback= 15 ' -0" .  

The existing development conforms with Elko City Code 3-2-5(0) 

SECTION 3-2-10(8) Commercial Zoning District 

I .  Section 3-2-10(8) (4) .  Conditional Uses Permitted: 

a. Residential uses. Multiple-family residential developments which contain five (5) 
or more units located on a single lot or parcel; townhouse or condominium or 
attached housing developments. Residential uses must meet the setback standards 
in subsection :_(O) of this chapter and development standards applicable to 
multiple-family residential developments set forth in subsection 5(E)6 of this 
chapter. 

2. Section 3-2- 1  O(B)2 Landscaping: 

• The existing development meets the required landscape requirement of a 
minimum landscape area of 1 5 %  of the surface area of the developed portion of 
the property. 

3 .  Section 3 -2- 10 (8)  Commercial zone abutting residential zone: 

• The existing development is not abutting a residential zoning district so therefore, 
a screen wall is not required. 

SECTION 3-2-17: 

• The ex isting development is in conformance with Elko City Code 3 -2 - 1 7  for the required 
parking per unit as approved in the Conditional Use Permit. 

SECTION 3-3-5 PRELIMINARY PLAT STAGE (STAGE 11): 

See Development Department Memo dated April 1 8 ,  2 0 1 8  for a complete review of the 
application. 

SECTION 3-3-7 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT 
SUBMITTAL 

Page 6 of 8 



PRELl:v!INARY PLAT 3 - I X  
Riverside Vil las 
APN: 001-(,30-077 

See Development Department Memo dated April 1 8 ,  20 I 8for a complete review of the 
application. 

FINDINGS 

I .  The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use component of the Master 
Plan. 

2. The proposed subdivision is in confonnancc with the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan. 

3 .  The subdivision is in conformance with the Elko City Code sections 3-2-3.  Multiple 
family residential developments which contain five (5)  or more units are a pcnnitted 
conditional use provided for in the Commercial Zoning District. The development has an 
approved Conditional Use Permit 2 - 1 5 .  

4. The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4. 

5. The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(E) and (G). 

6. The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3 -2 - 1 7  for off street parking 
requirements. 

7. The subdivision is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2- 10(8)  with the approved 
Conditional Use Permit 2 - 1 5 .  

8. The Redevelopment Plan does not apply to the proposed subdivision. 

9. The existing development is in confonnancc with the City Wellhead Protection Program. 

1 0 .  The subdivision will not result in undue water or air pol lution. 

1 1 .  The proposed development will not cause unreasonable soil erosion or the reduction in 
the capacity of the land to hold water resulting in dangerous or unhealthy conditions. 

1 2 .  The proposed subdivision will not create an unreasonable burden on the exiting water 
supply. 

1 3 .  The exist ing development is currently served with existing utilities. 

1 4 .  The proposed development is not expected to have a negative impact on available public 
services. 

1 5 .  The requirement for a traffic study has been satisfied . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be APPROVED subject to the following conditions : 

Page 7 of 8 



P R E L I M I N A R Y  PLAT 3 - 1 8  

Riverside Villas 

APN 001-630-077 

Development Department: 

1 .  The applicant submits an application for F i n a l  Plat within a period of four ( 4) years in 
accordance w i t h  NRS 2 7 8 . 3 6 0 (  1  )(a).  Approval of the Preliminary Plat will automatically 
lapse at that t i m e .  

2 .  The applicant shall  comply with the requirements o f N R S  1 1 6 .  The developer shall 
provide a copy of any notices required to be provided to the residents pursuant to t h i s  
section o f N R S .  

Engineering Department: 

1 .  Show existing flood zones and water way. 

Fire Department: 

l .  D I  0 3 . 6  Signs: Where required by the fire code official, fire apparatus access roads shall 
be marked with permanent NO P A R K I N G - F I R E  L A N E  signs. Signs shall have a 
m i n i m u m  dimensions of 1 2  inches wide by 1 8  inches high and have red letters on a white 
reflective background. Signs shall be posted on one or both side of the fire apparatus 
road as required by Section 0 1 0 3 . 6 . 1  or 0 1 0 3 . 6 . 2 .  

2 .  Red Fire Lane Curbs w i l l  also need to be painted. 

Page 8 of 8 



To: Elko Planning Commission 
From: Jeremy Draper, PE, Development Manager 
RE: Preliminary Plat 3-18, Riverside Condominium 
Date: April 18, 2018 

CITY OF ELKO 
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775)777-7210 
(775)777-7219 FAX 

The City of Elko Development Department has reviewed the preliminary plat for Riverside 
Condominium to be located within the City of Elko near the intersection of 12th Street and Opal 
Drive. Applicable Master Plan Section, Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-10(8) General Commercial District 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback And 

Height Schedule For Principal Buildings 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 
• City of Elko Zoning - Chapter 3 Subdivisions 
• Nevada Revised Statutes-116, Common-Interest Ownership 

Background Information 

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Riverside Condos Pre Plat 3-18 041818 (2).docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper 



Page 2 of 7 

• The property is identified as Parcel 2A, shown on the Map of Reversion, file number 
665925, recorded on December 27, 20 12 .  

•  The property is zone C-General Commercial .  
• The property was developed as a multi-family apartment complex under CUP 2- 15 .  
•  The total area of parcel 2A is 7.872 Acres. 
• The preliminary plat shows a total of 96 units being converted to Condominiums, and 

one parcel as a common area. 
• The prel iminary plat identifies limited common elements identified as parking for each 

condominium. 
• There is no phasing shown on the prel iminary plat 
• The property is located near the intersection of 12th Street and Opal Drive. 
• The area is currently developed. 
• There are no areas being offered for dedication. 
• The area is bound by General Commercial to the east, south, and west, and Publ ic ,  

Quasi-Publ ic ,  and Planned Unit Development to the north. 
• The stage 1 for the proposed application was held on January 4, 2018 .  Items deal ing 

with the transition from a rental unit to a condominium were discussed during this 
meeting. 

• All civi l improvements are in place. 

Master Plan 

Land Use 

• The Land Use Component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Residential High 
Density. 

• The appl icable objectives of the Master Plan are 
o Objective 1 :  Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a 

variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 
o Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County 

wide natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, 
drainages, f loodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety. 
Staff believes there wi l l  be no negative impacts to natural systems and no issue 
with regard to human health and safety. 

• The density of High Density Residential is defined as nine (9)  or more units per acre, the 
proposed density of this development is 1 2 . 1 9  units per acre. 

Transportation 

• The project area is adjacent to 12th Street, a Major Arterial, and Opal Drive, a Collector 
Roadway. 

• A traffic study was provided with the development of the property. 
• All publ ic improvements are in place. 

The proposed subdivision is in general conformance with the Master Plan. 

Elko Redevelopment Plan 

' I 



Page 3 of 7 

• The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area 
Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• A portion of this property is within the 30 year capture zone for City Wel ls 
• Conformance with this plan is required 

Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 

• Section 3-2-3(C)( 1 )  of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 
shall apply: 

o Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 
"principal uses permitted" in zoning district regulations shal l be permitted as 
principal uses; all other uses shal l be prohibited as principal uses. 

o Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal 
or condit ional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

o Other uses may apply under certain conditions with appl icat ion to the City. 

• Section 3-2-3(0) states that "No land may be used or structure erected where the land is 
held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of 
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, 
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibi l i ty, or any other features 
l ikely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The 
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shal l  state in writing the 
particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The appl icant shall have the right 
to present evidence contesting such determination to the city counci l if he or she so 
desires, whereupon the city counci l  may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of 
unsuitabil ity." 

The development is in conformance with this section of code with CUP 2 - 15 .  

Section 3-2-4 Establishment Of Zoning Districts 

• Section 3-2-4(8) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shal l  be min imum regulations and shal l  apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection: 

• No bu i ld ing ,  structure or land shal l  hereafter be used or occupied and no bui ld ing or 
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally 
altered, unless in conformity with al l  regulations specified in this subsection for the 
district in which it is located. 

• No bui ld ing or other structure shal l  hereafter be erected or altered: 
o To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master P lan;  
o To accommodate or house a greater number of famil ies than as permitted in this 

chapter; 
o To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or 
o To have narrower or smal ler rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open 

spaces, than required in th is tit le; or in any other manner contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

' I 



Page 4 of 7 

• No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space, 
provided in connection with any bu i ld ing or use, shal l  be included as part of a yard, open 
space, or off street parking or loading space simi larly required for any other bu i ld ing .  

•  No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shal l be reduced in dimension or area 
below the minimum requirements set forth in this tit le. 

It appears the subdivision is in conformance with this section of code. 

Section 3-2-10 (B) C-General Commercial District 

• Section 3-2-10 (B)-4-, Condit ional Uses Permitted 
o Residential Uses, Multiple-family residential developments which contain five (5) 

or more units located on a s ing le lot or parcel; townhouse or condominium or 
attached housing developments. Residential uses must meet the setback 
standards in subsection 3-2-5-G of this chapter and development standards 
appl icable to multiple-family residential developments set forth in subsection 3-2- 
5-E-6 of this chapter. 

Conditional use permit 2 - 15 ,  has been approved for this property as a multiple-family residential 
development in a C-General Commercial district. 

Section 3-2-5 (G)-Residential Zoning District Area, Setback and Height Schedule for 
Principal and Certain Accessory Use Buildings 

• The property as developed is in conformance with this section of code. 

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Requirements 

• The property as developed is in conformance with this section of code. 

Section 3-8-Floodplain Management 

• The property was removed from the floodplain by a LOMR. 

General Comments 

• A hydrology report was provided when the property was developed 

• A soils report was provided when the property was developed 

• All civil improvements have been completed 

• All ut i l i t ies for the properties are in place 

Section 3-3-5 Preliminary Plat Stage (Stage I I )  

The Department finds that the subdivision plat submittal is in general compliance with the City of 
Elko Master Plan and appl icable subdiv is ion codes, Sections 3-3-5 PRELIMINARY PLAT 
STAGE (STAGE 1 1 ) ,  3-3-7 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT 
SUBMISS ION,  and 3-3-20 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR SUBDIVIS ION DESIGN with 
exceptions identified in the following discussion: 



Page 5 of 7 

Preliminary Plat 3-3-S(A) - A zoning amendment is not required. 

Preliminary Plat Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a) - Requires findings that the subdiv is ion wi l l  not result 
in undue water or a i r  pol lut ion: 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(a)(1) - The area is not located within a designated flood 
zone. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(a)(2) - The abil ity of soils to support waste disposal is not a 
consideration since the development wi l l  ut i l ize sanitary sewer infrastructure. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(a)(3) - The property is currently developed, no addit ional 
grading wi l l  take place. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(a)(4) - The property is currently developed, no addit ional  
flows are expected. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(b) - The City of Engineering Department is required to model 
the anticipated water consumption of the subdivision. There is no additional impact to the city 
water system as this is a conversion to a condomin ium. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(c) -Development of the proposed wil l not cause 
unreasonable soi l  erosion. No addit ional development is proposed. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(d) - The proposed subdiv is ion wi l l  not create an 
unreasonable burden on the exiting water supply. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(e) - The proposed subdivision completed a traffic study when 
developed, addit ional traffic is not expected with the conversion to a condominium. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(f) - The Master Plan Land Use Map shows the area as High 
Density Resident ia l .  The surrounding area is characterized by developed mult iple-family with 
the potential for commercial development in the future. The proposed development is in general 
conformance with the Master Plan .  

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(g) - Utilities are avai lable in the immediate area and the 
property is connected to them. 

Preliminary Plat Approval (E)(2)(h) - The property was developed with a tot lot, community 
bu i l d i ng ,  and swimming pool . 

Section 3-3-7 Information Required For Preliminary Plat Submittal 

Identification Data (8)(1 )  -  The subdivision name, location and section, township and range, is 
shown on Sheet 1 of 3. 

Identification Data (8)(2) - The name, address and phone of the subdivider, the address are 
shown on page 1 of the preliminary plat. 

Identification Data (8)(3) - The engineer's contact infomation is shown on Sheet 1 of 2. 

-------- -- - · 

----- - - --

, I' 

i I I , 



Page 6 of 7 

Identification Data (8)(4) - The scale, north point ,  preparation and revision information is 
shown on 1 of 3. 

Identification Data (8)(5) - The location map is shown on Sheet 1 of 2. 

Identification Data (8)(6) - A legal description is shown on Sheet 1 of 2. 

E x i s t i n g  C o n d i t i o n s  Data ( C )( 1 )  -  A topographic map is not provided, the area is currently 
developed. 

Existing C o n d i t i o n s  Data (C)(2) - There are no signif icant features or Special Flood Hazards 
to be shown on the plat, as the area was removed by the fi l ing of a LOMR. 

Existing Conditions Data (C)(3) - There area is adjacent to the floodway of the Humboldt 
River, the northern portion of the parcel is in the floodway, this area is not proposed for 
development. 

Existing Conditions Data (C)(4) - Sheet 1 of the plat identifies al l the roadways, easements 
and corporate l imits within and adjacent to the tract. 

E x i s t i n g  Conditions Data (C)(S) - Identification data is shown for al l  of the adjacent properties. 

Existing Conditions Data (C)(6) - The zone for the area is shown on Sheet 1 of 2, and is 
shown incorrectly as R-Single Family and Multiple-Family Residential . 

Existing Conditions Data (C)(7) - Dimensions of a l l  tract boundaries, gross and net acreage of 
tract is shown on Sheet 1 of 2. 

Proposed Conditions Data ( D )( 1 )  -  The are no proposed streets. 

Proposed C o n d i t i o n s  Data (D)(2) - The lot layout is shown. The area and d imensions for each 
lot are shown. 

Proposed Conditions Data (D)(3) - All existing easements are identified on sheet 1 .  

Proposed C o n d i t i o n s  Data (D)(4) - The required information is Sheets 1 and 2. 

Proposed Conditions Data (D)(S) - No zone changes are proposed. 

Proposed Conditions Data (0)(6) - CC & R's are proposed, a copy has been provided. 

Proposed Conditions Data (D)(7) - No addit ional grading is proposed for th is site. 

Proposed Conditions Data (D)(8} - The sub divider wil l be required to comply with the City of 
Elke's storm water regulations. 

Proposed Utility Methods ( E )( 1 )  -  The property is currently connected to city ut i l i t ies. 

Proposed Utility Methods (E)(2} - The property is currently connected to city uti l it ies. 

' ! I ' 



Page 7 of 7 

Proposed Utility Methods (E)(3) - The property has completed storm drain improvements. 

Proposed Utility Methods (E)(4) - All uti l i t ies have been completed. 

Proposed Utility Methods (E)(S) - The City Utility Department will issue Intent to Serve letters 
once the City has approved the Preliminary Plat. 

NRS 116-Common-lnterest Ownership 

• The developer sha l l  comply with this section of NRS. 

• The developer shall provide a copy of notices given to residents for the conversion of the 
bu i ld ing per NRS 1 1 6 .  

Other 

• The appl icant has provided a copy of the bylaws for the Riverside Vil las Community 
Association, Inc. 

• The appl icant has provided a copy of the Condominium Declaration and Covenants, 
Condit ions and Restrictions for Riverside Vi l las .  

Findings 

• The subdivision is in conformance with the Master Plan. 

• The subdivision is general ly in conformance with the appl icable Sections of City Code. 

• The Redevelopment Plan does not apply to the proposed subdiv is ion.  

• The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection 
Program. 

• The subdivision wi l l  not result in undue water or a ir pol lut ion. 

• The City has adequate water supply to meet foreseeable needs of the subdiv is ion .  

• The proposed development will not cause unreasonable soil erosion or the reduction in 
the capacity of the land to hold water resulting in dangerous or unhealthy conditions. 

• The proposed subdivision wi l l  not create an unreasonable burden on the exiting water 
supply. 

• A requirement for a traffic study has been satisfied 

• The proposed development is not expected to have a negative impact on avai lable 
public services. 

Recommendation 

The City of Elko Development Department recommends the prel iminary plat be approved with 
the following conditions: 

1 .  The appl icant submits an application for Final Plat within a period of four (4) years in 
accordance with NRS 278.360(1 )(a). Approval of the Prel iminary Plat wi l l  automatically 
lapse at that t ime. 

2. The applicant shall comply with the requirements of NRS 1 1 6 .  The developer shall 
provide a copy of any notices required to be provided to the residents pursuant to th is 
section of NRS. 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv us 

1751CollegeAvenue ·  E lko ,Nevada89801  ·  (775)777-7160 ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 1 9  

April 24, 2 0 1 8  

Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC 
1 8 0  North University A venue, Suite 200 
Provo, UT 84601 

Re: Preliminary Plat No. 3 - 1 8  

Dear Applicant/ Agent: 

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted 
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also 
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information 
before the meeting. 

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance 
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting 
but wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission 
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received, or if you wi l l  not 
be able to attend this meeting, please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160 .  

Enclosures 

CC :  High Desert Engineering, Attn: Bob Morley, 640 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 8 9 8 0 1  



0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-<
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-0
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

z
 

en
 

en
 

en
 

en
 

en
 

en
 

en
 

en
 

0
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

u,
 

-..J
 

l.D
 

en
 

+'>
 

l.D
 

l.D
 

l.D
 

en
 

00
 

en
 

l.D
 

I-'
 

+'>
 

w
 

I-'
 

Vl
 

;:,:,
 

-0
 

'----
 

rn
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

-0
 

C)
 
<
 

)>
 

0
 

r-
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

)>
 

;:,:,
 

Vl
 

;;:,:;
 

-I
 

-I
 

-I
 

z
 

z
 

rn
 

;:,:,
 

I
 

0
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

)>
 

)>
 

;:,:,
 

)>
 

c
 

-I
 

Vl
 

-0
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

$
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

-I
 

-I
 

-I
 

�
 

c
 

0
 

0
 

-I
 

n
 

;:,:,
 

;:,:,
 

;:,:,
 

rn
 

;:,:,
 

rn
 

;:,:,
 

rn
 

rn
 

rn
 

rn
 

<
 

-0
 

rn
 

"Tl
 

rn
 

rn
 

rn
 

0
 

)>
 

rn
 

n
 

-I
 

-I
 

-I
 

,--
 

rn
 

,--
 

;:,:,
 

Vl
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

<
 

)>
 

-I
 

I
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

rn
 

Vl
 

z
 

rn
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

,--
 

rn
 

,--
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

;:,:,
 

-I
 

n
 

n
 

n
 

n
 

-0
 

,--
 

Vl
 

rn
 

� �
 � 

� 
rn

 
,--

 
,--

 
;:,:,

 
;:,:,

 
n

 
-0

 
-I

 
-I

 
-I

 
-I

 
Vl

 
rn

 
rn

 
rn

 
rn

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
,--

 

n
 

,--
 

,--
 

,--
 

�
 

n
 

�
 

.......
 

n
 

n
 

n
 

-0
 

......_
......_

 -
 $

 
�

 
0

 0
 0

 

C)
 C)

 C)
 )>

 
�

-
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

0
 

"
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

I-'
 

-I
 

-I
 

-I
 

�
 

0
 
0

 
0

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
��

 �
 

..c
 

� s
 �

 
,--

 ,--
 ,--

 

-
 

;;:,:;
 ;;:,:;

 ;;:,:;
 

�
 

rn
 rn

 rn
 

-
 

;:,:,
 ;:,:,

 ;:,:,
 

Vl
 Vl

 Vl
 

-
 

0
 0

 0
 

c:p
 

z
 z

 z
 

$
 $

 $
 

�
 

C)
 C)

 C)
 

-I
 -I

 -I
 

+'>
 I-'

 I-'
 -0

 -0
 ..::.

 ..::.
 ..::.

 -0
 �

 
u,

 00
 N

 0
 0

 -..J
 -..J

 -..J
 $

 
-I

 0
 N

 
u,

 u,
 u,

 

'
 

u,
 CJ:!

 CJ:!
 I-'

 I-'
 I-'

 )>
 

rn
 z

 -..J
 0

 0
 

0
 

-I
 

x
 x

 n
 n

 n
 0

 
c9

 
0

 c
 CJ:!

 
)>

 )>
 :t>

 
z

 z
 c

 I-'
 N

 c
 c

 c
 N

 

<
 Vl

 w
 en

 C)
 C)

 C)
 

�
 

0
 

u,
 00

 
;:,:,

 rn
 z

 w
 00

 I
 I

 I
 

;:,:,
 rn

 
� �

 ,-- 
Vl

 Vl
 

z
 z

 z
 

..-.
 

.
 

=i Vl
 

-<
 -0

 
-0

 -0
 -0

 
�

 
)>

 :t>
 

;;:,:;
 ;;:,:;

 ;;:,:;
 

,;::.
 

<
 ;:,:,

 
�

 �
 �

 
�

 
rn

 ;;:,:;
 

-<
 -<

 -<
 

(j)
 

Vl
 0

 

p..:_
 

-I
 ;:,:,

 

rn
 Vl

 
�

 
N

 -I
 

0
 rn

 
0

 I-'
 

c_
 

-
 

� 
-0

 -I
 rn

 rn
 ;:,:,

 ;:,:,
 ;:,:,

 -0
 

.---
 

z
 ;:,:,

 ;:,:,
 r-

 r-
 rn

 rn
 rn

 $
 

5:)
 

0
 c

 ;;:,:;
 ;;:,:;

 z
 z

 z
 

0
 

0
 0

 
n

 
0

 <
 n

 
0

 0
 0

 -I
 

�
 

0
 ;;:,:;

 z
 z

 
Vl

 
z

 
rn

 <
 <

 z
 z

 z
 -I

 
0

 
c

 rn
 

<
 <

 <
 

c
 -I

 n
 

a_
 

-I
 

:t>
 

00
 00

 l.D
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 -0
 

0
 

..::.
 ..::.

 en
 l.D

 l.D
 l.D

 l.D
 l.D

 !:::::!
 

(/)
 

0
 en

 I-'
 00

 00
 u,

 u,
 u,

 
..::.

 0
 en

 0
 0

 I-'
 I-'

 I-'
 -0

 

N
 I-'

 I-'
 w

 w
 l.D

 l.D
 l.D

 

'
 

'
 
w

 '
 
N

 6
 6

 6
 

N
 u,

 
I-'

 
N

 CJ,
 w

 w
 CJ,

 l.D
 l.D

 l.D
 

-..J
 ..::.

 w
 u,

 00
 N

 N
 N

 
N

 00
 ..::.

 w
 00

 ..::.
 ..::.

 ..::.
 

I I 

II 





NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning 
Commission wi l l  conduct a series of public hearings on 
Tuesday, May I ,  2 0 1 8  beginning at 5 : 30  P .M.  P .D.S .T .  at 
Elko City Hal l ,  1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and 
that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on 
these matters under consideration in person, by writ ing, or 
by representative. 

The specific item to be considered under pub l i c  hearing 
format is :  

Preliminary Plat No. 3-18, filed by Robert E. Morley 
on behalf of Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC, for the 
development of a subdivision entitled Riverside Villas 
a Condominium Development involving the proposed 
division of approximately 7.872 acres of property into 
97 lots and a common area for residential development 
within the C (General Commercial) Zoning District, 
and matters related thereto. The subject property is 
located generally on the northwest corner of the 
intersection of S. 12 Street and Opal Drive (APN 001- 
630-077). 

Addit iona l  information concerning this item may be 
obtained by contacting the Elko City P lann ing Department 
at (775) 777-7 160 .  

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 

Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  College A v e n u e ·  Elko,Nevada89801  ·  ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

April 1 1 ,  2 0 1 8  

NV Energy 

Mr. Robert Lino 

4 2 1 6  Ruby Vista Dr. 

Elko, NV 8 9 8 0 1 - 1 6 3 2  

SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat No. 3-18/Riverside Villas a Condominium Development 

Dear Mr. Lino: 

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted preliminary plat for the 

proposed Riverside Villas a Condominium Development subdivision, which is tentatively 
scheduled for consideration by the Elko City Planning Commission at their May I ,  2 0 1 8  meeting. 

Please submit written comments to the Elko City Planning Department. If we do not receive 

written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we will  assume you have no concerns 
regarding this application. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

��ft@ 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 

Email: planning@,clkocitynv gov 

1 7 5 1  College A v e n u e ·  Elko,Nevada89801  ·  ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

April 1 1 , 2 0 1 8  

Southwest Gas Corporation 

Engineering Department 

PO Box 1 1 9 0  
Carson City, NV 89702 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat No. 3-18/Riverside Villas a Condominium Development 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted preliminary plat for the 
proposed Riverside Vil las a Condominium Development subdivision, which is tentatively 
scheduled for consideration by the Elko City Planning Commission at their May 1 ,  2 0 1 8  meeting. 

Please submit written comments to the Elko City Planning Department. If we do not receive 
written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we will assume you have no concerns 

regarding this application. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

�/�rCWJ,Mr 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 
Email: planning(ii)elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  College A v e n u e ·  Elko, Nevada89801  ·  (775) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  

April 1 1 ,  2 0 1 8  

Satview Broadband 

Mr. Steve Halliwell 

3 5 5 0  Barron Way, Suite 1 3 A  

Reno, NV 8 9 5 1 1  

Fax (775) 777-7219 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat No. 3-18/Riverside Villas a Condominium Development 

Dear Mr. Halliwell :  

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted preliminary plat for the 

proposed Riverside Vil las a Condominium Development subdivision, which is tentatively 

scheduled for consideration by the Elko City Planning Commission at their May I ,  2 0 1 8  meeting. 

Please submit written comments to the Elko City Planning Department. If we do not receive 

written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we w i l l  assume you have no concerns 

regarding this application. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

2��� 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 



CITY OF ELKO 
P lann ing Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 

Email: planning(a,clkocitynv gov 

1 7 5 1  College A v e n u e ·  E lko ,Nevada89801  ·  (775)777-7 160  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

A p r i l l l , 2 0 1 8  

Frontier Communications 

Mr. \Villiam Whitaker 

1 1 1  W. Front Street 
Elko, NV 89801  

SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat No. 3-18/Riverside Villas a Condominium Development 

Dear Mr. Whitaker: 

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted preliminary plat for the 
proposed Riverside Villas a Condominium Development subdivision, which is tentatively 

scheduled for consideration by the Elko City Planning Commission at their May l ,  2 0 1 8  meeting. 

Please submit written comments to the Elko City Planning Department. If we do not receive 

written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we wil l  assume you have no concerns 
regarding this application. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

s��_kGW� 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 



CITY OF ELKO 
Plann ing Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 

Email: planning1l;elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  CollegeAvenue · Elko,Nevada89801  ·  ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

April 1 1 ,  2 0 1 8  

Elko County School District 

Mr. Jeff Zander 

PO Box 1 0 1 2  

Elko, NV 89803 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Plat No. 3-18/Riverside Villas a Condominium Development 

Dear Mr. Zander: 

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted preliminary plat for the 
proposed Riverside Villas a Condominium Development subdivision, which is tentatively 

scheduled for consideration by the Elko City Planning Commission at their May 1 ,  2 0 1 8  meeting. 

Please submit written comments to the Elko City Planning Department. If we do not receive 

written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we will assume you have no concerns 

regarding this application. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

s�/1CM,0� 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 



CITY OF ELKO 
P lann ing Department 

IJ ebsite: 111111 .c lkocitynv.go, 

Email: rlannin.ura elkoci tvnv ._um 

1 7 5 1  C o l l e g e  Avenue ·  E l k o ,  N e v a d a  8 9 8 0 1  ·  ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  Fax ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

February 1 3 ,  2 0 1 8  

1\'V Energy 

i\lr. Robert Lino 

4 2 1 6  R u b y  V i s t a  Dr. 

Elko, N V  8 9 8 0 1 - 1 6 3 2  

S U B J E C T:  P r e l i m i n a r y  P l a t  N o .  3 - 1 8 / R i v e r s i c l c  V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  D e v e l o p m e n t  

Dear M r .  L i n o :  

E n c l o s e d  for your r e v i e w  and i n f o r m a t i o n  i s  a  copy o f  the s u b m i t t e d  p r e l i m i n a r y  p l a t  for the 

p r o p o s e d  Riverside V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  D e v e l o p m e n t  subdivis ion which is t e n t a t i v e l y  

s c h e d u l e d  for consideration by t h e  E l k o  C i t y  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  at t h e i r  March 6, 2 0 1 8  

m e e t i n g .  

P l e a s e  s u b m i t  w r i t t e n  c o m m e n t s  to the E l k o  C i t y  P l a n n i n g  D e p a r t m e n t .  I f  we do n o t  r e c e i v e  

w r i t t e n  c o m m e n t s  p r i o r  to t h e  s c h e d u l e d  meeting,  we w i l l  a s s u m e  you have no concerns 
r egar d ing t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n .  

T h a nk you for your a t ten t ion  to this matter. 

Si n c e r e ly, 

�\ ll � V:L\J\:{C\cuttk; 
S h e l b y  Ar c hu l ctb 
P l a n n i n g  T e c h n i c i a n  

E n c l o s u r e s  



CITY OF ELKO 
P lann ing Department 

JI 'ebsite: 111111 .el kc1cw, 1 1 1  g,11 

Email: rLmning c1 elkocuvnv ,;201 

1 7 5 1  College A v e n u e ·  Elko, N e va d a 8 9 8 0 1  ·  ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

February 1 3 .  2 0 1 8  

Southwest Gas Corporation 
Engineering Department 

PO Box 1 1 9 0  
Carson City, NV 89702 

S L ; B J E C T :  Preliminary Plat No.  3 - 1 8 / R i v e r s i d c  V i l l a s  a  Condominium Development 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted preliminary plat for the 
proposed Riverside Vi l las  a  Condominium D e .  elopmcnt subdivision which is tentatix ely 
schedu led for considera t ion by the E lko City Plann ing Comm iss ion at their March 6. 2 0 1 8  
meet ing, 

Please submit wr i t ten comments to the E lko C i ty Planning Department . If \\C do not  rece ive 
written commen ts prior to the scheduled meet ing. we w i l l  assume you have no concerns 
regard ing this app l ica t ion. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

S incerely , 

�\V)�vl,\ :A:(Chu&�1 
Shelby Archuleta 
Planning Techn ician 

Enc I os ures 

\' 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

H  'ebsitc: 111111 .clkocitynv.gov 

Email: planning1cL<:lkocitv111 .gn1 

1 7 5 1  College Avenue · Elko,  Nevada 8 9 8 0 1  ·  (  7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  Fax ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

February 1 3 .  2 0 1 8  

Satview Broadband 
;\'Ir. Steve Halliwell 

3 5 5 0  Barron Way, S u i t e  1 3 /\  
Reno, N V  8 9 5 1 1  

S U B J E C T :  Preliminary P l a t  N o .  3 - 1 8 / R i v c r s i d e  V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  Development 

Dear Mr. H a l l i w e l l :  

Enclosed for your review and i n f o rm a t i o n  is a copy o f  the s u b m i t t e d  p r e l i m i n a r y  plat  for the 
proposed Riverside V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  Development s u b d i v i s i o n  w h i c h  is t en ta t ive ly 
schedu l e d  for cons i dera t ion by the E lko  City P l a nn ing Commiss ion at the ir  March 6, 2 0 1 8  
meet ing. 

Please subm it  written comments to the E lko C i ty P lann i ng Department . I f  we do not receive 
wr itten comments pr ior to the schedu led meeting. we w i l l  assume you have no concerns 
regard ing t h is app l ica t ion .  

Thank you for your attent ion to this matter . 

Sincerely, 

\),��\J\(CA�- 
Shelby ArclnJcta 
P lan n i ng Techn ic ian 

Enc losures 



CITY OF ELKO 
P lann ing Department 

IJ cbsire: w v w.elkoci t  v  n ,  gln 
Email: rlann ins.:' c cc lknc i t 1 r l \  .uo1 

1 7 5 1  C o l l e g e  Avenue ·  E l k o , N c v a d a 8 9 8 0 1  ·  ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

February 1 3 ,  2 0 1 8  

Frontier C o m m u n i c a t i o n s  
i\lr.  \Villiam Whitaker 

1 1 1  W. Front Street 
E l k o .  NV 8 9 8 0 1  

S U B J E C T :  Preliminary Plat No. 3 - 1 8 / R i v c r s i d e  V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  Development 

Dear Mr. Whitaker:  

Enclosed for your review and information is a copy of the submitted prel iminary plat for the 
proposed Rix crside V i l l a s  a  Condominium Development s u b d i v i s i o n  which is tentatively 
scheduled for consideration hy the Elko  C i ty P lann ing C omm iss ion at their March 6. 20 l 8 
meet ing .  

Please submit written commen ts to the Elko City Plann i ng Department. If \\'C do not  receive 
written commen ts prior to the scheduled meet ing. we will assume you have no concerns 
regarding this app l ication. 

Thank you for your attention to th is  matter .  

S incerely, 

�1uJI � �Uk ffb 
She lby Archu leta 
P lan n i ng Techn ician 

Enc losures 



CITY OF ELKO 
P lann ing Department 

II cbsite: \\ 11·11 .e lkocitynv .gu1 

Email: nlan runerz  c lkocnvnv Le(\\  

1 7 5 1  C o l l e g e A v e n u e  ·  E l k o , N e v a d a 8 9 8 0 1  ·  ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  

February 1 3 ,  2 0 1 8  

E l k o  County School Distr ict  
Mr. Jeff Zander 
PO Box l  O 1 2  
E l k o ,  NV 89803 

Fax ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  

S U B J E C T :  Preliminary Plat  No. 3 -  I  S!Riverside V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  Development 

Dear Mr.  Zander: 

E n c l o s e d  for your review and information is a copy of the submitted prel iminary plat  for the 
proposed Riverside V i l l a s  a  C o n d o m i n i u m  Development s u b d i v i s i o n  w h i c h  is t e n t a t i v e l y  
scheduled for considerat ion by the E l k o  City P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  at t h e i r  March 6, 2 0 1 8  
meeting .  

P lease s ubm i t  writ ten comments to the E lko C i t y  P l ann i ng Department .  I f  we do not receive 

written comments prior to the schedu led meeting, we w i l l  assume you have no concerns 

regarding this  app l ic a t ion .  

Thank you for your attention to t h i s  matter. 

Sincerely, 

� '  ,  .0 I �"' \ �rl' I • J;Jn .. \ 
L)v0l/v""--�; \�LNL 

IV 

Shelby Archuleta 
P lanning Technician 

Enclosures 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801 
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT (STAGE II) APPROVAL 
**PRIOR TO SUBMITTING THIS APPLICATION, PRE-APPLICATION (STAGE I) MUST BE COMPLETE** 

APPLICANT(s):I Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC - Contact: Branson Brinton 
MAILING ADDRESS:! 180 North University Avenue, Suite 200, Provo, UT 84601 

PHONE NO (Home)I I (Business� (385) 207-7225 I 

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):I.__N_A __, 
(Property owner consent in writing must be provided) 

MAILING ADDRESS:! I  
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessarv): 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:I 001-630-077 !Address! 1525 Opal Drive 
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdr-iv.;;..;;i..;::_s;;...;:io�n'--l,l ----1 

Or Parcel(s) & F i le No. I Parcel 2A, Map of Reversion, File No. 665925 

APPLICANT'S REPRESENTATIVE OR ENGINEER: I  High Desert Engineering, LLC 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an applicat ion form 
must be complete and s igned .  Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
schedu led meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1 s t  Tuesday of 
every month) , and must inc lude the following: 

1 .  One .pdf of the entire appl ication , and ten ( 1 0 )  24" x 36" copies of the prelim inary plat 
folded to a size not to exceed 9"x12" provided by a properly licensed surveyor, as well as 
one ( 1 )  set of reproducib le p lans 8 W' x 1 1 "  in size and any required supporting data, 
prepared in accordance with Section 3-3-7 of the Elko City Code (see attached 
check l ist). 

2. A Development Master Plan when, in the opinion of the Planning Commission , the 
proposed subdivision is sufficiently large enough to comprise a major part of a future 
neighborhood or the tract in itial ly proposed for platting is on ly a part of a larger land area. 

3. A pre l im inary grading plan for subdivisions involv ing property characterized by an 
average slope greater than ten percent ( 10% ). 

Fee: $750.00 + $25 .00 per lot including remainder parcels; non-refundable. 

Other Information : The app l icant is encouraged to submit other information and 
documentation to support the request. 

Revised 1/24/18 

RECEIVED 

FEB O 9 2018 Page 1 

-- ==-=-=======-
I' I 

- -

. -

- -

I _I 



PROJECT DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE: _ 

The apartments within the buildings shown on the tentative map were at one time converted to condominium units by 

the Final Map of the Riverside Condominiums - Phase 1 approved by the City of Elko and filed for record on 

November 5, 2008. These condominium units were subsequently reverted to apartments by the Map of Reversion 

approved by the City of Elko and filed for record on December 27, 201 1 .  The owners of the project would again like to 

convert the apartments within the buildings shown to condominium units. 

The infrastructure associated with this project is existing. All of the buildings, streets, driveways, curbs, gutters, parking 

lots, and utilities, etc., associated with the buildings and project are complete and currently serve the units shown. 

(Use additional pages if necessary) 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 2 



Preliminary Plat Checklist 3-3-7 

Date Name 
I  
Identification Data 

,__.,-· Subdivision Name 
-  Location and Section, Township and Range ,. 

/ Reference to a Section Corner or Quarter-Section Corner 

!  -- Name, address and phone number of subdivider 
:  

,  

Name, address and phone number of engineer/surveyor 

-· Scale, North Point and Date of Preparation 
Dates of Revisions 

_,. Location maps 
.-- 

.• Legal description of boundaries 

Existing Conditions Data 
(V,,.:; 2' contours on city coordinate system 

,../ ,-:::. Location of Water Wel ls  
I  location of Streams, private ditches, washes and other features rv'.A 

!  1,/ c:: N ,;_:__ Location of Designated flood zones 
. >  The Location, widths and Names of al l  platted Streets, ROW 

,.._; (;:'/ Municipal Corporation Lines 
.,--' Name, book and page numbers of al l  recorded plats 
�- Existing Zoning Classifications 
� /  Zoning of Adjacent Properties 
c-: Dimensions of a l l  tract boundaries, gross and net acreage 

Proposed Conditions Data 
:  

..,..- Street Layout, location, widths, easements 
,-/A Traffic Impact Analysis 

i  
.>: Lot layout, inc lud ing dimensions of typical lots 

,-,/ r::i Corner Lot Layout 

! 
,JP, lot layout on Street Curves 

, - ·  
��·· Each lot numbered consecutively 
.- Total number of lots »: 

i c-: Location, Width and proposed use of easements 
r/,:J Location, extent and proposed use of a l l  land to be dedicated 
.,JA location and boundary of all  proposed zoning districts 

Draft of proposed deed restrictions 
,_,, ,:i Pre l iminary Grading P lan 

i  
f/ p, Conceptual cut and fi l l  
rt p, Estimated quality of material to be graded 

i  SWPPP 

Proposed Utilties 

!  v" Sewage Disposal, design for sewage disposal 
'  /' 

.. Water Supply, Evidence of adequate volume and qual ity 
/  Storm Drain, Prel iminary Calculations and layout 

/ Telephone, Power, Gas, Television 
Wil l  Serve Letter by Engineering Department 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 3 

. 



By My Signature below: 
·s I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of 

inspection of said property as part of this application process. 

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of t h e i r  review of 

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

"&l_ I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 

the City P l a n n i n g  Department, the City P l a n n i n g  Commission a n d  the City Council,  nor does it in 
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 

tzl_ I  acknowledge that this application may be tabled u n t i l  a  later meeting if either I or my 

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
s c h e d u l e d .  

S--- I  have carefully read a n d  completed a l l  questions contained within this application to the 

best of my ability. 

Applicant/ AgentlRobert E.  Morley, Agent 
(Please print or type) 

Mailing Address 1640 Idaho Street 
Street Address or P . O .  Box 

j E l k o ,  N V  8 9 8 0 1  

P h o n e  N u m b e r :  775-738-4053 

E m a i l  address: remorley@frontiernet.net 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

File No.: f,- )  �  Date Filed: 1/<l !  / h  Fee Paid:$ 'q\ 15 Ck rt J  ?/r(Q 3 
q Ce I m ii s :t Ccmm�1 lweo. .. q + 

ct 1  :l'1'5 -: 2f\ 2° 
+-  :/'Sb 

� 
I  

Revised 1 / 2 4 / 1 8  Page 4 



Recording Requested By and 
When Recorded Return to: 
PEG DEVELOPMENT 

Attn: Cameron Gunter 
1 80  North University Avenue Suite 200 
Provo, Utah 8460 I 

RECEIVED 

APR I O 2018 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR CLERK ·s USE ONLY 

City of Elko, Elko County, Nevada 

Condominium Declaration and 

Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR 

RIVERSIDE VILLAS 

ARTICLE I 

RECITALS AND CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 

Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC, a Delaware limited l iabil ity company ("Declarant") makes 
this Condominium Declaration and Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions for the Project (as 
defined below) as of this day of , 2018 ,  upon the basis 
of the following facts, understandings and intentions: 

Section 1 . 1  The Declarant; The Real Property. Declarant is the Owner of al l  that certain 
real property (the "Real Property") located in the City of Elko, Elko County, Nevada, which is 
more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. Oeclarant has 
complete and unfettered ownership of the Real Property including certain improvements 
consisting of Apartment Homes known as "Riverside Vil las" with landscaped areas, walkways, 
parking areas and streets (all of said improvements being referred to herein as the 
"Improvements"). The Real Property and the Improvements together constitute the "Project." 

Section 1 . 2  Intent ion of Declarant. Declarant intends ( i) to develop the Project 
providing for separate title to ninety-six (96) l iving units to be a condominiums as defined in 
Chapter 1 1 6  "Common-Interest Ownership (Uniform Act)" of The Nevada Revised Statutes 
appurtenant to which wil l be an undiv ided fractional interest in the Project other than l iv ing units 
and pursuant to a general plan for maintenance care, use, and management of the project; and 
( i i )  to sel l the condomin iums thus created. 

Dec larant anticipates that the Project may be further developed through the annexation of 
one or more addit ional  phases comprised of al l or part of the real property described in Exhibit B  
(the "Annexab le Property"). There is no guarantee that all phases wil l be completed or brought 
into the Project, or that the contemplated number of Units or the recreational facil ities that are 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 1 



described herein wi l l  be developed as described above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
maximum number of Uni ts in the Project shal l  not exceed two hundred fifty-two (252) Units. 

Section 1 . 3  The Project. The Units are al l integral parts of an overall development. 
The utility and enjoyment of each Unit  is dependent upon common elements of the Improvements 
and requires the establishment of easements and covenants through the Project other than living 
units for the common and joint government of the Real Property and Improvements in a manner 
beneficial to al l  of the Units, al l  components thereof and al l interests therein. Accordingly, 
Declarant desires to establish and create easements, covenants and restrictions through and 
upon the Project other than l iving units to provide for the joint use, management, government and 
operation of the Units as part of a common plan for the joint use and occupancy of each and every 
part of the Project and interest therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, incorporating the foregoing Recitals, Oeclarant hereby creates and 
establ ishes easement, covenants and restrictions through the Project other than living units which 
shal l run with the land and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns 
of the Owners of the Units and every part thereof and every interest therein as part of a common 
plan to regulate and govern the joint use and occupancy of the Real Property and Improvements, 
to enhance the value thereof, and for other beneficial purposes. 

ARTICLE II 

ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 

The following terms shal l  have the following meanings when used herein unless the 
context otherwise requires. 

Section 2 . 1  "Articles" shal l  mean the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, 
which have been filed in the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada, a copy of 
which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit C and made a part hereof. 

Section 2 .2  "Assessment" shall mean that portion of the cost of maintaining,  
improving, operating and managing the Project, which is to be paid by each Owner as determined 
by the Association. 

Section 2 .3  "Association" shal l  mean and refer to The Riverside Vil las Community 
Association, Inc .  ("RVCA"), a Nevada nonprofit corporation, the Members of which shal l  be 
Owners of the Units. 

Section 2.4 "Association Easements" shal l  mean easements granted to Owners 
and the Association for the benefit of its Members. 

Section 2 .5  "Association Property" shal l  mean all real and personal property now 
or hereafter owned by or leased to the Association. 

Section 2 .6  "Association Rules" and/or "Regulations" shal l mean the rules and 
regulations of the Association as adopted and/or amended from time to t ime. 

Section 2 .7  "Board" and "Board of Directors" shal l  mean and refer to the 
governing body of the Association. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 2 



Section 2 .8  "Bu i ld ings"  shal l  mean al l  of those structures located upon the Real 
Property, comprised of Apartment Homes where the Apartment Homes are in structures with 
three (3) aboveground stories. 

Section 2 . 9  "Bylaws" shal l  mean or refer to the Bylaws of the Association, as 
amended from time to t ime, a copy of which is attached hereto marked as Exhibit D and made a 
part hereof. 

Section 2. 1 0  
Common Area. 

"Common Area" shal l mean al l  Common Areas which are not Limited 

Section 2 . 1 1  "Capital Improvement Assessment" shal l mean a charge against 
each Owner and his Unit representing a portion of the costs to the Association for installation or 
construction of any Improvements on any portion of the Common Elements which the Association 
may from time to time authorize, pursuant to the provisions of this Declaration. 

Section 2 . 1 2  "Common Elements" shal l  mean al l  of the Project, except Units. The 
definit ion of Common Elements shal l  include, without l imi tat ion ,  the fol lowing components. 

(a) The bu i ld ings ( inc lud ing ,  but not by way of l imitat ion,  the foundation, 
co lumns ,  girders, beams, supports, perimeter and supporting wal ls ,  chimneys, chimney 
chases, roofs, stairs, patios, balconies, entrances and exits, and the mechanical 
instal lat ions of a building consisting of the equipment and materials making up any central 
services such as power, l ight ,  gas,  hot and cold water, sewer, and heating and central a i r  
condit ioning which exist for use by one or more of the Owners, including the pipes, vents, 
ducts, flues, cable conduits, wires, telephone wire, and other similar utility installations 
used in connection therewith), except for the Units ,  and 

(b) The sidewalks, walkways, paths, grass, shrubbery, trees, driveways, 
roadways, landscaping, parking areas, street l ight ing ,  entry features, signage, perimeter 
walls and fenced, retention ponds, and related facil it ies upon the Property; and 

(c) The pumps, tanks, motors, fans, storm drainage structures, compressors, 
ducts, and, in general, a l l  apparatus, instal lat ions, arid equipment of a bui ld ing existing for 
the use of one or more of the Owners; and 

(d) Any recreational facility or facil it ies, in a location or locations within the 
Property as designated by Declarant, the Improvements on which will or may consist of a 
pool, clubhouse, barbeque areas and amenit ies, basketball court, children's play area 

- and/or tot lot, and/or other s imi lar amenit ies, together with any related faci l i t ies; and 

(e) The Limited Common Elements and al l other parts of the Project 
designated by Declarant as Common Elements or Limited Common Elements and existing 
for the use of one or more of the Owners. 

The Common Elements shal l  be owned by the Owners of the Units ,  each Owner 
of a Unit having an undivided interest in the Common Elements as provided below .  

Sect ion 2 . 1 3  "Common Expenses" shall mean the expenses or financial l iabil ities 
for the operat ion of the Project together with any a l locations to reserves and shal l include :  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 3 

I, 



(a) Expenses of administration, insurance, operation, maintenance, repair or 
replacement of the Common Elements, inc luding,  without l imitation, the painting and 
maintenance of the exterior walls of the bui ld ings in which the Units are located and any 
perimeter walls of the Project, except to the extent such repairs and replacements are the 
responsibi l ity of an Owner pursuant to the terms of this Declaration; 

(b) Expenses declared to be Common Expenses under the Governing 
Documents or the Act; 

(c) Sums lawfully assessed against the Units by the Board of Directors; 

(d) Any other expenses agreed upon as Common Expenses by a vote of a 
Majority of the Members of the Association; 

(e) Reserves establ ished by the Association for repair, replacement and 
restoration of the major components of the Common Elements; 

(f) Expenses, fees, and other charges imposed upon the Association by any 
governmental entity because the Project is a community interest community pursuant to 
the Act; 

(g) Any and all uti l ities, including,  but not l imited to, electricity, gas,  water and 
sewer which are not separately metered and bil led to individual Units by the entity 
providing such uti l ity service; and 

(h) Expenses incurred by the Association pursuant to its obl igations under this 
Declarat ion.  

Section 2 . 1 4  "Condominium" shall  mean a Unit and the undivided interest therein 
(expressed as a percentage of the entire ownership interest in the Common Areas appurtenant 
to such Unit, as set forth in Exhibit  E attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof) 
as defined in Chapter 1 1 6  "Common-Interest Ownership (Uniform Act)" of The Nevada Revised 
Statutes. 

Section 2 . 1 5  "Condominium Plan" shal l  mean and refer to a diagrammatical floor 
plan, pursuant to Chapter 1 1 6  "Common-Interest Ownership (Uniform Act)" of The Nevada 
Revised Statutes. 

Section 2 . 1 6  "Convertible Space" shall mean the condominium space described in 
Section 1 9 . 2  which may hereafter be converted as a whole or in part to Units,  Common Areas, or 
Limited Common Areas as provided in ARTICLE XXVI. 

Section 2 . 1 7  "Declarant" shal l  mean and refer to Riverside Vi l las Nevada, LLC, a 
Utah limited l iabi l ity company, together with its successors and assigns.  

Section 2 . 1 8  "Declaration" shall mean and refer to this enabl ing Declaration. 

Section 2 . 1 9  "Eligible Mortgagee" shal l  mean the holder of a first Security Interest 
in a Unit ,  when the holder has notified the Association, in writing, of its name and address and 
that it holds a first Security Interest in a Un i t .  The notice must include the Unit number and address 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 4 



of the Unit on which it has a security interest. This notice shall be deemed to include a request 
that the El ig ib le Mortgagee be given the notices and other rights described in Article XVII .  

Section 2.20 "Improvements" shal l  mean al l  of the improvements located upon the 
Real Property including,  but not l imited to, the Bui ldings, exterior sidewalks and landscaped areas, 
and all other improvements referenced in Paragraph A of the Recitals, above. 

Section 2 .21  "Limited Common Area" shall mean any portion of the Common Area 
allocated by this Declarat ion or by operation of law for the exclusive use of one or more, but fewer 
than a l l ,  of the Units as provided in Article VI; such portions and components to include, but 
without l imitation, all util ity pipes, security and life safety systems, l ines, conduits, ducts and flues 
to the outlets thereof, al l  structural bearing portions of the Bui ldings and all co lumns and girders, 
regardless of location, and service areas of the Buildings. 

Section 2.22 "Limited Common Elements" shall mean the portion of the Common 
Elements allocated for the exclusive use of fewer than all Owners under the Declaration or the 
Act and that are more particularly addressed in Article VI of this Declaration. 

Section 2 .23 "Member" shal l  mean and refer to a member in the Association. 

Section 2 .24 "Mortgage" shal l  mean any mortgage, deed of trust, or other security 
instrument by which a Unit or any part thereof is encumbered. 

Section 2.25 "Mortgagee" shal l  mean any Person, partnership, corporation, trust, 
bank, savings and loan association, insurance company or other financial institution holding a 
recorded mortgage or deed of trust which constitutes an encumbrance upon any Unit securing 
payment of money other than this Agreement and l iens for real estate taxes and assessments. 

Section 2 .26  
well as a mortgagor. 

Section 2 .27 
therein. 

"Mortgagor" shal l  include the truster or grantor of a deed of trust as 

"Occupant" shal l  mean the Owner and/or tenant of a Unit or interest 

Section 2. 28 "Owner" or "Owners" shal l mean or refer to the record holder or holders 
of title, if more than one, of a Un i t ,  or a portion thereof. This shal l  include any Person having fee 
simple title to any Unit ,  but shal l  not include contract sellers under a recorded installment land 
sale contract of any specific Unit . "Owner" shal l  not inc lude Declarant unless Declarant otherwise 
qual if ies as an "Owner" hereunder, and those Persons or entities having any interest merely as 
security for the performance of any obligation. If a Unit , or any portion thereof is sold under a 
recorded instal lment land sale contract to a purchaser, such purchaser, rather than the fee owner, 
shal l  be considered the "Owner" for the purposes hereof. 

Section 2 .29 "Parcel Map" shal l  mean that certain Condominium or Parcel Map for 
the Project filed or to be filed for record in the office of the County Clerk of Elko County, Nevada, 
a reduced copy of which is attached marked as Exhibit F and made a part hereof, consisting of a 
plat or survey map of the surface of the ground of the Real Property showing a survey and legal 
description thereof,  the location of the B ui ld ings with respect to the boundaries of the Real 
Property ,  together with the diagrammatic floor plans of the B ui ld ings showing the boundaries of 
each Unit ,  including horizontal and vertical locations and dimensions of al l boundaries of each 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 5 



Unit and the Unit number identifying the Units, together with such other information as may be 
included therein in the discretion of Declarant. 

Section 2.30 "Person" sha l l  mean a natural Person, a corporation, a partnership ,  a 
trustee or other legal entity. 

Section 2 .31  "Project" shal l  mean the Real Property and Improvements, together 
with al l  appurtenant rights and interests. 

Section 2 .32 "Real Property" shall mean al l that certain real property more 
particularly described and shown on the Parcel Map. 

Section 2 .33  "Parking Areas" shall mean those areas shown and numbered on the 
Parcel Map to be filed for record, as Parking Areas. 

Section 2.34 "Unit" shal l mean the separate interest in a Condominium as bounded 
by the interior surfaces of the perimeter walls, floors, cei l ings, windows, and doors thereof as 
shown and numbered on the Parcel Map to be filed for record, together with al l  fixtures and 
improvements therein contained, and such other Units that are designated as Units pursuant to 
an amendment to this Declaration recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Elko County, 
State of Nevada pursuant to the provisions of ARTICLE XI I  below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the following are not part of a "Unit": bearing walls , columns, floors, and roofs (except for the 
interior surfaces thereof within a Unit ) ,  foundations, shafts, central heating systems, reservoirs, 
tanks, pumps, and other services used by more than one Unit, pipes, vents, ducts, f lues, chutes, 
conduits, and wires, except the outlets thereof when located within the Unit . The interior surfaces 
of a perimeter window or door means at the points at which such surfaces are located when such 
windows or doors are closed; the physical windows and doors themselves are part of the Common 
Area as herein defined 

Section 2 .35 "User" shal l mean al l  Owners and Occupants of a Unit ,  and al l  
l icensees, invitees, employees and agents thereof. 

ARTICLE I l l  

STATEMENT OF INTENTION AND PURPOSE; NOTICE OF MASTER 

DECLARATION AND MASTER ASSOCIATION; 

AND RESERVATION OF LICENSE 

Section 3 . 1  Declaration. Declarant hereby declares that the Project and every part 
thereof is held and shal l  be held ,  conveyed, devised, leased, rented, encumbered, used, 
occupied, improved, and otherwise affected in any manner, subject to the provisions of this 
Declaration, each and all of which provisions are hereby declared to be in furtherance of the 
general plans and scheme of condomin ium ownership referred to in Article I and are further 
declared to be for the benefit of the Project and every part thereof and for the benefit of each 
Owner. All provisions hereof shall be deemed to run with the land as covenants running with the 
land or as equitable servitudes, as the case may be, and shal l  constitute benefits and burdens to 
the Declarant and the Oeclarant's assigns and to al l  Persons hereafter acquiring or owning any 
interest in the Project, however such interest may be obtained. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 6 



Section 3 .2 Reservation of Rights. Declarant, for itself and its successors and assigns, 
hereby reserves an irrevocable license for the parking of vehicles over and across those areas 
adjoining the Units which are designated as "Parking Area" on the Parcel Map, together with the 
right of ingress and egress thereto over and across the Apartment Homes and the Real Property, 
as necessary. Declarant hereby covenants and agrees that this l icense shal l  be exercised by 
Declarant to provide specific parking rights only to the Owners, Occupants and their tenants 
and/or invitees in a manner determined by Declarant in its sole discretion. It is understood and 
agreed that, subject to this l icense,  the Association shal l  maintain and operate the Parking Area 
as designated on the Parcel Map as Common Area as provided in th is Declaration. It is 
furthermore understood and agreed that as long as the Declarant retains an ownership interest in 
any Unit any action taken by the Association and/or the Board pertaining to the Parking Areas as 
designated on the Parcel Map shal l be subject to the prior approval of the Declarant. 

The rights reserved herein and in the Bylaws for the benefit of Declarant are as follows: 
to maintain signs advertising the Condomin ium;  and to appoint or remove members of the Board 
until seventy five percent (75%) of al l  existing Units are sold. 

ARTICLE IV 

NATURE AND INCIDENTS OF CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP 

Section 4 . 1  Estates of an Owner. The Project is hereby divided into 
Condominiums, each consisting of a separate interest in a Unit and the Limited Common Area 
appurtenant to that Unit .  Each Unit sha l l  also consist of an undivided interest in the Common Area 
in accordance with the Parcel Map. In addit ion, each Unit includes a share of the Common Area 
not otherwise allocated above in the proportions set forth in Exhibit E. The percentage of 
ownership interest in the Common Area, which is to be allocated to each Unit for purposes of tax 
assessment shal l  be the same as set forth in Exhibit E. The percentage of ownership interest in 
the Common Area is based upon the size (square feet of floor space) of each Unit. The 
percentage of ownership interest in the Common Area is calculated by dividing the number of 
square feet of floor area of each Unit by the number of square feet of floor area of all Units in the 
Condominium. Notwithstanding that square feet of floor area may be measured differently, the 
number of square feet of floor area set forth on Exhibit E shal l  be conclusive and final for purposes 
of th is Declaration. The percentages appurtenant to each Unit  as shown in said Exhibit E shal l  
have a permanent character and shal l  not be altered (a) except with the unanimous written 
consent of all Owners expressed in an amendment to this Declaration duly recorded, and (b) 
except to the extent necessary to allow for the conversion of convertible space as provided in 
ARTICLE XXV I ; provided however, that in the event of expansion conversion of convertib le space ,  

und iv ided ownership interests in the Common Areas shal l  be re-allocated pursuant to this Section 
4 . 1 .  

Section 4.2 L imited Common Area .  I n  addit ion to the items set forth in Article VI ,  
Limited Common Area shal l  consist of patios adjacent to each Apartment Home Unit for the 
exclusive use of that Unit .  The Limited Common Areas shal l  be used in connection with, and 
maintained separately by the Owner of such Apartment Home to the exclusion of the use thereof 
by the other Owners except by invitation . 

Section 4 .3 Common Area -- Parking .  The Association shal l  mainta in as part of the 
Common Area the Parking Areas as shown on the Parcel Map for the use of those Owners and 
Occupants, and their tenants and/or invitees as designated by the Declarant. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 7 

, I 



Section 4.4 Tit le. Title to a Unit may be held or owned by any entity and in any 
manner in which title to any other real property may be held or owned in the State of Nevada. 

Section 4.5 Inseparabi l i ty. No part of a Unit or of the legal rights compris ing 
ownership of that Unit may be separated from any other part of that Unit during the period of 
Condominium ownership prescribed herein, so that each Unit and the undivided interest and/or 
share in the Common Area appurtenant or al located to such Unit shall always be conveyed, 
devised, encumbered, and otherwise affected only as a complete Unit .  Every gift, devise, 
bequest, transfer, encumbrance, conveyance, or other disposition of a Unit or any part thereof 
shal l  be presumed to be a gift, devise, request, transfer, encumbrance, or conveyance, 
respectively, of the entire Unit ,  together with al l  appurtenant rights created by law or by this 
Declaration. 

Section 4 .6 Partition Not Permitted. The Common Area shal l  be owned in common 
by al l Owners of Units, and no Owner may bring any action for partition thereof. 

Section 4 .7  Owner's Right to Common Area. Subject to the l imitat ions contained in 
this Declaration, and to the Association Rules and Regulat ions,  each Owner shal l  have the 
nonexclusive right to use and enjoy the Common Area, and shall have the exclusive right to use 
and enjoy the Limited Common Area designated herein for exclusive use by such Owner. 

Section 4 .8 Taxes and Assessments. Each Owner shall execute such instruments 
and take such actions as may reasonably be specified by the Association to obtain separate real 
property tax assessments of the interest of each Owner in each Unit .  If any taxes or special 
district or other assessments may, in the opinion of the Association, nevertheless be a lien on the 
Project or any part thereof, the Association shal l pay the same and assess the same to the Owner 
or Owners responsible therefor. Each Owner shal l  pay the taxes or assessments assessed 
against such Owner's Unit or interest therein, or such Owner's interest in the Common Area or 
any part thereof directly to the County. Each Owner shall pay al l taxes, rates, imposit ions, and 
assessments levied against the Project or any part of the Common Area in proportion to such 
Owner's interest in such Common Area as set forth in Exhibit E, and such payment is to be made 
to the Association at least thirty (30) days prior to the delinquency of such tax or assessment .  
Each such unpaid tax or assessment shal l  bear interest at the rate of ten percent ( 10%) per annum 
from and after the t ime the same becomes payable by each Owner and shal l be secured by the 
l ien created by Section 1 5 . 5  hereof. Notwithstand ing the foregoing , taxes, assessments, or other 
charges attributable to the Common Area shal l  be apportioned among the Owners as provided in 
Article XV hereof. 

Section 4.9 Owner's Rights with Respect to Interiors. Each Owner shal l  have the 
exclusive right to paint ,  repaint ,  t i le ,  paper, or otherwise maintain ,  refinish and decorate the interior 
surfaces of the wal ls , cei l ings, floors, and doors and to clean the interior surfaces of windows, all 
of which form the boundaries of that Owner's Unit and all wal ls, cei l ings, floors, and doors within 
such boundaries .  

Section 4 . 1 0  W indows. The cleaning of exterior surfaces of windows is expressly 
reserved to the Association. No Owner may, without the consent of the Association, p lace 
anything in or on the Unit windows ,  which is in variance with the general appearance of windows 
of similar Units. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 8 



Section 4 . 1 1  Easements for Encroachments. If any part of the Common Area 
encroaches or shal l  hereinafter encroach upon a Unit or Units, an easement for such 
encroachment and for the maintenance of the same shal l  and does exist. If any part of a Unit 
encroaches or shal l  hereafter encroach upon the Common Area or upon an adjoin ing Uni t ,  an 
easement for such encroachment and for the maintenance of the same sha l l  and does exist. Such 
encroachments shall not be considered to be encumbrances either on the Common Area or the 
Unit . Encroachments referred to herein include, but are not l imited to, encroachments caused by 
settl ing, r ising, or shifting of the earth or by changes in position caused by repair or reconstruction 
of the Project or any part thereof. 

Section 4 . 1 2  Easements of Access for Repair, Maintenance, and Emergencies. 
Some of the Common Area or Limited Common Area is or may be located within the Units or may 
be conveniently accessible only through the Units. The Owners shal l  have the irrevocable r ight, 
to be exercised by the Association as their agent, to have access to al l  parts of the Project from 
t ime to time during such reasonable hours as may be necessary, and with such notice as may be 
specified in tenant leases, if any, except in cases of emergency, for the maintenance, repair, or 
replacement of any of the Common Area located therein or accessible therefrom or for making 
emergency repairs therein necessary to prevent damage to the Project. (As used herein 
"emergency" means repair, maintenance, or replacement, which is required to rectify or mitigate 
any condition that imposes a real and immediate risk of injury to a Person, or serious and 
irreparable damage to property). The Association shal l  also have such right independent of any 
agency relationship. Damage to the interior of any part of a Unit resulting from the maintenance, 
repair, emergency repair, or replacement of any of the Common Area or as a result of emergency 
repairs within another Unit at the insistence of the Association or of Owners shal l  be an expense 
of al l  of the Owners; provided however, if such damage is the result of negligence of the Owner 
of a Unit ,  then such Owner shall be financial ly responsible for a l l  of such damage. Amounts owing 
by Owners pursuant hereto shal l  be collected by the Association by assessment pursuant to 
Article XV below. 

Section 4 . 1 3  Owner's Right to Ingress, Egress and Support. Each Owner shal l  have 
the right to ingress and egress over, upon,  and across the Common Area reasonably necessary 
for access to such Owner's Unit , any parking space or spaces which such Owner has the right to 
use and to the Limited Common Area designated for use in connection with such Owner's Unit 
and shal l  have the right to the horizontal and lateral support of such Owner's Unit ,  and such rights 
shall be appurtenant to and pass with the title to each Unit. 

Section 4 . 1 4  Association's Right to Use of Common Area. The Association shal l  
have a nonexclusive easement to make such use of the Common Area as may be necessary or 
appropriate to perform the duties and functions which the Association is obligated or permitted to 
perform pursuant to th is Declaration, including the right to construct and maintain in the Common 
Area maintenance and storage facilities for use by the Association. 

Section 4 . 1 5  Easements and Uti l i t ies. In  order to adequately serve each Uni t ,  uti l ity 
facil it ies may be constructed and may encroach on Common Area or on the Units .  An easement 
for such encroachment and for the maintenance of the same shal l and does exist. 

Section 4 . 1 6  Declarant's Right Incident to Construction. Declarant shal l  have the 
right to and does hereby reserve an easement and right-of-way for ingress and egress over, upon, 
under, through and across the Common Area and the right to store materials thereon and to make 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 9 



such other use thereof as may be reasonably necessary incident to Declarant's development of 
the Project. 

Section 4 . 1 7  Easements Deemed Created. All conveyances of Units, whether by 
the Declarant or otherwise, shal l  be construed to grant and reserve such reciprocal easements 
as shall give effect to this Article IV, even though no specific reference to such easements or to 
this Article IV is included in any such conveyance. 

Section 4 . 1 8  Maintenance and Management of Common Areas. The Association 
may hire an outside bui ld ing management company or bui ld ing manager ("Manager") ,  which shal l  
be instructed to act prudently and di l igent ly to manage and control the Common Area in a manner 
compatible with good business practices and for the benefit of all Owners. Maintenance of the 
Common Area shal l  be an expense of all Owners. Maintenance of the Limited Common Areas 
shal l  be an expense of the Owner of the Unit to which such Limited Common Area is appurtenant. 

Section 4 . 1 9  Allocation of Interests. 

(a) Undivided Interest in the Common Elements.  The percentage of the undivided 
interest in the Common Elements allocated to each Unit is equal to one divided by the total 
number of Units in the Project. 

(b) Liability for Common Expenses. The percentage of Liability for Common 
Expenses allocated to each Unit is equal to one divided by the total number of Units in the Project. 
Nothing contained in this Section sha l l  prohibit certain Common Expenses from being apportioned 
to particular Units under this Declaration. 

Section 4 . 19 . 2  Votes. Each Unit  in the Project shal l  have one ( 1 )  equal vote. 

Section 4 . 1 9 . 3  Assignment of Allocated Interests Pursuant to Exercise of 
Development Rights. The effective date for assigning or re-assigning Allocated Interests to Units ,  
in the event of a relevant exercise of a Development Right pursuant to Article V I I I  of th is 
Declaration, shall be the date on which the amendment creating, withdrawing, or converting such 
Units is recorded in the Recorder's Office for Elko County, Nevada. 

Section 4 .20 Separate Conveyance of Common Elements Prohibited. Any 
conveyance, encumbrance, jud ic ia l  sale, or other transfer (voluntary or involuntary) of an 
indiv idual interest in the Common Elements will be void unless the Unit  to which that interest is 
allocated is also transferred. 

Section 4 . 2 1  Use Restrictions. Subject to the Special Declarant Rights reserved 
under Article V I I I ,  the fol lowing use restrictions apply to al l Units and to the Common Elements: 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1  The use of each Unit is restricted to that of a s ingle-fami ly 
residence and accessory uses as permitted herein. Except for those activities conducted as a part 
of the marketing and development program of Declarant, no industry, business, trade or 
commercial activit ies shall be conducted, mainta ined or permitted in any part of a Unit ,  nor shal l  
any Unit be used or rented for transient, hotel or motel purposes. The provisions of th is Section 
shall not preclude a professional or administrative occupation, provided that there is no external 
evidence of any such occupation, for so long as such occupations are conducted in conformance 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 10 



with all appl icable governmental ordinances and are merely incidental to the use of the Unit as a 
residential home. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 2  No immoral ,  improper, offensive or unlawful use may be made of 
the Property; Owners shal l  comply with and conform to all appl icable laws and regulations of the 
United States and of the State of Nevada and all appl icable county or city ordinances, rules and 
regulat ions. The violating Owner shal l  hold harmless the Association and other Owners from al l 
fines, penalties, costs and prosecutions for any violation or noncompliance. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 3  Occupancy Restrictions. Subject to the Special Oeclarant Rights 
reserved under Article V I I I ,  the following occupancy restrictions apply to a l l  Units, L imited 
Common Elements and to the Common Elements: 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 4  No electrical device creating overloading of standard circuits may 
be used without permission from the Board of Directors. Misuse or abuse of appliances or fixtures 
within a Unit which affects other Units or the Common Elements is prohibited. Any damage 
resulting from such misuse shal l  be the responsibil ity of the Owner who caused such damage. 
Total electrical usage in any Unit shal l not exceed the capacity of the circuits as labeled on the 
circuit breaker boxes. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 5  Each Owner shal l  maintain his or her Unit in a clean and well 
maintained condit ion. No storage of trash will be permitted in any Unit in a manner which may 
permit the spread of fire, odors, seepage or encouragement of vermin. Furthermore, no storage 
of trash will be permitted outside of any Unit except in areas and receptacles designed for such 
purpose. Without l imit ing the foregoing, no bicycles, refrigerators, boxes, refuse or debris or other 
items which may be deemed storage items may be placed on balconies or patio areas where they 
can be seen and laundry may not be placed to dry on balcony or patio areas. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 6  Any parking spaces designated as visitor parking by the Board of 
Directors are for the sole use of visitors and guests only and may not be used by Owners. Such 
parking spaces may be used only for operable vehicles, but specifically excluding oversized 
trucks, commercial vehicles, motorhomes, boats, personal watercrafts, campers and trailers. 
Furthermore, no inoperable vehicles, motorhomes, boats, personal watercrafts, campers or 
trailers may be parked in any parking space within the Project, regardless of whether the parking 
space is designated for use by visitors or residents. 

Section 4 . 2 1 .  7  No noxious, offensive, dangerous or unsafe activity shall be 
conducted in any Unit , nor shal l  anything be done, either wi l l fu l ly or negl igently, which may be or 
become an annoyance or nuisance to the other Owners or occupants of Units. No Owner or 
occupant of a Unit shal l  make or permit any disturbing noises nor do or permit anything to be 
done by others that wi l l  interfere with the rights, comforts or convenience of other Owners or Unit 
occupants. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 8  No animals, fowls, reptiles, poultry, fish or insects of any kind 
shal l be raised, bred or kept within the Property, except that a reasonable number of dogs, cats 
or other household pets may be kept within a residence, provided that they are not kept, bred or 
maintained for any commercial purpose, nor in unreasonable quantities nor in violation of any 
applicable local ordinance or any other provision of this Declaration and such l imitat ions as may 
be set forth in the Rules,  and further provided that no individual pet ( including, without limitation, 
any dog) may exceed twenty five (25) pounds in weight .  As used in this Declaration 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 1 1  



"unreasonable quantit ies" shal l  ordinari ly mean more than two (2) pets per household;  provided, 
however, that the Board may determine that a reasonable number in any instance may be more 
or less. The Association, acting through the Board, sha l l  have the right to prohibit maintenance 
of any animal which constitutes, in the opin ion of the Board, a nuisance to other Owners in the 
Property. Animals belonging to Owners, residents, or their guests within the Property must be 
either kept within an enclosure or on a leash or other restraint being held by a person capable of 
controll ing the animal,  and who then has in his possession a proper or adequate utensil or other 
means of cleaning up immediately al l  feces of such an imal .  Furthermore, to the extent permitted 
by law, any Owner shal l  be l iable to each and all remaining Owners, residents, their famil ies and 
guests, for any unreasonable noise or damage to person or property caused by any animals 
brought or kept upon the Property by an Owner or resident or by members of their family or guests; 
and it shall be the absolute duty and responsibil ity of each such Owner to clean up immediately 
after such animals which have used any portion of the Common Elements. The Board of Directors 
may impose and levy a reasonable pet fee upon al l  Owners which have dogs and/or cats for the 
purpose of reimbursing the Association for the costs of addit ional maintenance of the Common 
Elements which may be reasonably necessary. Such a fee, if imposed, must be imposed on a per 
pet basis. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 9  General ly ,  the portion of the Common Elements outside of the 
bui ld ings in which the Units are located shal l  be improved and used only for the following 
purposes: 

(a) Affording vehicular passage and pedestrian movement within the Project, 
including access to the Units ;  

(b) Recreational use by the Owners and occupants of Units in the Project and their 
guests, subject to rules established by the Board of Directors; 

(c) Beautif ication of the Common Elements and providing privacy to the residents 
of the Project through landscaping and such other means as the Board of Directors (or the 
Architectural Committee, as applicable) shal l deem appropriate; and 

(d) Parking of automotive passenger vehicles in areas provided therefor, upon 
such terms and condit ions as may from time to t ime be determined by the Board of Directors. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 0  The following uses are hereby expressly prohibited: 

(a) No garbage or refuse may be placed or left in the Common Elements except 
in areas and receptacles provided for that use. 

(b) No planting may be done in the Common Elements by any Owner, except at 
the direction of the Board of Directors. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 1  No part of the Common Elements shal l  be obstructed so as to 
interfere with its use for the purposes hereinabove permitted, nor shal l  any part of the Common 
Elements be used for storage purposes (except as incidental to one of such permitted uses, or 
for storage of maintenance equipment used exclusively to maintain the Common Elements or in 
storage areas designated by the Board of Directors), nor in any manner which sha l l  increase the 
rate at which insurance against loss by fire, or the peri ls of the extended coverage endorsement 
to the fire policy form, or bodily injury or property damage l iabi l i ty insurance covering the Common 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 12  



Elements and the improvements situated thereon may be obtained, or cause such premises to 
be uninsurable against such risks or any policy or policies representing such insurance to be 
canceled or suspended or the company issuing the same to refuse renewal thereof. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 2  Other than signs placed by Declarant, and other than a single 
political sign (that is, a sign that expresses support for or opposition to a candidate, political party, 
or bal lot question) not larger than 24 inches by 36 inches, no signs, window displays or advertising 
visible from outside a Unit or its Limited Common Elements (except for a name plate, door 
number,  or sign not exceeding nine square inches in area, on the main door to each Unit) shal l  
be maintained or permitted in any part of a Unit or its Limited Common Elements. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 3  There wil l be no changes made to the appearance of any Unit 
without permission of the Association. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 4  Owners shal l  strictly adhere to al l manufacturer's 
recommendations for the instal lat ion,  use, maintenance and repair of any components Owner 
may instal l  in Owner's Unit .  Electrical appliances shal l  not be used where manufacturer 
recommendations restrict circuit loads, wattage or other specific rating restrictions. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 5  Storage areas shal l be used exclusively for the storage of 
ordinary household goods, provided that: (a) no f lammable, dangerous, hazardous or toxic 
materials shal l  be kept, stored, or used in any storage area, and (b) doors to storage areas shal l  
be kept fully closed at all times except for reasonable periods during the removal or entry of 
vehicles or other items therefrom or thereto. No storage area may be used for a permanent or 
temporary dwel l ing, and no animal  shal l  be housed or kept in any storage area. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 6  Parking stal ls are to be used for parking of operable vehicles only ,  
and no inoperable or unregistered vehicle shall be allowed within the Project. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 7  Al l draperies that can be seen from the outside of the Unit must 
have a white or off-white backing. 

Section 4 . 2 1 . 1 8  Except to the extent permitted by law, no exterior radio antenna, 
television antenna, "C .B . "  antenna, satell ite d ish or other antenna of any type shal l  be erected or 
maintained on any portion of the Property except as approved by the Board and the Declarant 
(so long as the Declarant owns any portion of the Property or holds any Development Right to 
expand the Project). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a master antenna system or duly franchised 
cable television service or telecommunicat ion service may, but need not, be provided by the 
Declarant or the Association for use by, and at the expense of, the Owners. The Declarant 
reserves the right to grant easements for maintenance of any such master antenna system, cable 
television service or telecommunication service. 

Section 4.22 Laws and Insurance Requirements. Nothing shall be done to or kept on 
any Unit or improvement thereon that might increase the rate of, or cause the cancellation of, 
insurance for the Project, or any portion of the Project, without the prior written consent of the 
Association. No Owner shal l  permit anything to be done or kept in his or her Unit or any 
improvement thereon that violates any of the restrictions contained in this Declaration or any law, 
ordinance, statute, rule, or regulation of any local ,  county, state or federal body ,  including, without 
l imitation, local ordinances relating to z oning and bu i ld ing codes. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 1 3  



Section 4.23 Restrictions on Alienation. Except as otherwise provided elsewhere in 
this Declaratino, there are no restrictions on the renting of Units within the Project; provided, 
however, that (i) the Owner of a Unit which is rented for a period of twenty-eight (28) days or more 
shal l provide to the Association within ten ( 10 )  days after renting the same the names, mai l ing 
addresses and telephone number  of its tenants; (i i) a Unit may not be conveyed or occupied 
pursuant to a time-sharing p lan;  (i i i) all leases and rental agreements shal l  be in writing and 
subject to the requirements of the Governing Documents and the Association; and (iv) all leases 
of a Unit shall include a provision that the tenant wil l recognize and attorn to the Association as 
landlord, solely for the purpose of having the power to enforce a violation of the provisions of the 
Governing Documents against the tenant, provided the Association gives the landlord notice of 
its intent to so enforce and a reasonable opportunity to cure the violation directly, prior to the 
commencement of an enforcement act ion. 

Section 4 .24 Declarant's Rights. As long as Declarant is an Owner, Declarant and its 
duly authorized agents, representatives and employees may maintain any Unit owned by 
Deel a rant or any portion of the Common Elements, as model units or sales offices. Declarant may 
also maintain management offices and signs and displays advertising the Project. 

ARTICLE V 

DESCRIPTION OF A CONDOMINIUM 

Section 5 . 1  Description of Condomin ium.  Every contract for the sale of a Unit and 
every other instrument affecting title to a Unit shal l  describe that Unit by the number shown on 
the Condominium Map or Parcel Map and in this Declaration as each appears on the records of 
the County Clerk of Elko County, Nevada in the fol lowing fashion:  

Unit as shown on the Condomin ium Map for Riverside Vil las recorded 
in the Records of Elko County, Nevada as Instrument No. and as 
defined and described in that Condominium Declaration for Riverside Villas 
recorded in the Records of Elko County, Nevada as Instrument No. 

Such description shal l  be construed to describe the Un i t  together with the appurtenant 
undivided interest in the appropriate Common Area, Limited Common Area, Common Elements, 
and Limited Common Elements, and to incorporate all the rights incident to ownership of a Unit 
and al l the l imitat ions on such ownership as described in this Declaration. 

ARTICLE VI 

LIMITED COMMON AREA 

Section 6 . 1  Description Any Limited Common Elements as well as tanks, pumps, 
motors, ducts, chutes, f lues, pipes, p lumbing, wires, conduits, and other uti l ity or life safety 
system, equipment ,  instal lat ion, or fixture serving only one Unit  is Limited Common Area of that 
Unit . Any patios, and al l  exterior doors and windows or other fixtures designed to serve a s ing le 
Unit but which are located outside the appurtenant Unit's boundaries, are Limited Common Areas 
allocated exclusively to that Unit .  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 14 



Section 6 .2  Assigned Limited Common Elements. The following portions of the 
Common Elements are Limited Common Elements assigned to the Units as stated: 

Section 6 .2 . 1  If a chute, f lue, pipe, duct, wire, conduit, HVAC Unit ,  bearing wal l ,  
bearing column or other fixture l ies partial ly within and partial ly outside the designated boundaries 
of a Unit ,  the portion serving only the Unit is a Limited Common Element, allocated solely to the 
Unit ,  the use of which is limited to that Unit and any portion serving more than one Unit or a portion 
of the Common Elements is a part of the Common Elements. 

Section 6 .2 .2  Any shutters, awnings, window boxes, doorsteps, storage areas, 
entry areas, stoops, porches, balconies, patios and exterior doors and windows or other fixtures 
designed to serve a single Unit ,  located outside the boundaries of the Unit ,  are Limited Common 
Elements allocated exclusively to the Unit and their use is limited to that Unit .  

Section 6 .2 .3 Entry areas, stoops, steps and walls above door openings at the 
entrances to each bui ld ing which provide access to less than all Units are Limited Common 
Elements allocated exclusively to the Units to which they provide access and the use of which is 
l imited to the Units to which they provide access. 

Section 6 .2 .4  Exterior surfaces, trim, siding, doors and windows wil l  be Limited 
Common Elements allocated to the Units sheltered. 

Section 6 .2 .5 Mai lboxes, name plates and exterior lighting affixed to the 
bui ld ing will be Limited Common Elements allocated to the Units served. 

Section 6 .2 .6  In addition to the foregoing, the Owners of each Unit shal l  have 
for so long as this Declaration remains in effect an exclusive easement to the parking space(s) 
designated for such Unit by Unit number on the parking plan attached as Exhibit G hereto. Such 
parking space(s) sha l l  be a Limited Common Element for the exclusive use of the Owners or 
tenants of the Unit to which each such parking space is appurtenant. Declarant reserves a special 
power of attorney coupled with an interest to execute such documents as are reasonably 
necessary on behalf of Owners and El ig ib le Mortgagees to assign and change the assignment of 
parking spaces for so long as Declarant owns any Unit within the Project. 

Section 6 .2 .7 Subsequently Allocated Limited Common Elements. Those 
portions of the Common Elements shown as unnumbered or unassigned parking spaces on the 
Plat and Plans,  if any, may be allocated as Limited Common Elements in accordance with this 
Declaration, or may be assigned or l imited to visitor parking only by the Board of Directors through 
the Rules .  

Section 6 .3  Real location. Limited Common Area may be real located between Units 
or Common Area reallocated as Limited Common Area or Limited Common Area may be 
incorporated into an existing Unit with the approval of all the Owners. The real location or 
incorporation shal l  be reflected in an amendment to the Declaration and Parcel Map. The Owner 
or Owners benefited thereby shal l bear all costs associated therewith in proportion to the relative 
benefits to each such Unit as determined by the Board. 

Section 6.4 Use and Access. The Owner of the Unit to which Limited Common 
Area is allocated shal l  have the right to the exclusive use of the Limited Common Area, which 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 15  



right shall extend to the Owner's Occupants, tenants, family members, invitees, guests and other 
Users authorized by the Owner. 

Section 6 .5 A Common Element not previously allocated as a Limited Common 
Element pursuant to Article VI hereof or the Plat and Plans may be so al located only pursuant to 
the provisions of this Declaration. All allocations will be made by amendments to the Declaration 
specifying to which Unit or Units the Limited Common Element is allocated. 

Section 6 .5 . 1  Declarant has reserves the right to create Limited Common 
Elements in the Annexable Property, to convert Units to Limited Common Elements, and to 
allocate Common Elements as Limited Common Elements. If created, such Limited Common 
Elements shal l  be assigned to particular Units by amendment to this Declaration. 

Section 6 .6  Al l amendments shal l  specify to which Unit or Units the Limited 
Common Element is allocated. Such amendment shal l  require the approval of al l  El ig ible 
Mortgagees of the affected Units .  Upon executing the amendment, the Persons preparing such 
amendment shal l  provide an executed copy of the amendment to the Association, which shal l  
record it, provided that the amendment complies with the provisions of this Declaration and the 
Act. The amendment sha l l  contain words of conveyance and must be recorded and indexed in 
the names of the parties and the Project. 

Section 6 . 6 . 1  The parties executing the amendment sha l l  be responsible for the 
preparation of the amendment and shal l  reimburse the Association for its reasonable fees and 
costs in connection with recording the amendment. 

ARTICLE VII 

MAINTENANCE 

Section 7 . 1  Common Elements. The Association shal l maintain,  repair and replace 
al l  of the Common Elements; provided, however, the Association shal l  not be obligated to perform 
those maintenance activities assigned to Owners under this Declaration. Without l imit ing the 
foregoing, the Associat ion's obl igat ions hereunder shal l  include the fol lowing: 

Section 7 .2  Paint ing.  Common Elements originally improved with paint shal l  be 
periodically repainted, as appropriate, to maintain the or ig inal  appearance thereof (normal wear 
and fading excepted); 

Section 7 .3  Uti l i t ies. The Association shal l  cause to be maintained properly and in 
good condition and repair al l  util ities and utility systems in the Common Elements. The 
Association shal l  cause any and al l necessary or prudent repairs to be undertaken and completed 
without delay in a manner and to the extent necessary to prevent avoidable deterioration or 
property damage. 

Section 7 .4 Drainage; Landscaping; Irrigation. The Association shall cause all 
drainage systems, landscape instal lat ions, and irrigation systems within the Common Elements 
to be inspected at least quarterly. In particular, the Association shall inspect for any misaligned, 
malfunct ioning or nonfunctional sprinklers, or blocked drainage grates, basins, l ines, and systems, 
which could cause damage to Improvements. At least one such inspection each year shal l  be 
done by a l icensed and qual if ied contractor or architect with expertise in the construction and 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 1 6  

I  
I  
I  
I  

:  
I  
I  
'  

I  

I  

I  



maintenance of such drainage and landscape instal lations, who shall be required to promptly 
provide a written report to the Board of Directors. The written reports shal l  identify any items of 
maintenance or repair that either require current action by the Association, or will need further 
review and analysis, and shal l  specifical ly inc lude a review of al l irrigation and drainage systems 
within the Project. The Board of Directors shal l  cause any and al l  necessary or prudent repairs 
to be promptly undertaken and completed, to prevent avoidable deterioration or property damage. 
Without l imit ing the foregoing, al l  landscaping shal l be maintained as per the fol lowing min imum 
maintenance standards: 

regularly; 
Section 74 . 1  lawn and ground cover shall be kept mowed and/or trimmed 

Section 7 .4 .2 plantings shall be kept in a healthy and growing condition; 
fertil ization, cult ivat ion, spraying and tree pruning shal l  be performed as part of a regular 
landscaping program; 

Section 74.3 stakes, guys and ties on trees shal l  be checked regularly, to 
ensure the correct function of each; ties shal l  be adjusted to avoid creating abrasions or girdl ing 
of the trunk or stem; 

Section 7 .4 .4 
of occurrence; and 

damage to p lant ings shall be ameliorated within thirty (30) days 

Section 74.5 i rr igation systems shal l  be kept in sound working condit ion ;  
adjustment, replacement of malfunctioning parts, and cleaning of systems, shal l be an integral 
part of the regular landscaping program. 

Section 7 .  5  Hardscape; Private Streets. The Association shal l cause all Common 
Elements hardscape, paved areas, and private streets and drives within the Project to be 
inspected at least at least once each year (or more frequently as deemed prudent by the Board 
of Directors) by a l icensed and qualified contractor or architect with expertise in the construction 
and maintenance of such hardscape and paved areas, who shall be required to promptly provide 
a written report to the Board of Directors. The written reports shal l  identify any items of 
maintenance or repair that either require current action by the Association, or wil l  need further 
review and analysis. The Board of Directors shall cause any and all necessary or prudent repairs 
to be promptly undertaken and completed, to prevent avoidable deterioration or property damage. 
Without l imit ing the foregoing, the Board of Directors shal l  cause all Common Element asphalt to 
be sealed and re-stripped at least as frequently as may be required per City of Elko and/or Elko 
County standards, or more frequently, if so required, using two coats of a guard top or walk top 
type sealer. 

Section 7 .6  Declarant's Rights to Information. From the date of this Declaration 
unt i l  one ( 1 )  year after the termination of Declarant's Control Period, Declarant sha l l  be given prior 
notice of and shal l  have the right to attend any inspection to be conducted under this Declaration. 
Furthermore ,  for of period of ten ( 1 0 )  years after close of escrow of the last Unit to a member of 
the home buying publ ic, the Board of Directors shal l  promptly deliver to Declarant informationa l  
copies of al l  written inspections and reports prepared in accordance with this Declaration, without 
any obl igat ion whatsoever of Declarant to review such documents or to take any action in 
connection therewith. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 17 

f ! 



Section 7 .7 Fai lure to Maintain.  The Association sha l l  be responsible for 
accomplishing its maintenance and repair obligations fully and timely from time to time, as set 
forth in this Declaration and the Association Maintenance Manua l .  Failure of the Association to 
fully and timely accomplish such maintenance and repair responsibi l it ies may result in 
deterioration and/or damage to Improvements, and such damage and/or deterioration shall in no 
event be deemed to constitute a constructional defect. Addit ional ly ,  fai lure of the Association to 
fully and timely accomplish its maintenance and repair responsibil it ies shall void and render of no 
effect any warranty as to the Common Elements of which the Association is a beneficiary. 

Section 7 .8  Units. Each Owner shall maintain, repair and replace, at his or her own 
expense, a l l  portions of his or her Unit , except any portion of the Unit required by this Declaration 
or the Act to be maintained, repaired or replaced by the Association. Any and all gas l ines within 
the Units shal l be inspected on a regular basis by a licensed professional or gas company 
representative at the Unit Owner's expense. 

Section 7 .9  Limited Common Elements. Except as otherwise specif ical ly set forth 
herein, each Owner shal l  be responsible for maintaining in a good and clean condit ion all Limited 
Common Elements appurtenant to said Owner's Unit ,  including, but not limited to, removing 
leaves and debris, pruning and/or tr imming al l landscaping,  maintenance of patios, balconies, and 
all fencing fronting enclosed yard areas appurtenant to said Owner's Unit. If any such Limited 
Common Element is appurtenant to two or more Units, the owners of those Units will be jointly 
responsible for such maintenance. No addit ional component or element may be attached to, 
planted on, or made a part of yards, patios, balconies, exterior surfaces, trim, siding, doors, and 
windows without consent of the Board of Directors (or the Architectural Committee, as the case 
may be) in accordance with Article VI I .  In the event any addit ional component or element 
becomes deteriorated or unsightly, or is inconsistent with conditions of installation, it may be 
removed or repaired by the Association at the Owner's expense as a Violation Assessment under 
this section, after Notice and Hearing. 

Section 7 . 1  O  Reserved Easements. Declarant hereby reserves for the Association, 
and any person authorized by the Board of Directors, a perpetual easement over all portions of 
the Project for access and al l purposes necessary to carry out the Association's activities and 
obligations under the Governing Documents, including, but not l imited to ,  performing emergency 
repairs, performing work reasonably necessary for the proper maintenance of the Project, 
performing installations, alterations, replacements or repairs, and for the purpose of reading, 
repairing and replacing util ity meters and related pipes , valves, wires and equipment ,  prov ided 
that, as to Units ,  requests for entry are made in advance and that any entry is at a t ime reasonably 
convenient to the affected Owner. In case of an emergency ,  no request or notice is required and 
the right of entry shal l  be immediate, and with as much force as is reasonably necessary to ga in 
entrance, whether or not the Owner is present at the t ime. 

Section 7 . 1 1  R ight to Grant Easements. The Association is hereby g iven the right to 
grant permits, l icenses , and easements over the Common Elements for uti l it ies ,  roads ,  and other 
purposes necessary for the proper operation of the Project. 

Section 7 . 1 2  Repairs Resulting From Neg l igence. Each Owner will reimburse the 
Association for any damages to any other Unit  or to the Common Elements caused intentionally ,  
neg l igently or by his or her failure to properly maintain,  repair or make replacements to his or her 
Unit or to those L imited Common E lements for which such Owner is responsible under this 
Declaration. The Association wil l  be responsible for damage to Units which is caused intent ional ly, 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 18 



negl igently or by its failure to maintain ,  repair or make replacements to the Common Elements. 
The Association shall levy a Violation Assessment, following Notice and Hearing, to collect 
reimbursement under this section. 

Section 7 . 1 3  Chimneys.  Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, each 
Owner shal l  be responsible for cleaning, at his or her own expense, the interior area of any 
chimney serving that Owner's Unit. Any gas line repairs or maintenance within the chimney shall 
be performed by a l icensed professional or gas company representative. 

ARTICLE VI I I  

DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND OTHER SPECIAL DECLARANT RIGHTS 

Section 8 . 1  
Development Rights: 

Reservation of Development Rights. Declarant reserves the following 

Section 8 . 1 . 1  The right, but not the obl igation, by amendment to expand the 
Property and the Project to inc lude al l  or part of the Annexable Property. Declarant shal l  have 
the unilateral right to transfer to any other person the right to expand which is herein reserved. 
Declarant shal l  pay al l taxes and other governmental assessments relating to the Annexable 
Property owned by Declarant unti l  expansion. Such expansion may be accomplished by 
recording a supplemental declaration or annexation amendment (collectively, "Supplemental 
Declaration") in the records of the County Recorder of Elko County, Nevada, describing the 
portion of the Annexable Property to be annexed, submitt ing it to the covenants, condit ions, and 
restrictions contained herein ,  and providing for the readjustment of voting rights, undivided 
interests in Common Elements, and assessment allocations provided for herein on the basis of 
formulas provided herein, to the extent additional Units are created in such portion of the 
Annexable Property. Such Supplemental Declaration shal l  not require the consent of the Owners. 
Any such expansion shal l  be effective upon the fi l ing for record of such Supplemental Declaration 
except as provided therein .  The expansion may be accomplished in stages or in a single step. 
Upon the recordation of any such Supplemental Declaration, the definitions used in this 
Declaration shal l  automatically encompass and refer to the Property as expanded. Such 
Supplemental Declaration may add, delete, or modify provisions of this Declaration as it applies 
to a l l  or any portion of the Annexable Property then being subjected to the Declaration, provided, 
however, that this Declaration may not be modified with respect to the Property previously subject 
to the Declaration, except as provided herein for amendment. 

Section 8 . 1 . 2  The right, but not the obl igat ion, to create Units , Common 
Elements and Limited Common Elements upon al l  or part of the Annexable Property. 

Section 8 . 1 . 3  The right, but not the obligation, to convert Units owned by 
Declarant into Common Elements or Limited Common Elements, and to allocate Common 
Elements as Limited Common Elements in accordance with this Declaration. 

Section 8 . 1 . 4  The right, but not the obl igation, to construct underground util ity 
l ines, pipes, wires, ducts, conduits and other facil ities upon the real property in the Project, for the 
purpose of furnishing uti l i ty and other serv ices to bu i ld ings and Improvements to be constructed 
in the Project. Declarant also reserves the right to withdraw and grant easements to publ ic uti l ity  

companies and to convey Improvements within those easements anywhere in the Project not 
occupied by bui ld ings ,  for the purposes mentioned above. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 19  



Section 8 . 1 . 5  The right, but not the obl igat ion, to withdraw any Unit from th is 
Declaration at any t ime prior to the sale or conveyance of that Unit by Declarant. Such withdrawal 
shall be accomplished by recording a declaration of withdrawal in the records of the Recorder of 
Elko County, Nevada, describing the real property to be withdrawn, and providing for the 
readjustment of voting rights and assessment allocations provided for herein .  Such declaration of 
withdrawal shall not require the consent of the Owners. Any such withdrawal shal l be effective 
upon the fi l ing for record of such declaration of withdrawal except as provided therein. The 
withdrawal may be accompl ished in stages by successive declarations or in one declaration of 
withdrawal. 

Section 8 . 1 . 6  The right, but not the obl igat ion, to uni lateral ly amend, rescind or 
terminate this Declaration at any time prior to the close of the first sale of a Unit 

Section 8 . 1 . 7  The right, but not the ob l igat ion ,  to create sub-associations and 
supplemental declarations for the operation thereof. 

Section 8 . 1 . 8  As to each portion of the Project, the right, but not the obl igat ion, 
to withdraw such portion of the Project from this Declaration at any t ime prior to the sale or 
conveyance of a Unit created by the Plat and Plan covering that portion of the Project. 

Section 8.2 Limitat ions on Development Rights. The Development Rights reserved 
in Section 8 . 1  are l imited as follows: 

Section 8 . 2 . 1  The Development Rights may be exercised at any t ime within ten 
( 1 0 )  years after the recording of the init ial Declaration. 

Section 8 . 2 . 2  The construction of any bui ld ings and Improvements to be bui l t  
and annexed into the Project shal l  be consistent with the qual i ty of those bui ldings and 
Improvements constructed in Phase 1 (this l imitation shall not prevent Declarant from having the 
right to substitute materials of l ike durabi l i ty and strength); 

Section 8 .2 .3  All Units and Common Elements created pursuant to the 
Development Rights wil l  be restricted to residential use in the same manner and to the same 
extent as the Units created under this Declaration as in i t ia l ly  recorded; 

Section 8 .2 .4  All taxes, assessments, mechanic's l iens and other charges 
affecting the Project aris ing in connection with Declarant's ownership of, and construction of 
Improvements upon, the Annexable Property which may adversely affect the rights of existing 
Owners, or the priority of any Eligible Mortgagee on Units in the Project, are to be paid or 
otherwise satisfactorily provided for by Declarant; 

Section 8 . 2 . 5  Improvements to be constructed on portions of the Annexable 
Property annexed into the Project shal l  be substant ia l ly completed prior to annexation; and 

Section 8 .3  Special Declarant Rights. Declarant reserves the following Specia l 
Declarant Rights, to the maximum extent permitted by law, wh ich may be exercised ,  where 
appl icable ,  anywhere within the Project: 

Section 8 . 3 . 1  

Section 8 .3 .2  

To complete any Improvements indicated on the Plat and Plans ;  

To exercise any Development Right reserved in this Declaration; 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 20 

'.! I 



Section 8 .3 .3 To maintain sales offices, management offices, s igns advertising 
the Project and models which are reasonably necessary to market the Units or any other real 
property owned by Declarant regardless of whether such real property is part of the Project; 

Section 8 .3 .4  To use easements through the Common Elements for the 
purpose of making Improvements within the Project or within real estate which may be added to 
the Project or any other real property owned by Declarant regardless of whether such real property 
is part of the Project; 

Section 8 .3 .5  To make the Project subject to a master association; 

Section 8.3 .6 To merge or consolidate the Project with another common 
interest community of the same form of ownership; and 

Section 8 .3 .7  To appoint or remove any officer of the Association or any 
member of the Board of Directors during the Declarant Control Period. 

Section 8.4 Models .  Sales Offices and Management Offices. For so long as 
Declarant is an Owner, Declarant, its duly authorized agents, representatives and employees 
reserves the r ight to use a portion of any "clubhouse" facil ity in the Common Elements for sales 
offices and/or management offices. Declarant further reserves the right to maintain any Unit  
owned by Declarant or any portion of the Common Elements as a model Unit ,  sales office or 
management office. 

Section 8 .5  Construction; Declarant's Easement. Declarant reserves the right to 
perform warranty work, repairs and construction work in Units and Common Elements, to store 
materials in secure areas, and to control and have the right of access to work and repairs unt i l  
complet ion. All work may be performed by Declarant without the consent or approval of the Board 
of Directors. Declarant has an easement through the Common Elements (including but not l imited 
to that portion of the Common Elements consisting of the private streets and entry gates) as may 
be reasonably necessary for the purpose of discharging Declarant's obl igat ions or exercising 
Special Declarant Rights, whether arising under the Act or reserved in this Declaration. This 
easement includes the right to convey util ity and drainage easements to publ ic uti l i t ies, 
munic ipal i t ies ,  the State, riparian owners or upland owners to fulf i l l  the plan of development. Such 
power to convey easements over the Common Elements shall pass to the Association at such 
time as Declarant no longer owns any portion of the Property or the Annexable Property. 

Section 8.6 Signs and Marketing. Declarant reserves the right to post signs and 
displays in the Common Elements in order to promote sales of Units. Declarant also reserves the 
right to conduct general sales activities in a manner which wil l  not unreasonably disturb the rights 
of Owners. 

Section 8. 7 Declarant's Personal Property. Declarant reserves the right to retain al l  
personal property and equipment used in the sales, management, construction and maintenance 
of the Project that has not been represented as property of the Association. Declarant reserves 
the right to remove from the Project (promptly after the sale and close of escrow of the last Unit) 
any and al l goods and improvements used in development, marketing and construction, whether 
or not they have become fixtures. 

Section 8 .8  Declarant Control of the Association. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 21 



Section 8 . 8 . 1  Subject to this Section 8.8 ,  there shal l  be a Declarant Control 
Period during which the Declarant, or persons designated by Declarant ,  may appoint and remove 
the officers of the Association and members of the Board of Directors. The Declarant Control 
Period terminates no later than the ear l ier of: 

(a) Sixty (60) days after conveyance of 75% of the Units that may be created to 
Owners other than a declarant (as defined in the Act); or 

(b) Five (5) years after the first Unit is conveyed by Declarant; or 

(c) Five (5) years after Declarant has ceased to offer Units for sale in the ordinary 
course of business. 

Section 8 .8 .2 Declarant may voluntari ly surrender the right to appoint and 
remove officers and members of the Board of Directors before the termination of the Declarant 
Control Period. In that event, Declarant may require, for the duration of the Declarant Control 
Period, that specified actions of the Association or Board of Directors, as described in a recorded 
instrument executed by Declarant, be approved by Declarant before they become effective. 

Section 8 .8 .3  Not later than sixty (60) days after conveyance of 25% of the 
Units that may be created to Owners other than a declarant (as defined in the Act), at least one 
member and not less than 25% of the members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by 
Owners other than Declarant. Not later than sixty (60) days after conveyance of 50% of the Units 
that may be created to Owners other than a declarant (as defined in the Act), not less than 33- 
1 /3% of the members of the Board of Directors must be elected by Owners other than Declarant. 

Section 8 .8 .4 Not later than the terminat ion of the Declarant Control Per iod, 
each member of the Board of Directors must have been elected by the Owners as provided in the 
Bylaws. 

Section 8 .8 .5  Notwithstanding any provision of this Declaration to the contrary, 
the termination of the Declarant Control Period shall not affect Declarant's rights as an Owner to 
exercise the votes allocated to Units which Declarant owns. 

Section 8.9 Limitations on Special Declarant Rights. Unless terminated earl ier by 
an amendment to this Declaration executed by Declarant, any Special Declarant Right may be 
exercised by Declarant unt i l  the later of the following: as long as Declarant (a) is obligated under 
any warranty or obl igation, (b) holds a Development Right , (c) owns any Unit ; (d) owns any 
Security Interest in any Units; or (e) fifteen ( 15 )  years have elapsed after the recording of this 
Declaration. Earl ier termination of certain rights may occur by statute. 

Section 8 . 1 0  Interference with Special Declarant Rights. Neither the Association nor 
any Owner may take any action or adopt any rule that wil l interfere with or d imin ish any Special 
Declarant Right without the prior written consent of Declarant. 

Section 8 . 1 1  Declarant's Rights to Complete Development. No provrsion of this 
Declaration shal l be construed to prevent or l imit Declarant's rights, hereby reserved, to complete 
the development, construction, promotion, marketing, sale and leasing of Units within the 
boundaries of the area comprised of the Property and the Annexable Property; to construct or 
alter Improvements on any property owned by Declarant within such boundaries; to maintain 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 22 



model homes, offices for construction, sales or leasing purposes or simi lar facilities on any 
property owned by Declarant or owned by the Association within such boundaries; or to post s igns 
incidental to the development, construction, promotion, marketing, sale and leasing of property 
within such boundaries. Nothing contained in this Declaration shal l l imit the right of Declarant or 
require Declarant to obtain approval to: (a) excavate, cut, fill or grade on any property owned by 
Declarant, or to construct, alter, remodel , demolish or replace any Improvements on any property 
owned by Declarant; (b) use any structure on any part of the Property or any property owned by 
Declarant as a construction, model home or real estate sales or leasing office in connection with 
the sale of any property within such boundaries; or (c) require Declarant to seek or obtain the 
approval of the Board of Directors, the Architectural Committee or the Association for any such 
activity or Improvement to property by Declarant on any part of the Property or any property owned 
by Declarant. Nothing in th is Section shal l  l imi t  or impair the reserved rights of Declarant as 
elsewhere provide in this Declaration. In exercising Declarant's rights under this Article V I I I ,  
Declarant shal l  not unreasonably interfere with any non-Declarant Owner's use and enjoyment of 
his or her Unit .  

Section 8 . 1 2  Priority of Declarant's Rights and Reservations. Declarant shal l  have, 
and hereby retains and reserves, certain rights as set forth in this Declaration with respect to the 
Association and the Project. The rights and reservations of Declarant set forth in this Declaration 
shall be deemed excepted and reserved in each recorded supplemental declaration or annexation 
amendment ,  in each conveyance of property by Declarant to the Association and in each deed or 
other instrument by which any property encumbered hereby is conveyed by Oeclarant. whether 
or not specifically stated therein. The rights, reservations and easements of Declarant set forth in 
this Declaration shal l  be prior and super ior to any other provisions of th is Declaration and may 
not, without Declarant's prior written consent, be modified, amended, rescinded or affected by 
any amendment of this Declaration, including any amendment of this Section. Declarant's consent 
to anyone such amendment shal l  not be construed as consent to any other or subsequent 
amendment .  

Section 8 . 1 3  Assignment of Declarant's Rights and Duties. Any and al l of the rights, 
powers and reservations of Declarant herein contained may be assigned by Declarant to any 
Person which wil l assume any or all of the duties of Declarant hereunder, and upon any such 
Person's evidencing consent in writing to accept such assignment (and recordation of the same 
in the Office of the Elko County Recorder), said assignee sha l l ,  to the extent of such assignment, 
assume Declarant's duties hereunder, have the same rights and powers and be subject to the 
same ob l igations and duties as are given to and assumed by Declarant herein .  Upon such 
assignment, and to the extent thereof, Declarant shall be relieved from a l l l iabi l i t ies ,  obligations 
and duties hereunder. 

Section 8 . 1 4  Phasing of Development R ights. Declarant may exercise its 
Development R ights with respect to different portion of the Project and Annexable Property at 
different times .  No assurances are made by Declarant as to whether Declarant w i l l  exercise its 
Development Rights or the order in which such portions of the Project or Annexable Property wi l l  
be developed. The exercise of Development Rights as to some portions wil l not obl igate Declarant 
to exercise its Development Rights as to other portions .  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 23 



ARTICLE IX 

ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS, AND IMPROVEMENTS 

Section 9 . 1  Requisite Approvals and Procedures for Owner Alteration. No Owner 
may (i) alter the exterior appearance of any Unit or Common Elements, or (i i) alter, in any way, 
the originally installed condition of any component contained within the framing of a structure, or 
( i i i )  make or commence any structural addit ion, structural alteration or Improvement in the 
Project-including without l imitation, the alteration or construction of a bu i ld ing ,  fence, wall or 
structure or the placement, erection or alteration of any Limited Common Element-without the 
prior written consent of the Board of Directors or if an architectural committee is appointed by the 
Board of Directors ("Architectural Committee"), than by the Architectural Committee. The 
Architectural Committee may have not less than one ( 1 )  nor more than three (3) members who 
need not be Members of the Association. 

Section 9 . 1 . 1  Any request for approval of anything prohibited under this 
Declaration must be submitted in writing to the Board of Directors or the Architectural Committee, 
as appl icable. The Board of Directors or the Architectural Committee shal l  answer any written 
request for approval within sixty (60) days after the request Failure to answer the request within 
this time shal l not constitute a consent or approval by the Board of Directors or the Architectural 
Committee to the proposed action. Any such request sha l l  be reviewed in  accordance with any 
Architectural Committee Rules then in effect 

Section 9 . 1 . 2  Any appl icat ions to any department or governmental authority for 
a permit to make any addit ion,  alteration or improvement in or to any Unit sha l l  be executed by 
the Association only. This execution will not, however, create any l iabil ity on the part of the 
Association or any of its members to any contractor, subcontractor or materialman on account of 
the addit ion ,  alteration or improvement or to any person because of any claim for injury to person 
or damage to property arising from the permit. 

Section 9 . 1 . 3  Any member or authorized consultant of the Board of Directors 
or the Architectural Committee, or any authorized officer, Manager, employee or other agent of 
the Association may enter upon any Unit at any reasonable time after notice to the Owner, without 
being deemed gui l ty of trespass, in order to inspect any structural addit ion, alteration or 
Improvement constructed or under construction in the Unit to determine whether the work has 
been or is being built in compliance with the plans and specifications approved by the Board of 
Directors or the Architectural Committee. I n  case of an emergency, no request or notice is 
required and the right of entry sha l l  be immediate, and with as much force as is reasonably 
necessary to gain entrance ,  whether or not the Owner is present at the t ime .  

Section 9 . 1  A  All addit ions, alterations and improvements to the Units and 
Common E lements sh a l l not, except pursuant to prior approval by the Board of Directors,  cause 
any  increase in the premiums of any insurance pol icies carried by the Association or by the 
Owners of any Units other than those affected by such change .  

Section 9 . 2 Limitation on L iability of Architectural Committee .  Provided that the 
Architectural Committee or a particular member of the Architectural Committee has acted in good 
faith on the basis of the information as may be possessed by the Architectural Comm ittee or the 
member ,  as the case may be ,  then neither the Architectural Committee nor any member thereof 
shal l  be l iable to the Associat ion, to any Owner ,  or any other person for any damage ,  loss, or 
prejudice suffered or claimed on account of: (a) the approval or disapproval of any plans,  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 24 

I' 



drawings, and specifications, whether or not defective; (b) the construction or performance of any 
work, whether or not pursuant to approved plans, drawings, and specifications; (c) the 
development of any property subject to th is Declaration. Without l imit ing the general ity of the 
foregoing, the Architectural Committee and any member thereof may, but it is not required to, 
consult with knowledgeable outsiders with respect to any plans, drawings, specifications, or any 
other proposal submitted to the Architectural Committee. 

Section 9 .3 Architectural Committee Ru les .  The Architectural Committee sha l l ,  
upon request of the Board of Directors and subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, 
prepare and promulgate Architectural Committee Rules containing guidel ines and review 
procedures on behalf of the Association. The Architectural Committee Rules shal l  be those of the 
Association, and the Architectural Committee shall have sole and full authority to prepare and to 
amend the Architectural Committee Rules, provided the Architectural Committee Rules are 
otherwise in compliance with the Act, the Articles, the Bylaws and this Declaration. The 
Architectural Committee shal l make Architectural Committee Rules avai lable to Owners. 

Section 9.4 Board of Directors and Architectural Committee Discretion. Except as 
may be expressly provided in th is Declaration (and subject to the l imitat ions of Nevada law), any 
consent or approval of the Board of Directors, Architectural Committee, that is required under the 
provisions hereof may be granted or withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board of 
Directors, Architectural Committee, as applicable. In that regard, the granting or withholding of 
such consent or approval shal l  not be subject to any objective standards of "reasonableness" or 
otherwise. Further, the approval of or consent to any matter shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of the right to disapprove the same or s imi lar  matters in subsequent requests for consents or 
approvals from the same or other parties. 

Section 9 .5  No Applicability to Construction by Declarant. The provisions of this 
Article IX shal l  not apply to the init ial construction by Declarant in the Project, and neither the 
Board of Directors nor any Architectural Committee appointed by the Board of Directors sha l l  
have any authority or right to approve or disapprove the initial construction by Declarant in the 
Project. 

Section 9 .6 No Appl icabi l i ty to Board of Directors. Subject to the l imitations of this 
Declarat ion, the Board of Directors may make any addit ions,  alterations or improvements to the 
Common Elements which, in its judgment, it deems necessary 

ARTICLE X 

BOUNDARIES 

Section 1 0  . 1  Application and Amendment. The boundaries between adjoining Units 
may not be relocated without the approval of the Board of Directors or the Architectural 
Committee, as appl icable, under Article IX. In  addition to the plans and specifications required for 
approval under Article IX, a request for a boundary adjustment must be accompanied by the 
written consent of al l  Owners of the Units affected by the relocation. If the Owners of the adjoining 
Units have specified a reallocation between their Units of their Allocated Interests, the application 
sha l l  state the proposed reallocation. In  the event that the Board of Directors or the Architectural 
Committee approves the request for boundary adjustment, the Association shal l  prepare an 
amendment that identifies the Units involved, states the reallocations and indicates the 
Association's consent (the consent of a Majority of Owners shall not be required). The amendment 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 25 



must be executed by those Unit Owners affected and contain words of conveyance between 
them. The approval of all holders of Security Interests in the affected Units shall be endorsed on 
the conveyance. On recordation, the amendment sha l l  be indexed in the name of the grantor and 
the grantee, and in the grantee's index in the name of the Association. 

Section 1 0 . 2  Recording Amendments. The Association shal l  prepare and record an 
amendment to the Plat and Plans as necessary to show the altered boundaries between adjoining 
Uni ts ,  along with the Units' d imensions and identifying numbers. The applicants wil l pay for the 
costs of preparation of the amendment and its recording, as well as any reasonable consultant 
fees incurred by the Associat ion. 

ARTICLE XI 

MECHANIC'S LIEN RIGHTS 

Section 1 1 . 1  Condominium Labor. No labor performed or services or materials 
furnished with the consent or at the request of an Owner or such Owner's agent, contractor, or 
subcontractor shal l  be the basis for the f i l ing of a l ien against the Unit of any other Owner or 
against any part thereof or against any other property of any other Owner unless such other 
Owner has expressly consented to or requested the performance of such labor or furnishing of 
such materials or services. Such express consent shal l be deemed to have been given by the 
Owner of any Unit in the case of emergency repairs thereto. Labor performed or services or 
materials furnished for the Project, if du ly authorized by the Association, shal l  be deemed to be 
performed or furnished with the express consent of each Owner. Any Owner may remove such 
Owner's Unit from a l ien against two or more Units or any part thereof by payment to the holder 
of the lien of the fraction of the total sum secured by such l ien,  which is attributable to such 
Owner's Uni t .  

ARTICLE XII 

AMENDMENTS TO DECLARATION 

Section 1 2 . 1  In  General . Except in cases of amendments that may be executed (i) 
by Declarant in the exercise of its Development Rights or ( i i ) by the Association under this 
Declaration and NRS 1 1 6 . 1 1 0 7 ,  this Declaration, including the Plat and Plans, may be amended 
only by vote or agreement of a Majority of Owners. The procedure for amendment must follow 
the procedures set forth in NRS 1 1 6 . 2 1 1 7 .  

Section 1 2 . 2  Limitat ion of Chal lenges. An action to cha l lenge the validity of an 
amendment adopted by the Association pursuant to this Article may not be brought more than 
one year after the amendment is recorded. 

Section 1 2 . 3  Recordation of Amendments. Each amendment to th is Declarat ion 
must be recorded in the Elko County Recorder's Office, and the amendment is effective only upon 
recording. 

Section 1 2 . 4  Unanimous Consent. Except to the extent expressly permitted or 
required by other provisions of this Declaration or the Act, an amendment may not increase the 
number of Units, change the boundaries of any Uni t ,  change the Allocated Interests of a Unit  or 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 26 



change the uses to which any Unit is restricted, except by unanimous consent of the Owners 
affected and the consent of a Majority of Owners. 

Section 1 2 . 5  Execution of Amendments. An amendment to this Declaration required 
by the Act to be recorded by the Association, which has been adopted in accordance with this 
Declaration and the Act, must be prepared, executed, recorded and certified on behalf of the 
Association by an officer of the Association designated for that purpose or, in the absence of 
designation, by the president of the Association. 

Section 1 2 . 6  Special Declarant Rights. Provisions in this Declaration creating or 
relating to Special Declarant Rights ( including, without l imitat ion, Development Rights) may not 
be amended without the consent of Declarant. 

Section 1 2 .  7  Amendments Related to Development Rights. To exercise any 
Development Right reserved under Article V I I I  of this Declaration, Declarant shal l  prepare, 
execute and record an amendment to th is Declaration (which amendment may be an annexat ion 
amendment, if appl icable) .  Said amendment shal l  comply with appl icable provisions of the Act. 
Declarant shal l also record new Plat and Plans to the extent necessary to conform to the 
requirements of NRS 1 16 . 2 109 ( 1 ) ,  (2) and (4). An amendment pursuant to which Units are 
created shall assign an identifying number to each new Unit created and state the real location of 
Allocated Interests among al l Units . Such an amendment shal l  also describe any Common 
Elements and any Limited Common Elements created and designate the Unit to which each 
Limited Common Element is al located to the extent required by NRS 1 16 .2 108 (a ) .  

Section 1 2 . 8  No Limitation. Nothing herein shal l  l imit or expand any of the rights or 
duties ar is ing under NRS 1 1 6  .  

ARTICLE XII I  

THE ASSOCIATION 

Section 1 3 . 1  Membersh ip. The Articles of Incorporation and By laws of the 
Association copies of which are attached hereto are made a part of this Declaration. Every Owner 
sha l l  be ent itled and required to be a Member of the Assoc iation. If title to a Unit is held by more 
than one Person , the membership related to that Unit shal l  be shared by all such Persons in the 
same proportionate interests and by the same type of tenancy in which the title to the Un i t  is he ld .  
An Owner shal l  be entitled to one membership for each Unit owned by that Owner. No Person or 
entity other than an Owner may be a Member of the Associat ion and the membersh ips in the 
Association may not be transferred except in connection with the transfer of a Unit ;  provided ,  
however, the rights of membership may be assigned to a Mortgagee as further security for a loan 
secured by a l ien on a Unit .  

Section 13 . 2  One Membership per Unit .  One membership in the Association 
("Membership") shal l  be appurtenant to each Unit . No Membership may be transferred separate 
and apart from the Unit .  

Section 1 3 . 3  Duties. The Association is charged with the duties and vested with the 
powers prescribed by law and set forth in the Articles , Bylaws , and this Declaration. Neither the 
Articles nor Bylaws shal l ,  for any reason, be amended or otherw ise changed so as to be 
inconsistent with this Declaration. If there should exist any ambiguity in any provision of the 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 27 

'I 

1, 



Articles or Bylaws, then such provision shal l  be construed as consistent with the provisions of th is 
Declaration. 

Section 13 .4  In i t ia l  Voting Rights. In i t ia l ly there shal l  be two (2) classes of voting 
Members, Class A and Class B. 

Section 1 3 . 4 . 1  Class A Members. Class A Members sha l l  be al l  Owners, with 
the exception of Declarant unt i l  the Class B Membership, as defined below, has been converted 
to Class A Membership, and after such conversion all Owners shal l be Class A Members. Each 
Class A Member's voting right shall be based upon a percentage basis .  The percentage basis to 
which each Class A Member is entitled shal l  be equal to the number of Units owned by that 
Person. The Association may, but shall not be obligated to recognize the vote or written consent 
of any co-Owner except the vote or consent of the co-Owner designated in writing executed by 
al l  such co-Owners and delivered to the Association. 

Section 1 3 . 4 . 2  Class B Members. The Class B Member shall be the Declarant. 
The Class B Member's voting rights shal l  be based upon a percentage basis mult ipl ied by three 
(3) .  The percentage basis to which the Class B Member is entit led shal l  be the percentage basis 
which is set forth in Exhibit E attached hereto. The Class B Membership shall cease and be 
converted to Class A Membership when Declarant owns less than twenty five percent (25%) of 
the total of al l  Units. 

Section 1 3 . 5  Voting Rights without Class B Membership. Upon the termination of the 
Class B Membership pursuant to Sections 1 3 . 4  and 1 3 . 5  and except as otherwise provided in the 
Articles, Bylaws, this Declaration, the Act or other appropriate Chapters of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes, all matters requiring the approval of Members shal l  be deemed approved if a Majority of 
Members assent to them by written consent as provided in the Bylaws or, if approved by a majority 
vote of a quorum (as set forth in the Bylaws) of Members at any regular or special meeting held 
in accordance with the Bylaws. 

Section 1 3 . 6  Election of Directors. Upon the terminat ion of the Class B Membership 
pursuant to Sections 13 .4  and 13 .5 ,  the Board of Directors of the Association shall be elected in 
accordance with the Bylaws. 

Section 1 3 .  7  Transfer. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, any of the 
rights, interests, and obligations of the Association set forth herein or reserved herein may be 
transferred or assigned to any other Person or entity; provided, however, no such transfer or 
assignment shal l  relieve the Association of any of the obligations set forth herein. Any such 
transfer or assignment shali not revoke or change any of the rights or obligations of any Owner 
as set forth herein. 

Section 1 3 . 8  Amplification. The provisions of this Article are amplified by the Articles 
of Incorporation of the Association and by the Bylaws of the Association; provided, however, no 
present or future provision of such Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws shal l  substant ia l ly alter or 
amend any of the rights or obligations of the Owners set forth herein. 

Section 1 3 . 9  Voting and Approvals. No action requiring a vote, the consent or the 
approval of the Members, with the exception of the election of the Board of Directors as set forth 
in this Article X I I I ,  shal l be deemed passed or approved except upon the affirmative vote of 
seventy-five (75%) of the Members based upon the percentage basis to which each Member is 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 28 



entit led as set forth in Section 13 .4  and 13 .5 ,  inc lud ing the affirmative vote, consent or approval 
of seventy-five (75%) of the Members owning Units based upon the percentage basis to which 
each Member is entitled as set forth in Section 1 3 . 4  and 1 3 . 5 .  

Section 1 3 . 1 0  Open Meetings. 

Section 1 3 . 1 0 . 1  Access. All meetings of the Board of Directors wil l be open to the 
Owners, except as hereinafter provided. 

Section 1 3 . 1 0 . 2  Executive Sessions .  Meetings of the Board of Directors may be 
held in executive session, without giving notice and without the requirement that they be open to 
Owners, only if the action taken at the executive session involves (a) consultation with the attorney 
for the Association on matters relating to proposed or pending l i t igation, if the contents of the 
discussion would otherwise be governed by the privilege set forth in NRS 49.35 to 4 9 . 1 1 5 ,  
inclusive, or entering into, renewing, modifying, terminating or taking any other action regarding 
a contract between the Association and the attorney; (b) discussion of the character, al leged 
misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health of a community manager or 
an employee of the associat ion; (c) discussion of a violation of the Governing Documents, 
including, without l imitation, the failure to pay an assessment, subject to the rights of the person 
who may be sanct ioned for the al leged violation (as set forth in the Bylaws); (d) discussion the 
al leged failure of an Owner to adhere to a construction schedule established pursuant to the 
Declaration; or (e) any other matter permitted by law to be discussed in an executive session. 

Section 1 3 . 1 1  The Associations Power to Bring Suit .  To protect the Association and 
the Owners from being subjected to potentially costly or prolonged controversies without full 
disclosure, analysis and consent; to protect the Board and individual Directors from any charges 
of negl igence, breach of fiduciary duty, conflict of interest or acting in excess of their authority or 
in a manner not in the best interests of the Association and the Owners; and to ensure voluntary 
and well-informed consent and clear and express authorization by the Owners, the Board, in 
seeking the assent of a Majority of Members to commence an action or mainta in an action 
pursuant to this Section 1 3 . 1 1 ,  sha l l  take the steps set forth below. Any action that may be 
commenced or maintained only upon the assent of a Majority of Members is referred to in this 
Article as a "Major Controversy". 

Section 1 3 . 1 1 . 1  Negotiation. The Board shal l  first endeavor to resolve any Major 
Controversy by good faith negotiations with the adverse party or parties. 

Section 1 3 . 1 1 . 2  Alternative Dispute Resolution. In the event that good faith 
negotiations fail to reasonably resolve the Major Controversy, the Board shal l  then endeavor in 
good faith to reso lve such controversy by mediation, provided that the Board shal l  not incur l iabi l ity 
for or spend more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2 ,000.00)  in connection therewith (provided that, 
if more than said sum is reasonably required in connection with such mediation ,  then the Board 
shal l  be required first to reasonably seek approval of a Majority of the Members for such addit ional 
amount for mediation before proceeding to arbitration or l i t igation). In the event that the adverse 
party or parties refuse mediation ,  or if such good faith mediation stil l fai ls to reasonably resolve 
the Major Controversy, the Board shal l  not be authorized to commence ,  institute or maintain any 
arbitration or l i t igation of such Major Controversy unt i l  the Board has ful ly complied with the 
following procedures : 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 29 



(a) The Board shal l  first investigate the legal merit ,  feasibil ity and expense of 
prosecuting the Major Controversy, and shal l  obtain, if reasonably avai lable ,  the written opin ions 
of each and every one of: ( 1 )  a  licensed Nevada attorney in Northern Nevada, with a Martindale 
Hubbel l  rating of "av", expressly stating that such attorney has reviewed the underlying facts and 
data in sufficient, verifiable detail to render the opin ion ,  and expressly opin ing that the Association 
has a substantial l ikelihood of prevailing on the merits with regard to the Major Controversy, 
without substant ial  l ikel ihood of incurring any material l iab i l i ty  with respect to any counterclaim 
which may be asserted against the Association ("Legal  Opin ion") ;  and (2) a reputable appraiser 
and/or real estate consultant regularly conducting business in Northern Nevada, expressly opining 
how the marketabil ity and market value of Units will l ikely be affected by such Major Controversy 
("Appraiser's Opin ion") .  (The Legal Opinion and Appraiser's Opin ion are sometimes collectively 
referred to herein as the "Opin ions) .  The Board shal l  be authorized to spend up to an aggregate 
of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) to obtain such Opinions,  including al l  amounts paid to said 
attorney therefor, and al l  amounts paid to any consultants, contractors and/or experts preparing 
or processing reports and/or information in connection therewith. The Board may increase said 
$2,000.00 l imit ,  with the express consent of seventy-five percent (75%) or more of all of the 
Members of the Association, at a special meeting called for such purpose. 

(b) The Legal Opinion shal l  also contain the attorney's best good faith estimate of 
the aggregate maximum "not-to-exceed" amount of legal  fees and costs, including without 
l imitat ion court costs, costs of investigation and a l l  further reports or studies, costs of court 
reporters and transcripts, and costs of expert witnesses and forensic specialists (all collectively, 
"Quoted Lit igation Costs") which are reasonably expected to be incurred for prosecution to 
complet ion ( inc lud ing appeal) of the Major Controversy. Said Legal Opin ion shal l  also include a 
draft of any proposed fee agreement with such attorney. If the attorney's proposed fee 
arrangement is contingent, the Board shall nevertheless obtain the Quoted Litigation Costs with 
respect to a l l  costs other than legal fees, and shal l  also obtain a written draft of the attorney's 
proposed contingent fee agreement. (Such written Legal Opin ion ,  including the Quoted Litigation 
Costs, and also including any proposed fee agreement, contingent or non-contingent, are 
col lectively referred to herein as the "Attorney Letter"). 

(c) Upon receipt and review of the Attorney Letter and the Appraiser's Opinion, if 
two-thirds (2/3) or more of the Board affirmatively vote to proceed with the institution or 
prosecution of, intervention in ,  or maintenance of the Major Controversy, the Board thereupon 
shal l  duly notice and cal l  a special meeting of the Members. The written notice to each Member 
of the Association shal l  include a copy of the Attorney Letter, inc lud ing the Quoted Litigation Costs 
and any proposed fee agreement, contingent or non-cont ingent ,  and the Appraiser's Opinion 
together with a written report ("Special Assessment Report") prepared by the Board: ( 1 )  itemiz ing 
the amount necessary to be assessed to each Member, on a month ly basis,  to fund the Quoted 
Lit igat ion Costs ("Special Litigation Assessment") ,  and (2) specifying the probable duration and 
aggregate amount of such Special Lit igation Assessment. At said special meeting, following 
review of the Attorney Letter, Quoted Litigation Costs .  the Appraiser's Opinion, and Special 
Assessment Report, and full and frank discussion thereof, inc lud ing balancing the des irability of 
inst i tut ing ,  prosecuting and/or intervening in the Major Controversy against the desirabil ity of 
accepting any settlement proposals from the adverse party or parties, the Board shal l call for a 
vote of the Members,  whereupon: (i) if less than Majority of the Members vote in favor of pursuing 
such Major Controversy and levying the Special Lit igat ion Assessment, then the Major 
Controversy shal l  not be pursued further, but ( i i) if a Majority of the Members affirmatively vote in 
favor of pursuing such Major Controversy, and in favor of levying a Special Lit igation Assessment 
on the Members in the amounts and for the duration set forth in the Special Assessment Report, 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 30 

' I 



then the Board shal l  be authorized to proceed to institute, prosecute, mainta in ,  and/or intervene 
in the Major Controversy. In such event, the Board shal l  engage the attorney who gave the 
opinion and quote set forth in the Attorney Letter, which engagement shal l  be expressly subject 
to the Attorney Letter. The terms of such engagement shal l  require (x) that said attorney shal l  be 
responsible for al l  attorneys' fees and costs and expenses whatsoever in excess of one hundred 
ten percent ( 1 1 0 % )  of the Quoted Lit igation Costs, and (y) that said attorney shal l  provide, and 
the Board shal l  distribute to the Members, not less frequently than monthly, a written update of 
the progress and current status of, and the attorney's considered prognosis for, the Major 
Controversy, including any offers of settlement and/or sett lement prospects, together with an 
itemized summary of attorneys fees and costs incurred to date in connection therewith. 

Section 1 3 . 1 1 . 3  Settlement. In the event of any bona fide settlement offer from 
the adverse party or parties in the Major Controversy, if the Association's attorney advises the 
Board that acceptance of the settlement offer would be reasonable under the circumstances, or 
would be in the best interests of the Association, or that said attorney no longer believes that the 
Association is assured of a substantial l ikel ihood of prevailing on the merits without prospect of 
material liability on any counterclaim, then the Board shall have the authority to accept such 
settlement offer. In  al l  other cases, the Board shal l  submit any settlement offer to the Owners, 
who shal l  have the right to accept any such settlement offer upon a majority vote of a Majority of 
the Members. If any civil action in which the Association is a party is settled (whether or not a 
Major Controversy), the Board shall disclose the terms and conditions of the settlement at the 
next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board after the settlement has been reached. 

Section 1 3 . 1 1 . 4  Fai lure to Comply. Any provision in this Declaration 
notwithstanding other than as set forth in this Article, the Association shal l  have no power 
whatsoever to institute, prosecute, maintain, or intervene in any Major Controversy Proceeding. 
Any institution, prosecution, or maintenance of, or intervention in ,  a  Major Controversy by the 
Board without first strictly comp lying with ,  and thereafter cont inuing to comply with , each of the 
provisions of this Article , shal l  be unauthorized and ultra vires as to the Association, and shal l  
subject any Director who voted or acted in any manner to violate or avoid the provisions and/or 
requirements of this Article to personal l iabi l ity to the Association for a l l  costs and l iabi l it ies 
incurred by reason of the unauthorized institution, prosecution , or maintenance of, or intervention 
in ,  the Major Controversy. This Article may not be amended or deleted at any t ime without the 
express prior written approval of both :  ( 1 )  Members representing not less than seventy-five 
percent (7 5%) of the total voting power of Association, and (2) not less than seventy-five percent 
(75%) of the total voting power of the Board of Directors; and any purported amendment or 
deletion of this Article ,  or any portion hereof , without both of such express pr ior written approvals 
shal l  be void. 

ARTICLE XIV 

CERTAIN RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE ASSOCIATION 

Section 1 4 . 1  The Management Body. The Association is hereby designated to be 
the "Management Body" and shal l  administer the Project in accordance the Articles of 
Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association, and the provisions of this Declaration. 

Section 14 .2 The Common Area. The Association, subject to the rights of the 
Owners set forth in this Declaration, shal l  be responsible for the exclusive management and 
control of the Common Area and al l  improvements thereon (inc luding furnishings and equ ipment 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 31 



related thereto) and shal l  keep the same in good, clean, attractive and sanitary condit ion, order 
and repair; however, each Owner of a Un i t  shal l  keep the Limited Common Area designated for 
use in connection with such Owner's Unit in a clean, sanitary, and attractive condition and shal l  
maintain and repair the heating equipment and hot water heater, and/or any other equipment 
servicing such Owner's Unit  exclusively .  The Association shal l  be responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of exterior surfaces of Buildings and Improvements located on the Project 
inc luding ,  without l imitat ion,  the painting of the same as often as necessary, the replacement of 
trim and caulk ing ,  the landscaping and the care of the grounds, the maintenance and repair of 
roofs, and the maintenance and repair of other Common Area, including utility lines and all other 
improvements or materials located within or used in connection with the Common Area. The 
Association shal l  be responsible for the removal and disposal of al l snow and ice so as to mainta in 
clear access, and ingress and egress, to al l  driveways, parking areas, and pedestrian pathways 
and sidewalks. The specification of duties of the Association with respect to particular Common 
Area shal l  not be construed to l imit the Association's duties with respect to other Common Area, 
as set forth in the first sentence in this section. For al l  other duties as set forth in this section, the 
Manager hired by the Association under Section 4 . 1 8  shall attend to the same, and the 
Association sha l l  oversee the Manager in the performance of these duties. The cost of such 
management, maintenance, and repair by the Association shal l  be borne as provided in Article 
xv. 

The Association by and through the Associat ion's officers shal l  have the right to grant 
easements for utility purposes over, upon, across, under, or through any portion of the Common 
Area, and each Owner hereby irrevocably appoints the Association and the Association's officers 
as attorney-in-fact for such purposes. 

Section 1 4 . 3  Miscel laneous Services. From time to t ime, the Association may obtain 
and pay for the services of any Person or entity to manage the Association's affairs, or any part 
thereof, to the extent the Association deems advisable ,  as well as such other personnel as the 
Association shall determine to be necessary or desirable for the proper operation of the Project, 
whether such personnel are furnished or employed directly by the Association or by any Person 
or entity with whom or which the Association contracts. The Association may obtain and pay for 
legal and accounting services necessary or desirable in connection with the operation of the 
Project or the enforcement of th is Declaration. The Association may arrange with others to furnish 
electrical , water, sewer, trash collection, and other common services to each Unit. 

Section 14 .4  Personal Property for Common Use. The Association may acquire and 
hold for the use and benefit of al l  Owners tangible and intangible personal property and may 
dispose of the same by sale or otherwise, and the beneficial interest in any such property shal l  
be deemed to be owned by the Owners in the same proportion as the Owner's respective voting 
interests. Such interest shal l  not be transferable except with the transfer of a Unit .  A transfer of 
a Unit sha l l  transfer to the transferee ownership of transferor's beneficial interest in such property 
without any reference thereto. Each Owner may use such property in accordance with the 
purpose for which it is intended, without hindering or encroaching upon the lawful rights of other 
Owners. The transfer of tit le to a Unit  under the foreclosure shal l  entitle the purchaser to the 
interest in such personal property associated with the foreclosed Unit . 

Section 14 .5  Rules and Regulations. The Association may make reasonable rules 
and regulations governing the use of the Units and of the Common Area, which Rules and 
Regulations shall be consistent with the rights and duties established in this Declaration. Such 
Rules and Regulations may inc lude,  without l imitat ion ,  assignment of particular portions of garage 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 32 



areas and parking areas within the Common Area for exclusive use by Owners of particular Units .  
The Association may suspend any Owner's voting rights in the Association during any period or 
periods during which such Owner or such Owner's Users fail to comply with such Rules and 
Regulat ions or with any other obl igat ions of such Owner under this Declaration. The Associat ion 
may also take judic ia l  act ion. inc lud ing ,  without l imitation. injunctive action against any Owner to 
enforce compl iance with such Rules. Regulat ions. or other obl igat ions or to obtain damages for 
noncompliance, all to the extent permitted by law. 

The Association is hereby appointed as the Owners' representative for the purpose of 
enforcing compliance with such Rules and Regulat ions. If a Manager is hired by the Association 
under Section 4 . 1 8  it may also be appointed by the Association to serve as such Owner's 
representative. so long as the Association provides adequate supervision of the activities of such 
Manager. 

Section 14 .6  Impl ied Rights. The Association may exercise any other right or 
privilege given to the Association expressly by this Declaration or by law. and every other right or 
privilege reasonably to be implied from the existence of any right or privilege given to the 
Association herein or reasonably necessary to effectuate any such right or privi lege. 

Section 1 4 .  7  Association Property. The Association may accept and exercise 
jurisdiction over all property, real and personal. conveyed free and clear of al l  l iens and 
encumbrances to the Association by Declarant, including (a) easements for operation and 
maintenance purposes over any portion of the Project and (b) The Association Easements. For 
purposes of this section, a nonexclusive easement. l icense or other contractual right to use in  
favor of the permitted users or any of them shal l  not be deemed a l ien or encumbrance. 

Section 1 4 . 8  Title to Property Upon Dissolution. The Association may convey, upon 
dissolution of the Association. the assets of the Association to an appropriate publ ic agency or 
agencies to be used for purposes s imi lar to those for which the Association was created, or to a 
nonprofit corporation. association, trust or other organization organized and operated for such 
s imi lar purposes. 

Section 1 4 . 9  Arbitrat ion. 

Section 1 4 . 9 . 1  Arbitration of Disputes.  Any cla im, controversy, cause of action, 
claim for relief, l iabi l ity or dispute ("Claims") between the Association and Declarant arising out of 
or relating in any way to the Project, including, without l imitat ion, claims for breach of contract, 
express or impl ied.  breach of warranty, strict l iabi l i ty , negligence, nuisance, statutory v io lat ion ,  
misrepresentation and fraud ( including cla ims in any manner relat ing to or arising out of a 
constructional defect as defined in NRS 4 0 . 6 1 5  which have not been resolved as provided in NRS 
40 .680(2) (mediation)) shall be resolved by binding arbitration pursuant to NRS Chapter 38 . 

Section 14 .9 .2 Rules for the Arbitration Proceeding. Cla ims shal l  be resolved in 
accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 
Assoc iation ("AAA") .  the AAA's supplementary procedures for consumer/residential construction 
disputes (collectively, the "Construction Industry Rules") and the terms of this Article. In the event 
the provisions of this Article are inconsistent with the Construction Industry Rules .  the 
Construction Industry Rules shal l  control. If the matter proceeds to arbitration, discovery shal l  be 
allowed pursuant to the Nevada Rules of Civi l  Procedure ("NRCP") .  In  the event any provision of 
NRCP pertaining to discovery is inconsistent with the Construction Industry Rules ,  such 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 33 



provisions of NRCP sha l l  prevai l .  Arbitration of any matter pursuant to this clause shal l  not be 
deemed a waiver of the attorney/client or attorney/work product priv i lege in any manner. 

Section 1 4 . 9 . 3  Right to Repair .  Nothing set forth in this Article is intended to 
affect the rights of Declarant, contractors or subcontractors under NRS Chapter 40 or any other 
Nevada law to repair any constructional defect. 

Section 14 .9 .4  Arbitrator. The dispute constituting a claim shal l  be heard and 
determined by a single neutral arbitrator who has expertise in the area of the dispute. The 
arbitrator shall be appointed within a period of t ime, which in no event shal l be more than sixty 
(60) days from the administrator's receipt of a written request from a party to arbitrate the c la im 
or dispute. In  selecting the arbitrator, the provisions of the Construction Industry Rules sha l l  
apply. 

Section 14 .9 .5  Joinder of Parties. The parties may join other parties as provided 
in the Construction Industry Rules. For example, Declarant may include its contractor and any 
and al l subcontractors and suppl iers or other parties in the arbitration. 

Section 14 .  9 .6 Location of Arbitration. The venue of the arbitration shall be Elko 
County, Nevada. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the arbitration shal l  commence, be 
conducted, and conclude promptly in accordance with the Construction Industry Rules.  

Section 14 .9 .7  Award. The arbitrator is authorized to provide all recognized 
remedies available in law or in equity for the claims. The award of the arbitrator sha l l  be 
accompanied by detai led written findings of fact and conclusions of law. Any award rendered by 
the arbitrator may be confirmed, entered and enforced in any court having jurisdiction over the 
matter. 

Section 14 .9 .8  Strict Confidentiality. Except as may be required by law or for 
confirmation of the award, neither of the parties nor the arbitrator may disclose the existence, 
content or results of the arbitration hearing without the prior written consent of both parties and 
such content and results are strictly confidential . 

Section 14 .9 . 9  Arbitration Costs and Attorneys Fees. Any costs to initiate 
arbitration shal l  be advanced by the party init iat ing the arbitration, but the costs of arbitration shal l  
ultimately be borne by the losing party and, if there is more than one losing party, in such 
proportions as the arbitrator may determine. The prevai l ing party or parties in such arbitration 
shal l  be entit led to recover reasonable attorneys' fees from the los ing party or parties in such 
amounts as the arbitrator shall determine. 

Section 1 4 . 9 . 1 0  Statutes of Limitation. The arbitration must be filed within the 
statute of l imitations applicable to the claim. 

Section 1 4 . 1 0  Effect of Article. Nothing in th is Article shal l  be construed so as to 
waive, alleviate, or otherwise modify the Association's obl igations under other sections of this 
Declaration. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 34 

--



ARTICLE XV 

ASSESSMENTS 

Section 1 5 . 1  Agreement to Pay Assessment. Declarant, for each Unit owned by 
Declarant within the Project and for and as the Owner of the Project and every part thereof, hereby 
covenants, and each Owner of any Unit by the acceptance of a deed, whether or not it be so 
expressed in the deed, shal l  be deemed to covenant and agree with each other and with the 
Association to pay to the Association periodic assessments made by the Association for the 
purposes provided in this Declaration and special assessments for capital improvements and 
other matters as provided in this Declarat ion. In  the case of joint or co-ownerships th is l iab i l i ty 
shal l  be joint and several . Such assessments shal l be fixed, established, and collected from t ime 
to time in the manner provided in this Article XV. 

Section 1 5 . 2  Amount of Total Periodic Assessments. The total periodic 
assessments against al l  Units shal l  be based upon advance estimates of cash requirements by 
the Association to provide for the payment of all estimated expenses connected with the 
maintenance and operating of the Common Area and the Parking Areas, or the furnishing of 
electrical, water, sewer, trash col lection, and other common services to each Unit to the extent 
not separately metered and/or bi l led to a specific Unit, which estimates may include, among other 
th ings,  expenses of management, taxes and special assessments, premiums for a l l  insurance 
which the Association is required or permitted to mainta in pursuant hereto, landscaping and care 
of grounds, common lighting and heating, water charges, trash collection, sewer service charges, 
repairs and maintenance, wages for Associat ion employees, legal and accounting fees, any deficit 
remaining from a previous period, the creation of a reasonable contingency reserve, surplus, and 
/or sinking fund, and any other expenses and liabilities which may be incurred by the Association 
for the benefit of the Owners under or by reason of this Declaration. 

Section 1 5 . 3  Notice of Periodic Assessments and Time Payment Thereof. The 
Association shall make periodic assessments, which assessments shall be annual ly , quarterly, or 
monthly ,  as the Association shal l  from t ime to t ime determine. The Association may, in the 
Association's discretion, send notice of assessments to each Owner, which notice shal l  specify 
the amount of the assessment and the date or dates of payment of the same. No payment shall 
be due less than fifteen ( 1 5 )  days after the said written notice has been given. Each periodic 
assessment shal l  bear interest at the rate equal to the then current Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.  pr ime 
rate plus five percent (5%) per annum from the date it becomes due and payable if not paid within 
thirty (30) days after such date and shal l  be subject to an automatic late charge of Fifty Dol lars 
($50.00). Fai lure of the Association to give notice of the assessment shal l  not affect the l iabi l i ty 
of any Owner for such assessment, but the date when payment shal l become due in such a case 
shal l  be deferred to a date fifteen ( 15 )  days after such notice shal l  have been given. 

Section 1 5 . 4  Special Assessments. In  addition to the annual assessments 
authorized by this Article XV, the Association may, at any t ime, levy a special assessment payable 
over such a period as the Association may determine for the purpose of defraying in whole or in 
part the cost of any construction or reconstruction, unexpected repair or replacement of the 
Project or any part thereof, or any other expense incurred or to be incurred as provided in this 
Declarat ion. This section shal l  not be construed as an independent source of authority for the 
Association to incur expenses, but this section shal l  be construed to prescribe the manner of 
assessing for expenses authorized by other sections hereof that shall make specific reference to 
this Article XV. Any amounts assessed pursuant hereto shal l  be assessed to Owners in the same 
manner as provided in Section 1 5 . 3  of this Article XV. Notice in writing of the amount of such 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 35 



special assessments and the time for payment thereof sha l l  be given promptly to the Owners, and 
no payment shal l  be due less than thirty (30) days after such notice shal l  have been given. The 
Association shall have the power to incur expenses for maintenance and repair of any Unit if such 
maintenance or repair is necessary, in the opin ion of the Board of Directors of the Association to 
protect the Common Area and the Parking Areas or any other portion of the Project and if the 
Owner or Owners of said Unit have failed or refused to perform said maintenance or repair within 
a reasonable t ime after written notice of the necessity of said maintenance or repair has been 
delivered by the Board of Directors to said Owner or Owners, the Board of Directors shal l levy a 
special assessment against the Owner or Owners or Occupant or User of any such Unit to pay 
for the cost of such maintenance and repair and any other costs or expenses aris ing out of or 
incident to such maintenance and repair and the assessment therefor. A special assessment 
shal l  bear interest at the rate equal to the then current Wells Fargo Bank, N .A .  prime rate plus 
five percent (5%) per annum from the date it becomes due and payable if not paid within thirty 
(30) days after such date and shal l  be subject to an automatic late charge of Fifty Dollars ($50.00) .  

Section 1 5 . 5  Lien for Assessments. All sums assessed to any Unit pursuant to th is 
Article XV, together with interest thereon as provided herein, shal l  be secured by a l ien on such 
Unit in favor of the Association upon recordation of a notice of assessment l ien as herein provided. 
Such lien shal l  be superior to all other liens and encumbrances on such Unit except only for: (a) 
valid tax and special assessment l iens on the Unit in favor of any governmental assessing 
authority; (b) a l ien for al l sums unpaid on any Mortgage which encumbers such Unit and which 
has been duly recorded in Sweetwater County, Wyoming, real estate records, including al l unpaid 
obligatory advances to be made pursuant to such Mortgages and secured by the l ien thereof in 
accordance with the terms of such instrument; and (c) labor or materialmen's l iens,  to the extent 
required by law. All other l ienors acquiring liens on any Unit after this Declaration shal l  have been 
recorded in said records shall be deemed to consent that such l iens shal l  be inferior l iens to future 
l iens for assessments as provided herein, whether or not such consent be specifically set forth in 
the instruments creating such l iens. 

To create a l ien for sums assessed pursuant to this Article XV, the Association may 
prepare a written notice of the assessment l ien setting forth the amount of the assessment, g iv ing 
rise to the l ien, the date due, the amount remaining unpaid, and the name of the record Owner of 
the Unit and a descript ion of the Unit .  Such notice sha l l  be signed by the Association and may 
be recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Elko County, Nevada. No notice of an assessment 
l ien shall be recorded until there is a del inquency in payment of the assessment. Such l ien may 
be enforced by sale by the Association after failure of the Owner to pay such an assessment in 
accordance with its terms, such sale to be conducted in the manner permitted by law in Nevada 
for the exercise of power of sale in deeds of trust or in any other manner permitted by law , 
including, without l imitat ion, judicial foreclosure. The Owner shal l  be required to pay the costs 
and expenses of such proceeding ,  the costs and expenses of fil ing the notice of assessment l ien 
and a l l  costs and expenses related thereto, inc lud ing ,  without l imitat ion ,  reasonable attorney fees. 
All such costs and expenses sha l l be secured by the l ien being foreclosed . The Owner shal l  also 
be required to pay to the Associat ion any assessments against the Unit , which shal l  become due 
during the period of foreclosure. The Association shal l  have the right and power to bid at the 
foreclosure sale or other legal sale and to acquire, hold ,  convey , lease ,  rent, encumber , use , and 
otherw ise deal with the same as the Owner thereof. 

A further notice stating the satisfaction and release of any such lien shall be executed by 
the Association and recorded in the Elko County, Nevada real estate records upon payment of al l  
sums secured by a l ien ,  which has been made the subject of a recorded notice of assessment. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 36 



Any encumbrancer holding a lien on a Unit may pay, but shal l  not be required to pay, any 
amounts secured by the l ien created by this section, and upon such payment such encumbrancer 
shal l  be subrogated to all rights of the Association with respect to such lien, including priority. 

Without imposing any l iabi l i ty upon the Association for its failure to do so, the Association 
shall be entitled to report any unpaid assessment remaining unpaid for longer than ninety (90) 
days after the same sha l l  have become due to any encumbrancer of a Uni t ;  provided, however, 
such encumbrancer first shal l have furnished written notice of such encumbrance to the 
Association. 

Section 15 .6  Personal Obligation of Owner. The amount of any periodic or special 
assessment against any Unit  shal l  be the personal obl igation of the Owner thereof to the 
Association. If permitted under applicable law, suit to recover a money judgment for such 
personal obl igat ion shal l  be maintainable by the Association without foreclosure or waiver of the 
l ien securing the same. No Owner may avoid or d imin ish such personal obligation by waiver of 
the use and enjoyment of any of the Common Area or by abandonment of the Owner's Unit .  

Section 15 . 7  Statement of Account. Upon payment of a reasonable fee, not to 
exceed Fifty Dol lars ($50.00) ,  and upon written request of any Owner, Mortgagee, prospective 
Mortgagee, or prospective purchaser of a Unit, the Association shal l  issue a written statement 
setting forth the amount of the unpaid assessments, if any, with respect to such Unit ,  the amount 
of the current periodic assessment, the date that such assessment becomes or became due, and 
credit for advanced payments or prepaid items, including, but not l imited to, an Owner's share of 
prepaid insurance premiums,  which statement shal l  be conclusive upon the Associat ion in favor 
of Persons who rely thereon in good faith. Unless such request for a statement of account shall 
be compl ied with within twenty (20) days, all unpaid assessments, which became due prior to the 
date of making such request, shal l  be subordinate to the l ien of a Mortgagee that acquired such 
Mortgagee's interest subsequent to requesting such statement. Where a prospective purchaser 
makes such request, both the l ien for such unpaid assessments and the personal obl igat ion of 
the purchaser shall be released automatically if the statement is not furnished within the twenty 
(20) day period provided herein and if thereafter an additional written request is made by such 
purchaser, is not complied with within ten ( 10 )  days, and the purchaser subsequently acquires 
the Unit .  

Section 15 .8  Personal Liability of Purchaser for Assessments. Subject to the 
provisions of Section 1 5 . 8 ,  a  purchaser of a Unit  shal l  be joint ly and severally l iable with the sel ler 
for all unpaid assessments against the Unit up to the time of the grant or conveyance, without 
prejudice to the purchaser's right to recover from the seller the amount paid by the purchaser for 
such assessments. 

ARTICLE XVI 

USE OF UNITS 

Section 1 6 . 1  Units .  Each Unit shall be used for residential purposes, in accordance 
with this Declaration, and the appl icable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and other 
requirements of all governmental authorities, publ ic bodies and other authorities having 
jur isdict ion over the project. No trade or business of any kind may be carried on therein. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated in this Section 1 6 . 1 ,  the leasing or rental of a Unit 
for lodg ing or residentia l purposes for any length of time shall not be considered to be a violat ion 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 37 



of this Section 1 6 . 1  and the Declarant shal l  have the right to use any portion of the Project, 
including any Unit owned by Declarant, for a model condominium site and display and sales office 
during the sale periods. 

Section 1 6 . 2  Parking Areas. The Parking Areas shal l  be used exclusively for the 
purposes of providing parking to the Owners or Occupants or the general public and other lawful 
uses as permitted by the appl icable zoning and other land use plans and regulations (but 
excluding use as a dwell ing unit) in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

Section 1 6 .  3  Use of Common Area. Except as specifical ly set forth with respect to 
Limited Common Area, there shal l be no obstruction of the Common Area, nor shal l  anything be 
stored on any part of the Common Area without the prior written consent of the Association. 

Section 1 6 . 4  Prohibit ion of Damage and Certain Activit ies. Nothing shal l be done or 
kept in any part of the Project which would result in the cancel lat ion of the insurance on the Project 
or any part thereof or increase the rate of insurance on the Project or any part thereof over what 
the Association or any Occupant but for such activity, would pay, without the prior written consent 
of the Association and each Occupant. Nothing shal l  be done or kept in any part of the Project 
that would be in violation of any statute, ru le ,  ord inance, regulation, permit, or other val idly 
imposed requirement of any governmental body. No damage to or waste of the Common Area 
or any part thereof shal l  be committed by any Owner or any of Owner's Occupants or Users, and 
each Owner shal l  release the Associat ion and indemnify and hold the Association and the other 
Owners harmless against al l  loss resulting from any such damage or waste caused by such 
Owner or such Owner's Occupants or Users. No noxious, destructive, or offensive activity shal l  
be carried on in any part of the Project nor shal l  anything be done therein which may be or may 
become an annoyance or nuisance to any other Owner or to any Person at any t ime lawfully 
residing in or operating a bus iness in the Project. Provided, however, that notwithstanding the 
foregoing no use or activity otherwise permitted by the Covenants, Condit ions ,  and Restrictions 
of Riverside V i l las sha l l  be prohibited within the Project. 

Section 1 6 . 5  Rules and Regulations. No Owner sha l l  violate the Rules and 
Regulat ions for the use of that portion of the Project to which such Rules and Regulations apply 
as adopted from time to t ime by the Association. Except as otherw ise provided herein, any Owner 
sha l l  have the r ight to enforce any or a l l  of the provisions of any restriction contained in this 
Declaration or any Rule or Regulation adopted by the Associat ion. Any violation of any state, 
munic ipal  or local law, ordinance or regulation pertaining to ownership, occupation or use of any 
property within the Project is hereby declared to be a violat ion of a restriction in this Declaration 
and subject to any or al l of the enforcement procedures set forth below. 

Section 16 . 6  Maintenance of Interiors. Consistent with Article Vi l ,  above, each 
Owner or Occupant shal l  keep the inter ior of such Owner's or Occupant's Unit inc luding,  without 
l imitations interior walls ,  windows ,  glass ,  cei l ings, floors, and permanent fixtures and 
appurtenances thereto, if any, in a clean, sanitary, and attractive condition and good state of 
repair ; shall keep the L imited Common Area designated for use in connection with such Owner's 
Unit ; and shall keep the heating equ ipment and water heater serv icing such Owner's Unit 
exclusively in a good state of maintenance and repair. 

Section 1 6 .  7  Structural Alterations. No structural alterations or modification to any 
interior wal ls sha l l  be made to any Unit and no plumbing ,  electrical , or s imi lar work within the 
Common Area sha l l  be done by any Owner without the prior written consent of the Association, 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 38 



except that an Owner may do such work as may be appropriate to maintain and repair Limited 
Common Area appurtenant to such Owner's Unit . 

Section 1 6 . 8  Construction Work General ly .  

(a) All construction, alteration, replacement or repair work undertaken upon any 
portion of a Unit or the Project ("Construction Work"), shal l  be accomplished in the most 
expeditious, d i l igent and speedy manner possible. Any Person undertaking Construction Work 
shal l  take al l necessary measures to minimize any damage, disruption or inconvenience caused 
by the Construction Work to the Occupants or Users of any affected Unit or the Project, and shal l  
make adequate provisions for the safety and convenience of a l l  Occupants and Users of the 
Project. Specifically, from and after the in it ia l  occupancy of any Unit, any Construction Work shal l  
be conducted in a manner and during restricted hours so as to avoid interference with ingress 
and egress to and the quiet use and enjoyment of the Occupants and Users of the Project. 

(b) Any Occupant or User undertaking Construction Work shal l  promptly repair, at 
its own cost and expense, any and al l  damage caused thereby and shal l  restore the affected 
portion of the improvements upon which the Construction Work is performed to a condit ion equal  
or superior to the condition existing prior to beginning the Construction Work and shall pay all 
costs and expenses associated therewith and shal l  indemnify and hold a l l  Occupants and Users 
harmless from any and al l  loss, cost, damages,  l iabi l i ty ,  injury or expense ( inc luding ,  but without 
l imitation, claims of l ien for work or labor performed, and materials or supplies furnished in 
connection with Construction Work or the voiding or terminat ing of any existing warranty 
applicable to any item or element instal led in the Project) caused by or arising out of the 
performance of the Construction Work. 

(c) Except in the event of an emergency, Construction Work sha l l  be undertaken 
only after giving the Board thirty (30) days' prior written notice of the Construction Work to be 
undertaken, the scope, nature and extent of the Construction Work, the duration of the work 
period, and the area in which the Construction Work is to be performed. Such notice sha l l  include 
copies of any plans and specifications for the Construction Work to be undertaken. 

Section 1 6 . 9  Compl iance with Plans, Laws and Rules. All Construction Work shal l  
comply with the plans and specifications therefor approved under this Declaration, and with a l l  
applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and other requirements of al l governmental 
authorities, publ ic bodies and other authorities having jurisdiction (such as publ ic uti l i t ies), 
inc lud ing ,  without l imitation, environmental and zoning laws and bui ld ing codes. The Person 
performing the Construction Work shal l  also secure al l licenses and permits required therefor by 
said authorities. All Construction Work shall be performed in accordance with rules and 
regulat ions from t ime to time promulgated by the Board. 

Section 1 6 . 1 0  Emergency Work. Notwithstanding any requirement for prior notice or 
approval contained in this Declaration, in the event of an emergency condit ion, any Occupant or 
User may undertake the necessary Construction Work to remedy any emergency condit ion, 
provided that such Occupant or User does so in good faith, gives notice thereof to the Board upon 
the occurrence of the emergency condit ion or as soon thereafter as possible, and otherwise 
conforms to the appl icab le provisions of this Article XVI, to the extent feasible under the 
circumstances. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 39 



Section 1 6 . 1 1  Enforcement Responsibi l ity. Without l imitat ion upon its general 
powers, the Associat ion shal l  be responsible for enforcement of al l  of the covenants of this Article 
XVI with respect to all Construction Work performed within the Project. 

Section 1 6 . 1 2  Parking Restrictions. No vehicle shal l  be parked or left on the property 
subject to this Declaration other than on the designated parking area. The parking area shall be 
used for parking operable vehicles only and shal l  not be converted for l iv ing,  recreational or 
business purposes, nor shal l  anyth ing be stored in any parking area so as to prevent the parking 
of an automobile thereon. No exposed storage shall be permitted anywhere on the property. 
Camper, boat and other recreational vehicle storage on the Common Area shall not be permitted. 

Section 1 6 . 1 3  Signs. Except for signs as may be used by Declarant in connection 
with the sale of Units, no sign of any kind shall be displayed to the publ ic view by Owners of Units 
without the approval of the Board of Directors, which approval shal l  not be unreasonably withheld. 

Section 1 6 . 1 4  Nuisances. No rubbish or debris of any kind shal l  be placed or 
permitted to accumulate,  and no odors shal l  be permitted to arise from the Project or any Unit so 
as to render any portion of the Project unsanitary, uns ight ly ,  offensive, or detrimental to any other 
portion of the Project, any Unit, or to any Occupants. No noise or other nuisance shal l  be 
permitted to exist or operate upon any portion of the Project or any Unit so as to be offensive or 
detrimental to any other portion of the Project, any Unit or any Occupants. Without l imit ing the 
generality of any of the following provisions, no exterior speakers, horns, whistles, bells, or other 
sound devices (other than security systems used exclusively for security purposes) sha l l  be 
located, used, or placed on any such portion of the Project or any Unit without the prior written 
approval of the Board of Directors. Provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing no use 
or activity otherwise permitted by this Declaration, the Master Declaration or the applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations and other requirements of al l  governmental authorit ies, publ ic 
bodies and other authorities having jurisdiction over the project shal l  be deemed to be a nuisance 
or shall be prohibited within the Project. 

Section 1 6 . 1 5  Outside Instal lat ions. No clothesl ines, television antennas, satel l i te 
dishes, wiring, or installation of air conditioners, or other machines, unless properly screened from 
view or contained within roof wells as part of the or iginal construction of the Project, shal l  be 
instal led on the exterior of the Bui ld ing for the use of any Unit  or be allowed to protrude through 
the walls, windows, or roof of the Bui ld ing for the use of any Unit unless the prior written approval 
of the Board of Directors, which approval shal l  not be unreasonably withheld, is secured. 

Section 1 6 . 1 6  Enforcement of Violations. No violation of any Association Rule or 
Regulation shall be allowed. If any Owner, Owner's Occupants, tenants, family members, 
invitees, guests and other users authorized by the Owner commits such v io lat ion ,  the Board may, 
in addit ion to any other legal remedies it may have, impose a Special Assessment upon such 
Owner of not more than Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each such violation for each day that such 
violat ion continues. Before invoking such assessment, the Board shal l  give such Owner sixty (60) 
days' written notice to cure such violat ion and/or to be heard by the Board regarding the Violation 
and any potential assessment. If such violation is of a nature that it cannot be remedied within 
sixty (60) days, no assessment shal l  be invoked so long as the Owner submits a remediation plan 
to the Board to remedy the violat ion within a reasonable t ime and such Owner di l igently pursues 
such plan to completion. If an Owner violates any Rule or Regulation more than twice within any 
three (3) year period, regardless of whether the Rule or Regulat ion that has been violated is the 
same, the accrual of such assessment shal l  begin three (3) days after the Board gives notice of 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 40 



such violation rather than sixty (60) days after such notice. Such addit ional assessments may be 
collected and enforced in the same manner as any other assessment under Article XV. Each 
remedy provided in this Declaration or by law shal l  be cumulative and not exclusive. The failure 
to enforce any of the provisions of this Declarat ion at any t ime shal l  not constitute a waiver of the 
right to enforce such provision thereafter. 

Section 1 6 . 1 7  Owner's Responsibi l i ty for Acts of Others. Each Owner shal l  be 
responsible for compliance with, and any vio lat ion of, the provisions of this Declaration, the 
Association Rules and Regulat ions,  or the resolutions of the Board, by his contract purchasers, 
lessees or tenants ,  and invites and l icensees. 

Section 1 6 . 1 8  Indemnification. Each Owner shall be l iable to the remaining Owners 
and the Association for any damage to the Common Area or the Units of the other Owners that 
may be sustained by reason of the negl igence or wi l lful misconduct of the Owner, his contract 
purchasers, lessees or tenants, and their invitees or l icensees, to the extent any such damage is 
not covered by insurance. Each Owner shal l indemnify each of the other Owners against , and 
hold him harmless from, and defend him against, any claim of any person for personal injury or 
property damage occurring within the Unit of the indemnifying Owner, unless the injury or damage 
to which such indemnity would apply occurred by reason of the active negligence or wil lful 
misconduct of the party c la iming indemnif icat ion 

Section 1 6 . 1 9  Required Maintenance. The Association wil l perform all necessary 
routine maintenance, maintenance inspections and other necessary repairs and maintenance 
called for as a result of the maintenance inspections as recommended in the maintenance manual  
provided by the architect of the Project, except as may be delegated to the Owner of each Unit 
as provided in this Agreement. The Association and its Board, Owners, and any entity acting for 
or on behalf of any Owner or group of Owners sha l l ,  to the ful lest extent permitted by law, 
indemnify and hold harmless the architect, the Declarant, and the general contractor, against al l 
claims for damages, l iabi l i t ies or costs, including reasonable attorney's fees and defense costs, 
ar is ing out of or in any way connected with defects or damage result ing from the failure of the 
Association and/or individual Owners to perform the maintenance recommendations as contained 
in the maintenance manual .  The Association shall provide a copy of the maintenance manual to 
each Owner at the t ime any Unit  is sold or otherwise changes ownership. 

Section 16 .20 Construction Defects. Any defect in construction must be reported in 
writing to the architect, the Declarant, and the general contractor within 90 days of the defect's 
discovery, and the architect, the Declarant, and the general contractor, severally and jointly, have 
the right to initiate correction of any defect within 120 days of the defect's having been reported. 
No legal or equitable proceedings, nor alternative dispute resolution may be initiated regarding 
any al leged defect unless such defect has been reported to the architect, the Declarant, and the 
general contractor, or their successors and assigns, within the establ ished time period and they 
have been allowed not less than 120 days to initiate corrective work. ' 

ARTICLE XVII 

MORTGAGEE PROTECTION 

Section 1 7 . 1  Introduction. This Article establishes certain standards and covenants 
which are for the benefit of the holders ,  insurers and guarantors of certain Security Interests. This 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 41 



Article is supplemental to, not a substitution for, any other provisions of the Governing Documents, 
but in the case of conflict, th is Article shal l  control. 

Section 17 . 2  Percentage of E l ig ib le  Mortgagees. Wherever in th is Declaration the 
approval or consent of a specified percentage of El igible Mortgagees is required, it shal l  mean 
the approval or consent of Eligible Mortgagees holding Security Interests in Units which in the 
aggregate have allocated to them that specified percentage of votes as compared to the total 
votes allocated to al l  Units in the Association then subject to Security Interests held by al l  E l ig ib le 
Mortgagees. 

Section 1 7 . 3  Notice of Actions. The Association sha l l  give prompt written notice to 
each El ig ib le Mortgagee of: 

Section 1 7 . 3 . 1  Any condemnation loss or any Casualty loss that affects a 
material portion of the Project or any Unit  in which there is a first Security Interest held, insured 
or guaranteed by that Eligible Mortgagee or El igible Insurer, as applicable; 

Section 1 7  . 3 .2  Any del inquency in the payment of Annual Assessments owed by 
an Owner which remains uncured for a period of sixty (60) days and whose Unit is subject to a 
first Security Interest held ,  insured or guaranteed by that El ig ib le Mortgagee or E l ig ib le  Insurer, 
as appl icable;  

Section 1 7 . 3 . 3  Any lapse, cancel lat ion or material modification of any insurance 
policy or fidelity bond maintained by the Association; 

Section 17 .3 .4  Any proposed action which would require the consent of a 
specified percentage of El igible Mortgagees as specified in Section 17 .4  of the Declaration; and 

Section 1 7  .3 .5  Any judgment rendered against the Association. 

Section 17 .4  Consent and Notice Required. 

Section 1 7 . 4 . 1  Document Changes. Notwithstanding anything else in the 
Governing Documents to the contrary, amendments to the Governing Documents of a material , 
adverse nature to Eligible Mortgagees wil l not be effective without ( 1 )  notice to al l  El ig ib le 
Mortgagees, as required by Section 1 7 . 3  above, (2) approval by at least 5 1  % of the El ig ible 
Mortgagees (or any greater El ig ib le Mortgagee approval required by this Declaration) and (3) 
satisfaction of al l  other voting and approval requirements for amendment set forth in such 
Governing Document. By way of clarification, the foregoing approval requirements do not apply 
to amendments effected by the exercise of any Development Right. 

Section 17 .4 .2  Termination. Notwithstanding any lower requirement permitted 
by this Declaration or the Act, the Association may not terminate the common interest community 
within the Project after the occurrence of substantial destruction or condemnat ion without ( 1 )  
notice to al l El igible Mortgagees, as required by Section 1 7  .3 above, (2) approval of at least fifty 
one percent (5 1%)  of the El igible Mortgagees and (3) approval of Owners representing at least 
eighty percent (80%) of the total voting power of the Association. 

Section 1 7 . 4 . 3  Impl ied Approval. The failure of an El ig ib le Mortgagee to respond 
within sixty (60) days to any written request for approval of an addit ion or amendment to the 
Document wherever El ig ib le Mortgagee approval is required, when such request is delivered by 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 42 



certified or registered mai l ,  return receipt requested, shal l  constitute an impl ied approval of the 
addition or amendment. 

Section 1 7 . 5  Inspection of Books. The Association must maintain current copies of 
the Declaration, Bylaws, Rules ,  the Articles of Incorporation, books, records and f inancial 
statements of the Association. The Association shal l  permit Declarant, any El ig ib le Mortgagee or 
other first mortgagee of Units, to inspect the books and records of the Association during normal 
business hours. 

Section 1 7 . 6  Financial Statements. The Association shal l  provide any El igible 
Mortgagee who submits a written request with a copy of an annual financial statement. It shal l  be 
provided within one hundred twenty ( 120)  days following the end of each fiscal year of the 
Association. This f inancia l  statement shal l  be audited by an independent certified publ ic 
accountant, and the cost of the audit shal l  be a Common Expense. Any addit ional audit requested 
by any E l ig ib le  Mortgagee or El ig ible Insurer shal l  be at the sole cost of the El igible Mortgagee or 
Eligible Insurer requesting such audit . 

Section 1 7 . 7  Enforcement. The provisions of th is Article are for the benefit of El ig ible 
Mortgagees and El igible Insurers and their successors and may be enforced by any of them by 
any available means, at law or in equity. 

Section 1 7 .  8  Attendance at Meetings. Any representative of an El igible Mortgagee 
may attend and address any meeting which an Owner may attend. 

Section 1 7 . 9  Appointment of Trustee. In  the event of damage or destruction under 
Article XXI I  or condemnation of all or a portion of the Project, any El ig ible Mortgagee may require 
that such proceeds be payable to a Trustee established pursuant to this Declaration. This Trustee 
may be required to be a corporate trustee l icensed by the State of Nevada. Proceeds wi l l  then be 
distributed pursuant to Article XXII or pursuant to a condemnation award. Unless otherwise 
required, the members of the Board of Directors, acting by majority vote through the president, 
may act as Trustee. 

ARTICLE XVII I  

TERMINATION 

Section 1 8 . 1  Termination of the Project may be accomplished only upon the 
approval of the Owners of eighty percent (80%) of the total number of Units within the Project, 
and then in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1 1 6  "Common-Interest Ownership (Uniform 
Act)" of The Nevada Revised Statutes and the Declaration (to the extent the Declaration is 
applicable). The Association is hereby designated to represent the Owners in all proceedings 
( inc luding negotiations and settlements) related to any terminat ion, and each Owner appoints the 
Association as attorney-in-fact for this purpose. The proceeds of any settlement related to the 
termination of the Project shal l  be paid to the Association for the benefit of the Owners and El ig ib le 
Mortgagees, as their interests may appear. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 43 

' I 



ARTICLE XIX 

INSURANCE 

Section 1 9 . 1  Types of Insurance. The Association shal l  obtain and keep in ful l  force 
and effect at a l l  t imes the insurance coverage provided by companies duly authorized to do 
business in Nevada in accordance with the insurance required by Chapter 1 1 6  "Common-Interest 
Ownership (Uniform Act)" of The Nevada Revised Statutes. The provisions of this Article XIX 
shal l  not be construed to l imit the power of authority of the Association to obtain and maintain 
insurance coverage in addition to any insurance coverage required hereunder in such amounts 
and in such forms as the Association may deem appropriate from time to t ime. In order to facil itate 
the providing and maintaining of adequate and proper insurance, it is contemplated that Declarant 
may contract for blanket insurance coverage covering the Project as contemplated by this Article 
XIX prior to or concurrently with the first conveyance of a Unit Any obl igation or commitment for 
the payment of premiums or expenses otherwise incurred by Declarant under any such blanket 
policy or coverage, whether or not the same is also a personal obligation of the purchaser or 
purchasers of any Unit ,  shall become an obligation of the Association and shal l  be paid for out of 
Association funds. 

(a) Master Property Insurance. The Association shall obtain and maintain a 
"master" or "blanket" mult i-peri l  pol icy of property insurance equal to a ful l replacement value ( i . e . ,  
100% of current "replacement cost" exclusive of land, foundation, excavation and other items 
normal ly excluded from coverage) of the Project ( including al l bui lding service equipment and the 
l ike and any fixtures or equipment within the Unit which are financed under the mortgage) with an 
Agreed Amount Endorsement or its equivalent,  if avai lable, or an Inflation Guard Endorsement. 
Such insurance shal l  afford protection against loss or damage by fire and other hazards covered 
by the standard extended coverage endorsement, and by spr ink ler leakage, debris removal, cost 
of demol i t ion, vandal ism, mal ic ious mischief, windstorm, and water damage; and such other risks 
as are customarily covered in s imi lar  projects or as are commonly required by private institutional 
mortgage investors for projects simi lar in construction, location and use. All policies or property 
insurance shal l  provide that, despite any prov isions giving the insurance carrier the right to elect 
to restore damage in l ieu of a cash settlement, such option shal l  not be exercisable without the 
prior written approva l of the Association (or any Insurance Trustee) or when in conflict with the 
provisions of any Insurance Trust Agreement to which the Association may be a party, or any 
requirement bylaw. Any blanket policy of property insurance shal l  contain or have attached a 
standard mortgagee clause (without contr ibution) customarily used in the area in wh ich the Project 
is located which must be endorsed to provide that any proceeds shal l  be paid to the Association 
for the use and benefit of the Owners and their respective Mortgagees, as their interests may 
appear .  

(b) Publ ic L iab i l i ty Insurance. The Association shal l  obtain and maintain a 
comprehensive pol icy of public l iabi l i ty insurance covering al l of the Common Areas in the Project, 
with a Severabil ity of Interest Endorsement or equivalent coverage which would preclude the 
insurer from denying the claim of a Unit Owner because of the negligent acts of the Associat ion ,  
such Owner, or another Owner, with l imits of not less than $2,000 ,000 .00 cover ing al l claims for 
persona l injury and/or property damage arising out of a single occurrence, includ ing protection 
against water damage l iabi l i ty ,  l iabi l i ty for non-owned and hired automobi le, l iabi l i ty for property 
of others, and such other risks as are customari ly covered in s imi lar projects. The scope of 
coverage also includes al l other coverage in the kinds and amounts required by private 
institut ional mortgage investors for projects s imi lar in construction, location and use. 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 44 



(c) Directors and Officers Insurance. The Association may obtain and maintain 
l iabi l i ty insurance affording coverage for the acts, errors and omiss ions of its directors and officers, 
and other committees as may be appointed from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

(d) Fidelity Insurance or Bond. The Association sha l l  obtain and maintain 
adequate fidelity coverage to protect against dishonest acts by its officers, members of the Board 
of Directors, and employees and all others who are responsible for handl ing funds of the 
Association. Such fidelity bonds sha l l  meet the following requirements: 

1 .  al l  shal l  name the Association as an obl igee;  

2 .  al l  shal l  be written in an amount which shal l  not be less than the 
estimated maximum of funds, including reserve funds, in the custody of the Association or the 
management agent,  as the case may be, at any given t ime dur ing the term of each bond, but in 
no event less than the sum of three (3) months aggregate assessments on al l  Units plus 
reserves; 

3. all shal l  contain waivers of any defenses based upon the 
exclusion of persons who serve without compensation from any definition of "employee" or 
s imi lar expression, or sha l l  contain an appropriate endorsement to the policy to cover any 
persons who serve without compensation if the policy would not otherwise cover volunteers; 

4. al l  shal l  provide that they may not be canceled or substant ial ly 
modified ( including cancel lation for nonpayment of premiums) without at least ten ( 1 0 )  days 
prior written notice to the Association or any Insurance Trustee. 

(e) Governmental Requirements. Notwithstanding any other provisions contained 
herein to the contrary, the Association sha l l  continuously maintain in effect such casualty, flood 
and liabil ity insurance and a fidelity band coverage meeting the insurance and fidelity bond 
requirements for condomin ium projects establ ished, by Federal National Mortgage Association 
and Government National Mortgage Association so long as either is a mortgagee or owner of a 
Unit within the Project, except to the extent such coverage is not available or has been waived in 
writing by Federal Nat ional Mortgage Association or Government Nat ional  Mortgage Association. 

Section 1 9 . 2  Insurance Policy Requirements. The Master Multi-Peril Property, Publ ic 
Liabil ity and Flood Insurance policies obtained by the Association pursuant to Section 1 9 . 1  above 
shal l  be subject to the fol lowing addit ional requirements: 

(a) the named insured under any such policies shal l  be the Association, as a 
trustee for the Owners, or its authorized representative, including any trustee with which such 
Association may enter into any Insurance Trust Agreement, or any successor trusts, each of 
which shall be referred to as the "Insurance Trustee" who shall have exclusive authority to 
negotiate losses under these pol icies; 

(b) insurance coverage obtained and maintained pursuant to the requirements 
of Sections 1 9 . 1  (a) and 19 .2(b)  shal l  not be brought into contribution with any insurance 
purchased by any Owner or such Owner's mortgagee; 

( c) coverage must not be prejudiced by ( 1 )  any act or neglect of the 
Associat ion, any employee or agent of the Associat ion, or any Owner, or (2) any failure of the 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 45 



Association to comply with any warranty or condition regarding any portion of the promises over 
which the Association has no control; 

(d) coverage may not be canceled or substantial ly modified ( inc lud ing 
cancellation for nonpayment of premium) without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
any and al l insureds, including each Mortgagee scheduled as a holder of a first mortgage in the 
applicable pol icy, except in the case of non-payment of premiums where cancellation may occur 
upon ten ( 10 )  days prior notice given in the manner specified in this Section 19 .2 (d ) ;  

(e) a l l  pol icies must contain a waiver of subrogation by the insurer as to any 
and al l claims against the Association, the Owners and/or their respective agents, employees or 
tenants, and of any defenses based on coinsurance or on invalidism arising from the acts of the 
insured; 

(f) each hazard insurance pol icy sha l l  be written by a hazard insurance carrier 
which has a financial rating by Best's Insurance Reports of Class VI or better; 

(g) pol icies shal l be deemed unacceptable where ( 1 )  under the terms of the 
carrier's charter, bylaws or policy, contr ibutions or assessments may be made against a Unit  
Owner, such Owner's Mortgagee or any Mortgagee's designee or such designee's designee; (2) 
by the terms of the carrier's charter, bylaws or policy, loss payments are contingent upon action 
by the carrier's board of directors, policyholders, or members; or (3) the pol icy includes any l imit ing 
clauses (other than insurance condit ions) which could prevent a Unit Owner, h is Mortgagee or 
any Mortgagee's designee or such designee's designee from collecting insurance proceeds; 

(h) al l  policies of hazard insurance shall contain or have attached the standard 
mortgagee clause commonly accepted by private institutional mortgage investors in the area in 
which the Project is located. 

Section 1 9 . 3  Additional Coverage. The provisions of this Declaration shal l not be 
construed to l imit the power or authority of the Association to obtain and maintain insurance 
coverage in addition to any insurance coverage required by this Declaration, in such amounts and 
in such forms as the Association may deem appropriate from t ime to t ime. 

Section 19 .4  Owner's Own Insurance. 

(a) Unit Owners. Each Unit Owner, at his own expense, shal l  procure and 
maintain at a l l  t imes fire and extended coverage insurance covering personal property of such 
owner and addit ional fixtures and improvements added by such Owner and covering al l windows 
appurtenant to such Owner's Unit ,  whether or not such windows are part of the Unit or a Limited 
Common Area appurtenant to said Unit, against loss by fire and other casualties, including without 
l imitation vandal ism and mal icious mischief. All pol ic ies providing such casualty insurance shal l  
provide that they do not d imin ish the insurance carrier's coverage for l iabi l i ty aris ing under 
insurance pol ic ies obtained by the Association pursuant to this ARTICLE XIX. 

(b) Owner's Additional Insurance. Notwithstanding the provisions of this 
Section 19 .4 ,  each Owner may obtain insurance at his own expense providing such other 
coverage upon such Owner's Unit ,  such Owner's personal property, such Owner's personal 
l iabi l i ty ,  and covering such other risks as such Owner may deem appropriate provided that each 
such policy shal l  provide that it does not dimin ish the insurance carrier's coverage for l iabil ity 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 46 

.I 



arising under insurance policies obtained by the Association pursuant to this ARTICLE XIX. If 
obtainable under industry practice without an unreasonable addit ional  charge for such waiver, al l  
such insurance shall contain a waiver of the insurance company's right of subrogation against the 
Association, the Declarant, the Manager,  other Owners, and their respective servants, agents and 
guests. 

Section 1 9 . 5  Annual Review of Insurance. The Association shal l  review annua l ly  the 
coverage and policy limits of al l  insurance on the Project and adjust the same at its discretion. 
Such annual review may include an appraisal of the improvements in the Project by a 
representative of the insurance carrier or carriers providing the policy or policies on the Project or 
by such other qualified appraisers as the Association may select. 

ARTICLE XX 

CASUAL TY DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION 

Section 20 . 1  Affects Title. Title to each Unit is hereby made subject to the terms and 
condit ions hereof which bind the Declarant and al l subsequent Owners, whether or not it is so 
expressed in the deed by which any Owner acquires such Owner's Unit . 

Section 20 .2  Association as Agent. All of the Owners irrevocably constitute and 
appoint the Association by and through the Associat ion's elected officers as the Owners' true and 
lawful attorney-in-fact in the Owner's name,  place, and stead for the purpose of dealing with the 
Project upon its damage or destruction as hereinafter provided. Acceptance by any grantee of a 
deed from the Declarant or from any Owner shall constitute such appointment. 

Section 20 .3  General Authority of the Association. As attorney-in-fact, the 
Association by and through the Association's elected officers shal l  have full and complete 
authorization, r ight and power to make, execute, and del iver any contract, deed or other 
instrument with respect to the interest of a Unit Owner which may be necessary or appropriate to 
exercise the powers herein granted to the Association. Repair and reconstruction of the 
improvements as used in the succeeding subparagraphs mean restoring the Project to 
substant ial ly the same vertical and horizontal boundaries as before. The proceeds of any 
insurance collected shal l  be available to the Association for the purpose of repair or reconstruction 
unless the Owners representing an aggregate of eighty percent (80%) or more of the total square 
footage of the Project and said Owner's first Mortgagees, if any, agree not to rebui ld in accordance 
with the provisions set forth hereinafter. 

Section 20.4 Estimate of Costs. As soon as practicable after an event causing 
damage to or destruction of any part of the Project, the Association shal l  obtain estimates that the 
Association deems rel iable and complete of the costs of repair or reconstruction of that part of the 
Project damaged or destroyed. 

Section 20 .5  Repair or Reconstruction. As soon as practicable after receiving the 
estimates, the Association shal l dil igently pursue to completion the repair or reconstruction of that 
part of the Project damaged or destroyed. The Association may take al l necessary or appropriate 
action to effect repair or reconstruction , as attorney-in-fact for the Owners , and no consent or 
other action by any Owner shal l  be necessary in connection therewith. Such repa ir or 
reconstruct ion shal l  be in accordance with the original plans and specifications of the Project or 
may be in accordance w ith any other plans and specifications the Association may approve ;  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 47 

' ! 



provided, however, in such latter event in the absence of the consent of each affected Owner, the 
number of cubic feet and the number of square feet of any Unit  may not vary by more than five 
percent (5%) from the number of cubic feet and the number of square feet for such Unit ,  as 
original ly constructed pursuant to such original plans and specifications, and the location of the 
Bui ld ing shal l be substant ia l ly the same as prior to damage or destruction. 

Section 20.6 Funds for Reconstruction. The proceeds of any insurance collected 
shal l  be avai lable to the Association for the purpose of repair or reconstruction. If the proceeds 
of the insurance are insufficient to pay the estimated or actual cost of such repair or 
reconstruction, the Association, pursuant to Article XV hereof, may levy in advance a special 
assessment sufficient to provide funds to pay such estimated or actual costs of repair or 
reconstruction. Such assessment shal l  be allocated and collected as provided in Article XV. 
Further levies may be made in l ike manner if the amounts collected prove insufficient to complete 
the repair or reconstruction. 

Section 20.7 Disbursement of Funds for Repair or Reconstruction. The insurance 
proceeds held by the Association and the amounts received from the assessments provided for 
in Section 20.6 constitute a fund for the payment of cost or repair and reconstruction after 
casualty. It shall be deemed that the first money disbursed in payment for the cost of repair or 
reconstruction shal l  be made from insurance proceeds; if there is a balance after payment of a l l  
costs of such repair or reconstruction, such balance sha l l  be distributed to the Owners in 
proportion to the contributions by each Owner pursuant to the assessments by the Association 
under Section 20.6 of this Declaration. 

Section 20 .8  Decision Not to Rebui ld. If the record Owners, as reflected on the real 
estate records of Elko County, Nevada, representing an aggregate ownership interest of eighty 
percent (80%) or more of the total square footage of the Project and said Owners' first 
Mortgagees, if any, agree not to rebui ld, as provided herein ,  the Project shal l  be sold and the 
proceeds distributed to the Owners according to their respective percentage ownerships. 

ARTICLE XXI 

OBSOLESCENCE 

Section 2 1 . 1  Adoption of a Plan. The record Owners, as reflected on the real estate 
record of Elko County, Nevada, representing an aggregate record ownership interest of eighty 
percent (80%) of total square footage of the Project may agree that the Project is obsolete and 
adopt a written plan for renewal and reconstruction, which plan has the unanimous approval of all 
first Mortgagees of record at the time of the adoption of such p lan .  Written notice of adoption of 
such plan sha l l  be given to al l Owners. Such plan shal l  be recorded in the Elko County, Nevada, 
real estate records. 

Section 2 1 . 2  Payment of Renewal and Reconstruction. The expense of renewal or 
reconstruction shal l  be payable by al l  of the Owners as assessments against their respective 
Units. These assessments shall be levied in advance pursuant to Article XV hereof and shall be 
allocated and collected as provided in that Article. Further levies may be made in like manner if 
the amounts collected prove insufficient to complete the renewal and reconstruction. 

Section 2 1 . 3  Sale of Obsolete Units .  The Owners representing an aggregate 
ownership interest of eighty percent (80%) or more of the total square footage of the Project may 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 48 



agree that the Units are obsolete and that the Project should be sold. Such an agreement must 
have the unan imous approval of every first Mortgagee of record at the time the agreement is 
made. In  such instance, the Association shal l  forthwith record a notice setting forth such fact or 
facts, and upon the recording of such notice by the Association, the Project shal l  be sold by the 
Association as attorney-in-fact for a l l  the Owners free and clear of the provisions contained in this 
Declaration, the Parcel Map and the Bylaws. The sale proceeds shall be apportioned among the 
Owners in proportion to the respective amounts original ly paid to Declarant for the purchase of 
the Unit exclusive of the amounts paid for personal property, and such apportioned proceeds shal l  
be paid into separate accounts, each account representing one ( 1 )  Unit .  Each such account sha l l  
remain in the name of the Association and shal l  be further identified by the Unit designation and 
the name of the Owner. From each separate account, the Association, as attorney-in-fact, shal l  
use and disburse the total amount of such accounts without contribution from one account to the 
other, first to Mortgagees and other liens, and the balance remaining to each respective Owner. 

Section 21 .4 Distribution of Excess. I n  the event amounts collected pursuant to 
Section 2 1 . 2  are in excess of the amounts required for renewal and reconstruction, the excess 
shal l  be returned to the Owners by the Associat ion by a distribution to each Owner in an amount 
proportionate to the respective amount collected from each such Owner. 

ARTICLE XXII 

CONDEMNATION 

Section 22 . 1  Consequences of Condemnation. If, at any t ime or t imes dur ing the 
continuance of the Unit ownership pursuant to this Declaration, or any part of the Project shal l be 
taken or condemned by any pub l ic  authority or sold or otherwise disposed of in l ieu of or in 
avoidance thereof, the fol lowing provisions shall apply .  

Section 22.2 Proceeds. All compensat ion ,  damages or other proceeds therefrom, 
the sum of which is hereinafter called the "condemnation award," shall be payable to the 
Association. 

Section 22 .3 Complete Tak ing .  In the event that the entire Project is taken or 
condemned or sold or otherw ise disposed of in l ieu of or in avoidance thereof, the Unit ownership 
pursuant hereto shal l  terminate . The condemnat ion award shal l  be apportioned among the 
Owners in proportion to the respective amounts pa id to Declarant for the purchase of the Uni t  
exclusive of the amounts paid for personal property ; provided that if a standard different from the 
value of the Project as a whole is employed to measure the condemnation award in the 
negotiation, judic ia l  decree or otherwise, then in determining such shares the same standard shal l  
be employed to the extent it is relevant and applicable .  

On the basis of the principal set forth in the last preceding paragraph , the Associat ion shal l  
as soon as practicable determine the share of the condemnation award to which each Owner is 
entitled .  Such shares sha l l  be paid into separate accounts and disbursed as soon as practicable 
in the same manner provided in Section 2 1 . 4  of this Declaration .  

Section 22 .4 Partial Taking .  In the event that less than the entire Project is taken or 
condemned,  or sold ,  or otherwise disposed of in l ieu of or in avoidance thereof, the Unit ownership 
hereunder shal l  not terminate. Each Owner shal l  be entit led to a share of the condemnation 
award to be determined in the following manner :  as soon as practicable, the Association shal l ,  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 49 



reasonably and in good faith, al locate the condemnation award between compensat ion ,  damages 
or other proceeds, and shal l  apportion the amounts so allocated among the Owners as follows: 
(a) the total amount allocated to taking of or injury to the Common Area shall be apportioned 
equal ly among the Owners; (b) the total amount al located to severance damages shal l  be 
apportioned to those Units which were not taken or condemned; (c) the respective amounts 
allocated to the taking of or injury to a particular Unit and/or improvements an Owner has made 
within h is own Unit shal l  be apportioned to the particular Unit  involved; and (d) the total amount 
allocated to consequential damages and any other takings or injuries shall be apportioned as the 
Association determined to be equitable in the circumstances. If an al location of the condemnation 
award is already establ ished in negotiation, juridical decree, or otherwise, then in allocating the 
condemnation award the Association sha l l  employ such al location to the extent it is relevant and 
applicable. Distribution of apportioned proceeds shal l  be made in the same manner provided in 
Section 2 1 . 4  of this Declaration. 

Section 22 .5 Reorganization. In  the event a partial taking results in the taking of a 
complete Unit, the Owner thereof automatically shall cease to be a Member of the Association. 
Thereafter, the Association shal l  real locate the Ownership, voting rights and assessment ratio 
determined in accordance with this Declaration according to the same principles employed in this 
Declaration at its inception, and shall submit such reallocation to the Owners of remaining units 
for amendment of this Declaration as provided herein .  

Section 22 .6 Reconstruction and Repair. Any reconstruction and repair necessitated 
by condemnation shall be governed by the procedures specified in Article XX above. 

ARTICLE XXIII 

NOTICE AND HEARING 

Section 23 . 1  Right to Notice and Comment. Before the Board of Directors amends 
the Bylaws or the Rules, whenever the Governing Documents require that an action be taken 
after "Notice and Comment," and at any other t ime the Board of Directors determines, the Owners 
have the right to receive notice of the proposed action and the right to comment orally or in writing. 
Notice of the proposed action either shal l  be given to each Owner in writ ing, del ivered personally 
or by mai l  to a l l  Owners at such address as appears in the records of the Association, or it sha l l  
be published in a newsletter or simi lar publication which is routinely circulated to al l Owners. The 
notice shall be given not less than five days before the proposed action is to be taken. It shal l  
invite comment to the Board of Directors orally or in writ ing before the scheduled time of the 
meeting. 

Section 23 .2 Right to Notice and Hearing. Whenever the Governing Documents 
require that an action be taken after "Notice and Hear ing ," the following procedure shal l be 
observed: The party proposing to take the action (e .g . ,  the Board of Directors, a comm ittee , an 
officer, the Manager ,  etc.) shal l  give written notice of the proposed action to al l  Owners or 
occupants of Units whose interest would be significantly affected by the proposed action. The 
notice shall include a general statement of the proposed action and the date, time and place of 
the hearing. At the hearing ,  the affected person sha l l  have the right, personally or by a 
representative, to g ive testimony oral ly ,  in writ ing or both (as specified in the notice), subject to 
reasonable rules of procedure established by the party conducting the meeting to assure a prompt 
and orderly resolution of the issues. Any ev idence shal l  be duly considered ,  but is not binding in 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 50 



making the decision. The affected person shal l  be notified of the decision in the same manner in 
which notice of the meeting was given. 

Section 23 .3 Appeals. Any person having a right to Notice and Hearing sha l l  have 
the right to appeal to the Board of Directors from a decision of persons other than the Board of 
Directors by filing a written notice of appeal with the Board of Directors within ten ( 10)  days after 
being notified of the decision. The Board of Directors shal l  conduct a hearing within thirty (30) 
days, giving the same notice and observing the same procedures as were required for the or ig inal 
meeting. 

ARTICLE XXIV 

PERIOD OF CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP 

Section 24.1 Duration. The Condomin ium ownership created by this Declarant and 
the Parcel Map shall continue unti l this Declaration is revoked in the manner provided in Section 
2 5 . 1 1  of this Declarat ion. 

ARTICLE XXV 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 25 . 1  Compliance with Provisions of Declaration and Bylaws of the 
Association. Each Owner sha l l  comply with the provisions of this Declaration, the Articles of 
Incorporation, the Bylaws, Association Rules and Regulations, and the decisions and resolutions 
of the Association adopted pursuant thereto as the same may be lawfully amended from time to 
t ime.  Fai lure to comply with any of the same shal l  be grounds for an action to recover sums due 
and for damages or injunctive relief, or both, maintainable by the Association on behalf of the 
Owners, in a proper case, by an aggrieved Owner. 

Section 25 .2 Registration of Mai l ing Address. Each Owner shal l  register such 
Owner's mail ing address with the Association. All notices or demands intended to be served upon 
any Owner shal l  be sent by either registered or certified mai l ,  postage prepaid, addressed in the 
name of the Owner at such registered mai l ing address. All notices or demands intended to be 
served upon the Association shall be given by registered or certified mai l ,  postage prepaid, to the 
address of the Association as designated in the Bylaws of the Association. All notices or demands 
to be served on Mortgagees pursuant thereto shal l  be sent by either registered or certified mai l ,  
postage prepaid, addressed in the name of the Mortgagee at such address as the Mortgagee 
may have furnished to the Association in writing. Unless the Mortgagee furnishes the Association 
such address, the Mortgagee sha l l  be entitled to receive none of the notices provided for in this 
Declaration. Any notice referred to in this section shal l  be deemed given when deposited in the 
United States mail in the form provided for in this section. 

Section 25.3 Transfer of Declarant's Rights. Any right or any interest reserved 
hereby to the Declarant may be transferred or assigned by the Declarant, either separately or with 
one or more of such rights or interests, to any Person or entity. 

Section 25.4 Mediation/Waiver of Jury Trial. The Association and al l Owners agree 
to and shal l mediate any controversy, dispute, or claim of whatever nature arising out of, in 
connection with, or in relation to the interpretation, performance or breach of this Declaration or 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 51 



such rules and regulations as the Association may promulgate under its responsibi l i t ies as set 
forth in th is Declarat ion. The mediat ion shal l be held prior to any court action or arbitration. The 
mediation shall be confidential. In the event the parties are not able to agree on a mediator within 
thirty (30) days, a judicial and/or mediat ion service mutual ly acceptable to the parties shal l  appoint 
a mediator. In  the event the mediator determines that a second mediation session is necessary, 
it shall be conducted in accordance with this section. Should the prevail ing party attempt an 
arbitration or a court action before attempting to mediate, THE PREVAILING PARTY SHALL NOT 
BE ENTITLED TO ATTORNEYS FEES THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE BE AVAILABLE TO THEM 
IN A COURT ACTION OR ARBITRATION, AND IN ADDITION THEREOF, THE PARTY WHO IS 
DETERMINED BY THE ARBITRATOR TO HAVE RESISTED MEDIATION SHALL BE 
SANCTIONED BY THE ARBITRATOR OR JUDGE .  With respect to any matter not resolved by 
the mediation process given above, the Association and each Owner hereby expressly waive any 
right to trial by jury of any c la im,  demand,  action or cause of action either arising under this 
Agreement or any other instrument, document, ru les, regulat ions or agreement in any way 
connected with or related to or incidental to th is Agreement now existing or hereafter arising, and 
whether sounding in contract or tort or otherwise; and the Association and each Owner hereby 
agree and consent that any such c la im,  demand, action or cause of action sha l l  be determined 
by court trial without a jury. 

Section 25 .5  Owner's Obl igat ions Cont inue.  All obl igations of the Owner under and 
by virtue of the provisions contained in this Declaration sha l l  cont inue, notwithstanding that such 
Owner may have leased or rented said interest as provided herein, but the Owner of a Unit shal l 
have no obligation for expenses or other obl igat ions accruing after the Owner conveys such Unit .  

Section 25 .6  Number and Gender. Whenever used herein, unless the context shal l  
otherwise provide ,  the singular number shal l inc lude the plural ,  the p lural the singular ,  and the 
use of any gender shal l  include al l  genders .  

Section 25 .7  Severab i l ity .  If any of the prov isions of this Declaration or any clause ,  
paragraph, sentence ,  phrase ,  or word or the appl icat ion thereof in any circumstance shal l  be 
inval idated ,  such inval idity sha l l  not affect the val id ity of the remainder of the Declaration ,  a n d the  
application of any such provision, paragraph, sentence, c lause ,  phrase ,  or word in any other 
circumstance shal l  not be affected thereby .  

Section 25. 8  The Governing Documents are intended to comply with the 
requirements of Chapter 1 1 6  "Common- Interest Ownership (Uniform  Act)" of The N evada 
Revised Statutes appl icable to common interest communit ies and the Governing Documents shal l  
be interpreted, if at al l  possible ,  so as to be consistent with the Act. If there is any conflict between 
the Governing Documents and the provis ions of the Act, the provisions of the Act shall contro l .  In  
the event of any conflict between th is Declarat ion and any other Document, th is Declaration shal l  
contro l .  

Section 2 5 . 9  Unilateral Amendment By Declarant. Declarant may uni lateral ly amend 
this Declaration if such a m endment is ( i)  necessary to bring any provision into compliance with 
any applicable governmental statutes, rule,  regulation or judicial determination; (ii)  necessary to 
enable any reputable title insurance company to issue title insurance coverage on the Units; ( i i i )  
required by an institutional or governmental lender or  purchaser of mortgage loans, to ena b le  
such lender or purchaser to make or purchase mortgage loans on the Un its ;  (iv)  necessary to 
enab le any governmenta l  agency or reputab le private insurance company to insure mortgage 
loans on the Units ;  or (v) otherw ise necessary to satisfy the requirements of any governm ental 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 52 



agency. However, any such amendment shal l not adversely affect the title to any Unit unless the 
Owner shal l  consent thereto in writ ing. So long as Declarant sti l l owns any portion of any property 
described in Exhibit A, B, or F for development as part of the Project, it may unilaterally amend 
this Declaration for any other purpose, provided the amendment has no material adverse effect 
upon right of any Owner. 

Section 2 5 . 1 0  Declarant's Continuing Rights. Notwithstanding anything else in the 
Governing Documents to the contrary, fol lowing Declarant's Control Period, the Associat ion shal l  
provide to Declarant, at such address as Declarant may designate from time to time and within 
ten ( 10 )  days of the Association's creation or possession thereof, the following documents: ( 1 )  
minutes of any meeting of the Members, Board of Directors, or committee of the Board; (2) any 
complaints filed with the Association by any Member; (3) any claims for maintenance filed with 
the Association by any Member; and (4) any records generated in relation to the Association 
Maintenance Manua l .  Throughout the term of this Declarat ion, Declarant shal l  have the right to 
attend Association meetings, on a non-voting bas is ,  and shal l  have the right to attend a l l  
inspections of the Project (for which the Association shal l  provide Declarant at least five (5) days 
advance notice). 

Section 2 5 . 1 1  Term. This Declaration, including al l of the covenants, conditions and 
restrictions hereof, shall run with and bind the Property for a term of thirty (30) years form the date 
this Declaration is recorded. After such t ime, the covenants, condit ions and restrictions contained 
herein, shal l  be automatically extended for successive periods of ten ( 10 )  years, unless an 
instrument is signed by the Owner of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total number of Units in the 
Project and recorded in the Elko County, Nevada Recorder's Office within the year preceding the 
beginning of each successive period of ten ( 1 0 )  years, agreeing to change the terms of this 
Declaration, in whole or in part, or to terminate the same (in which case the instrument must be 
signed by the Owner(s) of at least 80% of the total number of Units in the Project and the 
provisions of 17 .4(b) ,  to the extent appl icable ,  must be met); in which case th is Declaration shal l  
be modified or terminated as specified herein. 

Section 2 5 . 1 2  Security Discla imer. Neither the Association nor Declarant shal l  in any 
way be considered insurers or guarantors of security within the Project, nor shal l  either of them 
be held l iable for any loss or damage by reason of failure to provide adequate security or of 
ineffectiveness of security measures undertaken, if any .  No representation or warranty is made 
that any fire protection or security system cannot be compromised or circumvented, nor that any 
such systems or security measures undertaken will in all cases prevent loss or provide the 
detection or protection for which the system is designed or intended. Each Owner acknowledges, 
understands and covenants to inform its occupants that the Association, the Board and Declarant, 
are not insurers or liable to persons l iving in or visit ing the Project for conduct resulting from acts 
of third parties. 

Section 2 5 . 1 3  Nonliabil ity for Mold Development. Molds, mildew, toxins and fungi 
may exist and/or develop within the Uni t  and/or the Property. Each Owner is hereby advised that 
certain molds, mi ldew, toxins and/or fungi may be, or if allowed to remain for a sufficient period 
may become, toxic and potentially pose a health risk. By acquiring title to a Unit , each Owner 
shal l be deemed to have assumed the risks associated with molds,  mildew, toxins and/or fungi 
and to have released the Declarant from any and al l  l iabi l i ty resulting from the same. 

Section 2 5 . 1 4  School Disclosure. There are schools operated nearby the Project, 
some of which are operated by the Elko County School District ("School District"). The School 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 53 



District is solely responsible for the t iming of any new publ ic school construction and whether or 
not new schools are bui l t .  No representation or warranty is given by Declarant that the School 
District wil l construct new schools in the future in the vicinity of the Project. Similarly, the School 
District is solely responsible for and controls attendance zoning for al l  schools, and the 
Association and Declarant make no representation, warranty or guaranty that the chi ldren l iving 
in the Project wil l be allowed to attend any particular school. Furthermore, Owner hereby 
acknowledges that students within the Project may not be zoned for the closes elementary, 
middle ,  or high school and may be bused to the nearest school with the capacity to accept new 
students. All potential buyers should contact the School District for the latest attendance zoning 
information before purchasing a Unit within the Project. 

Section 2 5 . 1 5  Airport Disclosure. The Project is located in the vicinity of a fl ight path 
commonly used by aircraft taking off from and landing at the Elko Regional Airport ("Airport"). 
Ownership of property near an airport has special considerations and risks attached to it. Airport 
proximity may have an effect on the l ivabi l i ty ,  va lue ,  and suitabi l i ty of residential property. 
Communities located in close proximity to an airport may be exposed to jet noise in addit ion to 
small aircraft noise. Neither Declarant nor the Association has any obl igat ion to provide 
insurance, indemnity or other protection to homeowners or residents within the Project, or their 
guests and pets, from any such l ight, noise, damage or injury. Each Owner, by acceptance of a 
deed to a Unit ,  expressly assumes the risk of damage from air traffic using the Airports. Each 
Owner agrees to hold harmless Declarant and affiliated companies, officers, directors, employees 
and agents or any of them, from any liability for al l  injury, damage, costs or expenses caused by 
any activity on or in connection with the Airport causing injury or damage to Owner and Owner's 
fami ly , guests, property and pets. 

Section 2 5 . 1 6  Adjacent Properties Disclosure. Each Owner, by acceptance of a deed 
to a Unit ,  acknowledges that certain properties within the vicinity of the Project are presently zoned 
and/or used for commercial and mult i-fami ly .  Each Owner hereby further acknowledges that land 
uses are always subject to change and zoning classifications do not necessarily indicate how land 
wil l  be developed and used over time (for example, lower density uses around the Project may 
be re-zoned to allow for development of addit ional industrial uses, which may add to the traffic, 
density, and noise of the area). Declarant makes no representations or warranties as to how the 
nearby property not owned by Declarant wil l be used or developed in the future. For further 
information regarding present and future land use possib i l i t ies in the area surrounding the Project, 
interested parties should contact planning staff at the City of Reno. 

Section 2 5 . 1 7  Detention Pond Disclosure. Each Owner acknowledges, by 
acceptance of a deed to a Unit ,  the existence of detention pond(s) either within or in the vicinity 
of the Project. Some of these facil it ies may be under the control and maintenance of the 
Association, and some of these faci l i t ies may be under the control and maintenance of 
governmental entit ies. Each Owner covenants for himself and his family, relatives, guests, and 
invitees not to interfere with such facilities, and covenants not to make any active use of such 
facil it ies, inc lud ing,  without l imitat ion, swimming ,  wading,  or any other entry upon or into the 
detention ponds. Each Owner sha l l  indemnify, defend and hold harmless Declarant and the 
Association on any claims arising from any breach of this covenant by that Owner, his family, 
relatives, guests, or invitees. 

Section 2 5 . 1 8  Flood Zone Disclosure. The Project may be located within a 500-year 
flood area. In addit ion, the Project is located near an area designated by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency ("FEMA") as a Special Flood Hazard Area ("SFHA"). SFHAs are areas 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 54 



l o c a t e d  w i t h i n  t h e  1 0 0 - y e a r  f l o o d p l a i n ,  w h i c h  m e a n s  t h e y  are subject to a o n e  percent ( 1  % )  o r  
greater c h a n c e  of a n n u a l  f l o o d i n g .  F e d e r a l  r e g u l a t i o n s  require flood i n s u r a n c e  for property located 
w i t h i n  S F H A s  if t h e  a c q u i s i t i o n  of s u c h  p r o p e rt y  is b e i n g  m a d e  with t h e  a s s i s t a n c e  of federal l o a n  
p r o g r a m s  or f e d e r a l l y  r e g u l a t e d  l e n d i n g  i n s t i t u t i o n s ,  a n d  g o v e r n m e n t  a u t h o r i t i e s  m a y  r e g u l a t e  
d e v e l o p m e n t  a n d  c o n s t r u c t i o n  i n  S F H A s .  I t  i s  p o s s i b l e  that Owner's l e n d e r  m a y  r e q u i r e  t h a t  
O w n e r  o b t a i n  f l o o d  i n s u r a n c e  d u e  to the l o c a t i o n  of t h e  p r o p e rt y  o r  as a p a rt  of its s t a n d a r d  
b u s i n e s s  practices. D e c l a r a n t  a n d  t h e  A s s o c i a t i o n  s h a l l  have no r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  for a n y  f l o o d  
i n s u r a n c e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of O w n e r ' s  l e n d e r .  D e c l a r a n t  r e c o m m e n d s  O w n e r  c o n s i d e r  o b t a i n i n g  
f l o o d  i n s u r a n c e  for t h e  p r o p e rt y  a n d  t h a t  O w n e r  a l w a y s  e x e r c i s e  a p p r o p r i a t e  f l o o d  p r e c a u t i o n s .  
F o r  more i n f o r m a t i o n  on h o w  to m i t i g a t e  t h e  r i s k s  of f l o o d s ,  Owner is e n c o u r a g e d  to r e v i e w  
F E M A ' s  p u b l i c a t i o n ,  A v o i d i n g  F l o o d  D a m a g e :  A  C h e c k l i s t  for H o m e o w n e r s .  

ARTICLE XXVI 

CONVERTIBLE SPACE 

S e c t i o n  2 6 . 1  R e s e rv a t i o n  of R i g h t  to C o n v e rt .  T h e  D e c l a r a n t  hereby e x p r e s s l y  
r e s e rv e s  the o p t i o n  a n d  r i g h t ,  from t i m e  to t i m e ,  to c o n v e rt  i n t o  o n e  or m o r e  U n i t s  or i n t o  C o m m o n  
Areas a n d  F a c i l i t i e s ,  or L i m i t e d  C o m m o n  Areas a n d  F a c i l i t i e s ,  s u b j e c t  t o  t h e  p r o v i s i o n s  of t h i s  
A R T I C L E  X X V I ,  t h e  C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e  of R i v e r s i d e  V i l l a s  C o n d o m i n i u m s  as d e s c r i b e d  i n  S e c t i o n  
2 6 . 2  h e r e i n .  

S e c t i o n  2 6 . 2  D e s c r i p t i o n  of C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e .  T h e  C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e  w h i c h  m a y ,  
at t h e  o p t i o n  of D e c l a r a n t ,  be c o n v e rt e d  i n t o  o n e  or m o r e  U n i t s  or C o m m o n  a n d  L i m i t e d  C o m m o n  
Areas a n d  F a c i l i t i e s  i s  l o c a t e d  i n  E l k o  C o u n t y ,  State of N e v a d a  a n d  i s  m o r e  p a rt i c u l a r l y  d e s c r i b e d  
on E x h i b i t  H  attached hereto. Proposed U n i t  b o u n d a r i e s  h a v e  been depicted w i t h i n  the a r e a s  
d e s i g n a t e d  a s  C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e  on E x h i b i t  H .  Except to the extent provided i n  S e c t i o n  2 6 . 3  
h e r e i n ,  s u c h  d e p i c t i o n s  of p r o p o s e d  b o u n d a r i e s  are p r o p o s a l s  o n l y  a n d  s h a l l  not be construed to 
be a n  i n d i c a t i o n ,  c o m m i t m e n t ,  o r  g u a r a n t e e  of t h e  l o c a t i o n  of U n i t  b o u n d a r i e s  w i t h i n  t h e  
C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e .  

S e c t i o n  2 6 . 3  C o n s e n t  of O w n e r s  N o t  R e q u i r e d .  The c o n s e n t  of t h e  Owners i n  t h e  
Project s h a l l  not be r e q u i r e d  for s u c h  c o n v e r s i o n  a n d  t h e  D e c l a r a n t  m a y  p r o c e e d  with s u c h  
c o n v e r s i o n  at its s o l e  o p t i o n  a n d  as its s o l e  a c t i o n .  H o w e v e r ,  t h e  D e c l a r a n t  s h a l l  not create a n y  
U n i t  w h i c h  h a s  m o r e  or l e s s  t h a n  twenty-five percent ( 2 5 % )  of the s q u a r e  f o o t a g e  s u c h  U n i t  i s  
p r o p o s e d  to c o n t a i n ,  as depicted on E x h i b i t  H. 

S e c t i o n  2 6 . 4  P r e p a r a t i o n  a n d  R e c o r d i n g  of S u p p l e m e n t a l  P l a t  M a p  a n d  A m e n d m e n t .  
P r i o r  to c o n v e rt i n g  a n y  p o rt i o n  or a l l  of t h e  C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e  i n  t h e  P r o j e c t ,  t h e  O e c l a r a n t  s h a l l  

Section 2 6 . 4 . 1  r e c o r d ,  with regard to the C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e  or a n y  p o rt i o n  
t h e r e o f  t h a t  i s  b e i n g  c o n v e rt e d ,  a  s u p p l e m e n t a l  p l a t  m a p  ( t h e  " S u p p l e m e n t a l  P l a t  M a p " )  w h i c h  
s h a l l  d e s c r i b e  t h e  C o n v e rt i b l e  S p a c e  o r  a n y  p o rt i o n  t h e r e o f  to be c o n v e rt e d ,  s h o w i n g  t h e  l o c a t i o n ,  
h o r i z o n t a l  a n d  v e rt i c a l  b o u n d a r i e s ,  a n d  t h e  d i m e n s i o n s  of a n y  U n i t  formed from s u c h  space a n d  
s h a l l  c o m p l y  i n  a l l  respects with C h a p t e r  1 1 6  " C o m m o n - I n t e r e s t  O w n e r s h i p  ( U n i f o r m  Act)" of The 
Nevada Revised Statutes. Each s u c h  S u p p l e m e n t a l  Pla t  M a p  s h a l l  be certified as to its a c c u r a c y  
a n d  c o m p l i a n c e  with t h e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  of C h a p t e r  1 1 6  " C o m m o n - I n t e r e s t  O w n e r s h i p  ( U n i f o r m  
Act)" of T h e  N e v a d a  R e v i s e d  Statutes by t h e  l a n d  s u rv e y o r  w h o  prepared or s u p e rv i s e d  t h e  
p r e p a r a t i o n  thereof ;  a n d  

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 55 



Section 26 .4 .2 prepare, execute and record s imultaneously with each 
Supplemental  Plat Map an amendment to the Declaration (hereinafter the "Amendment") which 
shal l  describe each conversion and shal l  reallocate individual interests in the Common Areas so 
that the Units created from the Convertible Space or any portion thereof to be converted shal l  be 
allocated undivided interests in the Common Areas on the same basis as Units in i t ia l ly  
constructed in the Project. Each such Amendment shall assign an identifying number to each 
Unit ,  if any, formed out of a Convertible Space. Each such Amendment shal l  describe or delineate 
the Limited Common Areas and Limited Common Faci l i t ies ,  if any, formed out of the Convertible 
Space or any portion thereof to be converted. 

Section 26 .5 Notwithstanding the depiction on the Map of any proposed Unit 
boundaries as described in Section 26 .2 above, any portion of Convertible Space not converted 
in accordance with this ARTICLE XXVI, or any portion of it not so converted, shal l  be treated for 
al l  purposes as a s ingle Unit  unti l  and unless it is so converted and shal l  be allocated its 
proportionate share of the undivided interest in the Common Areas. 

This Declaration is executed on this day of , 20 18 .  

Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC, a 
Delaware l imited l iabi l i ty company 

By: _ 

Its:--------------- 

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

) 

) SS. 

) 

On this day of , 20 18 ,  before me,  the undersigned, a 
Notary Publ ic in and for said State, personal ly appeared ------------ 
known or identif ied to me to be the of Riverside Vil las, LLC, a Utah limited 
l iabi l i ty company that subscribed said company name to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that _he executed the same in said company name. 

WITNESS MY HAND and official seal hereto affixed the day, month and year in this 
certificate first above written. 

Notary Public 
Residing at--------------- 
My Comm iss ion Expires _ 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 56 



Exhibits: To be attached 

Exhibit A - Description of Real Property 
Exhibit B - Annexable Property 
Exhibit C - Copy of the Articles of Incorporation 
Exhibit D - Copy of the Bylaws 
Exhibit E - Table of Allocated Interests 
Exhibit F - Reduced copy of Parcel Map 
Exhibit G - Convertible Space 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 57 



Exhibit A 

Descr ipt ion of Real Property 

Riverside Vi l las Condomin iums is situated in the City of Elko, County of Elko, 
State of Nevada, and is described as follows: 

Lot 2A, inc lud ing a l l  common areas, l imited common areas, units and Bui ld ings A, 

B, C, D, E, F, G and H located thereon, as shown on the Final Map for Riverside 
Vi l las Condominiums- Phase I, filed in the office of the County Recorder of Elko 
County, State of Nevada, on , 2018,  as Fi le No.  _ 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 58 

'I 



Exhibit B 
Annexable Property 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 59 

rwarrn srRur 
-- -

-- -- - -~-:. ----- -. -------------·-- •···-- ~--



Exhibit C 

Artic les of Incorporat ion 

1 1111 1 1111 1 11 111 11111111 1 1 1111 1 11111 1111  
BAR9)..RA K CEGAVSKE 
S9<f&ll\r,' of SIMI.' 
202 North C«rson Street 
Curson City, Nev.1d3 89701.4101 
(77�1684·5708 
V{L"lliit� www.uvvuw.qov 

'4'•.I.�' 

Nonprofit 
Articles of Incorporation 

1 . r u ::;: s u :.. . N r  TO t-.RS Cl-1J!.J'TE.R 82't 

t,;\()l/;:. :SPA'.:� IS IOt< O• 1-�l lJ')L om y 

1 . N a m o o f  

Corporation: 

2. Re,iistcred 
Agent for Service 
of Process: 1�h.·:.:• 

:r �i :tr t! t-. , ': 

I i R,versid,, v.uas Co1nrnu111ty /\$$Uciation 

fx]��'�;-1:;.:-.-, u�J -.1� r.d ..... .:-· 1 lnCorp Services. Inc. 
NJ1·1e 

/ril.:c<1., 

NV 1!9169-6014 Las Vvgas 

c : .. 

c:,· 

! l'i C�w.uron n rn!l'H 
n,,·1·.,. 

:·,. ·r-r ,\-�ir.•. ;� 

I 

I r.1�111,� .:..-,11.H·, ,:t ,· .. ,.,.,,·,1 n« i tr1':-:'t ,1h:·.,�,: 

:t:.h.l• C.-1:::-.:,,·T, ,·.1-r. 
-r,,·.: t,"l :.i r,;·,.n: ".:-:.-n 
�t �JH H ,��-. e or .•Je 

Jl!.i·.! J::,Jr'.1�1 ...ii :...i1c- : 
• r , .,. .-: r r :i r f : _ , ,  

11:,,.-1, • �-· 1.1,·,.,.,: 

J. Namos and 

Addresses of the 
Board of 
O, recto, srrruste es: 

lk,,·::: 

.·,-.r · ,..., ,I" r -, ::r.111J:-.,.i' 

J,J')'.· 'l\•:,HHr,'1 

5. Namo, Addrcs s 

and Siqueture of 
tncorpor ator: •• -�-, 
,> J i,: r , ) 1 · 1 l r. , 3 r  fl'"1,r"! 

·,,:, r,· n:·r;:<'.'lr�:,:,·,r 

6. Ce,tif,cate of 
Acceptance of 
Appointment or 
Registere,d Agent: 

I
I :t e,t.-:,J•,,, 

. .' ll.•n·� 

!:,r..-.·t·'.·.,1•,·,\; 

:"..-r 

, ,,·,-:,'>' .:,)"'l'.'."r r,�,-::�·.�!':�,:: ;J .'-.t".;•)'.i:-:r.;' ,.1:J,•f :.,, ,i� ,:o!.ot•,'I;" ""·,�,1 Ci•'•'>· •i "·•· ••·,; .. �!r·, .. � .,;-,-�>" .. •:,1 �.-.,� -'' .:,711 r,.,� 
,�, ...... , .,, ::.:.·.,., •• s , ,11� t .t, ��.�. ·.t 1 • •',':•1'.11(' ·.,y·,-. -: ...... ·.,":!€-.'(•:; . .i. ;"'-:{ ,.; : ·;:, .,!,;, ,_ ':' '·., ,, • 

x ������- 
Au t II u ri .c-: iJ s ... .,n..:J!1..rc of Rc9,1_:_:,�� -�-g�tii M 0,, R•:.h.:llf or R,<31s1.,;1""1 AQ�nt En!lt'/ 0:ih� 

11 ..... ,1 .. " ... ,�1.,,. , :: ••• 1 .. t,f\$ • • .  �j' ', � :  

I<<·:·.,-; •,; .( L' 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 60 

OR 

N,:,•;::1r:a 
7.p (, ,: ,!:: 

3/?J Howard Hug:w:s rk1'ii' SL,ile secs 
:::·. ~.,-t A· • .J1':'~~ 

It( :.,Y:n 

Otl,er h :ti',, ,:.,e s Relate:/ to Rea l [ slal" 

,--~·•~·'~;+~?!~----------- ---~-------- =:::~~-=- - z,~,-~~~·'~''~·· --< 



Exhibit D 

Bylaws 

[See Attached] 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 61 



Exhibit E 

Table of Allocated Interests 

For each Unit within the Property, including any and a l l  Units subsequently annexed to the 
Property, the allocated interests will be as follows: 

Undivided Interest 

ID 

Common Elements 

One divided by the total number of 
Units in the Project 

Liability for 

Common Expenses 

One divided by the total number of 
Units in the Project 

Votes 

1 per Unit 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 62 

I 

I 



\ 
\ 

\ 

Exhibit F 
Reduced Copy of Parcel Map 

[See Attached] 

-------------· ------- 

.L 

\ 
I 

\\ 
\ 

\ 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 63 

0, 
C 

c:l _ _j___ C"...._ 

\ 
\ 

I 

\ 
\ 
\ 

[ ___ -

.-:<'' ' 



Exhibit G 
Convertible Space 

CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

FOR RIVERSIDE VILLAS - 64 



RECEIVED 

. A P R  1  0  2 0 1 8  

BYLAWS OF 

THE RIVERSIDE VILLAS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. 

A Nevada Nonprofit Corporation 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 82- Nonprofit 
Corporations, the Board of Directors of The Riverside Villas Community Association, 
Inc. , a Nevada nonprofit corporation, hereby adopts the following Bylaws for such 
nonprofit corporation. 

ARTICLE 1 :  NAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE 

1 . 1  Name. The name of the nonprofit corporation is The Riverside Villas 
Community Association, Inc . ,  hereinafter referred to as the "Association." 

1 . 2  Offices. The principal office of the Association shall be at 180  North 
University Avenue Suite 200, Provo, Utah 8460 1 .  

ARTICLE 2: DEFINITIONS 

2 . 1  Definitions. Except as otherwise provided herein or as may be required by 
the context, all terms defined in Article I of the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions of Riverside Vil las, a Nevada Condominium Project, hereinafter referred to 
as the "Declaration", shall have such defined meanings when used in these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE 3 :  MEMBERS 

3 . 1  Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of Members sha l l  be held on the 
first Saturday in February of each year at the hours of I  0:00 o 'clock  a . m . ,  beginning with 
the year following the year in which the Articles of Incorporation are filed, for the 
purpose of electing Directors and transacting such other business as may come before the 
meeting. If the election of Directors sha l  I not be held on the day designated herein for the 
annual meeting of the Members, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors 
shall cause the election to be held at a special  meeting of the Members to be convened as 
soon thereafter as may be convenient. The Board of Directors may from time to time by 
resolution change the date and time for the annual meeting of the Members. 

3 .2  Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be cal led by the 
Board of Directors, the President, or upon the written request of Members holding not 
less than ten percent ( 10% )  of the Total Votes of the Association, such written request to 
state the purpose or purposes of the meeting and to be delivered to the Board of Directors 
or the President. 

3 .3  Place of Meetings. The Board of Directors may designate any place in 
Elko County, State of Nevada as the place of meeting for any annual meeting or for any 
special meeting ca l led by the Board. A waiver of notice signed by a l l  of the Members 
may designate any place, either within or without the State of Nevada, as the place for 
ho lding such meeting . If no designation is made, or if  a special meeting is otherwise 
cal led, the place of the meeting shall be at the principal office of the Association. 

3 .4  Notice of Meetings. The Board of Directors shall cause written or printed 
notice of the time, place ,  and purposes of all meetings of the Members (whether annual or 
special) to be delivered, not more than fifty (50) nor less than ten ( 10 )  days prior to the 



---------------------------------�------·-----···········------- 

meeting, to each Member of record entit led to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such 
notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the U.S .  mail addressed to the 
Member at his registered address, with first-class postage thereon prepaid. Each Member 
shall register with the Association such Member's current mailing address for purposes of' 

notice hereunder. Such registered address may be changed from time to time by notice in  
writing to the Association. If no address is registered with the Association, a Member's 
Unit address shall be deemed to be his registered address for purposes of notice 
hereunder. 

3 .5  Members of Record. Upon purchasing a Condominium in the Project, each 
Owner shall promptly furnish to the Association a certified copy of the recorded 
instrument by which ownership of such Condominium has been vested in such Owner, 
which copy shal l be maintained in the records of the Association. For the purpose of 
determining Members entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of the Members, or 
any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors may designate a record date, which shall 
not be more than fifty (50) nor less than ten ( I 0) days prior to the meeting, for 
determining Members entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of the Members. If 
no record date is designated, the date on which notice of the meeting is mailed shall be 
deemed to be the record date for determining Members entitled to notice of or to vote at 
the meeting. The persons or entities appearing in the records of the Association on such 
record date as the Owners of record of Condominiums in the Project shall be deemed to 
be the Members of record entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting of the Members. 

3 .6  Quorum. At any meeting of the Members, the presence of Members 
holding, or holders of proxies entitled to cast, more than fifty percent (50%) of the Total 
Votes of the Association shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the 
event a quorum is not present at a meeting, the Members present (whether represented in 
person or by proxy), though less than a quorum, may adjourn the meeting to a later date. 
Notice thereof shall be delivered to the Members as provided above. At the reconvened 
meeting, the Members and proxy holders present shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. 

3 .  7  Proxies. At each meeting of the Mem bcrs, each Member entitled to vote 
shall be entit led to vote in person or by proxy; provided, however, that the right to vote 
by proxy shall exist only where the instrument authorizing such proxy to act shall have 
been executed by the Member himself or by his attorney thereunto duly authorized in 
writing. If a Membership is jointly held, the instrument authorizing a proxy to act must 
have been executed by all holders of such Membership or their attorneys thereunto duly 
authorized in writing. Such instrument authorizing a proxy to act shall be delivered at the 
beginning of the meeting to the Secretary of the Association or to such other officer or 
person who may be acting as secretary of the meeting. The secretary of the meeting shall 
enter a record of all such proxies in the minutes of the meeting. 

3 .8  Votes. With respect to each mailer submitted to a vote of the members, 
each Member entitled to vote at the meeting shall have the right to cast, in person or by 
proxy, the number of votes appertaining to the Condominium of such Member, as shown 
in the Declaration . The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by 
the Members present or represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum was 
initially present shall be necessary for the adoption of any matter voted on by the 



Members, unless a greater proportion is required by the Articles of Incorporation, these 
Bylaws, the Declaration, or Nevada law. The election of Directors shall be by secret 
ballot. If a membership is jointly held, all or any holders thereof may attend each meeting 
of the Members, but such holders must act unanimously to cast the votes relating to their 
joint Membership. 

3 .  9  Waiver of Irregularities. All inaccuracies and irregularities in calls or 
notices of meetings and in the manner of voting form of proxies, and method of 
ascertaining Members present shall be deemed waived if no objection thereto is made at 
the meeting. 

3 . 1 0  Informal Action by Members. Any action that is required or permitted to 
be taken at a meeting of the Members may be taken without a meeting, if a consent in 
writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Members entitled to 
vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. 

ARTICLE 4: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

4 . 1  General Powers. The property, affairs, and business of the Association 
shall be managed by its Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may exercise all of 
the powers of the Association, whether derived from law or the Articles oflncorporation, 
except such powers as arc by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, by these Bylaws, or 
by the Declaration vested solely in the Members. The Board of Directors may by written 
contract delegate, in whole or in part, to a professional management organization or 
person such of its duties, responsibilities, functions, and powers as are properly 
delegable. 

4.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of Directors of the 
Association shall be three (3). The initial Board of Directors specified in the Articles of 
Incorporation shall serve until the first annual meeting of the Members. At the first 
annual meeting of the Members held after the Declarant turns over to the members 
responsibility for electing Directors, the Members shall elect three (3) Directors to serve 
for the following respective terms: one ( 1 )  Director to serve for a term of three (3) years; 
one ( 1 )  Director to serve for a term of two (2) years; and one ( 1 )  Director to serve for a 
term of one ( 1 )  year. At each annual meeting thereafter, the Members shall elect for terms 
of three (3) years each the appropriate number of Directors to fill all vacancies created by 
expiring terms of Directors. All Directors except Directors nominated by the Declarant 
shall be Members of the Association. 

4 .3 Regular Meetings. The regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors 
shal l be held without other notice than this Bylaw immediately after, and at the same 
place as, the annual meeting of the Members. The Board of Directors may provide by 
resolution the time and place, within Elko County, State of Nevada, for the holding of 
additional regular meetings without other notice than such resolution. 

4.4 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be 
called by or at the request of any Director. The person or persons authorized to call 
special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix any place, within Elko County, State 
of Nevada, as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board of Directors called 
by such person or persons. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least five (5) 



days prior thereto by written notice delivered personally, or mailed to each Director at his 
registered address, or by facsimile. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered 
when deposited in the U . S .  mail so addressed, with first class postage thereon prepaid. If  
notice is given by facsimile, such notice shall be deemed to have been delivered when the 
facsimile is transmitted and the facsimi le machine used to transmit such notice produces 
a receipt that the target destination was contacted and that such transmission was made. 
Any Director may waive notice of a meeting. 

4 .5 Quorum and Manner of Acting. A majority of the then authorized number 
of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of 
the Board of Directors. The act of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting at 
which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. The Directors shall 
act only as a Board, and individual Directors shall have no powers as such. 

4.6 Compensation. No Director shall receive compensation for any services 
that he may render to the Association as a Director; provided, however, that a Director 
may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of his duties as a Director to the 
extent such expenses arc approved by the Board of Directors and ( except as otherwise 
provided in these Bylaws) may he compensated for services rendered to the Association 
other than in his capacity as a Director. 

4.7 Resignation and Removal. A Director may resign at any time by 
delivering a written resignation to either the President or the Board of Directors. Unless 
otherwise specified therein, such resignation shall take effect upon delivery. Any Director 
may be removed at any time, for or without cause, by the affirmative vote of seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the Total Votes of the Association at a special meeting of the Members 
duly called for such purpose. 

4 .8 Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships. If vacancies shall occur in 
the Board of Directors by reason of the death, resignation or disqualification of a Director 
( other than a Director appointed by Declarant), or if  the authorized number of Directors 
shall be increased , the Directors then in office shall continue to act, and such vacancies or 
newly created Directorships shall be filled by a vote of the Directors then in office, 
though less than a quorum, in any way approved by such Directors at the meeting. Any 
vacancy in the Board of Directors occurring by reason of removal of a Director by the 
Members may be fil led by election at the meeting at which such Director is removed, If 
vacancies shall occur in the Board of Directors by reason of death, resignation or removal 
of a director appointed by the Declarant, such vacancies shall be fil led by appointments 
to be made by the Declarant. Any Director elected or appointed hereunder to fi l l  a 
vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor or for the term of the newly 
created Directorship, as the case may be. 

4.9 Informal Action bv Directors. Any action that is required or permitted to 
be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if a 
consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the 
Directors. 



ARTICLE 5 :  OFfTCERS 

5 .  I  Officers. The officers of the Association shal I be a President, Vice 
President, Secretary, Treasurer and such other officers as may from time to time be 
appointed by the Board of Directors. 

5 .2 Election, Tenure and Qualifications. The officers of the Association shall 
be chosen by the Board of Directors annually at the regular annual meeting of the Board 
of Directors. In the event of failure to choose officers at such regular annual meeting of 
the Board of Directors, officers may be chosen at any regular or special meeting of the 
Board of Directors. Each such officer (whether chosen at a regular annual meeting of the 
Board of Directors or otherwise) shall hold h is  office until the next ensuing regular 
annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until his successor shall have been chosen 
and qualified, or until his death, or until his resignation, disqualification, or removal in 
the manner provided in these Bylaws, whichever first occurs. Any one person may hold 
any two or more of such offices, except that the President may not also be the Secretary. 
No person holding two or more offices shall act in or execute any instrument in the 
capacity of more than one office. No officer need be a Director. 

5 .3  Subordinate Officers. The Board of Directors may from time to time 
appoint such other officers or agents as it may deem advisable, each of whom shall have 
such title, hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the 
Board of Directors may from time to lime determine. The Board of Directors may from 
time to time delegate to any officer or agent the power to appoint any such subordinate 
officers or agents and to prescribe their respective titles, terms of office, authorities, and 
duties. Subordinate officers need not be Members or Directors of the Association. 

5 .4 Resignation and Removal. Any officer may resign at any time by 
delivering a written resignation to the President or the Board of D irectors . Unless 
otherwise specified therein, such resignation shall take effect upon delivery. J\ny officer 
may be removed by the Board of Directors at any time, for or without cause. 

5 . 5  Vacancies and Newly Created Offices. If any vacancy shall occur in any 
office by reason of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, or if 
a new office shall be created, such vacancies or newly created offices may be filled by 
the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting. 

5 .6 The President. The President shall preside at meetings of the Board of 
Directors and at meetings of the Members. He shall sign on behalf of the Association all 
conveyances, mortgages, documents, and contracts, and shall do and perform all other 
acts and things that the Board of Directors may require of him. 

5 .7 The Vice President. The Vice President shall act in the place and stead of 
the President in the event of the President 's absence or inability or refusal to act, and 
shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board of 
Directors. 

5 .8  The Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the Association 
and shall maintain such books and records as these Bylaws, the Declaration, or any 
resolution of the Board of Directors may require him to keep. The Secretary shall also act 
in the place and stead of the President in the event of the President's absence or inability 



or refusal to act. He shall be the custodian of the seal of the Association, if any, and shall 
affix such seal, if any, to all papers and instruments requiring the same. He shall perform 
such other duties as the Board of Directors may require of him. 

5 .9  The Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the custody and control of the 
funds of the Association, subject to the action of the Board of Directors, and shall, when 
requested by the President to do so, report the state of the finances of the Association at 
each annual meeting of the Members and at any meeting of the Board of Directors. He 
shall perform such other duties as the Board of Directors may require of him. 

5 . 1 0  Compensation. No officer shall receive compensation for any services that 
he may render to the Association as an officer, provided, however, that an officer may be 
reimbursed for expenses incurred in performance of h is  duties as an officer to the extent 
such expenses are approved by the Board of Directors and ( except as otherwise provided 
in these Bylaws) may be compensated for services rendered to the Association other than 
in his capacity as an officer. 

ARTICLE 6: COMMITTEES 

6 . 1  Designation of Committees. The Board of Directors may from time to 
time by resolution designate such committees as it may deem appropriate in carrying out 
its duties, responsibilities, functions, and powers. The membership of each such 
committee designated hereunder shall include at least one ( 1 )  Director. No committee 
member shall receive compensation for services that he may render to the Association as 
a committee member; provided, however, that a committee member may be reimbursed 
for expenses incurred in performance of his duties as a committee member to the extent 
that such expenses are approved by the Board of Directors and ( except as otherwise 
provided in these Bylaws) may be compensated for services rendered to the Association 
other than in his capacity as a committee member. 

6 . 2  Proceedings of Committees. Each committee designated hereunder by the 
Board of Directors may appoint its own presiding and recording officers and may meet at 
such places and times and upon such notice as such committee may from time to time 
determine. Fach such committee shall keep a record of its proceedings and shall regularly 
report such proceedings to the Board of Directors. 

6 . 3  Quorum and Manner of Acting . At each meeting of any committee 
designated hereunder by the Board of Directors, the presence of members constituting at 
least a majority of the authorized membership of such committee (but in no event less 
than two members) shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act 
of a majority of the members present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall 
be the act of such committee. The members of any committee designated by the Board of 
Directors hereunder shall act only as a committee, and the individual members thereof 
shall have no powers as such. 

6 .4 Resignation and Removal . Any member of any committee designated 
hereunder by the Board of Directors may resign at any time by delivering a written 
resignation to the President, the Board of Directors, or the presiding officer of the 
committee of which he is a member. Unless otherwise specified therein, such resignation 



shall take effect upon delivery. The Board of Directors may at any time, for or without 
cause, remove any member of any committee designated by it hereunder. 

6.5 Vacancies. If any vacancy shall occur in any committee designated by the 
Board of Directors hereunder, due to disqualification, death, resignation, removal, or 
otherwise, the remaining members shall, until the filling of such vacancy, constitute the 
then total authorized membership of the committee and, provided that two or more 
members are remaining, may continue to act. Such vacancy may be filled at any meeting 
of the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE 7 :  INDEMNlFICA TION 

7 . 1  Indemnification -- Third Party Actions. The Association shall indemnify 
any person who was or is  a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, 
pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil , criminal, administrative, 
or investigative ( other than an action by or in the right of the Association) by reason of 
the fact that he is or was a Director or officer of the Association, or is or was serving at 
the request of the Association as a director, trustee, officer, employee, or agent of another 
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, against expenses 
(including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding, if he 
acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the 
best interests of the Association, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding. 
had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any 
action, suit, or proceeding by an adverse judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or 
upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption 
that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to 
be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association and, with respect to any 
criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was 
unlawful. 

7 .2 Indemnification -- Association Actions. The Association sha ll indemnify 
any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, 
pending, or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Association to procure a 
judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a Director or officer of the 
Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a director. trustee, 
officer, emp loyee, or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or 
other enterprise against expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably 
incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he 
acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the 
best interests of the Association and except that no indemnification shall be made in 
respect of any claim, issue , or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to 
be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duty to the Association , 
unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall 
determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all 
circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for 
such expenses which such court shall deem proper. 



7.3 Determinations. To the extent that a person has been successful on the 
merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit, or proceeding referred to in Sections 
7 . 1  or 7 .2 hereof, or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, he shall be 
indemnified against expenses (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred 
by him in connection therewith. Any other indemnification under Sections 7 . 1  or 7.2 
hereof shall be made by the Association only upon a determination that indemnification 
of the person is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable standard of 
conduct set forth respectively in Sections 7 . 1  or 7.2 hereof. Such determination shall be 
made either (i) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of disinterested Directors or 
( i i )  by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (iii) by the Members by the 
affirmative vote of at least fifty percent (50%) of the Total Votes of the Association at 
any meeting duly called for such purpose. 

7 .4 Advances. Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, 
or proceeding as contemplated in this ARTICLE 7 may be paid by the Association in 
advance of the final disposition for such action, suit, or proceeding upon a majority vote 
of a quorum of the Board of Directors and upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf 
of the person to repay such amount or amounts unless it ultimately be determined that he 
is entitled to be indemnified by the Association as authorized by this ARTICLE 7 or 
otherwise. 

7 .5 Scope oflndemnification. The indemnification provided for by this 
ARTICLE 7 shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified 
may be entitled under any provision i n  the Association's Articles of Incorporation, 
Bylaws, agreements, vote of disinterested Members or Directors, or otherwise, both as to 
action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such 
office. The indemnification authorized by this ARTICLE 7 shall apply to all present and 
future Directors, officers, employees, and agents of the Association and shall continue as 
to such persons who cease to be Directors, officers, employees ,  or agents of the 
Association and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and personal representatives of all 
such persons and shall be in addition, to al l ,  other rights to which such persons may be 
entitled as a matter of law. 

7 . 6  Insurance. The Association shall purchase and maintain insurance on 
behalf of any person who was or is a Director, officer, employee, or agent of the 
Association, or who was or is serving at the request of the Association as a trustee, 
director, officer, employee, or agent of another corporation, entity, or enterprise (whether 
for profit or not for profit), as may be required by Article 1 0  of the Declaration. 

7.7 Payments and Premiums .  All indemnification payments made, and all 
insurance premiums for insurance maintained pursuant to this ARTICLE 7 shall 
constitute expenses of the Association and shall be paid with the funds from the Common 
Expense Fund referred to in the Dec laration. 

ARTICLE 8 :  rISCAL YEAR AND SEAL 

8 . 1  Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day 
of January each year and end on the 3 1 s t  day of December next following except that the 
first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation. 



8.2 Seal. The Board of Directors may by resolution provide a corporate seal 
which shall be circular in form and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the 
Association, the state of incorporation, and the words "Corporate Seal". 

ARTICLE 9: RULES AND REGULATIONS 

9 . 1  Rules and Regulations. The Board of Directors may from time to time 
adopt, amend, repeal, and enforce reasonable rules and regulations governing the use and 
operation of the Project, to the extent that such rules and regulations are not inconsistent 
with the rights and duties set forth in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or 
these Bylaws. The Members shall be provided with copies of all rules and regulations 
adopted by the Board of Directors, and with copies of all amendments and revisions 
thereof. 

ARTICLE I 0 :  AMENDMENTS 

1 0 . 1  Amendments. Except as otherwise provided by law, by the Articles of 
incorporation, by the Declaration (e .g . ,  Art ic le 14),  or by these Bylaws, these Bylaws 
may be amended, altered, or repealed and new bylaws may be made and adopted by the 
Members upon the affirmative vote of at least fifty-one percent (5 1  %) of the Total Votes 
of the Assoc iation; provided, however, that such action shall not be effective unless and 
until a written instrument setting forth (i) the amended, altered, repealed, or new bylaw, 
(ii) the number of votes cast in favor of such act ion, and (iii) the Total Votes of the 
Association, shall have been executed and verified by the current President of the 
Association and recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Elko County, State of 
Nevada. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned, constituting all of the Directors of 
The Riverside Villas Community Association, Inc . , have executed these Bylaws as of the 
_____ day of , 2 0 1 8 .  

By : _ 
Cameron Gunter 
1 80  North University A venue Suite 200 
Provo, Utah 84601 

By: _ 
Michael Bingham 
1 8 0  North University Avenue Suite 250 

Provo, Utah 8460 I 



**'  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

'  

Recording Requested By: 

First American Title Insurance Company 

560 South 300 East 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 

Return Recorded Document to: 

Law Office of Steven W. Farnsworth, P.C. 

180 North University Avenue, Suite 260 

Provo, Utah 84601 

DOC# 686483 
05/19/2014 04:05PM 

O f f i c i a l  Record 
Requested By 

FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE CO 

Elko County - NV 
D Mike Smales - Recorder 
Page :  1  of 13 Fee: $ 2 6 . 0 0  

Recorded By ST RPTT: $ 0 . 0 0  

1 1111111111111111 IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII 1111 
, ' <686483'' 

REC IPROCAL EASEMENT 

A G R E E M E N T  

WITH 

COVENANTS, COND IT IONS  

A N D  

RESTR ICT IONS 



**·• THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL COPY *** 

.  ·-1 ---- ·- - . -- 

RETURN RECORDED DOCUMENT TO: 

Law Office of Steven W. Farnsworth, P.C. 
Zions Bank Financial Center 
180 N. University Ave., Ste. 260 
Provo, UT 8460 I 

I llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 686483 
05/19/2014 
2 of 13 

RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT WITH 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

THIS RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND 
RESTRJCTIONS (the "Agreement") is executed this� day of May, 2014,  by RIVERSIDE VILLAS, 
LLC, a Utah limited liability company ("Owner #1 ), and RIVERSIDE VILLAS II, LLC, a Utah limited 
liability company ("Owner #2"). Owner #1 and Owner #2 shall sometimes hereinafter be referred to 
individually as a "Party," and collectively as the "Parties." 

A. Owner #1 is the owner of certain real property situated in the City of Elko, Elko County, 
State of Nevada ("Property #I")  (Property # 1 is more particularly described on Exhibit "A," which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference). 

B. Owner #2 is the owner of certain real property situated in the City of Elko, Elko County, 
State of Nevada ("Property #2") (Property #2 is more particularly described on Exhibit "B," which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference). 

C. Each Owner has installed or intends to install amenities that may include a playground, 
green space, pool and clubhouse that will be available for use of tenants and their guests of both Property 
#1 and Property #2 (the "Amenities") 

D. Even though Property #1 and Property #2 (individually a "Property" and collectively the 
"Properties") are separate parcels, the Parties desire that the Properties be utilized by tenants and their 
guests for ingress and egress and for use of the Amenities. 

E. The Parties desire to establish non-exclusive easements over, across and upon all 
driveways, drive aisles and access ways located from time to time on the Properties (collectively, the 
"Common Areas") for the mutual and reciprocal benefit of the Properties and the present and future 
owners, tenants and invitees thereof. 

F . The Parties also desire to establish certain covenants, conditions and restrictions with 
respect to the use of the Properties now and in the future pursuant to this Agreement and in addition to the 
Master Covenants. · 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and of the covenants herein 
contained, the Parties covenant and agree that the Properties and all present and future owners, occupants 
and invitees of the Properties shall be and hereby are subject to the terms, easements, covenants, 
conditions and restrictions as follows: 

1 .  DEFINITIONS. For purposes hereof: 

1 . 1  The term "Owner" or "Owners" shall mean Owner # 1 ,  Owner #2 and any and all 
successors or assigns of such persons as the owner or owners of fee simple t_itle to all or any 



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

1111111 1111111111 11111 11111111111111 1111 686483 
05/19/2014 
3 of 13 

portion of the Properties, whether by sale, assignment, inheritance, operation of law, trustee's 
sale, foreclosure, or otherwise, but not including the holder of any lien or encumbrance on such 
Properties or any portion thereof. 

1 .2 The term "Permittees" shall mean the tenant(s) or occupant(s) of the Properties, 
and the respective invitees and licensees of (a) the Owners of such Properties, and/or (b) such 
tenanus) or occupant(s). 

2. EASEMENTS. 

2 . 1  Grant of Reciprocal Easements. Subject to any express conditions, limitations or 
reservations contained herein, each Owner hereby grants, establishes, covenants and agrees that 
the Properties, and all Owners and Permittees of the Properties, shall be benefited and burdened 
by the following nonexclusive, perpetual and reciprocal easements which are hereby imposed 
upon the Properties and all present and future Owners and Permittees of the Properties: 

(a) An easement for reasonable access, ingress and egress to from, upon, 
over and across all of the Common Areas now and from time to time existing on the 
Properties for the purpose of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress between all 
portions of the Common Areas, and to and from all abutting streets or rights of way 
furnishing access to the Properties. This access easement shall not prohibit the right of the 
Owners to reconfigure or construct roadways and vehicular passageways, driveways, and 
driving lanes, or to construct and maintain, within the area affected by this easement, traffic 
and parking control islands and other such facilities, on their respective portion of the 
Properties, so long as any such action does not unreasonably prevent the passage by motor 
vehicles and service and delivery vehicles between each of the Properties, and to the public 
roads, as appropriate. No person shall be permitted to construct or maintain any building, 
banier or sign of any sort, which would limit or otherwise interfere with the traversing of 
vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic within the Properties upon the Common Areas. 

(b) A use easement granted by each Owner to the other Owner for the use 
and enjoyment of the Amenities located on the other Property. 

2 .2 Reasonable Use of Easements. 

(a) The easements granted herein shall be used and enjoyed by each Owner 
and its Permittces in such a manner so as not to unreasonably interfere with, obstruct or 
delay the conduct and operations of the business of any other Owner or its Permittees at 
any time conducted on its Property including, without limitation, public access to and 
from said Property. 

(b) Once commenced, any construction, maintenance, repair or replacement 
undertaken in reliance upon an easement granted herein shall be diligently prosecuted to 
completion, so as to minimize any interference with any other Owner and its Permittees. 
Except in cases of emergency, the right of any Owner to enter upon a Property of another 
Owner for the exercise of any right pursuant to the easements set forth, or to prosecute 
work on such Owner's own Property if the same interferes with easements of ingress, 
egress or access to or in favor of another Owner's Property, shall be undertaken only in 
such a manner so as to minimize any interference with other Owner and its Pennittees, 
and only following reasonable notice under the circumstances to the other Owner and its 

- 2 - 



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

I  llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 686483  
05/19/2014 
4 of 13 

Permittees. The Owner performing any such construction, maintenance, repair or 
replacement shall have the obligation at its own expense ( except as set forth in Section 
3.3) to promptly restore the other Owner's Property to the same condition as was present 
prior to such construction, maintenance, repair or replacement. 

(c) Each Owner shall have the right to alter, modify, reconfigure, and/or 
relocate the Common Areas on its Property, subject to the following conditions: (i) the 
reciprocal easements between the Properties pursuant to Section 2 . 1  (a) shall not be closed 
or materially impaired, and (ii) the access ways, driveways and passageways, and ingress 
and egress thereto, and to and from the Properties and adjacent streets and roads, shall not 
be so altered, modified, relocated, blocked and/or removed without the express written 
consent of all Owners, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

3. INSTALLATION. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR. 

3 . 1  Amenities. With respect to proposed Amenities, notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, neither Owner is obligated to install any certain type of Amenity 
whatsoever. Provided, however, once an Amenity has been installed, then such Amenity shall be 
made available for the use and enjoyment of all Permittces. 

3 .2  Maintenance of Common Areas, Amenities and Easements. Each Owner shall at 
all times be responsible for the regular maintenance, repair and replacement of the Common 
Areas and Amenities and all of the easements located on its own Property including, without 
limitation, all of the physical improvements associated with such easements. Such obligations 
shall include, without limitation : maintaining and repairing all sidewalks and the surface of the 
roadway areas; removing all papers, debris and other refuse from and periodically sweeping all 
sidewalk areas to the extent necessary to maintain the same in a clean, safe and orderly condition; 
maintaining appropriate lighting fixtures for the roadways; maintaining marking, directional 
signs, lines and striping as needed; maintaining signage in good condition and repair; and 
performing any and all such other duties as are necessary to maintain such Common Areas, 
Amenities and easements in a clean, safe and orderly condition. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
any damage to any easement, which is caused by intentional or negligent acts of one of the Owners 
or its Permittees, shall be promptly repaired at the sole cost of such Owner. Also notwithstanding the 
foregoing, each Owner shall pay a proportionate share based on unit count of the expenses related to 
the maintenance and operations of (1) the swimming pool, (2) the playground, and (3) the clubhouse. 
Owner #2 shall promptly reimburse expenses paid by Owner #1 within fifteen ( 15)  days ofreceipt of 
an invoice for its proportionate share of said expenses. 

3 .3  Failure to Maintain the Common Areas, Amenities and Easements. If any Owner 
defaults under its regular maintenance, repair and replacement obligations as described in Section 3 .2 
above, the other Owner(s) shall give such defaulting Owner written notice of the claimed default, and 
such defaulting Owner shall have ten (10) days following the receipt of such written notice to cure 
such default. If the default remains uncured following the ten (10) day period, or if such default is 
not curable within the ten ( 10) day period and the defaulting Owner has failed to begin to cure such 
default within the ten (10) day period, the other Owner(s) may, but shall not be required to, cure the 
default itself, and then bill the defaulting Owner for the reasonable costs incurred in curing such 
default. Each such bill shall contain an itemized description of the work performed and the total 
costs and expenses incurred for such work, The defaulting Owner shall pay all such bills within 

thirty (30) days after receipt of the b i l l .  In the event the defaulting Owner fails to timely pay any bill, 

- 3 - 



***  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

11111111111111111 IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 686483 
05/19/2014 
5 of 13 

the unpaid amount shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum from the due 
date until the date such amount is paid in full. 

4. COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS. 

4 . 1  Term. The easements, covenants, conditions and restrictions contained in this 
Agreement shall be effective commencing on the date of recordation of this Agreement in the 
office of the Elko County Recorder and shall remain in full force and effect thereafter in 
perpetuity, unless this Agreement is modified, amended, canceled or terminated by the written 
consent of all then record Owners of all of the Properties in accordance with Section 6.2 hereof. 

4.2 Use Restrictions. Each Property shall be used for lawful purposes in 

conformance with all restrictions imposed by all applicable governmental laws, ordinances, 
codes, and regulations, and no use or operation shall be made, conducted or permitted on or with 
respect to all or any portion of a Property that is illegal. 

4.3 No Rights in Public; No Implied Easements. Nothing contained herein shall be 
construed as creating any rights in the general public or as dedicating for public use any portion 
of the Properties. No easements, except those expressly set forth in Section 2, shall be implied by 
this Agreement. 

4.4 Right of First Offer. 

(a) The following Right of First Offer and Second Offer shall not be 
applicable in the case of a first position lien holder exercising its rights to ensure 
performance of the obligations secured by its first position deed of trust including, but not 
limited, to a foreclosure sale, a deed in lieu of foreclosure, or other remedies, whether 
arising under its deed of trust, applicable law, principles of equity or otherwise. For the 
avoidance of doubt, each of the deeds of trust ( each, as amended from time to time, a 
"KeyBank Deed of Trust") granted to KeyBank National Association ("Lender") by 
Owner #1 and Owner #2 in connection with the financing Lender has provided (or shall 
hereafter provide) to Owner #1 and Owner #2, as the case may be, for the construction of 
certain improvements on the Properties, which improvements include (but are not limited 
to) the Amenities, is "a first position deed of trust" and creates "a first position lien," as 
contemplated by this Section 4.4(a), such that the exercise by Lender (or Lender's 
successor in interest) of any rights under or relating to any Key Bank Deed of Trust shall 
not be subject to the following Right of First Offer and Second Offer. 

(b) Neither Party shall sell or agree to sell (the "Selling Party") its Property 
without first offering to sell it to the non-selling Party (the "Non-Selling Party"). The 
word "sell" shall include any transfer, conveyance, or assignment, except for a lease, 
hypothecation, or pledge of all or any portion of such Property or the Selling Party 's 
interest in such Property. 

(c) Prior to the Selling Party entering into an agreement for the marketing of 
its Property or otherwise selling or agreeing to sell its Property, the Selling Party shall 
offer in writing ("First Offer") to sell the Property to the Non-Selling Party on the same 
terms and conditions that the Selling Party would then be willing to offer to a third party. 
The First Offer shall, at a minimum, include the following information: 

- 4 - 



•••  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

I  IIIIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 

(i) the purchase price; 

(ii) the method of payment of the purchase price; 

686483 
05/19/2014 
6 of 13 

(iii) the amount and terms of any Selling Party financing; 

(iv) the amount of the required earnest money deposit; and 

(v) the time and location for the close of escrow. 

(d) The Non-Selling Party shall have fifteen ( 15)  days from the date of the 
First Offer to accept the First Offer ("Acceptance Period") by delivering to the Selling 
Party acceptance on or before 5:00 p.m. Mountain Time on the last day of the Acceptance 
Period. If the Non-Selling Party fails to accept the First Offer before the Acceptance 
Period ends, the First Offer shall be deemed rejected. 

(e) If the Non-Selling Party responds to the First Offer with anything other 
than an unequivocal, unconditional acceptance or rejection, the right of first offer shall 
terminate and the response shall be deemed an offer to purchase the Property on the terms 
and conditions in the response ("Counter Offer"). The Selling Party shall be entitled to 
accept or reject the Counter Offer at the Selling Party's sole discretion, and if the Selling 
Party rejects the Counter Offer, the Selling Party shall have no further obligations under 
this Agreement. 

(f) If the Non-Selling Party accepts the First Offer, the Non-Selling Party 
shall have thirty (30) days following acceptance of the First Offer ("Closing Period") to 
consummate the purchase of the Property pursuant to the terms and conditions of the First 
Offer. If the Non-Selling Party fails to consummate the purchase of the Property within 
the Closing Period, any earnest money paid by the Non-Selling Party pursuant to the 
acceptance shall be paid to the Selling Party as the Selling Party's liquidated damages, 
and the agreement to purchase the Property together with this Agreement shall be 
terminated. After the termination, the Selling Party shall be free to enter into an 
agreement for the sale of the Property with a third party on whatever terms the Selling 
Party may choose to offer without further obligation under this Agreement. 

(g) If after the Non-Selling Party rejects the First Offer, the Selling Party 
negotiates with a third party and is otherwise willing to enter into an agreement with that 
party on terms substantially less favorable to the Selling Party than those contained in the 
First Offer, the Selling Party shall offer to sell the Property to the Non-Selling Party on 
those new terms by giving the Non-Selling Party written notice ("Second Offer"). The 
Non-Selling Party shall have five (5) business days from receipt of the Second Offer to 
accept the new terms. If the Non-Selling Party fails to accept the new terms or rejects the 
new terms in writing, the Selling Party shall be free to consummate the transaction with 
the third party without any liability to the Non-Selling Party. If the Non-Selling Party 
accepts the new terms, the Non-Selling Party shall then immediately consummate the 
transaction with the Selling Party on the terms and conditions in the Second Offer on the 
later of: 

(i) the time for consummation in the Second Offer, or 

(ii) fifteen ( 1 5 )  days following the date of the Second Offer. 

- 5 - 

-----------------------------------------------�----- 



***  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

111111111111111111111 11111111111111 1 1111  686483 
05/19/2014 
7 of 1 3  

(h) Termination. This Agreement shall automatically terminate and have no 
further effect upon the first of the following events to occur ( each, a "Termination 
Event"): 

(i) the Non-Selling Party, in contravention of this Agreement, assigns or 
attempts to assign the Non-Selling Party's rights under th.is Agreement; 

(ii) the Non-Selling Party rejects a First Offer or a Second Offer and the 
Selling Party subsequently consummates a sale of the Property to a third party 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; or 

(iii) The purchase of the Property by the Non-Selling Party. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Lender (or its successor in interest) shall ever 
hold a fee simple interest in and to either of the Properties, this Agreement shall be fully 
enforceable in accordance with its terms against the other of the two Properties (i.e., the 
Property not owned in fee simple by Lender or its successor in interest), such that Lender 
( or its successor in interest) shall be entitled to all of the rights and benefits of this 
Agreement, the same as though no Termination Event had occurred. The intent of the 
foregoing exception being to ensure that, in the event Lender shall ever exercise any of its 
rights in and to either of the Properties, Lender and its successors in interest shall be able 
to operate and use such Property in accordance with the rights and remedies provided to 
the Parties hereunder, notwithstanding the occurrence of any Termination Event. 

5 .  REMEDIES AND ENFORCEMENT. 

5 . 1  All Legal and Equitable Remedies Avi3ilably. In the event of a default or 
threatened default by any Owner or its Permittees of any of the terms, easements, covenants, 
conditions or restrictions hereof, the other Owner(s) shall be entitled forthwith to full and 
adequate relief by injunction and/or all such other available legal and equitable remedies from the 
consequences of such breach, including payment of any amounts due and/or specific 
performance. 

5 .2 Remedies Cumulative. The remedies specified herein shall be cumulative and in 
addition to all other remedies permitted at law or in equity. 

5 .3 No Termination for Default. Notwithstanding the foregoing to the contrary, no 
default hereunder shall entitle any Owner to cancel, rescind, or otherwise terminate th.is 
Agreement. No breach hereunder shall defeat or render invalid the lien of any mortgage or deed 
of trust upon any Property made in good faith for value, but the easements, covenants, conditions 
and restrictions hereof shall be binding upon and effective against any Owner of such Property 
covered hereby whose title thereto is acquired by foreclosure, trustee's sale, or otherwise. 

6 . MISCELLANEOUS. 

6 . 1  Attorneys' Fees. In the event a Party institutes any legal action or proceeding for 
the enforcement of any right or obligation herein contained, the prevailing Party after a final 
adjudication shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in the 
preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding. 

- 6 - 

----------------------------------------------�--�-····-- . 

- ---··•----- -



*"* THIS IS 
0

A."I UNOFfICIAL COPY *** 

I  llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 686483  
05/19/2014 
8 of 13 

6.2 Amendment. The Parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement may be 
modified or amended, in whole or in part, or terminated, only by the written consent of all record 
Owners of the Properties, evidenced by a document that has been fully executed and 
acknowledged by all such record Owners and recorded in the official records of the Elko County 
Recorder. 

6.3 No Waiver. No waiver of any default of any obligation by any Party shall be 
implied from any omission by the other Party to take any action with respect to such default. 

6.4 No Agency. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by any 
person to create the relationship of principal and agent or of limited or general partners or of joint 
venturers or of any other association between any persons. 

I 

6.5 Covenants to Run with Land. It is intended that each of the easements, 
covenants, conditions, restrictions, rights and obligations set forth herein shall run with the 
Properties and create equitable servitudes in favor of the Property(ies) benefited thereby, shall 
bind every person having any fee, leasehold or other interest therein and shall inure to the benefit 
of the Parties and their respective successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives. 

6.6 Grantee's Acceptance. The grantee of any of the Properties, or any portion 
thereof, by acceptance of a deed conveying title thereto or the execution of a contract for the 
purchase thereof, whether from Owner or from any subsequent Owner of such Properties, or any 
portion thereof, shall accept such deed or contract upon and subject to each and all of the 
easements, covenants, conditions, restrictions, duties and obligations contained herein. By such 
acceptance, any such grantee shall for itself and its successors, assigns, heirs, and personal 
representatives, covenant, consent, and agree to and with the other affected persons, to keep, 
observe, comply with, and perform the obligations and agreements set forth herein with respect to 
the portion of the Properties so acquired by such grantee. 

6. 7 Severability. Each provision of this Agreement and the application thereof to the 
Properties are hereby declared to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this 
Agreement. If any provision contained herein shall be held to be invalid or to be unenforceable 
or not to run with the land, such holding shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remainder of this Agreement. In the event the validity or enforceability of any provision of this 
Agreement is held to be dependent upon the existence of a specific legal description, the parties 
agree to promptly cause such legal description to be prepared. Ownership of all of the Properties 
by the same person or entity shall not terminate this Agreement nor in any manner affect or 
impair the validity or enforceability of this Agreement. 

6.8 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

6.9 I::ntire Agreement. This Agreement contains the complete understanding and 
agreement of the Parties with respect to all matters referred to herein, and all prior 
representations, negotiations, and understandings are superseded hereby. 

6 . 1 0  Notices. Notices or other communication hereunder shall be in writing and shall 
be sent certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by other national overnight courier 
company, or personal delivery at the Party's last known address. Notice shall be deemed given 

- 7 - 

------------------------- ------ ----



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  
.  .  

I  llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 686483 
05/19/2014 
9 of 13 

upon receipt or refusal to accept delivery. Each Party may change from time to time their 
respective address for notice hereunder by like notice to the other Parties. 

6 . 1  I  Governing Law. The laws of the State of Utah shall govern the interpretation, 
validity, performance, and enforcement of this Agreement. 

6 . 1 2  Bankruptcy. In the event of any bankruptcy affecting any Owner or occupant of 
any Property, this Agreement shall, to the maximum extent permitted by law, be considered an 
agreement that runs with the affecting Property(ies) land and that is not rejectable, in whole or in 
part, by the bankrupt person or entity. 

6 . 1 3  Benefits to Perrnittees. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the 
contrary, any provision creating a right or benefit for an Owner shall be deemed to also create a 
similar right or benefit for such Owner's tenants and subtenants. 

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGES] 

- 8 - 



*r* THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  
.  .  

11111111111111111 IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 686483 
05/19/2014 
10 of 13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 

"OWNER #1" 

=z:1!1:z_ 
By: �on Gunter 
Its: Manager 

STATE OF UTAH ) 
: SS 

COUNTY OF UT AH ) 
.J-t. 

On the 0_:: day of May 2014, personally appeared before me Cameron Gunter, the Manager of 
RIVERSIDE VILLAS, LLC, a Utah limited liability company and the signer of the foregoing instrument, 
who duly acknowledged to me that he executed the same on behalf of said limited liability company for its 
stated purpose. 

Commission Expires: {,p · /� · l q  

- 9 - 



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

"OWNER #2" 

STATE OF UTAH 

By: 
Its: Manager 

: SS 

11111111111111111 IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 686483 
05/19/2014 
11 of 13 

COUNTY OF UTAH ) 

-«- On the � day of May 2014, personally appeared before me Cameron Gunter, the Manager of RIVERSTI)E VILLAS TI, LLC, a Utah limited liability company and the signer of the foregoing instrument, 
who duly acknowledged to me that he executed the same on behalf of said limited liability company for its stated purpose. 

QiQ� 
�blic ofth�fUtal; 
Commission Expires: U · / � · 1_1_� � 

- 1 0  -  



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  
.  .  

11111111111111111 IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 

EXHIBIT 'A' 

686483 
OS/19/2014 
12 of 13  

File No.: 

Property: 

NCS-666150-SLCl (ami) 

1525 Opal Drive, Elko, NV 
04/22/2014 

ALL OF THAT PORTION LOCATED IN THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES OF MAP OF REVERSION 
RECORDED DECEMBER 27, 2012 IN FILE NO. 665925 IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE COUNTY 
RECORDER, ELKO COUNTY, NEVADA. 
A.P.N. 001-630-077 

Initials: _ 
Page 1 of 1 



***  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

'  

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1  

EXHIBIT 'B' 

686483 
05/19/2014 
1 3  of 13 

File No . :  

Property: 

PARCEL 1: 

NCS-665968-SLCl (ami) 

1525 Opal Drive, Elko, NV 

04/21/2014 

REMAINDER (LOT 2B) AS SHOWN ON THE FINAL MAP OF RIVERSIDE CONDOMINIUMS - PHASE 1 
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF ELKO COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA ON 
NOVEMBER 5, 2008 AS FILE NO. 605491 AND AMENDED BY THAT CERTAIN CERTIFICATE OF 
AMENDMENT RECORDED JANUARY 13, 2009 AS DOCUMENT NO. 608344 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS. 

PARCEL 2: 

PARCEL 4 AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN PARCEL MAP FOR DAVID G. KENYON AND KAREN L. 
KENYON FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF ELKO COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA, 
ON DECEMBER 19, 1997, AS FILE NO. 419689, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 11 AND 14, 
TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST, M.D.B.&M. 
A.P.N. 001-630-078 

Initials: _ 
Page l of l 

! I 



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

111111111111111/I IIIII IIIII IIIII IIII IIII 
' ' '692683''' 

I  ec : $ 1 8 .  00 

RPTT: $ 0 . 0 0  

6 9 2 6 8 3  
01:  26PM 

R e c o r d  

Page: 1 of 5 

Recorded By MS 

DOC# 
11/25/20]4  

O f f ; c ; a l  
Requested By 

FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE CO 
Elko County - NV 

D Mike Smales - Recorder 

Law Office of Steven W. Farnsworth, P.C. 
Zions Bank Financial Center 
1 80  N. University Ave., Ste. 260 
Provo, UT 84601  

Recording Requested by, and 
after recording return to: 

AMENDMENTTORECIPROCALEASEMENTAGREEMENT 
WITH COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

THIS AMENDMENT is made as of November 25, 2014,  between RIVERSIDE VILLAS 
NEV ADA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Owner #1 "), and RIVERSIDE 
VILLAS II, LLC, a Utah limited liability company ("Owner #2" and together with Owner #1 ,  
the "Parties"). 

A. Owner #2 and Riverside Villas, LLC, a Utah limited liability company ("Villas"), are 
parties to a certain Reciprocal Easement Agreement with Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions 
dated as of May 9, 2014� recorded in the land records of Elko County, Nevada on May 19 ,  2014 
as Document No. 686483 (the "REA"), affecting the real property described in Exhibit A hereto. 

B.  Villas conveyed the real property described in the REA us "Property # 1 "  to Owner # 1 .  

C . The Parties desire to amend the REA as set forth below. Capitalized terms used in this 
Amendment and not defined herein have the meanings given to those terms in the REA. 

THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1 .  In the event that the owner of Property # 1 and the owner of Property #2 are not affiliates 
with common ownership, and in the event Amenities on Property #1 include a leasing office, any 
right on the part of Owner #2, its successors, and assigns to utilize any portion of the leasing 
office pursuant to the REA for purposes of leasing units at Property #2 shall be by revocable 
license only. In the event that the owner of Property #1 and the owner of Property #2 are not 
affiliates with common ownership, and in the event that Amenities on Property #2 include a 
leasing office, any right on the part of Owner# 1 ,  its successors, and assigns to utilize any portion 
of the leasing office pursuant to the REA for purposes of leasing units at Property #1 shall be by 
revocable license only. Each of Owner # 1 ,  Owner #2, and their respective successors and 
assigns may revoke and terminate the licenses referred to in this paragraph l upon 120 days' 
notice to the other party, and such notice may be given at any time. 

2 .  Paragraph 4 .4 of the REA is hereby deleted in its entirety. Owner # 1 ,  its successors, and 
assigns do not have any right of refusal or right of offer to purchase Property #2. Owner #2, its 
successors, and assigns do not have any right of refusal or right of offer to purchase Property# 1 .  

IN  WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Amendment as of the date 
first set forth above. 

<Signature Pages Follow> 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 



*** THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

I  llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 

Owner #1 :  

692683  
11/25/2014 
2 of 5 

RIVERSIDE VILLAS NEVADA, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company 

STATEOF vi±:a l \  �- __ ,___Mill_,__._· �[�'\ __ Countyss :  

On this )4 day of November. 20 14 ,  personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in 
and for the CourifySnd State aforesaid, Cameron S. Gunter, Manager of Riverside Villas, LLC, a 
Utah limited liability company, Sole Member of Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company, who acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instrument on 
behalf of said limited liability company. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at 
my office in said County of l  11±:n h �' the day and year in this Certificate first ahove 
written. • 

My Commission Expires: 

@) 
KAMI ROBERTSON 
NOTARY PUSUC-STATE Of I/WI 

COMMISSION# 608625 

COMM. EXP. 04-19·2015 .___ _ 

-"'-"--�--"--�c-7�-----�---- 

Notary Public 

County of Ll:tzJ b_ , State of J ;,::kr h, 

ST A TE OF U\_,rzr l'.] I .Aizt h County ss: 

On this :2.4 day of November, 20 I 4, personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in 
and for the County and State aforesaid, Michael C. Bingham, Manager of Riverside Villas, LLC, 
a Utah limited liability company, Sole Member of Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC, a Delaware 
l imited liability company, who acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instrument on 
behalf of said limited liability company. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at 
m)'. office in said County of kttZZ l'\ , the day and year in this Certificate first above 
wntten. 

My Commission Expires: 

County of \kiz11 , State of IJ., iz1 l'\.. 
Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 



* ' *  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

I  llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 

Owner #2: 

692683 11/25/2014 
3 of 5 

RIVERSID�: VJLI,�·�. Utah��mited liz: co pany ·� 
Camer n S. Gunter 
Manager 

STATEOf G\:tJ'[l'\  wfilb Countyss :  

On this _..1H_ day of November, 2014,  personally appeared before me. a Notary Public in 
and for the County and State aforesaid, Cameron S. Gunter, Manager of Riverside Villas l l ,  
LLC, a Utah limited liability company, who acknowledged that he executed the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of said limited liability company. 

IN WITNESS WHERE�F
1 

I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at 
my office in said County of \ .. At}h , the day and year in this Certificate first above 
written. 

My Commission Expires: ( · · - -  ..  , � /  · · · -  . .  �lie 
County of �J'L_, State of Gt±:!1 h 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 



* * '  THIS IS A..� UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

I  llllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111 

Consented to by: 

692683  
11/25/2014 
4 of 5 

STATE OF ,j;iQ[V , cfQ--illu County ss: 

On this�ay of November, 2014, personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in 
and for the County and State aforesaid, Tonya E. Barnes, Vice President of KeyBank National 
Association, a national banking association, who acknowledged that she executed the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of said national banking association. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at 
my office in said County of c:f2)ffi)..c) , the day and year in this Certificate first above 
written. 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 



* * *  THIS IS AN UNOFFICIAL C O P Y * * *  

Phase I Legal 

I llllll lllll lllll /1111111111111111111111 

EXHIBIT 'A'  

692683  
11/2 5/2014 
S of S 

All of that portion located in the exterior boundaries of map of reversion recorded December 27, 
20 12  in Fi le No. 665925 in the official records of the County Recorder, Elko County, Nevada. 

Phase 1 1  Legal 

All that certain real property situate in the County of Elko, State of Nevada, described as follows: 
A portion of the Southeast quarter and a portion of the West half of Section 14 ,  Township 34 
North, Range 55 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian. 

The land referred in the City of Elko, County of Elko, State of Nevada. 

Parcel l :  

Remainder (Lot 28) as shown on the final map of Riverside Condominiums - Phase l filed in 
the office of the County Recorder of Elko County, State of Nevada on November 5, 2008, as F i le 
No. 605491 and amended by that certa in Certificate of Amendment recorded January 1 3 ,  2009, 
as Document No. 608344 of Offic ial Records. 



Recording Requested by, and 
after recording return to: 

Law Office of Steven W. Farnsworth, P.C. 
Zions Bank Financial Center 

1 8 0  N  Univers i ty Ave. , Ste. 260 
Provo. UT 8460 I 

DOC# 
08/14/2015 

O f f ; c ; a l  
Requested By 
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE CO 

Elko County - NV 
D Mike  Smales - Recorder 
Pdqe;  1 of 6 Fee; $ 1 9 . 0 0  

Recur·ded By MS RPTT; $ 0 .  00 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1  

7 0 1 4 1 3  
01:  30PM 

Record 

,·, 701413'�  SECOND AMENDMENT TO RECIPROCAL EASEME!'l 1 Au«..r-.r..1vrn1-.1 
WITH COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRJCTIONS 

N�,t 
THIS SECOND AMENDMENT is made as of..fun.e ..!i_, 2 0 1 5 ,  between RIVERSIDE VILLAS 
NEV ADA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (Owner # I ) ,  and RIVERSIDE VlLLAS 
II ,  LLC, a Utah limited liability company ("0\.vner #2" and together with Owner # 1 ,  the 
"Parties"). 

A. Owner #2 and Riverside Villas, LLC ("Vil las ' ' ) are parties to a certain Reciprocal 
Easement Agreement with Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions dated as of May 9, 20 14 ,  and 
recorded in the land records of Elko County, Nevada on May 1 9 ,  2 0 1 4 ,  as Document # 686483 
( the "Original REA"). 

B. Vi l l a s  conveyed the real property described in the Original REA as "Property#! 
to Owner # 1 .  

C. Owner # 1  and Owner #2 amended the Origina l  REA by executing that certain 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement with Covenants, Condit ions and Restrictions 
dated as of November 25, 20 14 ,  and recorded in the land records of Elko County, Nevada on 
November 25 ,  20 1 4 ,  as Document #692683 (the "First Amendment") .  

D . The Original REA amended by the First Amendment is hereafter the "REA". 

E . The Parties desire to further amend the REA as set forth below. Capitalized terms 
used in this Second Amendment and not defined herein have the meanings given to those terms 
in the REA. 

THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1 .  The Properties are both subject to Conditional Use Perm i t N o . 1  -'\�(the "CUP") 
from the City of Elko ("City") to allow Mu l t iple family residential development w ithin a C 
(Genera l  Commerc ial) Zoning District. Owner # 1  and Owner #2 each agree to comply with the 
CUP in all respects . Notwithstanding the foregoing, Owner #2 covenants to the City to guaranty 
compl iance of the CUP in the event that Owner# I does not comply. 

2. Owner # I shall ma inta in landscaping on the 1 i
11 Street and Opal Drive rights of 

way in a manner reasonably acceptable to the City at all t imes. To the extent that Owner #2 has 
any ownership and obl igation for the foregoing landscaping , Owner #2 shall either instal l and 
main ta in  i ts landscaping ob ligations , or promptly reimburse Owner # I for any cost and 
expend itures Owner # I has made for Owner #2. 

3 .  Water and sewer uti l it ies throughout the Properties wil l  be dedicated to the City 
by recording of a separate utility easement. 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 
Active 2 6 2 0 5 l l l v l  



4. Section 6.2 of the Original Agreement amended and restated as follows: 

Amendmcnj_. The Parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement may be modified or 
amended, in whole or in part, or terminated, only by the written consent of a l l  record Owners of 
the Properties and the City, evidenced by a document that has been fully executed and 
acknowledged by al I such record Owners and the City and recorded in the official records of the 
Elko County Recorder. 

5 . Covenants to Run with Land. It is intended that each of the casements, covenants, 
conditions, restrictions, rights and ob l igations set forth herein shall run with the Properties and create 
equ i table servitudes in favor of the Propertyt ies) benefited thereby, shall bind every person having any 
fee, leasehold or other interest therein and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective 
successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Amendment as of the date 
first set forth above. 

<Signature Pages Follow> 

Active 2 6 2 0 5 l l l v l  

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 



Owner # 1 :  

RIVF:RSIDE VILLAS NEVADA, LLC, a Delaware limited l iab i l i ty company 
Riverside :,'i l l9,s;  LLC, a l,,Jtah )imited l iabi l i ty company, its-Sole �ember - -(·.-·-----., 

� r c1,1 ---� · -  
rl ,.,. ff' ,.' __ /t -; By: \ l /o, /..cJ<;t / \ ,, Cameron S.  GuntG O 

= 
Manager. .: ·. 

,., • / ;f • By· (,)/ flj/ /- 0 ; . tvfichael C. Bingh;(rn -- · Manager ,;/ 
STATE OF lA-Jah , u/a h County ss: 

L} ft«q«r ./- On this _1_ day of *rffe, 2 0 1 5 ,  personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, Cameron S. Gunter, Manager of Riverside Vil las �LLC, a Utah limited l i ab i l i ty  company, who acknowledged that he executed the foregoing instr nent on behalf of said l imited l iabi l i ty company. ev-aL?l?\ 

rN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in said County or �fl , the day and year in this Certificate first above written. 

y�� c�� / NaryPublic . 

County of /A-Jab , State of /dbh 

ST A TE OF , V[.-ft::t I, County ss :  
On this 'l. day of��, personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, ·, Manager of Riverside Villas LLC, a Utah limited liability company, who acknowledged tha he executed the foregoing instru t o n  _ _  /  behal [ of sa id limited l iabil i ty company. N\ {� L .  g,n_�atr\__ t-Je.trC-<?t.-C\ 

rN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in said County of _(d--h_L_ __ , the day and year in this Certificate first above written. 
My Commission Expires: {;:7/(/rCf 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 
Active 2 6 2 0 5 l l l v l  

By: 

--. - ·--

c., ... ,.ft g Gtmt\ 

NOTARY PUBUC-STATE OF UTAH 

COMMISSION# 683394 

COMM. EXP. 06•05-2019 

County of 

~ ary Public •·--- -

.~ f1--'-!]_, State of /A-i::i 17 



Owner #2: 

STATE OF ( A-fa h , / A--/q Q County ss: 
On this !l_ day 0�%1 s, personally appeared before me, a Notary Pt�bJ"c in and 

for the County and State aforesaid, Cameron S. Gunter, Manager of Riverside Villa , ,LC, a 
Utah l imi ted l i ab i l i t y  company, who acknowledged that he executed the foregoing ins 1�n

1tAo,1� 
_ -'- behalf ofsaid l imited l iab i l i ty company. � 

County of :.��f:i.":·,'�-- L I N D S E Y  TALBOT 

(}t�� NOTARY PUBLJNTATE OF UTAH 

����JJ COMMISS ION# 683394 

'".__--;-,·,-t,.)' COMM. EXP. 06·05-2019 
��,,, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at m;'. office in said County or_� h , the day and year in this Ccrti ficate first above 
written. 

My Commission Expires: &/�//0 

Active 2 6 2 0 5 l l l v l  
Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 

RIVERSIDE VJLL'I\S LI, LJ,;C, a 
Utah Ii mited liJlbilit'llJf P.3-;Y 

I ~lt _l1 1 

8 1 ,< 1--::t cc/t-·-------/--y: \ j'" 0 ·- _/ 

Cameron S. Gunter 
Manager 

L_j} t._/ . 

~ - ~rtaryPubi1c 

/4-hh , State of -14-h 7 



Consented to by Lender to Owner # 1 :  

•  {  v  '  �f"atlnc. David J. 'Go(}t'rnan 
It e: 

\\1 lanager 
iV/ 1 11,ifarni!y 11sset Management 

STATE OF \Lr(fyh < 0, , f°' ,Y-,\-«'b, County ss: 
On this di2_�'day of June, 2015�person�lly appeared before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, Vt c� d)' b\;rol..)fV'\ .. °"-.V'lNAME], N\SA_ \'\.Q-£ p_,,v 

[TITLE] of FEDERAL HOME LOA MORT rAGE CORPORATION, who acknowledged that he/she executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said national banking association. 
IN WfTNESS WI IERs!)F, l have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office in said County or ,-CA, ( H\ ;<___ , the day and year in this Certificate first above written. 

My Commission Expires: 

=r> \ \ //(.\\ y 

Active 2 6 2 0 5 l l l v l  

�L-=:._:____==--=--�--=:.��---- ---- --�- 
Notary Pub l ic 

f<A\Y }�x___ , State or \J, (,) 1 h r  ' o ,  

Annette DIS lsto Leiva 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

REG. #7593086 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUGUST 3 1 ,  2018 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 

County of 

------ --

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE 
CORPORATION 1 

r✓:Jl}( )[YaiA~'..~1,:.::.s _;.~_~_-·-_,_,._,-_---___ ~ By: 

-~ - -----



Consented to by Lender to Owner #2: 

KF,YBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a 
national banking association 

------- 
�-----� 

By: .  t' 

Tamara Naccarato 
Vice President 

STATE OF COLORADO, DENVER County ss: 

On this 3rd day of August, 2 0 1 5 ,  personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in and 
for the County and State aforesaid, Tamara Naccarato, Vice President of KcyBank National 
Association, a national banking association, who acknowledged that she executed the foregoing 
instrument on behalf of said national banking association. 

IN WITNFSS WI IEREOF, l  have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at 
my office in said County of ji(';)J/.� ----�' the day and year in this Certificate first above 
written. 

My Commission Expires: ,_)Lu ic: I� J.{/l, 

.r». 1 ( itc j!, ;:J ld�;';J ··�--·� 
Notary Public/ 

County of lx1 > vtr , State of iZ/[rtltlt) 

Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 
Active 2 6 2 0 5 1 1 � v �  

/. 

./ 
(j : 

,.;// / 
/ / / ' 



CITY OF Ello 
P lann ing Department 

H'd1.1ite: \\ ,, ".l' lh 1 1 c · i r1 .curn 

Em ail: pl.r 1 1 1 1 i 1 1 .�(o ci l' IJ...0 . 1 1 1  .u-.  

1 7 5 1  College Avenue ·  Elko.  Nevada 8 9 8 0 1  ·  ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  Fax ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 - 7 1 1 9  

CITY OF ELKO 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT 

Regular Meeting of February 1 7 ,  2 0 1 5  

W H E R E A S .  the following item was reviewed and considered hy the Elko C i t y  P l a n n i n g  
Commission on February 1 7 ,  2 0 1 5  under Public Hearing format, in accordance with notification 
requirements contained i n  Section 3 - 2 - 1 8  F. of the City C o d e :  

Condit ional  Use Permit No. 2 - 1 5 ,  filed by Riverside V i l l a s  Nevada LLC, to allow for a 
multiple fa m i l y  residential development consisting of 1 5 6  u n i t s  \\ i th in  a  C (General 
Commerc ial )  Zoning District , and matters related thereto. 

The subject property is located genera l ly on the easterly s ide of 12th Street near i t s  
intersection with Opal Drive ( 1 5 2 5  Opal Drive) .  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission .  upon review and consideration of the appl icat ion .  
supporting data, public input and testimony. condit ionally approve Conditiona l  L'se Permi t  No.  
2 - 1 5  subject to the fo l low ing cond i t ions :  

1 .  Conditions in the Elko City Staff Report dated February 1 7 ,  2 0 1 5  l isted as fol lows :  
1 )  That conditions of th i s  Condit iona l  Use Permit w i l l  replace any conditions and/or 

requirements of Conditional  Use Permit 1 3 - 1 3 .  
2)  That Conditional Use Permit No . 2 - l  5  sha l l  be persona l  to the perrnittee and 

app l icable only to the submitted application conforming to the exh ibits as 
presented . 

3)  The Conditional Use Permit wi l l  expire w i thin one ( I )  year of the date of approval 
if the Applicant is not actively engaged in develop:  ng the property. 

4) The complex shall comply with the development standards as outlined in City 
Code Section 3-2-5 E. 6. 

S) The publ ic improvements shall be instal led ,  comp leted , and accepted prior to a 
certificate of occupancy for bu i ld i n g s  currently under construct ion as wel] as 
future bui ld i  ngs . 

6) That the deve lopment shall  comply with City Code Section 3 - 2 - 1 7 .  
7) Exterior l ight ing for the comp lex shall be shielded and cutoff w i th m i n ima l  

lighting sp i l l ing over into the neighboring properties. 
8) That the trash enclosures sha l l  accommodate for the collec t ion and storage of 

separate recycling and so l id  waste receptacles. 
9) There sha ll  not be any placement of any mail gang boxes or k iosks in assoc iat ion 

with this  complex placed in the c i ty's right of way and shall remain interna l to the 
complex .  



10) Architecture and building materials shall be equal to and be compatible with the 
existing structures. 

1 1 )  A  Landscaping Plan showing locations and quantities of all landscape materials 
has been submitted and approved during building permit submittal. Applicant will 
complete landscaping on or before May 1 5 ,  2015 .  

12) Conditions as outlined in the Development Department's, Engineering 
Department, Fire Department and Public Works Department memorandums as 
included in the review package. 

1 3 )  Construction and other temporary materials will be removed from site and 
adjacent easterly site (Opal Drive and l 21h Street) before final Certificate of 
Occupancy can be approved. 

2. Conditions in the Community Development Manager's report dated January 27, 2015  
striking condition 1 1  and modifying condition 1 3  listed as follows: 

1 )  The conditional use permit is granted to Riverside Villas, LLC for a 156  multi 
family unit and related accessory use to be located on the describe properties in 
accordance with the submitted site plan and elevations. 

2) The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific 
use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning 
Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying 
that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the 
permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be 
transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special 
conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of 
the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner. 

3) The Conditional Use Permit shall expire within one year unless the permit holder 
is actively engaged in development of the property. 

4) A screen wall is not required under Section 3-2-3(]) of City code. 
5) A traffic study is not required. 
6) All parking area and access lighting is to be shielded or cut-off design. 
7) A landscape plan will be required for submittal and approval. The landscape plan 

is to include the 121h Street frontage west of the existing right- in/right-out access 
on I 21h Street. 

8) The landscaping on the 12th Street right-of-way shall be maintained in an 
acceptable manner at all times. 

9) The property shall be maintained in an acceptable condition at all times. 
10) It is expected the water and sewer throughout the development w i l l  be dedicated 

to the City. Recordation of proper utility easements is required. City utilities 
require a 20 foot wide easement centered of the main utilities. A blanket utility 
easement would be best suited for this circumstance. 

12) All site amenities are to be completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the last 3 bedroom building. 

1 3 )  The parcels are to be merged, in the event the parcels cannot be merged a 
document shall be recorded against both properties guaranteeing the use of all 
amenities that shall be binding to the land and cannot be modified by either owner 



----------------------------------------------------- 

in the event of sale of one of the properties to a third party. The document shall  be 
acceptable to the City of Elko and Riverside Villas Nevada, LLC shal l  pay for all  
legal fees associated with the review of the document. 

14)Record a public ut i l i ty casement over all utilities on the property in the event the 
parcel map merging the properties is not recorded. 

15)Conditional  Use Permit 1 3 - n  is  no longer valid. 
1 6 ) T h e  Conditional Use Permit is to he recorded as a condition of Certificate of 

Occupancy. 

3 .  This be reviewed and approved by the City attorney in regards to the multiple owner 
reciprocal use for the project. 

The applicant is advised of the right to appeal this decision to the City Council within 10 
days of the date of approval as stated above. 

Attest: 

C C :  Applicant 
Jeremy Draper. Development Manager (via email)  
Shanell Owen. City Clerk 

Rci)ccca Hans~n, Planning Technician 



EXISTING EASEMENT DETAIL 
NOT TO SCALE 

IN ADDITION TO ANY EASEMENTS SHOl'<N ON TI-IIS DETAIL, PARCEL B AS SHOl'<N 
HEREON IS SUBJECT TO TI-IE 20' UTILITY EASEMENT GRANTED TO TI-IE CITY OF El.KO 
BY DOCUMENT NO. 455372, EU<O COUNTY, NEVADA OFFICIAL RECORDS, TI-IE 
EASEMENTS SHOl'<N ON TI-IE FINAL MAP FOR RIVERSIDE CONDOMINIUMS PHASE 1, FILE 
NO. 605491 AND TI-IE EASEMENTS SHOl'<N ON TI-IE MAP OF REVERSION FOR SIGNATURE 
DEVELOPERS, LLC, FILE NO. 665925 Wini TI-IE EXCEPTION OF TI-IE BLANKET 
UTILITY EASEMENT GRANTED BY NOTE 6 OF TI-IE SAID FINAL MAP OF RIVERSIDE 
CONDOMINIUMS PHASE 1 AND CITED AS REMAINING IN EFFECT BY NOTE 7 OF TI-IE 
SAID MAP OF REVERSION FOR SIGNATURE DEVELOPERS. 

NOTE 6 OF TI-IE SAID FINAL MAP OF RIVERSIDE CONDOMINIUMS PHASE 1 GRANTS A 
BLANKET UTILITY EASEMENT FOR GAS, POWER, TV AND TELEPHONE SERVICES WITI-IIN 
TI-IE COMMON AREA SHOl'<N ON LOT 2A OF TI-IE SAID FINAL MAP OF RIVERSIDE 
CONDOMINIUMS PHASE 1 AND IS CITED AS REMAINING IN EFFECT BY NOTE 7 OF TI-IE 
SAID MAP OF REVERSION FOR SIGNATURE DEVELOPERS. TI-IIS EASEMENT IS HEREBY 
AMENDED AND REPLACED BY A BLANKET UTILITY EASEMENT GRANTED BY TI-IIS MAP 
WITI-IIN TI-IE COMMON ELEMENT ON PARCEL B AS SHOWN HEREON. SEE NOTES 
UNDER COMMON ELEMENTS ON TI-IIS SHEET. 

i \ 
\ 

SUBDIVISION INFORMATION NOTES: 

SUBDIVISION NAME: 
NUMBER OF UNITS: 

LOCATION: 

SUBDIVIDER: 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

FLOOD ZONE: 

ZONING: 

WATER SUPPLY: 
SEWAGE DISPOSAL: 
POWER: 
TELEPHONE: 
NATURAL GAS: 
TELEVISION: 

EXIS11NG SEWER, WATER DRAINAGE 
& ACCESS EASEt.tENTS PER RIVERSIDE 

CONDOMINIUMS FILE NO. 605491 

RIVERSIDE VILLAS, A CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
96 

SECTION 14, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & . 

RIVERSIDE VILLAS NEVADA LLC 
180 N. UNIVERSITY AVE., SUITE 200 
PROVO, UT 84601 
CONTACT: BRANSON BRINTON - PHONE:(385)207-7225 

1) TI-IE TOTAL SUBDIVIDED AREA OF TI-IIS MAP EQUALS 7.872 ACRES. 

TI-IE AREAS LISTED BELOW ARE TI-IE HORIZONTAL AREAS AT GROUND LEVEL: 

COMMON ELEMENT WITI-IIN TI-IE EXTERIOR LIMITS OF EACH BUILDING = 
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT WITI-IIN EXTERIOR LIMITS OF EACH BUILDING • 
AREA OF TI-IE UNITS WITI-IIN EACH BUILDING = 
TOTAL AREA WITI-IIN EXTERIOR LIMITS OF EACH BUILDING = 

0.020 AC. 
0.008 AC. 
0.109 AC. 
0.137 AC. 

LOT 2A, MAP OF REVERSION, FILE NO. 665925 

NONE 

COMMON ELEMENT OUTSIDE TI-IE EXTERIOR LIMITS OF ALL BUILDINGS = 6.379 AC. 
LIMITED COMMON AREA OUTSIDE TI-IE EXTERIOR LIMITS OF ALL BUILDINGS = 0.397 AC. 
TOTAL AREA OUTSIDE TI-IE OUTSIDE LIMITS OF ALL BUILDINGS • 6.776 AC. 

R - SINGLE FAMILY AND MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

CITY OF ELKO 
CITY OF ELKO 
NV ENERGY 
FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 
SOUTHWEST GAS 
SATVIEW BROADBAND 

44.67' 

~""2;;;3;;;..83;;;;;..' _ _. li:i -.,~ ._--=2::a3.,.83:,.' __ 

12.00" ~ ID 
,,; TYPICAL BUILDING DIMENSIONS 

~ 12.00' 
,,; 

5987 SQ. FT. - 0.137 AC. 
THE DIMENSIONS AND AREAS SHOl'<N ON THIS 

TYPICAL BUILDING DETAIL ARE THE DIMENSIONS 
AND AREA OF TI-IE EXTERIOR OF TI-IE BUILDING 

WHICH WERE UTILIZED TO DETERMINE THE 
HORIZONTAL POSITION OF THE BUILDINGS ON 

TI-IE PROPERTY AND TO DETERMINE TI-IE AREA 
OF PARCEL B. SEE SHEET 2 FOR THE 

INDIVIDUAL UNIT DIMENSIONS & NOTE 1 ON THIS SHEET 
CONCERNING AREAS ~ ~-.J 

.. Ill 12.00" 
l!l~----' 
,,; 23.83' 

12.00' ~ in '----~"' 23.83' oti FRONT 

;,, 
CD 

ill 

PARRADO PARTNcRS LP 
LOT A 

GREAT BASIN 6TA TES 
FILE NO. 715613 

TI-IE SIDE OF TI-IE BUILDING LABELED AS FRONT 
ON EACH BUILDING SHOWN BELOW TI-IAT WAS 

USED AS TI-IE FRONT ORIENTATION FOR 
UNIT NUMBERING PURPOSES AS SHOWN 

44.67' 

DETAIL A 
NOT TO SCALE 

JOSHUA 'fflff SHELTER 
PARCEL .J 

PARCEL I.IAP 
FILE NO. 625691 

ON SHEET NO. 2 

~.si 
\\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

<' 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ ,~ S 28"26'05" E 

20.00' 

35' 

\\ 

\ ,~ 
~ 

,CJ.. 

fc, 
,9.. ~. PARCEL B 

COMMON ELEMENT = 6.379 AC. 

N B~2'47" ,S_ - -
--- 90,57' 

20,40'c.--"'"1 

\ 
\ 
\ 

~. ,~ 
\ 

,~ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT = 0.397 
TOTAL AREA = 6.776 

SEE DETAIL A & NOTE 1 
CONCERNING AREA OF 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

35' 

\ 

\ 

\ 
N 85"22'47" E 

38.92' 

\ 

/ 
I 

.~ 
,...,'I, • 

"~ 'I,~ 
<,'lo~-"' ~ 

2 1 

11 ,2 
FOUND BRASS CAP 

"' 
i 8 

~ 
~ tS 

'1. 
n, 

" 12 

1.J 
FOUNO BRASS CAP 

70' ROADWAY PREVIOUSLY 
DEDICATED BY PARCEL MAP 

FILE NO. 419689 
AND TI-IE FINAL MAP FOR 
RIVERSIDE CONDOMINIUMS 

PHASE 1, FILE NO. 605491. 

9.00' 

N 

1 "=50' 

\ 
\ ,~ \ 

\ \ 
PARCEL B 

14 13 
23 24 

VICINITY MAP 
NOT TO SCALE 

R/VcRS/0£ lfLLAS II, LLC 
LOT 28 

R/VcRS/0£ CONDOI.IINIUl.l5 
FILE NO. 605491 

---

\ 
\ ~, 
'i,\ 
S.\ 
'6>,\ ~, 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ i, 
-~.\ 

\ 
\ 

s 20·54•or E 
20.00' 

----

\1q 
\s. 
\'6, ,· 

f 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ , .. 

PARKING 
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 

0.087 AC. 
SEE NOTE 1 & 

PAR NG DETAIL 

\~ 
\-4. 
\ 

N 76"-44'19"' E 
20.00' 

------

I!. = 5"27'21 • 
~-R • 1220.00 

L • 116.17 

-

\ 

'i ~-.., 
\"· 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ ! 

PARKING 

\~ 
\'!' 

,1&. 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ ! 

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 

-

0.087 AC. ------
SEE NOTE 1 & 

PARKING DETAIL 

-

PARKING 
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 

0.099 AC. 
SEE NOTE 1 & 

PARKING DETAIL 

Cl:) 

... c,t .... u ~ ~o..:~ (JI 

/z Q.,""' 
~ ;::! t;; :::! J!t 

:::, "' cs 1/1 
Cl:) "' -"I 

"' 
-S 58"25'22" E 8 

...__ 72.90? $_ 

130,44'- - - -

35' \ 

\ 
eo· 

A - 11 •34'55" 
'--R • 880.00 

S 06'58'35" E 
20.00' 

50 

S 10'04°57" W 
35.60' 

S 59'25'05"' E 
3.3,71' 

-
-

COMMON ELEMENTS 

L = 177.90 

---

1) TI-IE COMMON ELEMENT OF TI-IIS CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT, WI-IICH 
INCLUDES TI-IE LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS SH0\\'111, IS COMPRISED OF ALL 
OF THE LAND AND REAL PROPERTY INCLUDED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF 
TI-IE PROJECT TOGETI-IER Wini ALL AREAS CONTAINED WITI-IIN TI-IE EXTERIOR 
LIMITS OF TI-IE BUILDINGS TI-IAT IS NOT IDENTIFIED AS BEING WITI-IIN TI-IE 
BOUNDARIES OF TI-IE UNITS AS SH0\\'111 HEREIN. 

2) TI-IE COMMON AND LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS OF TI-IIS 
CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT MAY BE FURTI-IER DEFINED IN TI-IE 
DECLARATION AS PROVIDED FOR IN N.R.S. 116.2105. 

0 50 100 150 

SCALE: 1 "-50' 

200 

\ 

35' 

60' 

\ 

9.00' 

PARKING DETAIL 
NOT TO SCALE 

TYPICAL PARKING SPACE 
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT TO BE 

ASSOCIATED WITH THE UNIT NUMBER 
SHOWN WITHIN EACH SPACE 

L --
SHEET 1 OF 2 

TENTATIVE MAP 
OF 

RIVERSIDE VILLAS 
A CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 

IN 
SECTION 14, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & M. 

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA 

HIGH DESERT 
ENGINEERING, 
LLC 

640 IDAHO STREET 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

{775} 738-4053 
218005 



S££ SECTION 1 

0.51' 

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 
BALCONY - 2ND & 3RD FLOOR UNITS 
CONCRETE PATIO - 1ST FLOOR UNITS 

SE£ SECTION 2 -·, 

S££ SECTION 3 -·, S££ SECTION 3 

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 
BALCONY - 2ND & 3RD FLOOR UNITS 
CONCRETE PATIO - 1ST FLOOR UNITS 

.-,-• S££ SECTION 2 
i-----+----- 44.67' -----+------1~ 

12.67' 3.67' 12.00• r r. ,,-r-.rtr1i'~ r - - - - -
3.67' 12.67' 

12.00' 

12.00' 

1;; 
.; -

in ///J.,,. ....... 
Nti-- / / / / 'J-. " 
ad "?/ / / / / --~ ro: 

23.83' '° / / / "' '° r-=l;;;;;==;;;;;;;;;;;;==;;;;;a:~= .. .Vr ,/,/12.67'/ /-_, 
• 22.81' 
~ ? 0.51' _ 13.69" 

1.42' 

1ST Fl.OOR UNITS - A10J THRU H103 
2ND Fl.OOR UNITS - A20J THRU H20J 
3RD Fl.OOR UNITS - A30J THRU H30J 

1193.31 SQ. FT . 

;,, 
CX) .. -

-------

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

/ (TYP.) 
55.06' 

55.06' 

- -o.51' 
0.67' J 

...-. .r-r-r-r-;7~-
~ I/ / / /~';,, " ,.. ,... , / / r-Joa 

I '-- 2.65' _.../]I ui "!/ , / / / / "!, ,d 23.83' 

;,, COMMON ;,, 
CX) EJ.£M£NT CX) .. .. - -

0.51' 

0.51' 

<O JP , / / / "'' 
, / '12.67> , / /1,t,.;;;;;====~~==~j;;;;;= 

2281' 

13.69' 1.42' 0.51' -

1ST Fl.OOR UNITS - A102 THRU H102 
2ND Fl.OOR UNITS - A2D2 THRU H202 
3RD Fl.OOR UNITS - A302 THRU H:502 

12.00' 

12.00' 

3.92' 3.92' 
1193.31 SQ. FT. 

3.92' 3.92' 

:.: :.: .. .. UNIT -" 
I BOUNDARY/ 

====:1=======55::.06:::'==::::::*==l===(=TYP=.)"-.,_=:!:::: J:l 
55.06' J :lj 

0.67' 

b b 
"' "' d d 
"' "' 

S££ SECTION I 

:.: :.: .. .. - i---- 0.51' 

1;; 
.; - UNIT 

BOUNDARY 

1ST Fl.DOR UNITS - AIOI THRU HIOI 
2ND Fl.DOR UNITS - A2D1 THRU H201 
3RD Fl.DOR UNITS - A301 THRU H3DI 

1193.31 SQ. FT. 

3.92' 

3.92' 

0.51' 

3.92' 

3.92' 

1ST Fl.DOR UNITS - AIOO THRU HIOO 
2ND Fl.DOR UNITS - A200 THRU H200 
3RD Fl.DOR UNITS - A:500 THRU H:500 

1193.31 SQ. FT. 

1;; 
UNIT ~ 

BOUNDARZ_ 

----- (TYP\.) 

12.00' 1.42' 

0.51' 

;,, ;,, ;,, ;,, 
/

(TYP.) --... 

12.00' 

12.00' "' COMMON "' .. CX) "' c,; c,; EJ.£M£NT c,; - - - -~ I 
,d 22.81' i , L=::::j~======~==j,,' '/12.67" / /_, 

23.83' J . r;...// / / /, ;... ~ v-2.65'-----._ 
o.51' ~r"!/ / / / / , ✓ "! -

ui U) / / / / ,,co ~ 
LLLL.L ,' 

13.69' I ~ ~ 
2281' t ,d ,ri • // /J•~v / / ~"===========:=ll==J 

~ 1;;/, / / / //j;;l.,n 23.83' J 
co .; / / / // /.;1 "! 0.51' 

/LL_ L_ LLL....J 

13.69' 
1.42' 

12.67' 3.67' 

" / / L~AT"'::_ __ _ 
3.67' 12.67' 12.00' 

i------+----- 44.67' -----+------

12.00' 

S££ SECTION 2 -·.J C....,-- S££ SECTION 2 

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 
BALCONY - 2ND & 3RD FLOOR UNITS 
CONCRETE PATIO - 1ST FLOOR UNITS 

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT 
BALCONY - 2ND & 3RD FLOOR UNITS 
CONCRETE PATIO - 1ST FLOOR UNITS S££ SECTION 3-·.J t t 

FRONT OF BUILDING 
USED AS ORIENTA noN 

L._-• S££ SECTION 3 

FOR UNIT NUMBERING PURPOSES 

;... 19.98' 

'° ~ 
35.09' ,._ ]!1 

ix, I ,.; 
3RD Fl.DOR UNITS - A:501 THRU H301 & -0 

.,; 1.05' 
3RD Fl.DOR UNITS - A30J THRU H30J 

55.06' 

55.06' 

ix, 2NO Fl.OOR UNITS - A201 THRU H201 & ix, IS ix, 
0 

2ND FLOOR UNITS - A20J THRU H20J 
0 0 

.,; 1.05' c,; 

~ 
.,; 

55.06' 

55.06' 0.51' 
UNIT ix, ix, 

BOUNDARY 1ST Fl.OOR UNITS - AIOI THRU HIOI & 0 0 
(TYP.) 1ST Fl.OOR UNITS - AIOJ THRU H103 c,; .,; 

55.06' 

SEC710N 1 

19.98' 

1.05' 

0.51' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

BUILDINGS A THRU H 
TYPICAL UNIT DIMENSIONS 

All. AREAS CONTAINED WITHIN TH£ EXTERIOR LIMITS 
OF TH£ BUlll}fNGS NOT IO£NTIFl£D AS BEING WITHIN TH£ 

BOUNDARY OF TH£ UNITS AS SHO'lf/N HEREON, AR£ TO B£ PART OF 
TH£ COMMON £LEM£NT OF THIS CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 

WHICH INCLU0£5 TH£ LIMITED COMMON EJ.£M£NTS SHO'lf/N 

;... 
<O 

~'-======"':':'~====",'"""'if'"'-
35.09' 

3RD FLOOR UNITS - A:500 THRU H:500 .t 
3RD FLOOR UNITS - A:J02 THRU H:502 

55.061 

55.06' 

2NO Fl.OOR UNITS - A200 THRU H200 & 
2ND FLOOR UNITS - A202 THRU H202 

55.061 

55.06' 

1ST Fl.OOR UNITS - AIOO THRU HIOO .t 
1ST Fl.OOR UNITS - A102 THRU H102 

55.06' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

0.51' 

10 0 10 

29.24' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

8 3RD Fl.DOR UNITS-A:502 THRU H:502 & 8 
,,; 3RD Fl.DOR UN/TS-A30J THRU H30J c,; 

29.24' 

29.24' 

8 3RD FLOOR UNITS-A3DO THRU H:500 & 8 
,,; 3RD Fl.DOR UNITS-A:501 THRU H:501 ,,; 

1.05' 
0.67' 29.24' 

0.51' ..... ~•-- 29.24' 29.24' ..... ~,-- 0.51' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

°ig 2ND Fl.OOR UNITS-A2D2 THRU H202 & °ig 
,,; 2ND FLOOR UNITS-A20J THRU H203 c,; 

29.24' 

29.24' 0.67' 

°ig 1ST Fl.DOR UNITS-A102 THRU HI02 & 
c,; 1ST Fl.OOR UNITS-AIOJ THRU HIOJ 

29.24' 

ix> 2ND Fl.OOR UNITS-A200 THRU H200 & °ig 
:;j 2ND Fl.DOR UNIT5-A201 THRU H201 c,; 

1.05' 
29.24' 

29.24' 

1ST Fl.OOR UNITS-AIOO THRU HIOO .t °ig 
1ST Fl.OCR UNITS-AIOI THRU HIOI c,; 

29.24' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 
SEC710N 2 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

°ig 3RD FLOOR UNITS-A:502 THRU H:502 & 
.,; 3RD Fl.DOR UNITS-A30J THRU H30J 

29.24' 

29.67' 

;e ~ 
~ ~ :JRO FLOOR UNITS-A3DO THRU H:500 & °ig 

3RD Fl.DOR UNITS-A:501 THRU H:501 .,; 

0.67' 29.24' 
1.05' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

0.51' -,-i1-- 29.24' 29.24' ..... ~,-- 0.51' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

20 

°ig 2NO Fl.OOR UNITS-A202 THRU H202 & °ig "oo 2ND Fl.OOR UNITS-A200 THRU H200 & °ig 
,,; 2NO FLOOR UNITS-A20J THRU H20J c,; :;j 2ND Fl.DOR UNIT5-A201 THRU H201 c,; 

29.24' 

29.24' 0.67' 

°ig 1ST Fl.OOR UNITS-A102 THRU HI02 & 
m 1ST Fl.OOR UNITS-A10J THRU HIOJ 

29.24' 

1.05" 
29.24' 

29.24' 

1ST Fl.OOR UNITS-AIOO THRU HIOO .t °ig 
1ST Fl.OCR UNITS-AIOI THRU H101 m 

29.24' 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

SEC710N 3 

SHEET 2 OF 2 

TENTATIVE MAP 
OF 

RIVERSIDE VILLAS 

UNIT 
BOUNDARY 

(TYP.) 

A CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
IN 

30 40 
SECTION 14, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & M. 

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA 

SCALE: 1 "=10' HIGH DESERT 
ENGINEERING, 
LLC 

640 IDAHO STREET 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

{775} 738-4053 
218005 



Agenda Item # I.A.2. 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
1-18, Ordinance No. 829, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically 
Section 3-2-11 IBP, IC Industrial Districts, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 1, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

5. Background Information: At the March 6, 2018 meeting, Planning Commission took 
action to initiate an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance Title 3, Chapter 2, 
Section 11; IBP, IC Industrial Districts. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance 829 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an 
ordinance which approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-18 of the Elko City 
Code specifically Section 3-2-11. 

9. Findings: 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 3/26/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 5/ I  

**Do not use penci I or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title: Z0n-1q Ord·,nancQ_ Awendmmt \ -  1 £  Ovcl 929 

Applicant(s): --=- {_.__..____,_--'d--'--___.,,�o...L.----------------- 
Site Location: _J____ C 

--=�---4-L--'---'..J.-l.'-'-='-----'-----------------�-- 

Current Zoning: ___,tJ�/�A�- Date Received: -�N�.1--'-)A�- Date Public Notice: __ '-J�_l 1 __ 

coMMENT: This Ls :±c t ¢rue '::11li SQ,tb?ok. Y?�utvemecnts ,n 

�A o TC 'b 13±-Y tC:t. 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Assistant City Manager: Date: L{ / 2 :> //8 
- l 

� e l o M ;t,1 £ NX  a  pr1""lova.,I  

Initial 

City Manager: Da te: _ ____,,iu--:i_l/�/i�t �i __ 

Initial 

I 



CITY OF ELKO 

ORDINANCE NO. 829 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, OF THE ELKO CITY CODI{ 

ENTITLED "GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE" BY ADDING NEW DEVELOPMENT 

STANDARDS, AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend the City Code to provide clarification within the 
General Zoning Ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO, 
NEVADA 

For amendment purposes, words which are in bold and underlined are additions to the 

Ordinance, and words which are lined through and bold are deleted from the Ordinance. 

Section 1 :  Title 3 ,  Chapter 2, Section 1 1  is hereby amended to read as follows: 

3-2-11:  IBP, IC INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS: 

A. IBP  Industrial Business Park District: 

1 .  Intent: The purpose of the IBP zoning district is to provide and preserve high profile areas 
appropriate for corporate office, research and development facil ities, office parks and 
compatible light industrial uses with emphasis on special site design features that strengthen 
the city's economic base and contribute to a higher quality of appearance and standard of land 
use, and to preclude residential uses and also extensive commercial uses and development that 
may be detrimental to the character or quality of the business/industrial park environment. 

2. Principal Uses Permitted: The primary permitted uses in the IBP zoning district are listed as 
follows, plus other uses of a similar nature: 

Advertising distribution. 

Bakery. 

Bottling plants. 

Business schools, vocational and trade schools. 

Catering services. 

Childcare center. 

Communication facilities. 



Corporate and professional office, offices subordinate to and related to the principal industrial 
use. 

Electronic manufacturing and assembly. 

financial institutions. 

Indoor light manufacturing, processing, assembly, fabricating or storage of certain specified 
products and materials. 

Laboratories. medical experimental and research. 

Machine shops. 

Newspaper and publishing plants. 

Office supply stores. 

Printing, blueprinting, photostating, and photo finishing facilities. 

Recording studios. 

Recreation and fitness centers. 

Warehousing and distribution center. 

Other commercial uses which are supportive and complementary to IBP uses and the intent of 
the district as determined by the planning commission. 

3 .  Conditions: 

a. Conditional Use Permit Required: Issuance of a conditional use permit following review by 
the planning commission and in accordance with this chapter is required for all fully 
integrated and planned IBP developments as part of a concept master plan or for individual 
IBP uses not part of an approved master plan. 

b. Outside Storage: Any outside storage shall be suitably screened from the surrounding area by 
walls, planting, or other barrier to the satisfaction of the planning commission. 

c. Signs: Advertising signs shall be reviewed as part of the plans submitted for conditional use 
permit review. The planning commission may require the reduction of any height or size of 
sign suggested by the developer, i f  the planning commission finds such reduction to be in 
keeping with the intent of this section. 

d. Height Limitation: No structure may be allowed to exceed the elevation indicated in the 
current airport master plan of the city. 



e. Required Area And Width: Five (5) acre minimum development area with ten thousand 
( 10 .000) square feet minimum lot area within the development. one hundred fifty feet ( 150 ' )  
average width, unless otherwise permitted by the planning commiss ion .  

f. Yards: Yards shall be set as follows: 

( 1 )  Rear yard: Twenty foot (20') minimum setback unless the structure borders on an alley. 
in which event no setback is required. 

(2) Interior side yard: Ten foot (10 ') minimum setback. 

(3) Exterior side yard: Fifteen foot ( 15 ' )  minimum setback. 

( 4) Front yard: Twenty foot (20') minimum setback. 

g. Front And Exterior Side Yards: Required front yards and exterior side yards shall be limited 
exclusively for landscaping, driveways, internal circulation, walkways, parking, signs and 
other related streetscape features. Materials storage within such yards shall be prohibited. 

h. Landscaping: 

( 1 )  Provisions for landscaping shall be included in the development master plan to be 
submitted for conditional use permit approval. These shall include, but arc not limited 
to, screen planting, lawn areas, trees, shrubs, fences and walls. Drought tolerant, low 
maintenance species in conjunction with decorative "hard surface" materials, such as, 
but not limited to, volcanic rock, gravel or stone are encouraged and may be ut il ized to 
fulfill landscape surface requirements. 

(2) Minimum landscape area shall be provided equal to twenty five percent (25%) of the 
required front yard and exterior side yard equal to two and one-half (2 1  h) square feet per 
linear foot of street frontage. 

(3) It shall be the responsibility of the owner or developer to carry out this program and to 
provide such maintenance and care as is required to obtain the effect intended by the 
original plan. All landscaping shall be planned and maintained to the satisfaction of the 
planning commission . A screen wall as set forth in subsection 3-2-JJ of this chapter is 
required for al l  IBP uses within one hundred fifty feet ( 1 50 ' )  of an R district. 

I3 .  IC Industrial Commercial District: 

1 .  Intent: The purpose of the re zoning distr ict is to provide and preserve transitional areas 
characterized by surrounding commercial and industrial districts appropriate for a mixture or 
commercial uses and small scale industrial uses which are not associated with excessive levels 
of noise, dust, odor, vibration or smoke. 



2.  Principal Uses Permitted: 

All general commercial principal permitted uses listed in subsection 3-2-1013 of this chapter. 

/\II light industrial principal permitted uses listed in subsection 3 - 2 - 1 2A  of this chapter. 

3 .  Conditional Uses Permitted: J\ny of the following uses may be permitted upon approval or a 
conditional use permit in accordance with provisions of this subsection and as set forth in 
section 3 - 2 - 1 8  of this chapter: 

Gas service stations. 

Mixed uses. Structures containing one or more residential dwelling units in which a 
significant portion of the space within the structure includes one or more principal commercial 
permitted uses. 

Recreational vehicle parks. 

4. Development Standards: 

n. For industrinl uses, the nren und setbnck rcq-uiremcnts set forth in subs� 
12A2 of this chuptcr shull upply-. 

b. For co�es, all stfillililft:ls set fOFth in section 3 2 1 0  of this chupter-shnU 
up ply. 

e. For nn unspecified use at the time ot' deYelopment, the stricter of the two (2) stamlnrd-s 
set forth in subsection 3 2 12A2 or section 3 2 10 of this chapter shnll appl)'· 

a. Minimum Area: There is no required minimum lot area. 

b. Minimum Lot Width: There is no required minimum lot width. 

c. Minimum Front and Rear Yard Setback: Required minimum front and rear yard 
setback shall be five feet (5'). 

d. Minimum Side Yard Setback: Required minimum side vard setback shall be five feet 
{,'\ 
.l...!c....1.! 

5 .  Height Restrictions: In addition to all other applicable requirements, all structures within the 
IC industrial commercial zoning district must comply with the height and other requirements 
of the current city airport master plan, to the extent the plan applies to that location .. 



6. IC Industrial Commercial Zone Abutting Residential Zone: A conditional use permit pursuant 
to section 3 -2 - 1 8  of this chapter is required for every new development on a lot or parcel in 
the IC industrial commercial zoning district which abuts a residential zoning district. J\11 such 
developments are subject to the screen wall requirements set forth in subsection 3-2-3.J of this 
chapter. 

7. Outside Storage: Any outside storage of materials shall be suitably screened from 
surrounding area by fencing, walls, planting, or other comparable barrier. 

8 .  Landscaping: 

a. For every new construction in the IC industrial commercial zoning district which is outside of 
the central business district (CBD), minimum landscape area shall be provided in an amount 
equal to fifteen percent ( 15%) of the surface area of the developed portion of the property for 
lot sizes one acre or greater and ten percent (10%) of the surface area of the developed portion 
of the property for lot sizes smaller than one acre, to include property consisting of multiple 
parcels which form a single development. Additionally, the city may, at its discretion, require 
that landscaped areas be distributed throughout the development including yard areas 
between buildings, structures and the adjacent street right of way line. The landscaping may 
include, but is not limited to, screen planting, lawns, trees. shrubs, fences and walls. Drought 
tolerant, low maintenance species, in conjunction with decorative hard surface materials such 
as, but not limited to, volcanic rock, gravel or stone, are encouraged and may, where 
appropriate, be utilized to fulfill landscape surface requirements. 

b. It shall be the responsibility of the owner or developer to carry out the requirements of this 
section and to provide proper maintenance and care of the landscaping. (Ord. 805, 1 2 - 1 3 -  
20 16 )  

Section 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but 
only to the extent of such conflict 

Section 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
invalidity. unenforceability or provision shall not affect any remaining provisions of this 
ordinance. 

Section 4: Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this 
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage 
in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one 
publication. 

Section 5:  This Ordinance sha l l be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 4 .  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ th day of'- ,  2 0 1 8  by the following vote of the Elko City 
Council. 



AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED this --111 day of--, 2 0 1 8 .  

CITY OF ELKO 

BY: 
------------- 

CHRIS JOHNSON, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

SI IAN ELL OWEN, City Clerk 



Agenda Item# I .A.3. 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 
3-18, filed by Gary and Bernice Kimber, for a change in zoning from PQP (Public, 
Quasi-Public) to R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential), approximately 
.22 acres of property located generally north side of Chris Avenue, approximately 
160 feet east of Sierra Drive, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 1, 2018 

3.  Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5.  Background Information: The applicant purchased a parcel of land from the City of 
Elko in 1996 and another 5,376 sq. ft., a portion of Mountain View Park, was 
purchased from the City of Elko in December 2017. Both City of Elko parcels are 
zoned PQP, Public, Quasi-Public. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 
resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 3-18 

9. Findings: 
• The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component. 

• The proposed rezone is consistent with the Transportation component of the Master 
Plan. The proposed zone district and existing use will not create any significant 
cumulative issues on the existing transportation system. 

• The proposed rezone is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The 
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not 
present a hazard to City wells. 

• The proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of city code for lot area, lot 
width and depth and setback requirements. 

• The proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(R) Single Family and 
Multiple Family Residential. 

• The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the 
principal permitted use as a single family residence. 

Created on 12/15/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 

--- --------



Agenda Item# I .A.3.  

• The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

• Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, 
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or 
pose a danger to human health and safety. 

• The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

10 .  Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

1 1 .  Agenda Distribution: Gary and Bernice Kimber 

309 Chris A venue 
Elko, NV 89801 

High Desert Engineering 
640 Idaho Street 
Elko, NV 89801 

Created on 12/15/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: 5} 1  
**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title: jj e :loO e._ 3 - 1 1)  

Applicant(s): 6avJ t: };eJ:::n1ce }:}imbe,,x:: . 
Site Location: 7m Cloris ,AJe - APNs COl-l.a l O  -0:3 1  + ODJ -{RID-  093 

Current Zoning: Y°'v Date Received: LI /LJ/ t ((!)  Date Public Notice: 4 I I ]  

COMMENT: This is- :tz>t:e-lDn e /fPN U01- l o / 0 -0'o3 and a t<>f-hon of 

/sf.vtJ 001- 1  elO -031 fYoYYJ Thl? ±D 'R to houe or1e zone O�v 't0R 

evtliv� q::avrel s once COmbinecl. 
7 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Assistant City Manager: Date: 

{?-€! u, M P1-'t- � 
I 

City Manager: Date: 4bt.J/J <;J  

Initial 

Initial 

- - . - - ---- -----------

- -- --
-- · -- - -- - - ·- - -

- - - • - .. , _ _. - - - - - ~ - - ·-----------

Lf/Z 3//16 
a /J f.J fLt, "",, / as n12= e,s,e,yt7Id r, 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

MEMO DATE: 
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

April 11 ,  2018 
May 1, 2018 
REZONE 3-18 
Gary and Bernice Kimber 

A rezone from (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential and PQP - Public, 
Quasi-Public (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to facts, findings, and conditions. 

Page 1 of5 



REZONE 3 - 1 8  

Gary & Bernice Kimber 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

A portion of 001-610-03 1  & all of 001-610-083 

.0866 acres for lots combined as shown on Parcel 
Map application 2 - 1 8 ,  pending recordation. 

(R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential 
& PQP Public, Quasi-Public 

(RES MD) Residential Medium Density 

Developed with a single family dwelling on APN 
00 1 -06 1 -03 1 ,  APN 001-061-083 is vacant 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by: 

• North: (PQP) Public-Quasi, Public I Undeveloped 

• West: (R) Single and Multiple Family I Developed 

• East: (PQP) Public-Quasi, Public I Undeveloped 

• South: (PQP) Public-Quasi, Public I Undeveloped 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is developed. 
• The property fronts Chris A venue. 
• Access to the property is off Chris A venue. 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-S(E) - Single Family and Multiple Family Residential 

District 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-8 PQP - Public, Quasi Public District 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

BACKGROUND: 

1 .  The parcels are identified as APN 001-610-031  & 001-610-083 .  
2. The applicant owns both properties. 
3 .  The property is located approximately 125  feet northeast of the intersection of Chris 

A venue and Sierra Drive. 
4. With combined parcels as shown in Parcel Map application 2- 18 ,  the area is 

approximately .866 acres, 37,377 square feet. 
5. The parcel is irregular shaped with approximately 230 feet of Chris A venue frontage. 

Page 2 ofS 



REZONE 3 - 18  
Gary & Bernice Kimber 

6. The parcel is much larger than the residential zoned properties in the immediate vicinity. 
7. APN 001-610-083 was acquired by Gary and Bernice Kimber from the City of Elko on 

June 26, 1996. It was zoned PQP at the time of purchase. It has remained undeveloped. 
8. The City of Elko sold Gary and Bernice Kimber 5,376 sq. ft. ofland adjacent to their 

property which was previously par of Mountain View Park. It was recorded as a deed and 
boundary line adjustment File 735026 recorded 12/22/17. The 5,376 sq. ft. is referred to 
as a portion of APN 001 -6 10-03 1 .  The portion is zoned PQP and therefore the application 
is only for the 5,3 76 sq. ft. of APN 001-610-031 .  The remainder of the APN is already 
zoned R -  Single family and multiple family residential and not part of the zone 
amendment. 

MASTER PLAN: 

Land use 

1 .  The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows a portion of the area as Medium Density 
Residential. 

2. Objective 1 :  Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 

3 .  Residential - Medium Density - This designation describes areas where residential 
development densities are four (4) to eight (8) units per acre. These areas will be made up 
of single-family homes, but may include townhomes, row houses duplexes and other 
types of multi-family land uses. Uses ofland must comply with the Elko City Code, and 
must be compatible with, and not frustrate, the Master Plan's goals and policies. 

4. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning district is listed as a 
corresponding zoning district for Medium Density Residential. The proposed R district is 
consistent with current residential uses in the immediate vicinity. 

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use. 

Transportation 

1 .  The property fronts Chris A venue. 
2. Off street parking is provided on the property. 

The proposed zone district and existing use will not create any significant cumulative issues on 
the existing transportation system. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

I .  The property is not located within the redevelopment area. 

The Elko Redevelopment Plan was not considered in the evaluation of this zone amendment. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

1 .  The property is located within the 5 year capture zone for several City wells. 
2. Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present a 
hazard to City wells. 

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts: 

Page 3 of 5 



REZONE 3 - 1 8  

Gary & Bernice Kimber 

1 .  The minimum lot area required is 6,000 square feet. The parcel area meets criteria 
stipulated for the lot area in Section 3-2-5 of city code with approval of Parcel Map 2- 1 8 .  

2. The required lot dimensions for the proposed district in this area of the community would 
be 60 feet in width by I 00 feet in depth as stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code with 
approval of Parcel Map 2 - 1 8 .  

3 .  The property is developed and the structure does meet the setback requirements stipulated 
in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 for lot area, lot width and depth 
and setback requirements. 

SECTION 3-2-5 (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential: 

I .  As noted in the evaluation under Section 3-2-4 the property conforms with lot area, lot 
dimensions and setback requirements stipulated for the district. 

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5 

SECTION 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations: 

I .  T h e r e  is off street parking that meets the 2 off street required per Elko City Code Section 
3-2-17 .  

The property as developed as a single family residence is in conformance with Elko City Code 
Section 3-2-17 .  

SECTION 3-2-21 Amendments: 

I .  The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application. 

SECTION 3-8 Flood Plain Management: 

I .  This parcel is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

FINDINGS: 

I .  The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component. 

2. The proposed rezone is consistent with the Transportation component of the Master Plan. 
The proposed zone district and existing use will not create any significant cumulative 
issues on the existing transportation system. 

3 .  The proposed rezone is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The 
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present 
a hazard to City wells. 

4. The proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of city code for lot area, lot 
width and depth and setback requirements. 

5 .  The proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(R) Single Family and 
Multiple Family Residential. 

Page 4 of5 



REZONE 3- 18  

Gary & Bernice Kimber 

6. The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the principal 
permitted use as a single family residence. 

7. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

8. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, or 
public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a 
danger to human health and safety. 

9. The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 

Planning and Development Department: 

1 .  Parcel Map 2 - 1 8  merging the two parcels is recorded prior to the mayor signing the 
resolution for the rezone. 

Page 5 of 5 



CITY OF ELKO 

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 

ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
(775)777-7210 

(775)777-7219 FAX 

To: Elko City Planning Commission 
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager 
RE: Rezone 3-18 ,  Kimber, Chris Ave 
Date: April 1 1 ,  2018 

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the 
Planning Commission's review of Rezone Application 3-18.  

Project Information 

• The property is located generally 250 ft east of the intersection of Chris Ave and 
Sierra Drive 

• The rezone is for property is identified as portion of APN 001-610-031 and -083, 
and is proposed to be merged into a single parcel with application parcel map 2- 
18 .  

•  The parcel is currently developed. 

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Rez 3- 18  Kimber Chris Ave (2).docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper 



Page 2 of 3 

• The parcel is currently zoned R-Single Family and Mult iple Family Residential 
and POP-Public-Quasi-Public. 

• The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel being rezoned 
to R-Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential. 

• The property is bound by Single Family and Multiple Family Residential, to the 
north and west, and PQP to the south and east. 

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone 
• The City of Elko recently sold a portion of this land to the property owners along 

the entrance to the parking area for Mountain View Park. 

Master Plan 

Land Use: 

• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Residential 
Medium Denisty 

• Objective 1-Provide a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a 
variety of lifestyles, incomes and age groups. 

• Corresponding zoning districts for Residential Medium Density are: 
o R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential 
o R1-Single-Family Residential 
o R2-Two-Family Residential 
o PUD-Planned Unit Development 
o RO-Residential Office 
o RB-Residential Business 
o RMH-2-Mobile Home Subdivision 
o RMH-3-Manufactured Home Subdivision 

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• The property is located within the 5-year capture zone. 
• Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• Conformance with this section is required 
• Parcel 001-610-083, does not meet the area requirements for the R-zoning 

district, but is proposed to be merged with parcel 001-610-031 .  The portion of 
001-610-031 to be rezoned from PQP to R is that portion that was recently 
purchased from the City of Elko. 

• With the recordation of Parcel Map 2-18,  all lot areas will be met 



Page 3 of 3 

Section 3-2-5-(E)-(R) Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential 

• The property consists of a single family residence with small accessory 
structures, all appear to be in conformance with this section. 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• The property provides the required off street parking for a single family 
residence. 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-21-Amendments 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Findings 

1 . The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the goals and policies of the 
Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

2. Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential is a corresponding district of 
Residential Medium Density. 

3. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-8 and C, with the 
recordation of parcel map 2-18 .  

4. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5-E. 
5. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17. 
6 .  The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of Elko Wellhead Protection 

Plan. 
7. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural 

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

Recommendation 

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone 
changes be approved with the following condition. 

1 .  Parcel map 2-18  merging the two parcels be recorded prior to the mayor signing 
the resolution for the rezone. 

-----------------------



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us 

1 7 5 1  College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 ·  (775) 777-7160 

April 24, 2 0 1 8  

Gary & Bernice Kimber 
309 Chris Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

Re: Rezone No. 3 - 1 8  

Dear Applicant/ Agent: 

Fax (775) 7 7 7 - 7 1 1 9  

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted 
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also 
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information 
before the meeting. 

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance 
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting 
but wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission 
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received, or if you will not 
be able to attend this meeting, please call me at your earliest convenience at (775) 777-7160.  

Shelby Archu e a 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 

CC: High Desert Engineering, Attn: Bob Morely, 640 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801 

El~ 



0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-< 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
""CJ

 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

z
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

er,
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

er,
 

er,
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

0
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

I-'
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

w
 

+>,
 

N
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

N
 

-..J
 

w
 

N
 

+>,
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

N
 

+>,
 

w
 

N
 

+>,
 

N
 

w
 

-..J
 

-..J
 

N
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

w
 

N
 

I-'
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

+>,
 

0
 

w
 

0
 

-..J
 

\D
 

er,
 

v,
 

00
 

v,
 

N
 

v,
 

er,
 

+>,
 

w
 

I-'
 

-..J
 

I-'
 

er,
 

-..J
 

+>,
 

v,
 

+>,
 

N
 

0
 

v,
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

I-'
 

N
 

00
 

+>,
 

@
 � 

<
 

-f
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

vi
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

""CJ
 

z
 
s::
 
s::
 
s::
 

r
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

:J:
 

:J:
 

G)
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

0
 

n
 

n
 

n
 

OJ
 

OJ
 

OJ
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

""CJ
 

0
 

c
 

0
 

n
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

G)
 

c
 

c
 

0
 

m
 

)>
 

0
 

vi
 

r
 

r
 

)>
 

0
 

:J:
 

)>
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

Vl
 

z
 

G)
 

)>
 

r
 

z
 
s::
 

r
 

z
 

:J:
 

vi
 

z
 

0
 

r
 

m
 

z
 

:x,
 

""CJ
 

z
 
s::
 

""CJ
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 
s
 

""CJ
 

)>
 
s::
 

:x,
 

-f
 

0
 

:J:
 

;;,,;;
 

m
 

z
 

Vl
 

0
 

r
 

OJ
 

c
 

0
 

r
 

:x,
 

c
 

_o
 

_o
 

m
 

r
 

0
 

-f
 

<
 

0
 

c
 

)>
 

r
 

z 
-< 

m
 

;;,,;;
 

_o
 

,-f
 

""CJ
 

0
 

OJ
 

0
 

z 
_vi

 
!Tl

 
n

 
)>

 
;;,,;;

 
_vi

 
r

 
m

 
0

 
_m

 
)>

 

6
 

r
 

r
 

m
 

m
 

:x,
 

,m
 

:x,
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

r
 

s::
 

s::
 

m
 

:x,
 

m
 

:?J
 

r
 

c
 

<
 

n
 

n
 

:x,
 

<
 

z 
)>

 
-f

 
m

 
_vi

 
r

 
_m

 
-f

 
)>

 
G)

 
}>

 
r

 
r

 
z 

)>
 

_z
 

m
 

N
 

)>
 

z
 

m
 

Vl
 

:x,
 

m
 

N
 

Y1
 

....
 

<
 

)>
 

:x,
 

s::
 

_x
 

z 
� 

� 
:x,

 
)>

 
m

 
»
 

z 
'-

 
""CJ

 
'-

 

»
 

c
 

z 
;;,,;;

 
0

 
0

 
Vl

 
;;,,;;

 
r

 
:J:

 
)>

 
n

 
-< 

z 
0

 
m

 
n

 
:J:

 
-f

 
-f

 
s::
 

0
 

� 
m

 
'-

 
)>

 
:x,

 
vi

 
""CJ

 
)>

 
:x,

 
)>

 
m

 
n

 
r

 

0
 

<
 

:J:
 

G)
 

r
 

0
 

:x,
 

'-
 

G)
 

)>
 

<
 

:x,
 

)>
 

n
 

)>
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

:x,
 

z 
0

 
0

 
-f

 
:J:

 
I 

OJ
 

-< 
z 

'-
 

m
 

0
 

:J:
 

)>
 

G)
 

r
 

n
 

0
 

)>
 

m
 

Q
� 

0
 

n
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

s::
 

r
 

<
 

r
 

Vl
 

;;,,;;
 

vi
 

:x,
 

m
 

:x,
 

0
 

z
 

m
 

r
 

0
 

:x,
 

0
 

;;,,;;
 

vi
 

-f
 

:x,
 

r
 

)>
 

�
 r

 
m

 
z

 
z

 
:x,

 
-<

 m
 

n
 

vi
 

c
 

c
 

)>
 

0
 

-f
 

:x,
 

<
 

)>
 
s::

 
vi

 
c

 
0

 
)>

 
'-

 
""CJ

 
(20

 
r

 
:J:

 
-<

 
�

 
:x,

 
)>

 
(20

 
z

 
r

 
r

 
:x,

 
vi

 
""CJ

 
z

 
(20

 
vi

 
-<

 :::!
 

m
 

s::
 

(20
 

:J:
 

Vl
 

)>
 

r
 

r
 

-<
 

r
 

G)
 

:x,
 

-f
 

r
 

(20
 

:x,
 

'-
 

:x,
 

Vl
 

0
 

z
 

r
 

(20
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

0
 

(20
 
z

 
:x,

 
:J:

 
r

 
(20

 
;;,,;;

 
0

 
(20

 
r

 

c
 

Vl
 

(20
 

(20
 

(20
 

n
 

'-
 

(20
 

2.
 

)>
 

m
 

)>
 

)>
 

m
 

m
 

)>
 

r
 

;;,,;;
 

:J:
 

�
 c

 
vi

 
0

 
r

 
:x,

 
_vi

 
n

 
Vl

 
vi

 
(20

 
N

 
-f

 
-f

 
'-

 
0

 
:x,

 
)>

 
r

 
-< 

:x,
 

c
 

s::
 

)>
 

r
 

r
 

� 
0

 
n
 

vi
 

)>
 

m
 

)>
 

;;,,;;
 

r
 

n
 

-< 
c:
 

0
 

n
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

-< 
0

 
z 

z 
0

 
Vl

 
:x,

 
s::
 

)>
 

3
 

z 
vi

 
r

 
}>

 
m

 
r

 
'-

 
)>

 

�
 

)>
 

m
 

� 
:x,

 
r

 
r

 
z 

Vl
 

r
 

-f
 

-f
 

-f
 

)>
 

z
 

z 
:x,

 
z 

)>
 

m
 

)>
 

)>
 

z 
r

 
)>

 
m

 
z 

m
 

)>
 

r
 

m
 

s::
 

vi
 

m
 

z 
r

 
m

 
m

 
:x,

 
z 

)>
 

r
 

r
 

m
 

()
 

m
 

r
 

)>
 

s::
 

0
 

m
 

m
 

)>
 

z 
2

. 
m

 
0

 
r

 
z

 r
 

m
 

�
 -f

 
vi

 
)>

 
-f

 
)>

 
s::

 
0

 
:J:

 

-
 

n
 

c
 

)>
 

r
 

�
 

r
 

SL
 

m
 

...c
 

n
 

""CJ
 

-
 

s::
 

0
 

)>
 

�
 

s::
 

0
 

n
 

0
 

0
 

I-'
 

-
 

c
 

�
 

m
 

)>
 

:x,
 

_-< ;;,,;;
 

_:tJ
 

:x,
 

vi
 :::! z 

i 
RO

 

z m
 

r
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

""CJ
 

\D
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

\D
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

""CJ
 

�
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

0
 

I-'
 

N
 

w
 

0
 

v,
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

-..J
 

-..J
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

s::
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

N
 

I-'
 

+>,
 

I-'
 

w
 

I-'
 

\D
 

+>,
 

w
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

N
 

w
 

N
 

I-'
 

0
 

+>,
 

v,
 

v,
 

I-'
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

I-'
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

0
 

0
 

-..J
 

N
 

+>,
 

er,
 

OJ
 

0
 

v,
 

N
 

n
 

I-'
 

N
 

00
 

0
 

+>,
 

0
 

er,
 

0
 

00
 

v,
 

er,
 

v,
 

v,
 

er,
 

+>,
 

N
 

00
 

w
 

00
 

I-'
 

v,
 

\D
 

00
 

)>
 

(/\
 

� 
$

 
� 

0
 

s::
 

� 
� 

:J:
 

)>
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

<
 

<
 

� 
� 

<
 

� 
� 

:x,
 

n
 

n
 

<
 

(/\
 

� 
� 

� 
<
 

� 
� 

� 
� 

0
 

x
 

0
 

c9'
 

m
 

m
 

:x,
 

m
 

0
 

m
 

m
 

:x,
 

s::
 

0
 

0
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

m
 

m
 

:x,
 

m
 

m
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

:x,
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

:x,
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

N
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

G)
 

:x,
 

I-'
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

vi
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

G)
 

G)
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

G)
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

0
 

r
 

r
 

G)
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

G)
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

v,
 

:J:
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

m
 

m
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

m
 

r
 

r
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

)>
 

)>
 

z 
)>

 
\D

 
)>

 
)>

 
)>

 
)>

 
z 

0
 

0
 

z
 

z
 

)>
 

)>
 

z 
)>

 
)>

 
0

 
m

 
m

 
z 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

z 
)>

 
)>

 
)>

 
)>

 
-..J

 
� 

<
 

G)
 

G)
 

:J(
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

n
 

n
 

n
 

)>
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

n
 

m
 

m
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

� 
:x,

 
;;,,;;

 
:x,

 
:x,

 
-f

 
-t

 
-f

 
� 

� 
:x,

 
:x,

 
� 

:x,
 

:x,
 

-f
 

)>
 

)>
 

� 
:x,

 
:x,

 
:x,

 
:x,

 
� 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

:x,
 

. 

-
 

vi
 

<
 

<
 

3
 

)>
 

-f
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

m
 

m
 

)>
 

)>
 

-< 
-< 

-< 
-< 

-< 
-< 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

r
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

""CJ
 

0-
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

)>
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

s::
 

�
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

vi
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

;;,,;;
 

�
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

<
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

G)
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

n
 

-t
 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
m

 
z 

z 
z 

:x,
 

z 
z 

z 
z
 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z 
z 

z
 

z 
(/\

 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

G)
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

0
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

<
 

-f
 

)>
 

<
 

vi
 

m
 

z 
n

 

<
 

)>
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\D
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

""CJ
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

v,
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

r::::!
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

I-'
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

-..J
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

""CJ
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

w
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

v,
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

w
 

\D
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

00
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

I 
I 

J,.
 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

......
 

-..J
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

-..J
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

v,
 

v,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

00
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\D
 

\D
 

0
 

\D
 

00
 

00
 

N
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\D
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\D
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\D
 

00
 

+>,
 

00
 

-..J
 

00
 

\D
 

00
 

w
 

......
 

er,
 

er,
 

+>,
 

+>,
 

00
 

00
 

+>,
 

00
 

\D
 

er,
 

+>,
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\D
 

+>,
 

\D
 

\D
 

\D
 

00
 

- l 

I, 

J 

I I I 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public 
hearing on Tuesday, May 1 ,  20 18  beginning at 5 :30 P.M. P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on 
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative. 

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are: 

• Rezone 3 - 18 ,  filed by Gary and Bernice Kimber for a change in zoning from PQP 
(Public, Quasi Public) to R (Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential), 
approximately 0.22 acres of property, specifically APN 001-610-083 and a portion of 
APN 001-610-031 ,  located generally on the north side of Chris A venue approximately 
160 feet east of Sierra Drive, more particularly described as: 

Parcel 1 :  A parcel of land located in Section 9, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & M., City of 
Elko, Nevada, being a portion of Parcel No. 1 ,  as shown on the Parcel Map for the City of 
Elko, on file in the Office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as File No. 
394240, more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the most Southerly Corner of said Parcel No. 1 ,  File No. 394240, thence 
N41 °50' 55" W, 24.60 feet along the boundary line of said Parcel No. 1 ,  File No. 394240 
to Corner No. 1 ,  the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence continuing N 41  °50'55" W, 46.65 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 
1 ,  File No. 394240 to Corner No. 2; 
Thence N 16° 19 '25"  W, 46.65 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 1 ,  File No. 
394240 to Corner No. 3 ;  
Thence N 19°25'44" W, 44 . 19 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 1 ,  File No. 
394240 to Corner No. 4; 
Thence N 5 1  °30'04" W, 82 . 10  feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 1 ,  File No. 
394240 to Corner No. 5 ;  
Thence N 89°41 '29" E, 77.72 feet to Corner No. 6; 
Thence S 14°55 '59" E, 202.33 feet to Corner No. 1 ,  the point of beginning, containing 
5676 square feet, more or less. 
Parcel 1 described is the same parcel as described in the Deed and Boundary Line 
Adjustment from the City of Elko to Gary M. Kimber and Bernice K. Kimber recorded in 
the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada as Document No. 735026. 

Parcel 2: A parcel of land located in Section 9, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & M., City of 
Elko, Nevada, being all of Parcel No. 2, as shown on the Parcel map for the City of Elko, 
on File in the Office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as File No. 394240, 
containing 4 1 0 1  square feet, more or less. Reference is hereby made to Exhibit B, Map of 
Zone Change for Gary M. Kimber and Bernice K. Kimber attached hereto and made a 
part hereof. 

The intent of the zone change is to zone the Kimber's entire property one zone. 



Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City 
Planning Department at (77 5) 777- 7160 .  

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



1751 College Avenue* Elko* Nevada* 89801 

(775) 777-7160 phone* (775) 777-7219 fakECEIVED 

APR O 4 2018 

APPLICANT(s):IGary M. Kimber & Bernice K. Kimber 
MAILING ADDRESS:1309 Chris Avenue, Elko.Nevada 89801 
PHONE NO (Home�(775) 738-2298 I (Business� I  

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):l�s..;.am_e_as_A ... o..._ol_ica_n_t ____. 
(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.) 

MAILING ADDRESS:! I 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED {Attach if necessarv\: 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL N0.:1001-610-031 & 001-610-0831 Addressl309 Chris Avenue 
Lo�s),Bloc�s),&Subd_iv_i�s�io_n�I _ 
Or Parcel(s) & File No. !Parcel No. 2, File No. 394240 & Adjusted Parcel No. 1 .  File No. 735027 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Aoolication Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of 
every month). 

Fee: A $500.00 non-refundable filing fee. 

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided. 

Plot Plan : A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition 
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks, 
distances between buildings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent 
information must be provided. 

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change 
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area 
to be changed from "x" to "x"; (LI to R, for example). 

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible, 
reproducible plans 8 %" x 1 1 "  in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36" plans, 10  sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and 
documentation to support this Rezone Application. 

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 1 

I I ---------- -----------------i! 

________________ ! 
I 



1 .  Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: !POP-Public, Quasi Public 

2. Identify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested: ! .... R_-_R_e_s_id_e_n_ti_al __, 

3. Exolain in detail the tvoe and nature of the use anticioated on the orooertv: 
The lands being requested for rezoning from POP to Residential were acquired from the City of Elko. 

They are adjacent to lands owned by the applicant that are currently zoned Residential. We are in the process of 

combining the adjacent separate parcels owned by the applicant into one legal parcel and it is our desire to have 

the resulting parcel zoned all the same zoning being Residential. This resulting parcel will be utilized 

for a single family residence and associated residential uses. 

4. Explain how the ro osed zonin classification relates with other zonin classifications in the 
area: This parcel is adjacent to existing residential uses within Mountain View Estates Subdivision 

5. ldenti 
None 

{Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5) 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 2 



By My Signature below: 
·-[Zl I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of 

inspection of said property as part of this application process. 

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

Mailing Address j640 I d a h o  Street j 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

ill I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in 
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 

<-A I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
scheduled. 

� I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the 
best of my ability. 

Applicant/AgentlRobert E.  Morley, PLS l  
(Please print or type) 

j E l k o ,  Nevada 8 9 8 0 1  I  
Code 

Phone Number: 738-4053 

Email address: remorley@frontiernet.net 

SIGNATURE: ___.._Q-=..,··-�:b,vvvj-'--'--'--"'--'--"-�-,--.--'-·-t_A_.t._r-,,_�--�·--
1 

__,_rOi_!-]-L.-2-'-;-v_'�---_I _ 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
File No.: 3:1 B Date Filed: 4 / 4  l l 'o  Fee Paid:Jt 50D 0£-ff 1 4  06Y 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3 

Citv State, Zio 

I 



RECEIVED 

APR O 4 20 18 

EXHIBIT A 
ZONING CHANGE 

PUBLIC QUASI PUBLIC TO RESIDENTIAL FOR 
GARY M. KIMBER AND BERNICE K. KIMBER 

April 4, 2018 
PARCELi 

A parcel of land located in Section 9, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & M., City of Elko, 

Nevada, being a portion of Parcel No. 1, as shown on the Parcel Map for the City of Elko, 

on file in the Office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as File No. 394240, more 

particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the most Southerly Corner of said Parcel No. 1, File No. 394240, 

thence N 41 ° 50' 55" W, 24.60 feet along the boundary line of said Parcel No. 1, File No. 

394240 to Corner No. 1, the True Point of Beginning; 

Thence continuing N 41 ° 50' 55" W, 46.65 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel 

No. 1, File No. 394240 to Corner No. 2; 

Thence N 16° 19' 25" W, 70.39 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 1, File 

No. 394240 to Corner No. 3; 

Thence N 19° 25' 44" W, 44.19 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 1, File 

No. 394240 to Corner No. 4; 

Thence N 51° 30' 04" W, 82.10 feet along the said boundary line of Parcel No. 1, File 

No. 394240 to Corner No. 5; 

Thence N 89° 41' 29" E, 77.72 feet to Corner No. 6; 

Thence S 14° 55' 59" E, 202.33 feet to Corner No. 1, the point of beginning, 

containing 5676 square feet, more or less. 

Parcel 1 described above is the same parcel as described in the Deed and Boundary 

Line Adjustment from the City of Elko to Gary M. Kimber and Bernice K. Kimber 

recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada as Document No. 

735026 

Continued on Page 2 

Prepared by Robert E. Morley, PLS 
640 Idaho Street 

Page 1 High Desert Engineering 
Elko, NV 89801 



RECEIVED 

APR O 4 2018 

Zone Change 
Public Quasi Public to Residential for 
Gary M. Kimber and Bernice K. Kimber 
Continued from Page 1 

PARCEL2 

A parcel of land located in Section 9, T.34 N., R.55 E., M.D.B. & M., City of Elko, Nevada, 

being all of Parcel No. 2, as shown on the Parcel Map for the City of Elko, on file in the 

Office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as File No. 394240, containing 4101 

square feet, more or less. 

Reference is hereby made to Exhibit B, Map of Zone Change for Gary M. Kimber and 

Bernice K. Kimber attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Prepared by Robert E. Morley, PLS 
640 Idaho Street Page2 

High Desert Engineering 

Elko, NV 89801 



CITY OF ELKO 
PARCEL NO. 1 

ALE NO. 394240 
APN 001-610-075 

KIMBER 
PARCEL 1 

PARCEL MAP 
ALE NO. 273652 

APN 001-610-031 

40 0 40 

L...r----..- I 
SCALE: 1 "-40' 

RECEIVED 

APR O 4 2018 

1 · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .  ·  1  
-  -  -  .  

.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  .  -  -  .  

.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  .  -  .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  

-  -  -  -  .  

.  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  -  -  -  -  .  

AREA TO BE CHANGED FROM 
POP-PUBLIC, QUASI PUBLIC ZONING 

TO R-RESIDEN77AL ZONING 

EXHIBIT B 

MAP OF ZONE CHANGE 

FOR 

GARY M. KIMBER 

AND BERNICE K. KIMBER 

CITY OF ELKO 
TO KIMBER 
5,676 S.F. 

DOCUMENT NO. 735026 & 

BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT 
RECORD OF SURVEY 

ALE NO. 735027 

.1 = 6"29'35• 
R = 360.00 ��<v 
L = 40.80 /�� 

� 

�C;, 
vv:, 

I -- - -- -

__ - I 

77.72' 



Agenda Item #I.A.4 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 
4-18, filed by Lonny Reed of Legend Engineering, on behalf of JoyGlobal Surface 
Mining Inc. and Ed and Sharon Netherton, for a change in zoning from AG 
General Agriculture) to LI (Light Industrial), approximately 30.857 acres of 
property located generally on the north and south side of P & H Drive, FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 1, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The applicant has requested parcels APN 006-09N-004, 007, 
& 009 be annexed into the City of Elko. With that process, the parcels default to 
AG - General Agriculture zoning district upon annexation. They are requesting a 
zone consistent with the existing use. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 
resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 4-18 

9. Findings: 
• The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use 

Component. 

• The proposed rezone is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation 
Component and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure. 

• The properties are not located in the Redevelopment Area. 

• The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection 
Plan. 

• The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B)(C) & (D). 

• The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-12(A) LI, GI 
Industrial Districts. 

• Existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-17 or will be considered 
a legal non-conforming use upon annexation and zoning of the properties. 

Created on 4/17/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item #I.A.4 

• The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

• The proposed zone district provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial 
uses. 

• Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural 
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

1 .  Agenda Distribution: Ed and Sharon Netherton 
1072 Kahaapo Loop 
Kihei, HI 96753 
Email: ednetherton@gmail.com 

JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. 
4450 P&H Drive 
Elko, NV 89801 
Robert.richens@mining.komatsu 

Legend Engineering 

Lonny Reed 
52 West 100 North 
Heber City, UT 84032 
lonny@legendenginnering.com 

Created on 4/17/2018 

. 1  

Planning Commission Action Sheet 

• L • • �- � - • � •• ' ""' • • > S 

------



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: J/ J  
I  **Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title: ]�wne.. Y - 1 £$  

Applicant(s ): �� (:!J IQro\ 8urfu mi VJ j  '5 :fuc. / &1 :± 3'ny on Afe-fued7Jn 
Site Location: N 5 ct[}3f:tf)x,v� � AfNs CY'1o-CtitJ - C()L,f 

I 
OQ], ± DOC} 

Current Zoning: ffi (1,fOO�ate Received: LI Jg Date Public Notice: LI /,  l-  

COMMENT: Jhis t'.) :±D rel.One Al)AJ,s ODLP - o?trJ - 004 oo 1 ± ooq 

JvoYO AC">! ::h> L \ upoo AnnPxa±zon ' 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Assistant City Manager: Date: 4 /z_ 5 / /'O 
. ,, r t 

17 
t' r. c.: ·  J1-1 �vtc/ A , ;2� 't'/..A" 

Initial 
City Manager: Date: WJ"IU g 

�E? C.OW1.�"'---r5/C-otA.C&,rVl>. 

Initial 

··--
- ----

V 

S/.Jtu 

- 1 --



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
ADDITIONAL APPLICATION: 

April 23, 2018 
May 1, 2018 
REZONE 4-18 
Legend Engineering on behalf of JoyGlobal 
Surface Mining Inc. & Ed and Sharon Netherton 
Zone Designation for Proposed Annexation 
Annexation Application 1-18 

A zone designation upon annexation of property to Light Industrial (LI). 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report. 

Page I of6 



REZONE 4- 18 
JoyGlobal & Netherton 
APN: 006-09N-004, 007, 009 & 

001-679-005 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

006-09N-004, 007, 009 & 001-679-005; will be 
issued a new APN upon finalization of the 
annexation for the three parcels located in Elko 
County. 

3 1 . 1 6  acres 

3 parcels currently in Elko County, 1 parcel 
currently located within the City of Elko; (AG) 
General Agriculture zoning with final approval of 
the annexation application. Petition of the 
annexation was accepted by City Council on 3-27- 
1 8 .  

(IND-BS PARK) Industrial Business Park 

Partially developed land consistent with Light 
Industrial Principal Permitted Use 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

• North: Light Industrial (LI) I Developed 

• West: General Agriculture (AG) I Undeveloped 

• South: General Agriculture (AG) I Undeveloped 

• East: General Agriculture (AG) I Undeveloped 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The area is currently undeveloped on parcels 006-09N-007, 006-09N-009 & 001-679-005 
and developed on parcel 006-09N-004 with a light industrial land use. 

• The area is generally flat. 
• The area is accessed from West Idaho Street and P & H Drive. 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
o City of Elko Airport Master Plan 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-12 LI, GI Industrial Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments 

Page 2 of6 



REZONE 4- 18  

JoyGlobal & Netherton 
APN: 006-09N-004, 007, 009 & 

001-679-005 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

BACKGROUND: 

1 .  The petition for annexation has been filed by Legend Engineering on behalf of the 
property owners. The petition for annexation was accepted by City Council on March 27, 
2018 .  The petition was reviewed by the Planning Commission on April 3 ,  2018 .  The 
Planning Commission has recommended a conditional approval for annexation of the 
properties to the City Council. One of the conditions was a zone classification of the 
properties to a zone designation in conformance with the Master Plan. 

2. The annexation Ordinance 830 is scheduled for first reading on April 24, 20 18 .  
3 .  In accordance with the annexation petition, there are two separate property owners 

requesting a rezone of the properties. 
4. The properties are owned by Harnischfeger, the parent company to Joy Global Surface 

Mining, (APN 006-09N-004) and Ed and Sharon Netherton (APN 006-09N-007, -009 
and 001-679-005). 

5 .  The rezone includes all of APN 006-09N-004 (JoyGlobal), 007 & 009 and 001-679-005 
(Netherton). The properties are located west of the 298 interchange on 1-80 at the 
intersection of P & H Drive and West Idaho Street. 

6. The area fronts West Idaho Street and P & H Drive. 
7. The applicant has requested annexation of APN 006-09N-004, 007 & 009. City utilities 

have not been extended to the properties. 
8. The developed property is served by a water well intended to serve several properties in 

the immediate vicinity. Currently Joy Global and Coach USA facilities are utilizing the 
well for water service. The City of Elko provided water rights for development of the 
well under an agreement that requires relinquishment of the water rights to the City upon 
annexation of the properties. The agreement is between Joy Global and the City. 

9. In 2016, The City of Elko extended the water line down Cattle Drive to a location near 
the properties. 

10 .  Sewer has not been extended to the area. Existing facilities in the area utilize septic for 
sanitary sewer. 

1 1 .  Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area. 
1 2 .  Elko County was notified of the proposed zone designation on April 12 ,  2018 .  

MASTER PLAN: 

Land use: 

1 .  Land Use is shown as Industrial Business Park. 
2. Supporting zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business Park, Light 

Industrial and Industrial Commercial. 
3 .  The petitioner is not proposing any amendments to the Land Use Component of the 

Master Plan as a result of the annexation petition as provided for under Section 3-2-4(D) 
of City code. 

4. The existing land use of one of the properties is consistent with the designated land use 
and the remaining properties are vacant. 

5. Zone classification of the properties are required to conform to the Master Plan. 

Page 3 of6 



REZONE 4-18 

JoyGlobal & Netherton 
APN: 006-09N-004, 007, 009 & 

001-6 79-005 

6. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where 
appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community's image. 

7. Objective 8 :  Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide 
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component. 

Transportation: 

1 .  The area will be accessed from West Idaho Street. 
2. West Idaho Street is classified as a Minor Collector. 
3 .  The area is near the Exit 298 and I-80 interchange. 

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and is 
consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure. 

AIRPORT MASTER PLAN 

I .  The area is partially located within the defined runway approach airspace area delineated 
in the airport master plan. 

2. Development within the area will restricted in accordance 14  CFR Part 77.9. 
3 .  The restrictions stipulated in the federal code are not expected to have a significant, if 

any, impact on property development under the allowable land use stipulated in city 
which are in conformance with the City Master Plan. 

The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City's Airport Master Plan. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

I .  The property is not located within the redevelopment area. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

1 .  A  proposed well (test hole/monitoring well currently exists) approximately 240 feet from 
the property is expected to be installed as development occurs in the area. At that time, it 
could be expected that this property will be located within the 2 year capture zones. The 
City of Elko may complete the installation of a sewer main and lift station prior to the 
installation of the proposed well to eliminate a number of septic systems and leach fields 
in the area. 

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts: 

I .  The Planning Commission can recommend to the City Council a zone classification for 
annexed territory other the default Agriculture District. The applicant has filed this 
application in conformance with the code requesting the Light Industrial Zoning District. 
The proposed district is in conformance with the Master Plan. 

2. The property meets the area requirements for the proposed zone district. 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4. 

Page 4 of6 



REZONE 4- 18  
JoyGlobal & Netherton 
APN: 006-09N-004, 007, 009 & 

001-6 79-005 

SECTION 3-2-12(A) - Light Industrial District-LI: 

I .  The existing development meets the requirements under 3 - 2 - 1 2  for muumum area, 
minimum lot width, front and rear yard setbacks, side yard setback and maximum 
building height. 

2.  The existing development is consistent with the listed principal uses permitted. 
3 .  The existing development does not abut a residential zoning district therefore; a 

conditional use permit is not required. 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3 - 2 - 1 2 .  

SECTION 3-2-17: 

1 .  Existing development meets the requirements under 3 - 2 - 1 7  or will be considered a legal 
non-conforming use upon annexation and zoning of the properties. 

SECTION 3-2-21: 

1 .  The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application. 

SECTION 3-8: 

1 .  This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

FINDINGS: 

1 .  The proposed rezone is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component 
including the Airport Master Plan. 

2. The proposed rezone is compatible with the Master Plan Transportation Component and 
is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure. 

3 .  The properties are not located in the Redevelopment Area. 

4. The proposed zone district is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. 

5.  The proposed zone district is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4(B)(C) & (0). 

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Section 3-2-12(A) LI, GI Industrial 
Districts. 

7. Existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-17 or will be considered a legal 
non-conforming use upon annexation and zoning of the properties. 

8.  The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

9. The proposed zone district provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial uses. 

Page 5 of6 

-------



REZONE 4- 18 

JoyGlobal & Netherton 
APN: 006-09N-004, 007, 009 & 

001-679-005 

10 .  Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems, 
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a 
danger to human health and safety. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 

Planning Department: 

1 .  Annexation 1 - 1 8  is of record. 

Page 6 of6 



\ 

CITY OF ELKO 
Plann ing Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us 

1751Col legeAvenue ·  Elko,Nevada89801  ·  (775)777-7 160  ·  F a x ( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 1 9  

April 24, 2 0 1 8  

Legend Engineering 
Attn: Lonny Reed 
52 W 100 N 
Heber, UT 84032 

Re: Rezone No. 4 - 1 8  

Dear Applicant/ Agent: 

Enclosed is a copy of the agenda for an upcoming Planning Commission meeting. Highlighted 
on the agenda is an item or items that you have requested to be acted on at the meeting. Also 
enclosed is pertinent information pertaining to your request. Please review this information 
before the meeting. 

The Planning Commission requests that you, or a duly appointed representative, be in attendance 
at this meeting to address the Planning Commission. If you will not be able to attend the meeting 
but wish to have a representative present, please submit a letter to the Planning Commission 
authorizing this person to represent you at the meeting. 

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, the information you received, or if you will not 
be able to attend this meeting, please call me at your earliest convenience at (77 5) 777- 7 1 6 0 .  

Sincerely, 

� �cJmJfliiY 
Shelby Archuletaj 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 

CC: JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc., 4450 P&H Drive, Elko, NV 89801  
Email: Robe1i.richens@mining.komatsu 

Ed & Sharon Netherton, 1072 Kahaapo Loop, Kehei, HI 96753 
Email: ednetherton@gmail.com 

' ; 



-0
 

$
 

)>
 

c::,
 

c::,
 

.....
 

c:o
 

c:o
 

c:o
 

c:o
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

:;,:,
 

:;,:,
 

:;,:,
 

:;,:,
 

-0
 

-0
 

-0
 

-0
 

-0
 

-0
 

0
0

0
0

0
$

 
c:o

 ce
 c:o

 c:o
 c:o

 )>
 

0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 o

 
x

 x
 x

 x
 x

 c::,
 

I-'
 I-'

 I-'
 I-'

 I-'
 N

 
�

 �
 �

 �
 �

 
-..J

 -..J
 -..J

 -..J
 -..J

 
00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 

0
 0

 0
 0

 
0

 0
 0

 0
 

.....
.....

.....
.....

 
CJ'\

 CJ'\
 CJ'\

 0)
 

-..J
 -..J

 -..J
 -..J

 
\.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 

0
 0

 0
 0

 
0

 0
 0

 0
 

OO
O"I

N
\.O

 

m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 -o

 
�

�
�

�
�

$
 

O
O

O
O

O
Q

 
z

z
z

z
z

�
 

<
 <

 <
 <

 <
 --,

 

0
 -<

 
0

 -0
 

C)')
 z

 

�
 0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
CJ'\

 

"t
 -0

 
)>

 )>
 

:;,:,
 z

 
,

 r
 r

 ,
 ,

 )>
 

:;,:,
 :;,:,

 :;,:,
 :;,:,

 :;,:,
 $

 
)>

 )>
 )>

 )>
 )>

 m
 

z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 

n
 n

 n
 n

 n
 

I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 

m
m

 m
m

 rn
 

-i
 -i

 -i
 -i

 -i
 

)>
 )>

 )>
 )>

 )>
 

Q
 

:;,:,
 

rn
 

G)
 

0
 

z
 

)>
 

'
 

'
 

)>
 

z
 

c::,
 

$
 

z
 

m
 

V'l
 

z
 

n
 

)>
 

V'l
 

)>
 

�
 

'
 

)>
 

;;,:;
 

m
 

n
 

�
 

c
 

-i
 

0
 

0
 

C)')
 

0
 

\.0
 

G)
 

0
 

w
 

-..J
 

�
 

)>
 

:;,:,
 

:;,:,
 

n
 

:;,,:
 

G)
 

0
 

r
 

c::,
 

V'l
 

-i
 

:;,:,
 

:;,,:
 

rn
 

�
 

CJ'\
 

0
 

�
 

u,
 

0
 

z
 

V'l
 

-i
 

rn
 

u,
 

0
 

0
 

0
 0

 
CJ'\

 0
 

.::,
 CJ'\

 
0

 0
 

0
 \.0

 
.....

 G)
 

O
 O

 
O

 O
 

1
w

 
c::,

 1£
 

m
 
O

 
'

 G)
 

$
 c

 
O

 
m

 
:;,:,

 -
 

,m
 

n
 

'-
 

s;:
 

)>
 

:;,:,
 

$
 

m
 

m
 

Z
 

vi
 

n
 

$
;

 

�
�

 
:::::

 '
 

)>
 

z
 

-<
 

n
 

-
 

0
 

n
 

0
 

)>
 

n
 

I
 

c
 

V'l
 

)>
 

z
 

n
 

0
 0

 0
 

0
 0

 0
 

.....
 CJ'\

 C)')
 

O"I
 O

 O
 

-..J
 \.0

 \.0
 

\.0
 0

 G)
 

0
 0

 O
 

O
 U"I

 N
 

-..J
 ;

�
 

m
 
m

 
m

 

'
'

'
 

A
 A

:;,,:
 

p
 _o
 

_o
 

V'l
 

-i
 

rn
 

w 0
 

0
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

:;,:,
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

m
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

r
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

,
 

:;,,:
:;,,:

:;,o:
z

;;<;
:;,o:

;;,:;
:;,o:

;;,:;
;;,:;

:;,o:
:;,o:

;;,:;
:;,o:

:;,o:
;;,:;

 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

V'l
 

m
 m

 

'
'

 
:;,,:

 :;,,:
 

0
0

 

-0
 -0

 .....
 

0
 0

 �
 

c:o
 c:o

 .::,
 

0
 0

 <
 

x
x

<
 

0
 

G)
 

o
 

rn
 

z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 

<
<

c
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
<

<
 

-i
 

rn
 rn

 
r

 r
 

;;<;
 ;;<;

 
0

 0
 

z
 z

 
<

 <
 

00
 

0
 0

 
CJ'\

 CJ'\
 

.::,
 .::,

 

0
 0

 
0

 0
 

I-'
 N

 
0

 0
 

0
 0

 
CJ'\

 .....
 

�
 

.....
 

V'l
 :;,:,

 
)>

 0
 

s;:
 $

 
N

 m
 

)>
 :;,:,

 

?J
P

 
vi

 n
 

)>
 0

 
$

 z
 

c
 V'l

 
m

 C
 

r
 m

 

!20
 5

 
-<

 
rn

 
V'l

 
rn

 

z
 

s
 

00
 00

 \.0
 00

 00
 U"I

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 
\.0

 \.0
 u,

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 .::,

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 

00
 00

 0
 -..J

 -..J
 \.0

 00
 00

 �
 00

 00
 00

 U"I
 00

 00
 00

 
0

 0
 W

 O
 O

 W
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 I-'

 0
 0

 0
 

�
 �

 9
 �

 �
 Y1

 'f
 lf

 �
 'f

 lf
 'f

 �
 �

 lf
 �

 
00

 -1:>
 CJ'\

 \.0
 ID

 \.0
 I-'

 I-'
 W

 O
 O

 O
 W

 -..J
 N

 W
 

-..J
 \.0

 00
 W

 W
 C)')

 �
 �

 N
 U"I

 U"I
 U"I

 N
 \.0

 W
 U"I

 
�

�
W

�
�

\.0
-..J

-..J
U"I

-..J
-..J

-..J
U"I

O
�

I-"
 

U"I
 U"I

 �
 00

 00
 �

 00
 00

 U"I
 O

 O
 O

 00
 \.0

 -..J
 U"I

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 

\.0
 \.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 \.0

 \.0
 

00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

.....
.....

.....
.....

.....
.....

.....
.....

 w
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

\.0
 -..J

 .....
 

�
 CJ'\

 -..J
 

.....
 w

 w
 

O
 N

 I-'
 

00
 

�
 

.....
 

0
 

.....
 

I
 

.....
 

N
 

�
 

0
 

001679010 ELKO INC 

00609G009'\.ELKO, CITY OF 

00609G008,\ELKO, CITY OF 

00609G0057':fLKO, CITY OF 

CITY OF 

CITY OF 

CITY OF 

005510009~ELKO, COUNTY OF 

00609G00~ESM 2 LLC 

00609G00.29l.ESM 2 LLC 

:1_ 'P·C 

001679011~OLDEN GATE PETROLEUM OF NEVADA 

005510007-,tHEGUY RANCHES ING 

005510002M-!EGUY RANCHES INC :{?,C. 
00609002~HEGUY RANCHES IN 

00609G02~PL INVESTMENTS LLC 

ATTN ; 

DEPT 

COS SUTHERLAND, 

JAMES ETAL 

001679012~MILLER, BRUCE & SIDNIE ET A3- Undtv i~, L~tll'h J./0?.C. 
001679004 MILLER, BRUCE & SIDNIE TR 

001679005 NETHERTON, ED & SHARON 

00609G039'kPETE'S TRAILER PARK LLC} 1-n.c_ 
00609G038,li>ETE'S TRAILER PARK LLC r" 

00609N008 PINNACLE INVESTMENTS PART ET AL 

PO BOX 1731 

403 W BULLION RD UNIT 14 

4105 W IDAHO ST 

1755 COLLEGE AVE 

1755 COLLEGE AVE 

1755 COLLEGE AVE 

1755 COLLEGE AVE 

1755 COLLEGE AVE 

1755 COLLEGE AVE 

540 COURT ST 

PO BOX 2347 

3250 SUNDANCE DR 

16580 WEDGE PKWY 

PO BOX 570 

PO BOX 570 

PO BOX 570 

2900 

1478 

1478 

34 CAMP CREEK RD TROY MT 

6366 RIO VISTA LN CARSON CITY NV 

6366 RIO VISTA LN CARSON CITY NV 

20 S SANTA CRUZ AVE STE 320 LOS GATOS CA 

2362 WILDWOOD WAY 

698 LAST CHANCE RD UNIT 

PZIP 

89803-1478 

89803-1478 

89803-1478 

89803-1478 

89803-1478 



-
 

0
 

0
 

u,
 

u,
 

.....
 

0
 

I..O
 

0
 

0
 

c
 

Vl
 

)>
 

vi
 

n
 

m
 

-
 

::,:;,
 

0
 

<
 

n
 

�
 

m
 

�
 

V)
 

I 

)>
 

Vl
 

"'C
 

c
 

-0
 

"'C
 

0
 

::,:;,
 

-i
 

w
 

I..O
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

0
 

)>
 

I
 

0
 

Vl
 

-i
 

m
 

,
 

;;,,:::
 

0
 

z
 

<
 

00
 

I..O
 

00
 

0
 

.....
 

J:,.
 

en
 

I..O
 

N
 

0
 

0
 

o
 

en
 

.....
 

�
 

en
 

o
 

-...J
O

 
I..O

 N
 

0
 0

 
.....

 0
 

�
�

 
Vl

 
Vl

 

:§:
 ,-

 
<

 
�

 »
 

"'C
 

Vl
 

)>
 0

 
n

:,.:,
 

"Tl
 O

 
n

 

I
 

0
 

r-
 

0
 

z
 

G)
 

Vl
 

z
 

n
 

.....
 I..O

 
N

W
 

en
 u,

 
w

 ,
 

�
 -<

 
vi

 O
 

N
Z

 

CJ')
 )>

 
u,

 <
 

:§:
 m

 
Vl

 
-0

 
n

 

I..O
 

o
m

 
::,:;,

 ,
 

)>
 ;;,,:::

 
"'C

 O
 

m
 Z

 
::,:;,

 <
 

c
 

-i
 

00
 00

 
�

 I..O
 

0
 00

 
N

O
 

0
 .....

 

�
 .i::.

 
I..O

 I..O
 

W
O

 
O

N
 

I I I 

® 

I I I I 

* :, l) i~evem --Prcpertt.J owY1evs .fv()m 

~\tte Ot'i~i na.L ioo ft radivs tn 
Oektei \Jt '3C~vctls. 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public 
hearing on Tuesday, May 1 ,  2018  beginning at 5 :30 P.M. P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 175 1  
College A venue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on 
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative. 

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are: 

• Rezone No. 4 - 18 ,  filed by Lonny Reed of Legend Engineering, on behalf of JoyGlobal 
Surface Mining, Inc. and Ed and Sharon Netherton, for a change in zoning from AG 
(General Agriculture) to LI (Light Industrial), approximately 3 1 . 1 6  acres of property, 
specifically APNs 006-09N-004, 006-09N-007, 006-09N-009 & 001-679-005, located 
generally on the north and south side of P&H Drive, more particularly described as: 

Beginning at the found northwest corner of Section 30, Township 34 North, Range 55 
East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, basis of bearings being south 0 1  °02'00" west 
measured between said northwest corner and the west quarter corner of said Section; 
And running thence North 89°58' 16" East 446.33 feet; 
Thence South 00°01 '36" East 255.00 feet; 
Thence North 89°58'22" East 482.63 feet; 
Thence South 00°01 '38" East 53.00 feet; 
Thence North 89°58'22" East 219 .40 feet; 
Thence South 32°04'58" West 291 .46 to a point on a 160.00 foot curve to the right; 
Thence 1 6 1 .  79 feet along said curve (chord bears South 6 1  °00' 14" West 154.99 feet); 
Thence South 89°58'29" West 4 1 1 . 5 1  feet; 
Thence South 00°01 '38" West 80.00 feet; 
Thence North 89°58'29" East 4 1 1 . 5 1  feet to a point on a 240.00 foot radius curve to the 
left; 
Thence along said curve 242.69 feet (chord bears North 61  °00' 14" East 232.48 feet); 
Thence North 32°02'04" East 507.82 feet to a point on a 20.00 foot radius curve to the 
right; 
Thence along said curve 30.40 feet (chord bears North 75°34'45" East 27.56 feet) to a 
point on a 1 160 .00  foot radius curve to the left; 
Thence along said curve 233 . 10  feet (chord bears South 66°37'58" East 1 1 6 . 9 5  feet); 
Thence South 32°02'04" West 10 17 .73  feet; 
Thence South 89°58'22" West 98.20 feet; 
Thence South 20°44'31" West 223.89 feet; 
Thence North 89°59'20" West 877.75 feet; 
Thence North 01  °02'00" East 1323 .99 feet to the point of beginning. 
Area = 3 I . 1 6  acres 

The intent of the zone change is to change the zoning upon annexation to be consistent 
with the existing use. 



Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City 
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160. 

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



From: Sharon Netherton (mai lto:ssnetherton@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 10:09 AM 
To: Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> 
Subject: RE:  Netherton Annexation 

Lonnie Reed from Legend has my permission to act as my agent for the rezone project. 
Sharon Netherton 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 



Shelby Archuleta 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Catfiy Lauphlin. 
City Planner 

(775)777-7160 ph 
(775)777-7219 fax 

claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 

City of Elko 
1 7 5 1  College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

Cathy Laughl in 

Thursday, Apri l 12 ,  2018  8:05 AM 

Shelby Archuleta 

FW: Permission to act as agent 

From: Lindzi Bell [mai lto: l indzi@legendengineering.com] 

Sent: Thursday, Apri l 12, 2018 7:39 AM 

To: Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov>; Jeremy Draper <jdraper@elkocitynv.gov> 

Cc: Lonny Reed <lonny@legendengineering.com> 

Subject: Fwd: Permission to act as agent 

Hi Cathy, 

Here is the authorization from Robert on behalf of JoyGlobal for the Komatsu re-zone application. I am 
working on the other outstanding items in hopes of having everything to you by tomorrow to stay on schedule. 

Thanks for all your help, 

Lindzi Bell, P .E. 

Legend Engineer ing 

l indzi@legendengineering.com 

O/fice(435)654-4828 

Cell {801) 455-7536 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Robert Richens <robert.richens@mining.komatsu> 
Subject: RE: Permission to act as agent 
Date: April 1 1 ,  2018  at 1 :49 :21  PM MDT 
To: Lonny Reed <lonny@legendengineering.com>, Ed Netherton 
<ednetherton@gmail .com> 

1 

- - ·- ---

- · -----



Cc: Lindzi Bell <lindzi@)c�endengineering.com>, "johnp@ko�atsueq.com" 
<johnp@komatsueq.com> 

Lonny, 

Please use this emai l  as authorization for JoyGlobal Surface Inc (P&H) to act as our agent in the zone 

change application in Elko Nevada. 

Thanks 

Robert 

Robert Richens 

Executive Vice President - KEC Operations 

Office +1 801 952 4739 
Mobile + 1  435 650 0774 

KOMA'5U 

From: Lonny Reed [mailto: lonny@legendengineering.com] 

Sent: Wednesday, April 11, 2018 11:37 AM 

To: Ed Netherton <ednetherton@gmail .com>; Robert Richens <robert.r ichens@mining.komatsu> 

Cc: Lindzi Bell < l indzi@legendengineering.com> 

Subject: Permission to act as agent 

Hi Ed and Robert, 

As part of the annexation, we are being asked to submit a zone change appl icat ion so that at annexation 

time, the property is zoned within the city as Light Industrial .  

Cathy at the City of Elko is asking that we provide an emai l  (just l ike we did for the annexation) giving 

Legend Engineering permission to act as agent for the appl icat ion.  

Please reply to this emai l  with your permission and I wil l forward to Cathy. 

Thank you and feel free to cal l  me if there are any questions. 

Thanks 

Lonny 

Lonny Reed, P .E .  

Legend Engineering 

lonny@legendengineering.com 

www.legendengineering.com 

Tel 435 654-4828 

Mobile 801 633-0444 

52 West 100 North 

Heber City, UT 84032 

2 

--- - --- ----

--- -- · --------

-- --------

--------



This electronic mail transmission contains information from Joy Global Inc. which is confidential, and is intended only 
for the use of the proper Addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify us immediately at the return 
address on this transmission, and delete this message and any attachments from your system. Unauthorized use, 
copying, disclosing, distributing, or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this transmission is strictly 
prohibited and may be unlawful. Privacy-JG! 

3 



----------------------------------- ··----------·�---------- 

\ 

CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 

Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  CollegeAvenue · Elko,Nevada 89801 ·  (775)777-7160 ·  Fax(775)777-7219 

April 12, 2 0 1 8  

Elko County Planning and Zoning 
540 Court Street, Suite 104 
Elko, NV 89801 

Re: Rezone No. 4 - 1 8  

In accordance with the Communication Policy between the City of Elko and Elko 
County, the City of Elko hereby notices and advises the Board of County Commissioners 
of the County of Elko of the City's intention to consider Rezone No. 4 - 1 8 ,  filed by 
Legend Engineering, on behalf of JoyGlobal Surface Mining, Inc. and Ed & Sharon 
Netherton. Please find enclosed a double-sided copy of the application and related site 
plan for your review and comment. 

The subject property consists of approximately 30.86 acres and is located on the north 
and south side of P & H Drive, as shown on the enclosed map. 

Review by the Elko City Planning Commission is scheduled for May 1 ,  2 0 1 8 .  

Please submit written comments to the City of Elko Planning Department as soon as 
possible. If we do not receive written comments prior to the scheduled meeting, we will 
assume you have no concerns regarding this application. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions concerning this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Shelby Arch ta 
Planning Technician 

Enclosures 



\ 

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801 
(775) 777-7160 phone*  (775) 777-7219 fax 

RECEIVED 

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE APR O 9 20 18 

APPLICANT(s): ILonny Reed, LeQend EngineerinQ 
MAILING ADDRESS:152 West 100 North, Heber, UT 84032 

PHONE NO (Hornej I  (Business�435-654-4828 I  

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):IJoyGlobal Surface Mining (Robert Richins) I Ed and Sharon Netherton 
(Property owner's consent in writina must be nrovided.) 

MAILING ADDRESS:l 1275 West Ridge Rd. Wellington, UT 84542 I CAMP CREEK RD TROY MT 59935-9694 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED {Attach if necessarvl: 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:loo6o9NOo4, oo609N009, oo609Noo1I Addressl4450 P&H Dr, 4303 P&H Dr. 

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subd�iv�i�s�io�"�'---------------------� 
Or Parcel(s) & File No. I  �  

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: I n  o r d e r  to begin processing the a p p l i c a t i o n ,  an a p p l i c a t i o n  form 
m u s t  be c o m p l e t e  a n d  s i g n e d .  Complete a p p l i c a t i o n s  are d u e  at least 2 1  days prior to the next 
s c h e d u l e d  m e e t i n g  of the E l k o  City P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  ( m e e t i n g s  are the 1s t  T u e s d a y  of 
every m o n t h ) .  

Fee: A  $ 5 0 0 . 0 0  n o n - r e f u n d a b l e  f i l i n g  fee. 

Area Map: A  m a p  of the area proposed for t h i s  zone c h a n g e  m u s t  be p r o v i d e d .  

Plot Plan: A  plot p l a n  provided by a properly l i c e n s e d  surveyor d e p i c t i n g  the e x i s t i n g  c o n d i t i o n  
drawn to s c a l e  s h o w i n g  property l i n e s ,  e x i s t i n g  and proposed b u i l d i n g s ,  b u i l d i n g  setbacks, 
distances between b u i l d i n g s ,  p a r k i n g  a n d  l o a d i n g  a r e a s ,  driveways a n d  other p e rt i n e n t  
information m u s t  be p r o v i d e d .  

Legal Description: A  complete l e g a l  d e s c r i p t i o n  of the b o u n d a ry  of the proposed zone c h a n g e  
m u s t  be provided as well as a map d e p i c t i n g  the area to be changed stating the w o r d i n g :  area 
to be c h a n g e d  from "x" to "x": ( L I  to R ,  for e x a m p l e ) .  

Note: One . p d f  of the entire a p p l i c a t i o n  m u s t  be submitted as well as one set of l e g i b l e ,  
r e p r o d u c i b l e  p l a n s  8  Yi" x 1 1 "  i n  size. If the a p p l i c a n t  feels the C o m m i s s i o n  needs to see 24" x 
36" p l a n s ,  1 0  sets of pre-folded p l a n s  must be s u b m i t t e d .  

Other Information: The a p p l i c a n t  is encouraged to s u b m i t  other information and 
d o c u m e n t a t i o n  to support t h i s  Rezone A p p li c a t i o n .  

Revised 1 / 2 4 / 1 8  Page 1 

I 

- - -

1----

-

-----

-

-- - - -

I 

7 
_I 

_., 

I 



i ( 

1 .  Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: ... �_A _. 

2. Identify the zoning Classification being proposed/requested:! ..... z_L_I ..., 

3. 

4. Explain how the ro osed zonin classification relates with other zonin classifications in the 
area: The ro osed zonin is consistent with the area. Two ad·acent arcels north of the area and one 

parcel south of the area are zoned ZLI. 

5. 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5) 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 2 

p p g g 
p p g p 



By My Signature below: 
� I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of 
inspection of said property as part of this application process. 
lif I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

f1 I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in 
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 
� I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
scheduled. 
0 I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the 
best of my ability. 

Applicant I Agent L. 0 Y1 ti Y �W 
(Please print or type) 

Mailing Address '? ?- W I O  O  tJ 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

City, State, Zip Code 
Phone Number: L/;'i· h'i � · '18 J-'6 

Email address: U>nY'�@ (qe:vtJ&VJJ iJ'\Urif\�- COM 

SIGNATURE: _a-,r":=:-----=-·-------=--=--=---=-=----------- 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

File No.: Y -  I B  Date Filed: Y /q /i 5 Fee Paid:� pOD CJL� ] Y ;; \  

Revised 1 /24/18 Page3 

----------



RECEIVED 

APR 1 8 2018 

ELKO ZONE CHANGE DESCRIPTION 

BEGINNIG AT THE FOUND NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST, 

MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDIAN,  BASIS OF BEARINGS BEING SOUTH 01°02'00" WEST MEASURED 

BETWEEN SAID NORTHWEST CORNER AND THE WEST QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECT ION;  AND 

RUNNING THENCE NORTH 89°58'16" EAST 446.33 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°01'36" EAST 255.00 FEET; 

THENCE NORTH 89°58'22" EAST 482.63 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°01'38" EAST 53.00 FEET; THENCE 

NORTH 89°58'22" EAST 219.40 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 32°04'58" WEST 291.46 TO A POINT ON A 160.00 

FOOT CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE 161.79 FEET ALONG SAID CURVE (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 61°00'14" 

WEST 154.99 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 89°58'29" WEST 411.51 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°01'38" WEST 

80.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°58'29" EAST 411.51 FEET TO A POINT ON A 240.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE 

TO THE LEFT; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE 242.69 FEET {CHORD BEARS NORTH 61°00'14" EAST 232.48 

FEET); THENCE NORTH 32°02'04" EAST 507.82 FEET TO A POINT ON A 20.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO 

THE RIGHT; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE 30.40 FEET (CHORD BEARS NORTH 75°34'45" EAST 27.56 FEET) 

TO A POINT ON A 1160.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE 233.10 FEET 

(CHORD BEARS SOUTH 66°37'58" EAST 116.95 FEET); THENCE SOUTH 32°02'04" WEST 1017.73 FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 89°58'22" WEST 98.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 20°44'31" WEST 223.89 FEET; THENCE 

NORTH 89°59'20" WEST 877.75 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°02'00" EAST 1323.99 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEG INN ING .  

AREA= 31 .16 ACRES 

Prepared by Chad A Anderson P.L.S. 



----------------------------------·------ 

Komatsu Zone Change Exh ib i t  

Printed 4/9/18 

RECEIVED 

APR  O  9  2018 

1 4482 

Elko County Assessor 

200m 

900ft 



5 .6 8 7  A C

44 6 .3 4

§̈¦80

!(B K  0 0 1
P G  6 7 9

ELKO COUNTY

!(8

48 2 .6 3

255
.00

2 1 9 .4 0

53.
00

CITY OF ELKO

5 .1 2 6  A C
!(7

2.9 6 3  A C
!(9

22 .7 6 8  A C
!(4

132
3.9

9

1 3 8 3 .9 4

18 4 .7 5

118 .1 5
792

.87

6 7 7
.0 2

50 7
.8 2

19 2 .3 3

311
.27

232
.8 5

2 7 5 .4 6

306
.01

2 9 0 .0 0

98 .2 0
112 .4 5 116

.9 2

80.
00

8 0 ' A c ce s s  E a se m e n t

80 .
0 0

!(B K  0 0 1
P G  6 7 9

!(B K  0 0 5
P G  5 1 0

!(B K  0 0 1
P G  6 7 9

4450

430
3

4500

60 ' U t il i ty  &
A c ce ss  E as e m en t

EL
KO

 C
OU

NT
Y

CI
TY

 O
F E

LK
O

EL
KO

 C
OU

NT
Y

CI
TY

 O
F E

LK
O

EL
KO

 C
OU

NT
Y

CI
TY

 O
F E

LK
O

W  ID A H O  S T

W  E L 08  S T

P  A N D  H  D R

E LK O  S H O O T IN G  R A N G E  R D

11 5 ° 4 9 '3 0 "W

11 5 ° 4 9 '3 0 "W

11 5 ° 5 0 '0 "W

11 5 ° 5 0 '0 "W

4 0 ° 4 8 '3 0 "N 4 0 ° 4 8 '3 0 "N

FOR ASSESSMENT USE ONLY

B a c k g ro u n d  im a g e  - 2 0 1 4  P ic to m e try  F ly o v e r

Legend
S u b je c t  P a rc e l
P a rc e l
C ity  L im it
P u b lic  L a n d

!!

!

! !

S e c t io n

0 2 0 0 4 0 0 6 0 01 0 0
F e e t

R e fe re n c e  D o c u m e n ts :
M a p  #  4 5 2 3 4 1 , 5 3 6 8 6 6 , 5 4 9 5 0 1

Overview Map

§̈¦8 0

P ro d u c t o f G IS
L a s t U p d a te  0 3 /0 3 /2 0 1 7  J L S

Portion of the NW 1/4
Section 30, Township 34N  Range 55E

of the Mount Diablo Meridian, Nevada

006-09N

S u b je c t

T h is  m a p  d o e s  N O T  re p re s e n t a  s u rv e y.
It  is  c o m p i le d  fro m  o ff ic ia l  re c o rd s , in c lu d in g

s u rv e y s  a n d  d e e d s . R e c o rd e d  d o c u m e n ts
s h o u ld  b e  u s e d  fo r  d e ta i le d  le g a l in fo rm a t io n .

U n le s s  a p p ro v e d  b y  E lk o  C o u n ty  A s s e s s o r,
o th e r u s e s  a re  f o rb id d e n .

¥

L AT IT U D E  A N D  L O N G IT U D E  A R E  A P P R O X IM AT E

CJ :-•-·· ,-~ .. -, .__ 

i i 











  
                   


































































































































              







    

 


  








 

  

                         

 


  



 
 






 


 

 
   

 

 

 
   
                           

 




 

 

 






































-, -.. :::.::~ 
I I I I I / / / \\\ ,-----.. \\ '-........ _______ .,.-----------------

N 

0 
.., 
"' " "' 
!; 

>-
I-

u 
ffi 
a, 
w 
:c 

t;; 
~ 

"'"' ,... ..... 
N~ 

:c . 
I- N 

::, "' 
::> o"' .,,_ 

.,, .... 
er, a, 

Cf) ~e 
:c 
0 
u 
.,; 

0 z ... 
/;; 

z > 
"" ::, 
V, 

I-

<{ ffi 
ffi _., 
w 

..J I 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

-~ -- i i T i ., .. 
( IN FEE:I) 

1 inch - 80 ft. /,/ ," 



17
-1
2
-2

7
4

1 
O
F
 1

L
O
C
A
T
E
D
 I
N
 T

H
E
 N

W
 Q

U
A
R
T
E
R
 O

F
 S

E
C
 3

0
,

T
3
4
N
, 
R
5
5
E
, 
M
D
B
&
M

E
L
K
O
 C

O
U
N
T
Y

Z
O
N
E
 C

H
A
N
G
E
 E

X
H
IB

IT

LINE TABLE 

LILNE LENGTH DIRECTION 

L1 255.DO' S00°01 '36"E 

L2 53.00' S00"01 '38"E 

L3 219.40' N89"58'22"E 

L4 80.00' S00"01 '38"E 

L7 98.20' S89"58'22"W 

LS 223.89' s20·44•31"w 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE LENGTH RADIUS DELTA CHORD 

C1 161.79' 160.00' 57"56'19" 154.99' 

C2 242.69' 240.00' 57"56'19" 232.48' 

C3 30.40' 20.00' 87"05'23" 27.56' 

C4 233.10' 1160.00' 11·30'49" 232.71' 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

i T 
( IN J'IIET) 

1 inch = 300 ft. 

-

BEARING TANGENT 

S61 "00'14"W 88.58' 

N61 "00'14"E 132.86' 

N75"34' 45"E 19.01' 

S66°37'58"E 116.95' 

o-

FOUND NW CORNER 
SECTION 30 

446.33' ---- r 

C 

o- 11---
10 
N 
10 

~ 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

0 
z 

006-09N-004 

_J 
ZONE= ZLI 

N89°58'22"E 482.63' 

N89°58'29"E 411.51' 

006-09N-009 

L 

N89°59'20"W 877. 75' 

ZONE = ZA 

CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY 

~~ 
-~ 

& 
4 

VJ 

006-09N-027 

001-679-005 
ZONE= ZA 

>
...... t:: 

0 

a: - .. ->-~ w 
:c 

UJ ~ 
>w 

~ .......... _a::; 
::, 

=> 5l 
"' "' en~ 



Agenda Item# I .B . l .  

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the 
City Zoning Ordinance, specifically Sections 3-3 Subdivisions, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 1, 2018 

3 .  Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

4. Time Required: l O Minutes 

5.  Background Information: 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to initiate an amendment to the City Zoning 
Ordinance, specifically Section 3-3 Subdivisions and direct staff to bring the item 
back as a public hearing. 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

10 .  Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 2/12/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: _5_/�J __ 
**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title Jnii1@ C�tL J]) SoWi,1,sia!'.l Code 

Appl1can«s): -�-��±���-�����j���-----------------� 
Site Location: 

--------------------------- 

Current Zoning: tJ}-AI Date Received: N}A Date Public Notice: ,AJ)A 
COMMENT: ThiS '1� 17> ufdctl� �AP wtdiViS/6h C6dP. 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Assistant City Manager: Date: _ 

Initial 

City Manager: Date: __ Y_f_')..._( __ ��' &:�-- 

r 

"Ti.,·s i s  a..,  h:j pr-oc...�s$ \,,Jls.:c.h r::g..lv�rg..s s::to ... ;FF £ p v 6 1 :- c...  ,"'-t'u-t- -+a 

Q_I/\.. � V cs CL <t,YA. \ .'+7 0 ... ...-t c.o v\,"\ 'b • 

Initial 

- . - . - . - - -- - - --- . ---
- -- -- ---------------------------



Chapter 3
SUBDIVISIONS

3-3-1: PURPOSE AND INTENT:
3-3-2: DEFINITIONS:
3-3-3: OUTLINE OF PROCEDURES:
3-3-4: PREAPPLICATION (CONFERENCE) STAGE (STAGE I):
3-3-5: PRELIMINARY PLAT STAGE (STAGE II):
3-3-6: FINAL PLAT STAGE (STAGE III):
3-3-7: INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT SUBMISSION:
3-3-8: INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FINAL PLAT SUBMISSION:
3-3-20: GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:
3-3-21: STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:
3-3-22: STREET DESIGN:
3-3-23: BLOCK DESIGN:
3-3-24: LOT PLANNING:
3-3-25: EASEMENT PLANNING:
3-3-26: STREET NAMING:
3-3-27: STREET LIGHTING DESIGN STANDARDS:
3-3-40: RESPONSIBILITY FOR IMPROVEMENTS:
3-3-41: ENGINEERING PLANS:
3-3-42: CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION:
3-3-43: REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS:
3-3-44: AGREEMENT TO INSTALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS:
3-3-45: PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE:
3-3-50: PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:
3-3-60: PARCEL MAPS:
3-3-70: MODIFICATION OF STANDARDS:
3-3-75: REVERSIONS TO ACREAGE:
3-3-80: PROHIBITION AGAINST SALE IN VIOLATION:
3-3-85: MERGERS AND RESUBDIVISION OF LAND:
3-3-90: VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES:

3-3-1: PURPOSE AND INTENT:

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the orderly growth and harmonious development of the
city; to ensure adequate traffic circulation through coordinated subdivision street system with relation
to major thoroughfares, adjoining subdivisions, and public facilities to achieve individual property lots
of optimum utility and livability; to secure adequate provisions for water supply, drainage, sanitary
sewerage, and other health requirements; to facilitate reservation of adequate sites for schools,
recreation areas, and other public facilities; to promote the conveyance of land by accurate legal
description and to provide logical procedures for the achievement of this purpose; safeguard the
public health, safety and general welfare; and to ensure development in conformance with the city
master plan. In its interpretation and application, the provisions of this chapter are intended to
provide a common ground of understanding and a sound and equitable working relationship



between public and private interests to the end that both independent and mutual objectives can be
achieved in the subdivision of the land. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-2: DEFINITIONS:

For purposes of this chapter, certain words, terms and phrases are defined as follows:

AGREEMENT TO INSTALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: An Agreement required prior to Final
Plat approval and prior to commencement of construction activities. An agreement developed
in accordance with sections 3-3-44 and 3-3-45 of this chapter.

BLOCK: A piece or parcel of land, or group of lots, entirely surrounded by public rights of way,
streams, railroads or parks, or a combination thereof.

BUILDING LINE: A line between which and the street right of way line no building or structure or
portion thereof, shall be erected, constructed, or otherwise established.

CITY COUNCIL: The Ccity Ccouncil of the Ccity of Elko.

COMMISSION: The Ccity of Elko Pplanning Ccommission.

CONDITIONAL APPROVAL: An affirmative action by the commission or city councilCity Council
indicating the approval of preliminary plat will be forthcoming upon compliance with certain specified
stipulations.

CONSTRUCTION PLANS: Plans, profiles, cross sections and other required details for the
construction of public improvements, prepared in conjunction with the plat and in
compliance with standards of design and construction approved by the city.

DEVELOPMENT MASTER PLAN: A plan prepared and approved prior to preparation and
consideration of a preliminary plat in accordance with 3-3-4 of this chapter.preliminary map
showing the tentative layout of streets and arrangements of land uses, including the location of
schools, recreation areas and other community facilities for the entirety of a large landholding of
which a portion is to be submitted as a preliminary plat; a map meeting the requirements of
section 3-3-4 of this chapter.

EASEMENT: A grant by the owner of the use of a strip of land by the public, a corporation, or
persons for specific and designated uses and purposes.

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE: A cost estimate provide to the City, by the subdivider’s engineer, for
the entire cost of the public improvements to be based on NRS 338 and local rates to be used
as a basis for the required PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE as approved by the City.

ENGINEERING PLANS: Plans, profiles, cross sections and other required details for the
construction of public improvements, prepared in conjunction with the plat and in compliance with
standards of design and construction approved by the city councilCity Council.

EXCEPTIONS: Any parcel of land located within the perimeter of the subdivision but which is not
included in the plat.

FINAL PLAT APPROVAL: Unconditional approval of the final plat by the city councilCity Council as

Commented [BT1]: This reads that the preliminary plat is
in accordance with (section) 3-3-4.  Consider “A plan
prepared in accordance with section 3-3-4 of this chapter,
approved prior to preparation and consideration of a
preliminary plat.”

Commented [BT2]: Do we want to establish the rates and
have the developer provide only the quantities?  This would
allow us more consistency between developers.



evidenced by certification on the plat by the Mmayor of the Ccity of Elko. Final approval constitutes
authorization to record the plat.

FULL FRONTAGE: All lot lines of any lot, parcel or tract of property adjacent to a road, street, alley
or right of way, to include lots, parcels or tracts containing multiple borders or edges, such as corner
lots.

GRADING LAND DISTURBANCE: The removal of the vegetative cover from the surface of any land,
parcel, lot or construction site that exceeds one acre of disturbed surface area and, most probably, is
a result of grading activity associated with new construction.

LOT: A distinct part or parcel of land separated from other pieces or parcels by description, identified
as such in a subdivision or on a recorded survey map, or described as such by metes and bounds,
with the intention or for the purpose of sale, lease, separate use or for the purpose of building,
including the following types of lots:development building.

A. Corner Lot: A lot abutting on two (2) or more intersecting streets.

B. Double Frontage Lot: A lot abutting two (2) parallel or approximately parallel streets.

C. Interior Lot: A lot having but one side abutting on a street.

D. Key Lot: An interior lot, one (1) side of which is contiguous to the rear line of a corner lot.

LOT DEPTH: The shortest distance, measured on a line parallel to the axis of the lot, between points
on the front and rear lot lines.

LOT LINE: A line bounding a lot, including the following types of lot lines:.

A. Front Lot Line: The lot line coinciding with the street line; or, in the case of a corner lot, the
shortest shorter of two (2) lot lines coinciding with street lines; or, in the case of a double frontage
lot, both lot lines coinciding with street lines.

B. Rear Lot Line: The lot line opposite and farthest from the front lot line; for a pointed or irregular lot,
the rear lot line shall be an imaginary line, parallel to and farthest from the front lot line, not less than
ten feet (10') long and wholly within the lot.

C. Side Lot Line: Any lot line other than a front or rear lot line; in the case of a corner lot, the lot line
abutting the side street is designated as the exterior side lot line; all other side lot lines are
designated as interior side lot lines.

LOT WIDTH:

A. In the case of a rectangular lot or a lot abutting on the outside of a street curve, the distance
between side lot lines measured parallel to the street or to the street chord and measured on the
street chord.

B. In the case of a lot abutting on the inside of a street curve, the distance between the side lot lines
measured parallel to the street or the street chord at the rear line of the dwelling, or, where there is
no dwelling, thirty feet (30') behind the minimum front setback line.

Commented [BT3]: Should not use a word in its own
definition.  I think that read better as Land Disturbance.  If
we need a definition for Grading, we should create one.

Commented [BT4]: I remember trying to determine if a
side lot line along an alley was an exterior.  It was not clear
in the definitions of side lot line, street, or alley.  I think this
should be clarified one way or another.

Commented [CL5R4]: This matches what we have in our
3-2-2 definitions

Commented [BT6]: Should this be measured at the
minimum front setback line to be consistent with the inside
of the curve situation below? We often allow narrower
frontages around cul-de-sacs for this reason, but do not
have the actual minimum well defined.

I _____________________ ,, I~-~] 

I I 



MASTER PLAN: The adopted plan or parts thereof, providing for the future growth and improvement
of the city of Elko and for the general location and coordination of streets and highways, schools and
recreation areas, public building sites, and other physical development which shall have been duly
adopted by the planning commissionPlanning Commission and city councilCity Council.

NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN: A plan prepared by the city to guide the platting of remaining undeveloped
parcels in a partially built up neighborhood so as to make reasonable use of all land, correlate street
patterns, and achieve the best possible land use relationships.

OFFICIAL STREET CLASSIFICATION AND HIGHWAY PLAN COMPONENT OF THE MASTER
PLAN: A plan adopted by the planning commissionPlanning Commission and city councilCity
Council which provides for development of a system of major streets and highways.

OWNER: The person or persons holding title by deed to land, or holding title as vendees under land
contract, or holding any other title or record.

PARCEL MAP: As defined in the Nevada Revised Statutes.

PEDESTRIANWAY: A public or private walk through a block from street to street or from a street to
a school, park, recreation area or other public facility.

PLAT: A map of a subdivision; the same as "map" as defined in the Nevada Revised Statutes.

A. Final Plat: A plat of all or part of a subdivision essentially conforming to an approved preliminary
plat, prepared in accordance with provisions of section 3-3-8 of this chapter.

B. Preliminary Plat: A preliminary tentative map, including supporting data, indicating a proposed
subdivision development, prepared in accordance with section 3-3-7 of this chapter.

C. Recorded Plat: A final plat bearing all of the certificates of approval required by this chapter and
duly recorded in the Elko County recorder's office.

PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL: Approval of a preliminary plat by the Pplanning Ccommission
and the City CouncilCity Council. Preliminary approval constitutes authorization to proceed with
preparation of engineering construction plans and the final plat.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE: The financial security required to guarantee the AGREEMENT
TO INSTALL PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS in accordance with 3-3-45 of this chapter.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS: Improvements installed in accordance with CONSTRUCTION
PLANS which include dedicated and non-dedicated improvements necessary for
development of subdivisions or areas developed under parcel maps.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS: A set of standards approved by the city councilCity Council
regulating the design and construction of public improvements in the city of Elko. These standards
are the "Standard Specifications For Public Works Construction", latest edition, as distributed to the
cities and counties of northern Nevada by the regional transportation commission of Washoe
County.

PUBLIC UTILITIES: Underground, aboveground or overhead facilities furnishing to the public,
electricity, gas, steam, communications, water, drainage, sewage disposal, flood control, irrigation or
refuse disposal, owned and operated by any person, firm, corporation, municipal department or

Commented [BT7]: Should this be in all caps as below?

Formatted: Highlight

I _ 



board duly authorized by state or municipal regulations. "Public utilities", as used herein, may also
refer to such persons, firms, corporation, departments or boards, as the context indicates.

STREET: Any existing or proposed street, avenue, boulevard, road, lane, parkway, place, bridge,
viaduct or easement for public vehicular access; or, a street shown in a plat heretofore approved
pursuant to law; or, a street in a plat duly filed and recorded in the county recorder's office. A street
includes all land within the street right of way, whether improved or unimproved, and includes such
improvements as pavement, shoulder, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, parking space, bridges, viaducts,
lawns and trees.

A. Alley: A public way providing secondary vehicular access and service to properties which also abut a
street.

B. Arterial And Minor Arterial Streets: A general term describing large major streets, including freeways,
expressways and interstate roadways, and state and/or county highways having city and regional
continuity.

C. Collector Residential And Local Residential Streets: City streets serving the primary function of
providing access to abutting property:

1. Cul-De-Sac Street: A short collector residential and local residential street having one end
permanently terminating in and including a vehicular turning area.

2. Marginal Access Street: A collector residential and local residential street parallel to and
abutting an arterial street which provides access to abutting property, intercepts other collector
residential and local residential streets, and controls access to the arterial street.

D. Collector Street: A street generally with limited continuity serving the primary function of moving
traffic between arterial streets and local residential streets, and the secondary function of providing
access to abutting properties.

E. Private StreetSTREET, PRIVATE: A nondedicated, privately owned right- of -way or limited public
way that affords the principal means of emergency and limited vehicular access and connection from
the public street system to properties created through the division or subdivision of land.

STREET, PUBLICF. Public Street: A dedicated public right- of- way that is part of the public street
system and which affords the principal means of emergency and general vehicular access to
abutting property.

G. Street LineSTREET LINE: A line describing the limits of a street right of way.

SUBDIVIDER: The person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, syndicate, trust, or other legal
entity that files application and initiates proceedings for the subdivision of land in accordance with
the provisions of this chapter; provided, that an individual serving as agent for such legal entity shall
not be deemed the subdivider.

SUBDIVISION: As defined in the Nevada Revised Statutes.

SUBDIVISION REVIEW COMMITTEE: A committee consisting of the representative from the
City’s Manager’s Office, representative from the Ccity’s Engineering Ddepartment,
representative from the City’s Utility Department, representative from the Ccity’s Planning
Ddepartment, representative from the Ccity’s Development Ddepartment, city engineer, city

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.13", Hanging: 0.13"

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"



planner, representative for the Ccity’s Public Works Ddepartment, representative from the
Ccity’s Fire Department, public works director, fire chief or fire marshal, and Pplanning
Ccommission Cchair or Vvice Cchair formed for the purpose of conducting a subdivision
preapplication (stage I) review prior to preliminary plat submittal. (Ord. 739, 8-9-2011)

3-3-3: OUTLINE OF PROCEDURES:

The preparation, submission, review and official action concerning all subdivision plats located within
the city shall proceed through the following progressive stages:

A. Stage I - preapplication (conference) stage;

B. Stage II - preliminary plat stage;

C. Stage III - final plat stage. (Ord. 548, 11-28-2000)

3-3-4: PREAPPLICATION (CONFERENCE) STAGE (STAGE I):

The preapplication stage of subdivision planning comprises an investigatory period preceding actual
preparation of the preliminary plat by the subdivider. During this stage, the subdivider shall make
known his intentions to the subdivision review committee and be advised of specific public objectives
related to the subject tract and other details regarding platting procedures and requirements. During
this stage, it shall be determined whether a change in zoning will be required for the subject tract or
any part thereof, and, if such change is required, the subdivider shall initiate the necessary
application for zoning amendment in conjunction with submission of the preliminary plat. In carrying
out the purposes of the preapplication stage, the subdivider and the subdivision review committee
shall be responsible for the following sections:

A. Actions By Subdivider: The subdivider shall meet with the subdivision review committee and
present a general outline of his proposal, including, but not limited to:

1. Sketch plans and ideas regarding land use, street and lot arrangement, and tentative lot sizes.

2. Tentative proposals regarding water supply, sewage disposal, storm drainage and street
improvements, and any additional information required by this code and the subdivision review
committee.

B. Actions By Subdivision Review Committee: The subdivision review committee may advise the
subdivider of procedural steps, design and improvement standards, and general plat
requirements. The subdivision review committee may then proceed with the following
investigations, and report its recommendations in writing to the subdivider, planning
commissionPlanning Commission and city councilCity Council:

I 
- - -
_- _- _- _- -



1. Check existing zoning of the tract and of abutting properties, and determine whether a zoning
amendment is necessary or desirable.

2. Examine the adequacy of parks and other public facilities.

3. Determine the relationship of the site to major streets, utility systems and adjacent land uses, and
determine whether there are any potential problems related to topography, utilities, drainage or
flooding.

4. Determine whether a development master plan shall be prepared and approved prior to
preparation and consideration of a preliminary plat.

C. Development Master Plan: Whenever, in the opinion of the planning commissionPlanning
Commission, the proposed subdivision is sufficiently large to comprise a major part of a future
neighborhood, or, the tract initially proposed for platting is only a part of a larger land area the
development of which is complicated by unusual topographic, utility, land use, land ownership
problems or other conditions, the subdivider shall be required to prepare a development master
plan for the larger area which must be submitted to the commission for approval and must be
filed with the city engineer at least twenty-one fifteen (2115) days prior to the meeting date at
which the commission will be reviewing the plan.

1. Preparation: The plan shall be prepared on a sheet twenty four inches by thirty six inches
(24" x 36"), shall be accurate commensurate with its purpose, and shall include:

a. General street pattern with particular attention to the location and general alignment of collector
streets and to convenient circulation throughout the neighborhood.

b. General location and size of school, park and other public facility sites.

c. Location of shopping center, multi-family residential and other proposed land uses.

d. Methods proposed for sewage disposal, water supply and storm drainage.

2. Approval: When the Development Master pPlan has been approved by the planning
commissionPlanning Commission, it shall constitute the general design approach to be followed in
the preparation of all preliminary plats within its limits. If development is proposed to take place in
several stages, the plan shall be submitted as supporting data for each preliminary plat. The plan
shall be kept up to date by the subdivider as modifications occur or become necessary. (Ord. 624,
10-26-2004)

3-3-5: PRELIMINARY PLAT STAGE (STAGE II):

The preliminary plat stage includes preparation, submission, review and planning
commissionPlanning Commission action on the preliminary plat. Processing of the preliminary plat
will be expedited by submission of all information essential to determining the intended character
and general acceptability of the proposal.

Commented [SAW8]: all subdivsion applications are
processed through the planning department

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"

I I __ - -



A. Zoning Amendments: The preliminary plat shall be designed to meet the specific requirements of
the zoning district in which it is located; however, in the event that an amendment of zoning is
necessary, an application for such amendment shall be submitted and processed in conjunction
with the preliminary plat. The planning commissionPlanning Commission shall not proceed with
processing of the plat unless and until said application is submitted. The application for zoning
amendment shall should be heard by the planning commissionPlanning Commission at the same
meeting as the preliminary plat, but shall be acted upon separately. When a preliminary plat
constitutes only one unit of a larger development intended for progressive platting, the zoning
amendment shall usually be limited to the area contained in preliminary plat application.and
abutting the initial plat. In any event, Aany required zoning amendment shall have been approved
by the planning commissionPlanning Commission prior to the preliminary plat approval. Zoning
amendments must conform with the master plan, adopted by the planning commissionPlanning
Commission and city councilCity Council.

B. Public improvements; Sanitary Sewerage, Water Supply, Storm Drainage And Garbage
Disposal: As a prerequisite of preliminary plat review by the planning commissionPlanning
Commission, the subdivider shall have informed the commission, health department and the city
engineer of the tentative plans and shall provide adequate information to determine
conformance to city code and the general requirements for public improvements,  such as
but not limited to, property grading, sewage disposal, water supply, storm drainage, garbage
disposal and other public utilities as applied to the subject tract.

C. Preliminary Plat Submission:

1. Documents; Scheduling: Eighteen Three (183) copies of the preliminary plat and any required
supporting information and/or data, prepared in accordance with the requirements of this chapter,
shall be filed with the planning department at least twenty one (21) days prior to the planning
commissionPlanning Commission meeting at which the subdivider desires to be heard. Scheduling
of the case for planning commissionPlanning Commission hearing shall be dependent upon
submission of adequate data and completion of processing. If additional copies of the submittal are
needed for proper review of the proposal, they shall be furnished by the subdivider.

2. Submittal To Be Checked: The submittal shall be checked by the city subdivision review committee
for completeness, and, if it meets with all requirements of section 3-3-7 of this chapter, it shall be
assigned a file number; if incomplete, it shall be rejected and the subdivider notified as to its
deficiencies.

3. Filing Fee: The subdivider shall, at the time of filing, pay to the city a filing fee based upon the
number of lots in the plat. If preliminary approval subsequently expires prior to application for final
approval, the plat shall be resubmitted for preliminary approval as a new case, and the subdivider
shall pay the required fee in accordance with the adopted schedule. The filing fee shall be set by
resolution by the city councilCity Council.

4. Incomplete applications not acted upon by the subdivider shall expire within 90 days of
receipt of the application.

Commented [BT9]: Why would we not allow a larger area
to be rezoned all at once.

Commented [SAW10]: Correct????

Commented [SAW11]: 21 days does not provide time to
schedule a meeting with the subdivsion review committee
and advertise the meeting. Review by committee is not
appropriate either. This is however necessary for staff to
complete.

Commented [BT12]: If incomplete applications are
rejected, as stated above, this is contradictory.

Commented [CL13R12]: I agree with Bob, maybe just
state applications no acted upon….

-- ----=--=--=-=-

f-l ______________ _ 

I -



D. Preliminary Plat Review:

1. Upon receipt of the finalpreliminary plat submittal, the city planning department shall record receipt
and date of filing, and transmit all copies of the preliminary plat to the city engineering, utility,
public works, fire and development departments for checking the submittal for completeness. If
incomplete, the filing date shall be voided and the subdivider so notified. If complete, and if the
preliminary plat substantially conforms to the Stage I submittal, the city Planning department shall
transmit copies of the submittal to the Nevada Department of Transportation, where applicable,
who shall make known their recommendations in writing addressed to the city.

12. Copy Distribution: The subdivider shall provide additional copiesa readable pdf file of the
preliminary plat to the city for distribution to:

a. The city engineer;

a. b. School district superintendent, board of trustees of Elko County;

b. c. Utility companies;

c. Elko County Planning Department, if property is adjacent to any parcel located in Elko County

c. d. Division of water resources, department of conservation and natural resources;

d. e. Division of environmental protection, department of conservation and natural resources; and

e. f. Health department, department of human resources.

23. Planning CommissionPlanning Commission Shall Review: The planning commissionPlanning
Commission Commission shall review the preliminary plat submitted for compliance with the
provisions of this chapter and the zoning requirements, and shall consult with and seek the advice of
appropriate city departments and agencies on any matters of design or improvement. It shall be the
responsibility of the subdivider to provide any necessary data and any information necessary for
the Planning CommissionPlanning Commission to conduct a comprehensive review of the
subdivision..

34. Public Hearing Required: In reviewing and considering preliminary plats, the planning
commissionPlanning Commission shall first hold a public hearing prior to taking any action on a
preliminary plat. Upon the filing of an application for preliminary plat, the city staff shall set the matter
for hearing not later than forty five (45) days thereafter. After the time and place have been
established by the city staff, notice of the hearing shall be sent by mail at least ten (10) days before
the hearing to all property owners adjoining or adjacent to the area proposed to be subdivided as
shown by the latest assessment rolls of the cityCounty. Notice by mail to the last known address of
the real property owners as shown by the assessor's Assessor's records shall be sufficient. Legal
notice shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation within the city at least ten (10) days prior
to the date of the public hearing.

45. Modifications: In the event the planning commissionPlanning Commission Commission requires
modifications of the plat as submitted, the commission shall so inform the subdivider and may
provide him advice in overcoming deficiencies prior to the commission hearing. A recommendation

Commented [SAW14]: not sure this is required any more
unless septics are involved

Commented [CL15R14]: We don’t send to the division of
water resources, NDEP or Health Department.

Commented [BT16]: The County keeps the Assessment
rolls, not the City.

-__J_ 



for modification or change may be sufficiently important to warrant postponement of the planning
commissionPlanning Commission Commission hearing until the matter has been resolved with the
subdivider.

E. Preliminary Plat Approval:

1. The planning commissionPlanning Commission shall consider the preliminary plat within forty five
(45) days after a complete application for the plat has been filed. The planning
commissionPlanning Commission shall report, through the pPlanning dDepartment, to the city
councilCity Council Council within forty-five thirty (4530) days after review of the preliminary plat.
The report shall approve or disapprove the map or maps of the subdivision. If conditionally approved
or disapproved, the report shall state the conditions under which the plat map would have been
approved or that approval was withheld because the land proposed to be subdivided was not
suitable for such development. If approval is withheld, the report shall state the reasons why the land
was not considered suitable. The city councilCity Council shall approve or disapprove a tentative
map within sixty forty five (60 45) days after receipt of the planning commissionPlanning
Commission's recommendations, after first holding a public hearing as set forth in subsection D3 of
this section.

2. Before approving a preliminary tentative plat, the planning commissionPlanning Commission and
city councilCity Council shall make such findings as are not inconsistent with the provisions of
Nevada Revised Statutes sections 278.010 through 278.630, inclusive, or local ordinances adopted
pursuant thereto, including, but not limited to, findings that the subdivision:

a. Will not result in undue water or air pollution. In making this determination it shall consider:

(1) The topography of the land and its relation to the floodplains or areas subject to flooding or water
damage;

(2) The nature of soils and subsoils and their ability adequately to support waste disposal;

(3) The slope of the land and its effect on effluents;

(4) The effectiveness of sewerage plans and solid waste disposal; and

(5) The applicable environmental and health laws and regulations.

b. Has sufficient water meeting applicable health standards for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the
subdivision.

c. Will not cause an unreasonable soil erosion or reduction in the capacity of the land to hold water so
that a dangerous or unhealthy condition may result.

d. Will not cause an unreasonable burden on an existing water supply, if one is to be utilized.

e. Will not cause unreasonable street or highway congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to use of
the streets or highways existing or proposed and addresses for the new streets or highways to serve
the subdivisions.

Commented [SAW17]: This all occurs at once rather two
separate meetings

-- __ - -

_-- _J I_ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ---- - - - - - - ~ - -



f. Is in conformance with the duly adopted master plan and zoning ordinances, except in cases of
inconsistency between the two, the zoning ordinance takes precedence. No provision of this chapter
shall be constructed to prevent a governing body from disapproving a preliminary tentative map if
such disapproval is in the best interests of the public health, safety or welfare, and such disapproval
is made by a majority vote of its members and made within the time limit provided.

g. Availability and accessibility of utilities.

h. Availability and accessibility of public services, such as schools, police and fire protection, recreation
and parks.

3. If satisfied that the preliminary plat meets all requirements of this chapter, the planning
commissionPlanning Commission may grant preliminary plat approval. , whereupon the secretary
shall note such approval on three (3) copies of the plat, return one copy to the subdivider, retain one
copy in the permanent commission file, and give one copy to the city engineer.

4. If the preliminary plat is generally acceptable but requires minor revision, the planning
commissionPlanning Commission may find conditional approval, and the required conditions and
revisions shall be noted in the meeting minutes. Thereafter, at the discretion of the planning
commissionPlanning Commission, the preliminary plat may approve the revised conditions and
revisions to be corrected and the preliminary plat forwarded to the City CouncilCity Council
without further consideration by the Planning CommissionPlanning Commission.be given
preliminary approval when it has been satisfactorily revised in accordance with the commission's
stated conditions.

5. If the preliminary plat is disapproved by the planning commissionPlanning Commission, any new
filing of a plat for the same tract, or any part thereof, shall follow the aforesaid procedure and be
subject to payment of a new filing fee. The subdivider may appeal the planning commissionPlanning
Commission's decision to the governing body within fifteen (15) days in accordance with Elko City
Code 3-2-25. The city councilCity Council may overrule any ruling of the planning
commissionPlanning Commission in regard to the preliminary tentative plat in conformance with
the findings required under 3-3-5(E)(2).

6. Upon preliminary plat approval, the planning department shall notify the utility companies of such
approval.

F. Significance Ofof Preliminary Approval: Preliminary approval constitutes authorization for a
subdivider to proceed with preparation of the final plat and engineering construction plans.
Preliminary approval is based upon the following terms:

1. Basic conditions under which preliminary approval is granted shall not be changed prior to expiration
date.

2. Unless the time is extended consistent with the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes 278.360,
the subdivider shall present to the planning commissionPlanning Commission within four (4) years:

a. A final map, prepared in accordance with the tentative map, for the entire area for which a tentative
map has been approved, or

Commented [SAW18]: Review process

Commented [CL19]: This doesn’t make sense…not sure if
we are just stating that the Planning Commission may
approve revisions to be corrected prior to being forwarded
to the City Council.

Commented [SAW20]: What is the process.

Commented [CL21]: We don’t do this and haven’t done it
in the past. Looking at NRS to see if required.

ll ___________________________________________ ----------~--

1 ~--------~ 

I ______________ --~--



b. One of a series of final maps, each covering a portion of the approved tentative map.

3. If the subdivider fails to record present a final map for any portion of the tentative map to the city
within four (4) years after the date of approval of the tentative map by the city councilCity Council, or
within two (2) years after the recording date of approval by the city councilCity Council of the most
recently recorded final map, all proceedings concerning the subdivision are terminated.

4. The city councilCity Council, after referral to the planning commissionPlanning Commission for
review and comment, may grant an extension of not more than two (2) years for the presentation of
the next final map in a series of final maps covering a portion of the approved tentative map after the
two (2) year period for presenting the entire final map or next successive final map has expired.

5. Preliminary Plat approval does not constitute an authorization to proceed with subdivision site
improvements prior to approval by the city engineer of submitted construction engineering plans.
Preliminary Plat approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with subdivision
improvements prior to obtaining any required Federal or State approvals.

G. Expiration Of Preliminary Approval: If preliminary approval expires prior to filing of a request for
an extension or the time given in an extension expires, the preliminary plat, if resubmitted, shall
be processed as a new case, and a new fee paid. Extensions of time shall be granted under
provisions stipulated in an agreement consistent with the requirements of NRS 278.0201
and 3-2-26. If planning commissionPlanning Commission review of a resubmitted plat reveals no
significant change from the previously approved preliminary plat and conditions under which
previous approval was granted have not changed, the filing fee shall be as set by the city
councilCity Council and the resubmitted plat scheduled for hearing by the commission at its first
regular scheduled meeting thereafter. (Ord. 785, 7-8-2014)

3-3-6: FINAL PLAT STAGE (STAGE III):

The final plat stage includes the final design and final engineering of the subdivision, and the
preparation, submission, review and action on the final plat and construction engineering plans.

A. Presubmission Requirements:

1. Zoning: The final plat shall meet all requirements of the zoning district in which located, and any
necessary zoning amendments shall have been adopted by the city councilCity Council prior to filing
of the final plat.

2. Preparation Ofof Final Plat: The final plat shall conform closely to the approved preliminary plat and
be prepared in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.

3. Easements: The final plat submittal shall include a letter signifying approval of utility easements by
all public utilities involved, and shall be so indicated by an affidavit on the map.

B. Final Plat Submission:

Commented [BT22]: NRS 278.360.1.a requires that a final
plat be “presented to the governing body” within 4 years,
not recorded.

Commented [BT23]: NRS 278.360.2 requires that a
subsequent final map be submitted to the city within 2
years of RECORDING of the previous map, not council
approval.

What I don’t see in NRS is any requirement that the final
maps be recorded within a certain time from submittal to
the City, or Council Approval.

Commented [SAW24]: This either needs to state from
approval or the performance agreement time needs to be
amended to allow for four years with no extension.

----t------____ ·-
I ________________________________________________ _ 

I 

I 



1. Three (3) copies of the final plat and any required supporting information and/or data, prepared
in accordance with the requirements of this chapter, shall be filed with the planning department
at least twenty one (21) days prior to the Planning Commission meeting at which the subdivider
desires to be heard.

12. The planning commissionPlanning Commission shall review the final plat for conformity with the
preliminary plat and conformity with the city’s engineer's approval of final plat and construction
drawings.

2. The subdivider shall file with the city planning department clerk the final plat and four (4) true
copies thereof, together with the recordation fee, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the city councilCity
Council meeting date at which the subdivider desires to be heard.

C. Final Plat Review:

1. Upon receipt of the final plat submittal, the city planning department clerk shall record receipt and
date of filing, and transmit all copies of the final plat to the city engineering, utility, public works,
fire and development departments engineer for checking the submittal for completeness. If
incomplete, the filing dated shall be voided and the subdivider so notified. If complete, and if the final
plat substantially conforms to the approved preliminary plat, the city pPlanning department
engineer shall transmit copies of the submittal to the Nevada h Highway d Department of
Transportation, where applicable, who shall make known their recommendations in writing
addressed to the cityy. engineer.

2. The city pPlanning department engineer shall assemble the recommendations of the various
reviewing offices, including the planning commissionPlanning Commission findings and
recommendations, and submit same to the city councilCity Council.

3. In the event that the city engineer finds that the final plat does not substantially conform to the
approved preliminary plat, as approved by the planning commissionPlanning Commission, then the
final plat shall be submitted to the commission for review and recommendations prior to
consideration by the city councilCity Council.

D. Final Plat Approval And Recordation:

1. Upon notification from the city engineer that the plat is in order, the city clerk shall place the item
case on the agenda of the next regular meeting, at which time the city councilCity Council shall
approve or deny the plat.

2. If the city councilCity Council denies approval of the plat for any reason whatever, such reasons shall
be recorded in the minutes and the subdivider so notified. If the city councilCity Council gives final
approval of the plat, the city clerk shall transcribe upon the plat a certificate of approval signed by the
mayor and the city clerk, first making sure that all other required certifications have been duly
signed, and that construction engineering plans have been approved by the city and the subdivider
has entered into the required agreement to install public improvements and provided the
required performance guarantee.engineer.

Commented [CL25]: This doesn’t make sense. Are we
referring to City Staff approval?

Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 0.17", Space Before:
Auto, After: Auto

Commented [CL26]: We take all Final Plats to PC before
City Council

Commented [CL27]: This doesn’t make sense. Should we
just delete this paragraph as we already discussed above
the plat review.

L __________ _ 



3. The subdivider shall then cause signed prints of the plat to be provided to the city engineering
department engineer, the county recorder, the county assessor, and the planning department
commission, the city clerk, all at the expense of the subdivider.

43. The subdivider shall then record the plat in the county recorder's office and pay the recordation fee.
(Ord. 548, 11-28-2000)

3-3-7: INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT SUBMISSION:

A. Form And and Scale: Preliminary plat information hereinafter required shall be shown graphically
on one or more plan sheets with written data either entered directly thereon or attached thereto.
All mapped data for the same plat shall be drawn at the same standard engineering scale, such
scale having not more than one hundred feet (100') to the inch. Whenever practicable, the plan
scale shall be selected to produce an overall sheet measuring twenty four inches by thirty six
inches (24" x 36").

B. Identification Data:

1. Proposed subdivision name, location and section, township and range; reference by dimension and
bearing to a section corner or quarter-section corner.

2. Name, address and phone number of subdivider(s).

3. Name, address and phone number of engineer or surveyor preparing plat, together with the
registration number issued to such engineer or surveyor by the Nevada registering board.

4. Scale, north point and date of preparation, including dates of any subsequent revisions.

5. A small scale location map showing the relationship of the tract to existing community facilities which
serve or influence it, including: arterial streets, railroads, shopping centers, parks and playgrounds,
and churches.

6. Legal description defining the boundaries of the subdivision.

C. Existing Conditions Data:

1. Topography by one foot (1’) or two foot (2') contour intervals related to the city current coordinate
system shown on the same map as the proposed subdivision layout. Topographic data shall be
adequate to show the character and drainage of the land.

2. Location of water wells, streams, private ditches, washes and other water features, including
direction of flow; location and extent of areas subject to frequent periodic or occasional inundation.

3. The location of designated flood zones and/or special flood hazard areas.

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic
Commented [BT28]: The subdivider should just cause the
signed plat to be recorded.  Copies of the recorded plat are
distributed by the Recorder’s office.  This whole paragraph
can be removed.



4. Within or adjacent to the tract, the location, widths and names of all platted streets, railroads, utility
rights of way of public record, public areas, permanent structures to remain, and municipal
corporation lines.

5. Name, book and page numbers of all recorded plats abutting the tract or across a boundary street
from the tract.

6. Existing zoning classification of the tract and adjacent properties.

7. Dimensions of all tract boundaries; gross and net acreage of tract.

D. Proposed Conditions Data:

1. Street layout, including location and width of streets, alleys, sidewalks, pedestrianways and
easements, including connections to adjoining platted subdivisions and through unsubdivided tracts,
proposed names of all streets and approximate grade of all rights- of -way. A traffic impact analysis
may be required where additional traffic in the area may exceed city roadway capacities and warrant
traffic signal improvements, additional travel lanes or impact state highways.

2. Lot layout, including dimensions of typical each lots; and the dimensions of all corner lots and lots on
street curves; each lot numbered consecutively; total number of lots.

3. Location, width and proposed use of easements.

4. Location, extent and proposed use of all land to be dedicated or reserved for public use, including
school sites or parks.

5. Location and boundary of all proposed zoning districts.

6. Draft of proposed deed restrictions.

7. The subdivider and/or subdivision engineer shall provide a preliminary or conceptual grading plan;
including conceptual depiction of areas proposed for cut and fill; estimated quality of material to be
graded; estimated finished grades adequate to establish general grading trend; proposed methods
of erosion control; general location and specifications of any manufactured (cut or fill) slopes.

8. The subdivider shall comply with all applicable provisions of the city national pollutant discharge
elimination system general permit for discharges from small municipal separate storm sewer
systems, permit no. NV040000.

E. Proposed Utility Methods:

1. Sewage Disposal: It shall be the responsibility of the subdivider to furnish information as to design
for sewage disposal connecting to the city system.

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic.____ ________________ ~ 



2. Water Supply: Evidence of adequate volume and quality satisfactory to the city engineer from the
city system.

3. Storm Drainage: Preliminary drainage calculations and layout of proposed storm drainage system,
including locations of outlets, shall be submitted. Storm drainage shall comply with the Ccity of
NPDES permit requirements and current regulations.

4. Telephone, Power, Gas, Televisionand Television: Design and location shall be shown.

5. Will Serve Letters: The engineering Utility Ddepartment Director shall provide a water, and sewer
and solid waste disposal "will serve" letter to the applicable state agencies. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-8: INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FINAL PLAT SUBMISSION:

A. Form Andand Content: The final map shall be clearly and legibly drawn with black, waterproof
India ink upon good tracing cloth or Mylar, including affidavits, certificates and acknowledgments.
Each sheet shall be twenty four inches by thirty six two inches (24" x 3632") in size. A marginal
line shall be drawn completely around each sheet showing an entirely blanck margin of one inch
(1") at bottom, top and right edge, and two inches (2") on the left edge on the twenty four inch
(24") dimension. The scale of the map shall be not less than one inch equals one hundred feet
(1" = 100'). The particular number of the sheet and the total number of sheets comprising the
map shall be so stated on each of the sheets and the number in relation to each adjoining sheet
shall be clearly shown. The title sheet shall contain the location of the property being divided with
references to maps which have been previously recorded or by reference to the plat of the
United States survey. Copies of the final plat shall be reproduced in the form of blue line or black
line prints on the white background.

B. Identification Data:

1. Name of subdivision and location by section, township, range and county.

2. Name, address and registration number of the registered land surveyor preparing the plat. The land
surveyor preparing the plat must be registered in the state of Nevada.

3. Scale, north point and date of plat preparation.

C. Survey Data (Required):

1. Boundaries of the tract fully balanced and closed, showing all bearings and distances, determined by
an accurate survey in the field; all dimensions expressed in feet and decimals thereof.

2. Any exceptions within the plat boundaries located by bearings and distances expressed in feet and
decimals thereof, determined by an accurate survey in the field.

Commented [BT29]: Per NRS 278.372.2-_ I 



3. Location and description of cardinal points to which all dimensions, angles, bearings and similar data
on the plat shall be referenced; the subdivision traverse shall be tied by course and distance to a
section corner or quarter-section corners.

4. Location and description of all physical encroachments upon the boundaries of the tract.

D. Descriptive Data:

1. Name, right- of -way lines, courses, lengths and widths of all streets, alleys, pedestrianways and
utility easements; radii, points of tangency and central angles of all curvilinear streets and alleys;
radii of all rounded street line intersections.

2. All drainageways, designated as such.

3. All utility and public service easements, including designation whether for public access or utilities.

4. Location and dimensions of all lots, parcels and exceptions.

5. All residential lots shall be numbered consecutively throughout blocks.

6. Location, dimensions, bearings, radii, arcs, and central angles of boundaries of all sites to be
dedicated to the public, including designation of proposed use.

7. Location of all adjoining subdivisions with name, date, bookand book and page number of
recordation noted, or if unrecorded, so noted, along with names of adjoining landowners of
unsubdivided property.

8. Any private deed restrictions to be imposed upon the plat, or any part hereof, written on or attached
to the plat and each copy thereof.

E. Dedication Andand Acknowledgment:

1. Statement of dedication of all streets, alleys, pedestrianways, and easements for public purposes by
the person holding title of record, by persons holding title as vendees under land contract, and by
wives spouses of such persons. If lands to be dedicated are mortgaged, the mortgagee shall also
sign the plat. Dedication shall include a written description by section, township and range of the
tract. If the plat contains private streets, public utilities shall be reserved the right to install and
maintain utilities in such street rights- of -way.

2. Execution of dedication acknowledged and certified by a notary public.

F. Additional Information:



1. Where the centerline has been established for any street, highway, alley or public way within an
adjoining subdivision, all monuments along said street, highway, alley or public way within the
proposed subdivision shall be located with reference to that centerline which shall be shown on the
map.

2. The centerline of each highway, street, alley or way within the proposed subdivision and width on
each side of the centerline, and showing the width to be dedicated and there shall be designated on
all centerlines the bearing thereof and length of each radius, central angle and length of each curve
within the proposed subdivision.

3. The location of monuments or other evidence formed upon the ground and used in determining the
boundaries of the subdivision. If other subdivisions adjoin, the map shall show sufficient corners of
such adjoining subdivisions, sufficiently identified to locate precisely the limits of the proposed
subdivision.

4. The length and bearing of each block line, lot line and boundary line; the length, radius and central
angle of each curve or the length of curve and that portion of the central angle lying within each lot.
Such data shall be shown in a manner satisfactory to the cityeEngineering department. engineer.

5. Each city boundary line crossing or adjoining the subdivision with adequate ties to monuments set or
found within the subdivision.

6. Section lines, one-quarter (1/4) section lines and one-sixteenth (1/16) section lines crossing or
adjoining the subdivision boundaries.

G. City Engineering Department Engineer Toto Check:

1. The city engineer shall check said final map as to accuracy of dimensions, the placing of
monuments, the establishment of survey records shown on said map, and the conformance of said
map with the preliminary map. The final map shall be accompanied by:

a. A worksheet showing the closure of the exterior boundaries of the proposed subdivision and of the
closure of lots and blocks therein;

b. A complete set of construction plans are required by the city engineer showing site grading, lot
grading, typical street sections, centerline and curb grades, water infrastructure, water meters,
sanitary sewer and storm drain locations and invert grades and elevations, street lighting and
other private or public improvements determined to be required by the City. The construction
drawings must be stamped and dated by a civil engineer registered in the state;

c. Construction plans for manholes, catch basins and other appurtenant structure; and

d. An engineer’s estimate of quantities and costs required to complete the improvements. Costs are
to be based on prevailing wage, as applicable, in accordance with the requirements of NRS
338 and local rates. The city will check the engineer’s estimate and approve the engineer’s
estimate. The approved engineer’s estimate is to be the basis for the required performance
agreement guarantee in accordance with 3-3-45.

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic
Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic



2. The minimum allowable error of closure shall be one per-ten thousandth (1/10,000). Temperature and
tension correction shall be applied to all measured distances in conformance with the standard
adopted by the federal board of surveys and maps in May, 1925.

H. Required Certifications: The following certifications shall appear on the final map:

1. A certificate signed and acknowledged by all parties having any record title interest in the land
subdivided, consenting to the preparation and recordation of the map. A lien for state, county,
municipal or local taxes and for special assessments or beneficial interest under trust deeds or trust
interests under bond indentures shall not be deemed to be an interest in land for the purpose of this
section. Any map including territory originally patented by the United States or the state, under
patent reserving interest to either or both of the entities, may be recorded under the provisions of
Nevada Revised Statutes sections 278.010 through 278.730 inclusive, without the consent of the
United States or the state thereto, or to dedications made thereon. Signatures required by this
section of parties owning rights- of -way, easements or reversions which, by reason of changed
conditions, long disuse or laches appear to be no longer of practical use or value, and which
signatures it is impossible or impracticable to obtain, may be omitted if the names of such parties
and the nature of their interest is endorsed on the map, together with a reasonable statement of the
circumstances preventing the procurement of such signatures.

2. A certificate, signed and acknowledged as above, offering for dedication for certain specified public
uses (subject to such reservations as may be contained in any such offer of dedication) those certain
parcels of land which the parties desire so to dedicate. The certificate may state that any certain
parcel or parcels are not offered for dedication; but a local ordinance may require as a condition
precedent to the approval of any final map that any or all of the parcels of land shown thereon and
intended for any public use shall be offered for dedication for public use, except those parcels other
than streets intended for the exclusive use of the lot owners in such subdivision, their licensees,
visitors, tenants and servants.

3. A certificate for execution by the clerk of each approving governing body stating that the body
approved the map and accepted or rejected on behalf of the public any parcels of land offered for
dedication for public use in conformity with the terms of the offer of dedication.

4. A certificate signed and acknowledged by all parties having any record title in the land subdivided,
evidencing their grant of permanent easements for utility installations and access, as designated on
the map, together with a statement approving such easements, signed by each public utility
company or agency in whose favor the easements are created or whose utility services are to be
required for the platted parcels.

5. A certificate by the engineer or surveyor responsible for the survey and final map, which certificate
must be in the following form:

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I (name of surveyor), a registered land surveyor in the state of Nevada, certify that:

1. This is a true and accurate representation of the lands surveyed under my supervision at the
instance of (owner, trustee, etc.);

Commented [SAW30]: Can an engineer even do this and
if so why does the NRS requires a surveyor certificate.

Commented [BT31R30]: Correct, an engineer cannot do
a final plat.



2. The lands surveyed lie within (sections, township, range, meridian, and, if required by the
governing body, a description by metes and bounds for any subdivision which is divided into lots
containing 5 acres in area or less) and the survey was completed on (date);

3. This plat complies with the applicable state statutes and any local ordinances;

4. The monuments are of the character shown and occupy the positions indicated by (a day certain)
and that an appropriate performance bond has been or will be posted with the governing body to
assure their installation.

(date, name of surveyor, registration number and seal)

6. A certificate by the city engineer or city surveyor stating that he has examined the final map, that the
subdivision as shown thereon is substantially the same as it appeared on the tentative map, and any
approved alterations thereof, that all provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes sections 270.010
through 278.630, inclusive, and of any local ordinance applicable at the time of approval of the
tentative map have been complied with, and that he is satisfied that the map is technically correct
and that the monuments as shown are of the character and occupy the positions indicated or that
the monuments have not been set and that a proper performance bond has been deposited
guaranteeing their setting on or before a day certain. The certificate shall be dated and signed and
certified by a registered land surveyor or a registered civil engineer.

7. A certificate by the state health division reading:

This final map is approved by the health division of the department of human resources
concerning sewage disposal, water pollution, water quality and water supply facilities in accordance
with the Nevada Revised Statutes. This approval predicates (community, individual) water supply
and (community, individual) sewage disposal.

8. A copy of the review by the state engineer required by subsection H7 of this section shall be
furnished to the subdivider who in turn shall provide a copy of such review to each purchaser of land
prior to the time the sale is completed. No statement of approval or review as required in subsection
H7 of this section is a warranty or representation in favor of any person as to the safety or quantity of
such water.

9. The final subdivision map shall contain the following certificate:

Division of Water Resource Certificate: This final map is approved by the division of water
resources of the department of conservation and natural resources concerning water quantity
subject to the review of approval on file in this office.

10. The city councilCity Council shall not approve any final map for a subdivision served by the city
water system unless the subdivider has submitted plans which provide for the installation of water
meters or other devices which will measure water delivered to each water user in the subdivision.
(Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-20: GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

Commented [SAW32]: NDEP?1--------------------------------------------~---



A. Conformance With Master Plan: Every subdivision shall conform to requirements and objectives
of the city master plan, to the city zoning ordinance, to other ordinances and regulations of the
city and to the statutes of the state, except as otherwise provided in this chapter.

B. Provision Of Public Facility Sites: Whenever the statutes of the state permit the dedication of
school sites or parks, the city councilCity Council may require the subdivider to dedicate such
sites.

C. Land Unsuitability: No land shall be subdivided which is determined by the planning
commissionPlanning Commission to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding, concentrated
runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography, erosion
susceptibility or similar conditions which are likely to prove harmful to the health, safety and
general welfare of the community or the future property owners. The planning
commissionPlanning Commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state the
particular facts upon which its conclusions are based, and shall also define the conditions under
which the land may, in its opinion, become suitable for the proposed development. Land located
within any floodway as designated on the city flood insurance rate maps shall be deemed
unsuitable for development by local, state and federal regulation. Any subdivider proposing
development of such land shall have the right to present evidence to the city councilCity Council
contesting such determination of unsuitability, whereupon the city councilCity Council may affirm,
modify or withdraw the restriction. (Ord. 768, 1-22-2013)

3-3-21: STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance With Plan: Whenever a tract to be subdivided embraces part of a street designated
in a city official street and highway plan, such street shall be platted in conformance therewith.

B. Layout: Street layout shall provide for the continuation of such streets as necessary to provide
traffic and pedestrian access throughout the community and as the planning
commissionPlanning Commission may designate.

C. Neighborhood Plan: Whenever the tract is located within an area for which a neighborhood plan
has been approved by the planning commissionPlanning Commission, the street arrangement
shall conform to such plan.

D. Extensions: Certain proposed streets, as designated by the planning commissionPlanning
Commission, shall be extended to the tract boundary to provide future connection with adjoining
unplatted lands. Such extensions shall generally not be farther apart than the maximum
permitted length of a block, as hereinafter provided.

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic



E. Arrangement Of Residential Streets: Residential streets shall be so arranged as to discourage
their use by traffic originating outside the immediate neighborhood.

F. Protection Of Residential Properties: Lots intended for single-family residential use shall not
normally front or have access from arterial streets. Where a proposed subdivision abuts an
existing or proposed arterial street, the planning commissionPlanning Commission may require
marginal access streets or reverse property frontage with nonaccess easements abutting the
arterial street, or such other treatment as may be justified for protection of residential properties
from the nuisance and hazard of high volume traffic, and for protection of the traffic function of
the arterial street.

G. Parallel Streets: Where a residential subdivision abuts the right of way of a railroad, a limited
access highway, or a commercial or industrial land use, the planning commissionPlanning
Commission may require location of a street approximately parallel to such right of way or use at
a distance being determined with due regard for approach grades, drainage, bridges and future
grade separation.

H. Topography: Streets shall be so arranged in relation to topography as to produce desirable lots or
maximum utility and streets of reasonable gradient, and to facilitate adequate surface drainage.

I. Alleys: Where alleys are platted, their alignment and arrangement shall be such as to minimize
backtracking and single tier service by trash collection forces and to avoid the facing of
residences directly into alley openings.

J. Half Streets: Half streets shall be prohibited unless approved by the planning commissionPlanning
Commission, and conditions which will be considered for approval are: where necessary to
provide right of way indicated on the official street and highway plan, to complete a street pattern
already begun, or to ensure reasonable development of an adjoining unplatted parcel. Where a
platted half street exists abutting to residential lots, the remaining half street shall be platted
within the tract.

K. Dead End Streets: Dead end streets in excess of six hundred eighty feet (680') in length shall be
prohibited unless a modification is granted by the planning commissionPlanning Commission in
locations designated by the commission as necessary for future street connection to adjacent
unplatted lands. This shall include cul-de-sacs.



L. Intersection Design: Whenever any street or highway is proposed requiring a separation of grades
or requiring any special form of intersection design at its intersection with any street, highway or
railway, the subdivision shall be so designed to conform to any plan adopted by the city for the
intersection design and all lots within the subdivision shall, when necessary, be provided with
suitable access from another public way. Any street or highway intersecting with other street or
highway shall intersect it at any angle as nearly a right angle as shall be practicable. (Ord. 548,
11-28-2000)

3-3-22: STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right O-of-w Way Widths:

1. Arterial Streets: One hundred feet (100').

2. Minor Arterial Streets: Eighty feet (80').

3. Collector Streets: Seventy feet (70').

4. Collector Residential Streets: Sixty feet (60').

5. Local Residential Streets: Fifty feet (50').

6. Collector Rural Residential Streets: Seventy feet (70').

7. Local Rural Residential Streets: Sixty feet (60').

8. Hillside Rural Residential Streets: Sixty feet (60').

9. Rural Streets Andand Roads: All rural streets and roads shall conform with the following provisions:

a. All infrastructure associated with the rural road shall be constructed at the time on road
development; including but not limited to; culvert installation and pedestrian way, sidewalk
or pathway construction.

b. All rural road standards shall include a minimum ten foot (10') wide public utility easement and slope
easement on one or both sides of the street right- of- way. The city engineer shall have the
authority to require an ability to increase in the width of the easement in special circumstances.
and when warranted.

cb. Rural roads which are projected by traffic study or analysis to serve more than six hundred (600)
average daily vehicle trips shall utilize the collector rural residential street design standard.

dc. Pedestrian ways, sSidewalks or pathways associated with rural roads may be constructed of
concrete cement, asphalt or comparable material subject to the approval of the city engineer.
Sidewalks or pathways shall be constructed on both sides of the street. Pedestrian ways,
sidewalks or pathways shall not be constructed within the required ten foot (10’) public utility
and slope easement.



ed. On street parking on rural roads shall be prohibited except for temporary/emergency purposes and
shall be appropriately signed.

fe. To minimize excessive culvert installation and associated maintenance, access approaches for rural
roads shall be limited to one driveway, not to exceed thirty feet (30') in width or two (2) separated
driveways, each of which is not to exceed twenty feet (20') in width. Culvert installation is required
at the time of roadway construction and shall not be deferred.

g. Rural roads are prohibited in subdivisions not meeting the criteria stipulated in Section 3-2-
5(A)(5)(b).

h. Rural roads are prohibited in areas within capture zones as delineated in the City’s Wellhead
Protection Plan.

10. Private Streets: Development and use of private streets is limited to local type streets with a local
street classification, function and characteristics. Private streets are intended to serve self-contained
projects, and shall access the public street system at an intersection subject to the review and
approval of the city engineer. All private streets shall conform with the following provisions:

a. Minimum total width for private streets: Fifty feet (50').

b. Minimum total width for private streets accessing four (4) or fewer lots: Thirty two feet (32').

c. Minimum paved section for private streets: Forty feet (40').

d. Minimum paved section for private streets accessing four (4) or fewer lots: Twenty six feet (26').

e. All residential private streets accessing twenty (20) or fewer lots shall have a four foot (4') wide
sidewalk on at least one side of the street.

f. All residential private streets accessing more than twenty (20) lots shall have a four foot (4') wide
sidewalk on both sides of the street.

g. All commercial and industrial private streets accessing four (4) or fewer lots shall have a five foot (5')
wide sidewalk on at least one side of the street, or as otherwise determined as part of an approved
concept development plan.

h. All commercial and industrial private streets accessing more than four (4) lots shall have a five foot
(5') wide sidewalk on both sides of the street, or as otherwise determined as part of an approved
concept development plan.

i. All private streets shall provide for adequate storm drainage and employ use of curb and gutter
sections to convey runoff subject to the review and approval of the city. engineer.

j. Parking spaces, inclusive of back up area, as required by section 3-2-17 of this title, shall not be
located within a private street, or as otherwise waived or determined as part of an approved concept
development plan.

k. Design and construction of improvements associated with private streets shall be subject to a
standard guarantee of performance to ensure completion of required improvements and a



maintenance agreement to ensure that improvements are maintained to an acceptable standard
over time as set forth in sections 3-3-44 and 3-3-45 of this chapter.

11. Cul-De-Sacs: Cul-de-sac streets shall terminate in a circular right- of- way not less than fifty feet
(50') in radius with an improved turning circle at least forty five feet (45') in radius. The planning
commissionPlanning Commission may approve an equally convenient form of turning space where
justified by unusual conditions. Maximum length of cul-de-sac streets, as measured along the
centerline of the street and between the centerline of the intersecting street and the center point of
the cul-de-sac, shall not exceed six hundred eighty feet (680').

a. Length Forfor Rural Roads: Maximum cul-de-sac length for rural roads may be increased in
dimension to serve no more than twenty (20) residential dwelling units, but under no circumstance
shall exceed a length of one thousand three hundred sixty feet (1,360').

b. Marginal Access Streets: As required by adopted current city standards.

12. Alleys: Where permitted or required, shall be a minimum of twenty feet (20') wide.

where there is residential property on both sides, and twenty feet (20') where abutting commercial or
industrial property.

a. Alley intersections and sharp changes in alignment shall be avoided, but, where necessary, corners
shall be cut off ten feet (10') on each side to permit safe vehicular movement.

b. Dead end alleys shall be prohibited.

c. "Half" alleys shall be prohibited.

13. Dead End Streets: Where permitted, a dead end street shall provide by easements, a temporary
turning circle with a fifty foot (50') radius or other approved and acceptable design to accomplish the
same purpose.

14. All Streets: The design and construction of all streets, including private streets, within the city shall
conform to the public improvement standards established by the city engineer and approved by the
city councilCity Council as set forth in section 3-3-40 of this chapter.

15. Fire Code: All streets shall conform to current adopted fire codes.

B. Street Grades:

1. Maximum Grades:

a. Arterial and minor arterial streets: As determined by the city engineerEngineering department.

b. Collector streets: Seven percent (7%).

c. Collector residential and local residential streets: Nine percent (9%).



2. Minimum Grades: Asphalt streets with concrete gutters shall have a minimum longitudinal slope of
0.50%for all new streets, and as approved by the City for rehabilitation of existing streets.

3. Exceptions: Where rigid adherence to these standards causes unreasonable or unwarranted
hardship in design or cost without commensurate public benefit, exceptions may be made by the
planning commissionPlanning Commission.

C. Vertical Curves:

1. Arterial and minor arterial streets: As determined by the city engineerEngineering department.

2. Collection and local streets: Minimum length, one hundred feet (100').k value of 30 for crests and 40
for sag curves. Vertical curves are not required when the algebraic difference in the two slopes is
less than 2%

D. Horizontal Alignment:

1. Arterial and minor arterial streets shall be as determined by the city engineer.Engineering
department.

2. When tangent centerlines deflect from each other by more than ten degrees (10o) and less than
ninety degrees (90o), they shall be connected by a curve having a minimum centerline radius of two
hundred feet (200') for collector streets, or one hundred feet (100') for collector residential and local
residential streets.

3. Between reverse curves, there shall be a tangent section of centerline not less than one hundred
feet (100') long.

4. Streets intersecting an arterial street shall do so at a ninety degree (90o) angle. Intersecting collector
streets, collector residential streets and local residential streets shall typically intersect at ninety
degree (90o) angles, but in no case at less than seventy five degree (75o) angles.

5. Street jogs shall be avoided, except where justified by unusual existing conditions, and approved by
the city engineerEngineering department.

6. Local residential streets or collector residential streets intersecting a collector street or arterial street
shall have a tangent section of centerline at least one hundred fifty feet (150') in length measured
from the right of way line of the more major street, except that no such tangent shall be required
when the local residential or collector residential street curve has a centerline radius greater than
four hundred feet (400') measured from a center located on the more major street right of way line.

7. Street intersections with more than four (4) legs, and Y-type intersections with legs meeting at acute
angles, shall be prohibited.

8. Intersections of street lines shall be rounded by a circular arc having a minimum tangent length of
fifteen feet (15'). (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)



3-3-23: BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length Ofof Blocks: Within the following maximums, blocks shall be as long as
reasonably possible, in order to achieve all possible street economy and to reduce the expense
and safety hazard arising from excessive street intersections. Maximum block length, measured
along the centerline of the street and between intersecting street centerlines, shall not exceed
one thousand three hundred sixty feet (1,360').

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrianways: Sidewalks or Pedestrianways with a right- of- way width of eight
feet (8') may be required where, in the opinion of the planning commissionPlanning Commission,
they are essential for pedestrian circulation within the subdivision or access to schools,
playgrounds or other community facilities. Sidewalks or Pedestrianways may be used for utility
purposes. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-24: LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth Andand Area: Lot width, depth and area shall comply with requirements of the
zoning requirements appropriate for the location and character of development proposed,
including the requirements stipulated in 3-2-26, and for the type and extent of urban street
and utility public improvements being installed. "Urban improvements" is interpreted to mean
paved and curb streets, sidewalks, local storm drainage system, public water supply and public
sanitary sewage. However, where steep topography, unusual soil conditions or drainage
problems exist or prevail, the planning commissionPlanning Commission may require increased
lot width, depth and/or area exceeding the minimum requirements of the particular zoning
district.

B. Lot Depthand Width: Generally, lot depths shall be at least one hundred feet (100') and widths at
least sixty feet (60'); provided, however, that the planning commissionPlanning Commission may
allow narrower widths on cul-de-sacs.

C. Building Setback: Minimum front and exterior side building setbacks shall conform to the
applicable provisions of this code.

D. Side Lot Lines: Side lot lines shall be substantially at right angles or radial to street lines, except
where, in the opinion of the planning commissionPlanning Commission, other alignment may be
justified.

Commented [BT33]: I don’t think this paragraph should
be about sidewalks. It is more about the platted right-of-
way that is used as a pedestrianway, not the actual hard
surface.  Especially in the last sentence, sidewalks are not
used for utility purposes, it is the plated way that may
contain the utilities.
These 8’ wide pedestrian ways would be required to have
sidewalks that are only 4 or 5 feet wide.  If we want to have
a statement that allows us to require 8’ wide sidewalks
when necessary, that should be said differently.

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic-------- --------------------------~ 



E. Accessibility: Every lot shall abut a public street or private street connecting with the public street
system.

F. Prohibitions: Double frontage lots intended for single-family residences shall be prohibited;
provided, that, subject to the approval of the planning commissionPlanning Commission, such
lots may be platted abutting an arterial street so long as dwellings front on local or collector
streets and all access from the arterial street is prohibited. (Ord. 557, 2-13-2001)

3-3-25: EASEMENT PLANNING:

Utilities shall be placed underground unless a modification is approved to permit overhead utilities by
the planning commissionPlanning Commission and only where overhead utilities are determined
acceptable by the commission:

A. Utility Easements:

1. Where alleys are platted, utility easements four feet (4') wide on each side of alley for aerial
overhang shall be provided by dedication. Where alleys are not platted, utility easements six feet (6')
wide on each side of rear lot lines shall be provided and delineated on the plat. In addition, guy and
anchor easements shall be provided one foot (1') wide on each side of a side lot line and thirty five
feet (35') in length measured from the rear lot line, in locations selected by the utility committee, or
as required by the utility company.

2. Along side lot lines where required for distribution facilities, utility easements five feet (5') wide on
each side of side lot lines; where service to street lighting is required: one foot (1') on each side of
such lot lines, or as required by the utility company.

B. Underground Utilities: Where all utilities are underground:

1. Rear Lot Lines: Where alleys are platted, easements as required by serving utilities. Where alleys
are not platted, five feet (5’) wide along each side of rear lot lines.

2. Side Lot Lines: All utility service lines, including gas, electric, telephone and street lighting, shall be
channeled in easements four five feet (4'5') wide on each side of the lot line separating pairs of lots,
as required by the utilities for service.

3. Street Rights-of-way: Seven and on half foot (7.5’) wide utility easements are required along all
street rights-of-way.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: For lots facing on curvilinear streets, alleys and easements for
overhead utilities shall usually consist of a series of straight lines with points of deflection not



less than one hundred twenty feet (120') apart, such points of deflection always occurring at the
junction of side and rear lot lines on the side of the exterior angle; however, curvilinear
easements or alleys may be employed, providing that the minimum radii of centerlines shall be
not less than eight hundred feet (800').

D. Public Drainage Easement: Where a stream or major surface drainage course abuts or crosses
the tract, dedication of a public drainage easement which is sufficient to permit widening,
deepening, relocating or protecting such drainage course shall be required. Information shall be
prepared by subdivider's engineer. Additionally, five foot (5’) wide drainage easements are
required along all side and rear lot lines, and seven and one half foot (7.5’) wide drainage
easements are required along all street rights-of-way.

E. Land Not Considered Minimum Lot Area: Land within a public street or drainage easement, or
land within a utility easement for major power transmission lines or pipelines, shall not be
considered a part of the minimum required lot area; provided, however, that this provision shall
not be applicable to land included in utility easements to be used for distribution or service
purposes, nor shall it be applicable to the five foot (5’) wide and seven and one half foot (7.5’)
wide drainage easements along the lot lines and street right-s-of-way.

F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: Lots arranged to back of arterial streets, railroads, canals or
commercial or industrial districts, as provided in this chapter, shall have a minimum depth of one
hundred ten feet (110'), the rear one foot (1') of which shall be recorded as a nonaccess private
easement.

G. Water And Sewer Utility Lines: Municipal water and sewer utility line shall be installed within the
city street right- of- way at all times, unless otherwise approved by the planning
commissionPlanning Commission and/or city councilCity Council. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-26: STREET NAMING:

At the preliminary plat stage, the subdivider shall propose names for all streets, which. nNames shall
be subject to be approved approval by the planning commissionPlanning Commission. (Ord. 226,
12-9-1975)

3-3-27: STREET LIGHTING DESIGN STANDARDS:

A. Requirements: Street lighting shall be installed within any division/development of land project in
accordance with the following requirements:

1. The subdivider, developer or property owner is responsible for complying with the requirement to
install street lighting and shall make all necessary arrangements with the utility company involved for
the installation of streetlights and bear all costs relating to the purchase and placement of

_1 [21 



streetlights. Installation of street lighting materials shall be performed by a state licensed contractor
also having a city business license prior to commencing any work.

2. Street lighting plans are to be prepared by the utility company involved and shall be submitted by the
subdivider, developer or property owner with the improvement plans to the city for review. Such
plans shall show the location of each light, power source and size of luminaries in watts or lumens.

3. All street lighting within each construction phase shall be complete and operational prior to
acceptance of subdivision public improvements or an issuance of any certificate of occupancy.

4. Requests for street lighting in previously developed areas must be approved by the city engineer for
location and installation prior to being submitted to the utility company for design engineering.

5. Once the street lighting has been installed and operational, approval by the city engineer willcity will
constitute acceptance of the street lighting and the city will then be responsible for the energy costs
and maintenance thereafter.

B. Design Standards: All streetlight installations shall be designed in accordance with the following
minimum design standards:

1. All luminaries shall be a minimum of one hundred (100) watt high pressure sodium for residential
areas and minimum two hundred (200) watt high pressure sodium for commercial/industrial areas or
approved equal.

2. A streetlight shall be placed at each street intersection and shall be situated to properly illuminate the
intersection.

3. A streetlight shall be placed at any proposed U.S. postal Postal service Service gang box location.

4. Streetlights shall be placed between intersections at midblock locations such that a minimum
spacing of three hundred fifty feet (350') and maximum of five hundred feet (500') is maintained
between all lights.

5. A streetlight shall be placed at the end of each cul-de-sac. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-40: RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS:

The design, construction and financing of all required public improvements, such as but not
limited to, grading, sidewalks, curbs, streetlights, gutters, pavements, sanitary sewers, storm
sewers, water mains, fire hydrants, drainage structures and monuments shall be the responsibility of
the subdivider and shall conform to public improvement standards established by the city engineer
and approved by the city councilCity Council; provided, however, that the subdivider may meet such
requirements by participation in an improvement district approved by the city. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-41: CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING PLANS:

It shall be the responsibility of the subdivider to have prepared by an engineer registered in the state,
a complete set of construction engineering plans, satisfactory to the city cityengineer, for

Commented [BT34]: We don’t often see these, and
should start enforcing this more.

Commented [BT35]: Is this a good time to consider
changing to LED for new lights?

Commented [BT36]: This does not work for a 600’ long
block.



construction of all required public street and utility improvements. Such plans shall be based on and
be prepared in conjunction with the final plat. Construction Engineering plans shall have been
approved by the city engineer prior to recordation of the final plat. (Ord. 226, 12-9-1975)

3-3-42: CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION:

A. Permits Required: All improvements in the public right- of- way shall be constructed under the
inspection and approval of the city. engineer. Construction shall not commence until the
subdivsider has entered into a performance Agreement in accordance with 3-3-44 and 3-3-
45. Construction shall not be commenced until all federal, state, and local permits have been
issued for such construction, and if work has been discontinued for any reason, it shall not be
resumed until after notifying in advance the department having jurisdiction.

B. Underground Utilities: All underground utilities to be installed in streets shall be constructed prior
to the surfacing of such streets. Service stubs to platted lots within the subdivision for
underground utilities shall be placed to such length as to avoid disturbance of street
improvements when service connections are made. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-43: REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS:

A. Streets Andand Alleys: All streets and alleys within the subdivision shall be graded, drained and
surfaced to cross sections, grades and standards, and profile approved by the city engineer.
Where there are existing streets adjacent to the subdivision, proposed streets shall be fully
improved to the intercepting paving line of such existing streets. Temporary dead end streets
serving more than four (4) lots shall be provided a graded asphalt all weathersurfaced,
temporary turning circle. Construct adequate permanent culverts and bridges at all points within
the subdivision where watercourses are crossed by streets or alleys, said construction to be in
conformity with the specifications of the city engineer for such structures, and said structures
shall be constructed to the full width of the dedicated street or alley.

B. Curbs: Curbs shall be portlandPortland cement concrete. Curbs and gutters and valley gutters
shall be constructed as designated by the city engineer.

C. Sidewalks: Four feet (4') wide in residential or local streets areas and five feet (5') wide on all
streets classified as collector, minor arterial, arterial, or major arterial within the City’s
jurisdiction. Sidewalks on streets outside the City’s jurisdiction will be determined by the
governing agency. Sidewalks in commercial zoned areas shall be constructed on both sides of
all streets. with fifty foot (50') pavement width. In subdivisions where lots average one-half (1/2)
acre or more, the planning commission may waive this requirement.

Commented [BT37]: We have allowed gravel turning
circles for temporary dead ends on many recent
subdivisions.  We should either make this change, or start
enforcing the asphalt requirement.  I vote for making the
change.

_ ------l 

------------



D. Pedestrianways: Portland cement concrete or approved paving of walks shall be constructed to a
width, line and grade approved by the city engineer. Fencing on both sides with a four foot (4'),
maintenance free fence with posts set in concrete may be required.

E. Street Name Signs: Street name signs shall have been installed at all street intersections by the
time the street pavement is ready for use. Design, construction, location and installation shall
conform to approved city standards.

F. Storm Drainage: The design and construction of public streets and alleys, and the grading of
private properties shall provide for adequate disposal of stormwaters. Existing major drainage
courses shall be maintained and dedicated as public drainageways. The type, extent, location
and capacity of drainage facilities shall be planned by subdivider's engineer and approved by
city. engineer. Install to the grade and in the locations and to the depth and of the materials
shown on plans and specifications approved by the city engineer, storm and surface water drain
pipes and mains, together with catch basins and to provide discharge from the same in a manner
and at a place to be approved by the city. engineer.

G. Sanitary Sewerage:

1. Public sanitary sewers shall be installed in all subdivisions which are accessible to an existing or
planned and programmed public sewer system, as determined by the city. engineer. Sewers shall be
constructed to plans, profiles, and specifications approved by the Nevada Division of Environmental
Protection, the City and in accordance with approved City standards and NRS requirments. health
department and city engineer. The subdivider shall install to the grade and in the locations and to the
depth and of the material shown on the plans and specifications approved by the city engineer,
sanitary sewer mains with connections therefrom to each lot in said subdivision, said mains to be
connected to the sewer system of the city at a point to be specified by the city engineer.

2. Install all necessary manholes in connection with the installation of sanitary sewer mains, said
manholes to be installed at the points and in the manner and according to the specifications
approved by the city. engineer.

H. Water Supply:

1. Each lot shall be supplied with safe, pure and potable water in sufficient volume and pressure for
domestic use and fire protection, in accordance with approved city standards and NRS
requirements. The subdivider shall install, to grade, all water mains and lines of the materials
shown on plans and specifications approved by the city engineer., Cconnections from said mains
and lines to be installed to each lot in said subdivision. Construction plans Maps and plats shall
show location of shutoff valves to each block and lot. All proposed water systems shall connect to
the city system.

Commented [BT38]: Sentence fragment.  What is your
intention here Scott?

--



2. Water meter boxes and water meters shall be installed on all lots in conformance with adopted city
specifications and subject to the review and approval of the city. engineering department.

I. Fire Hydrants: Fire hydrants shall be installed in all subdivisions in accordance with approved city
standards as set by the fire department, and current adopted fire codes and standards.

J. Power, Communications And and Gas Utilities: Subdivision required improvements shall include
electric power, natural gas, telephone and cable television. These utilities shall be installed in all
subdivisions. All electric distribution facilities shall be installed underground, except in unusual
situations involving short extensions of overhead facilities existing on abutting subdivisions
wherein such extensions may be approved by the city councilCity Council. All such underground
electric distribution lines and telephone lines shall be installed in accordance with Ggeneral
Oorder Nno. 9 as issued by the public service commission of the state.

K. Survey Monuments: Permanent monuments shall be installed in accordance with approved city
standards at all corners, angle points, points or of curve, and at all street intersections. After all
improvements have been installed, the subdivider shall have a registered land surveyor check
the location of monuments and certify their accuracy. Monuments shall be at or near boundary
corners. Monuments shall be set at intermediate points of approximately one thousand feet
(1,000') or at such lesser distances as may be necessary by reason of topography or culture to
ensure accuracy in the reestablishment of any point or line without unreasonable difficulty. All
monuments shall be permanently and visibly marked with the registration or license number of
the registered land surveyor under whose supervision the survey was made, and a description of
such monument shall be shown on the final map. The subdivider shall set monuments at street
intersections and at the beginning and ending of each curve, unless the intersection of tangents
of said centerline falls within the street right of way in which event the city engineer may permit
the subdivider to establish a monument at such intersection in lieu of monuments at said
beginning and end of curve.

L. Lot Corner Staking: Five-eighths inch (5/8") reinforcing steel with a cap having a mark for the exact
point and stamped “PLS” followed by the number of the professional land surveyor’s license shall
be set at all corners, angle points and points of curve for each subdivision lot prior to final
acceptance of the subdivision. The cost for lot corner staking, under the direction of a
professional land surveyor, shall be included as part of the public improvements and shall be a
line item on the "engineer's estimate of the costs of the public improvements".

M. Street Lighting: Street lighting shall be required on all streets within the subdivision as required in
section 3-3-27 of this chapter and shall be placed at locations designated by the city engineer
and to the specifications with respect to materials, design and construction as set forth by the
city engineer. The subdivider will bear all costs relating to the purchase and placement of the
streetlights.; provided, however, if the city and the power company can reach an agreement
whereby the city is reimbursed for costs, the city may participate in the installation of the lights.



N. Stormwater Discharge Andand Land Disturbance: All construction activities that may create a
land disturbance of greater than one acre shall comply with state construction site stormwater
general permit requirements and the city national pollutant discharge elimination system general
permit for discharges from small municipal separate storm sewer systems. This requires
developers and/or contractors to obtain a state stormwater discharge permit and city grading
permit for these projects. Construction site stormwater erosion protection shall be provided on all
projects. Permanent stormwater erosion measures meeting the minimum requirements of the
city stormwater management plan will be enforced.

O. Full Frontage: Public utility construction and installation is required across the full frontage of
property at time of development. (Ord. 739, 8-9-2011)

P. Site Grading: Sufficient site grading to achieve the required improvements, ensure buildable lot
area and ensure adequate site drainage control.

3-3-44: PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS:

A. Provisions of Performance Agreement: Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3-3-44, prior
to approval of the final plat by the City CouncilCity Council, the subdivider/developer shall enter into
and have on file with the Ccity a performance agreement, fully executed by the subdivider/developer
and the Ccity, containing the following provisions and requirements:

1. That all subdivision improvements identified in the performance agreement shall be
completed within a specified period, not to exceed two (2) years, to the satisfaction of the Ccity;

2. That in the event the required subdivision improvements are not completed within the
specified period, the Ccity may, at its option, complete or cause to be completed the improvements
and thereafter recover from the subdivider/developer the full cost and expenses therefor;

3. That the subdivider/developer shall provide the Ccity with engineering plans for all
improvements;

4. That the engineering plans and all required improvements shall be approved by the Ccity
prior to the commencement of construction; and

5. That a performance guarantee given in the form of a bond or irrevocable letter of credit
shall not expire or be released prior to completion all required subdivision improvements and written
authorization by the Ccity permitting the performance guarantee to expire or be released.

B. Additional Provisions: Notwithstanding any other requirements set forth in Subsection 3-3-44(A),
the performance agreement may, in the discretion of the Ccity, also contain any of the following
provisions and requirements:

1. That the construction of improvements shall take place in specified stages.

2. That the subdivider/developer shall, at its own expense, perform all testing of materials
and the inspection of improvements to ensure that the improvements meet the Ccity’s construction
standards.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted ... [1]
Commented [SAW39]: need to check final plat approval
under definitions

Formatted ... [2]
Formatted ... [3]

Formatted ... [4]

Formatted ... [5]

Formatted ... [6]

Formatted ... [7]

Formatted ... [8]

Formatted ... [9]

Formatted ... [10]

( 

C 

r-
i r-, 
( c-J 

H 

H 

H 

1c======;;;;;~~H~ 



3. That the time to complete construction may be extended by the Ccity, in its discretion,
under certain specified conditions.

4. That, notwithstanding any other provision in the City Code and without in any manner
diminishing the subcontractor/developer’s obligation to provide a maintenance bond pursuant to
section 3-3-45 of this Code, the Ccity may, in its discretion, suspend the time for the
subdivider/developer to provide a performance guarantee to the Ccity, subject to the following:

a. The subdivider/developer must demonstrate that it has the capacity to complete
the subdivision improvements through the use of its own resources and without the use of
subcontractors;

b. The subdivider/developer must agree to construct all subdivision improvements
with its own resources and without the use of subcontractors according to a schedule established by
the City; provided, the total time to complete improvements shall be equal to the time that would be
required under a performance agreement;

c. The subdivider/developer must, immediately upon demand, provide to the Ccity
and the Ccity may thereafter utilize as needed a performance guarantee in accordance with Section
3-3-45 of this Code.

d. In the event the subdivider/developer fails to construct all required subdivision
improvements according to the schedule established by the Ccity, then, the Ccity may thereafter
complete the subdivision improvements at its own expense and to recover an amount equal to the
cost thereof, together with all reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred in the enforcement of this
Subsection .

e. The Ccity may utilize a performance guarantee provided under this subsection to
reimburse itself for any costs incurred in completing subdivision improvements as provided in the
preceding subsection or for any other purpose allowed under Section 3-3-45 of this Code.
C. Modifications, Extensions: At the written request of the subdivider/developer, the terms and
conditions, to include time frames, contained in an executed performance agreement may be
modified by the City CouncilCity Council upon demonstration of just cause by the
subdivider/developer, so long as the modification does not frustrate the purposes of the City Code or
relieve the subdivider/developer of the requirement to construct or compensate the City for
constructing the required subdivision improvements. The subdivider/developer shall, at the time of
filing the written request, pay a filing fee to the Ccity in an amount established by resolution of the
City CouncilCity Council.

D. Inspection Costs: The subdivider/developer shall pay the cost of inspection, testing and surveying
of all subdivision improvements. If the City determines that the subdivider/developer is not providing
adequate inspection and testing through a qualified engineer and/or surveyor licensed to work in the
State of Nevada, then the City may, in its discretion, order the subdivider/developer to immediately
stop work and thereafter the City may hire a qualified engineer, surveyor or firm to perform the
remaining surveying, inspection and/or testing. The subdivider/developer shall promptly reimburse
the City for the cost of hiring a qualified engineer, surveyor or firm to perform the remaining
surveying, inspection and/or testing upon written demand and prior to final acceptance of subdivision
improvements.

E. As-Built Drawings: The subdivider/developer, or the subdivider/developer’s engineer, shall
provide as-built drawings of all subdivision improvements to the City. The as-built drawings shall be
submitted in digital format with a paper copy. All paper copies shall be "wet stamped" by the

Formatted ... [11]
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Commented [JD40]: Should we add that a bond in the
amount of the maintenance bond is required at the time we
enter into the agreement?

Formatted ... [12]
Commented [JD41]: Most of the developers in the city
utilize one or more subcontractors in completing their
improvements.  I think its ok if we state that they are
required to complete all of the improvements through the
use of its own resources.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt

Commented [DMS 242]: I’m open on this one, but it
seems like if they are going to use subcontractors, we might
as well do it the normal way.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Commented [JD43]: Does this allow us to have a shorter
timeframe for the improvements, say 18 months instead of
24 allowed in other sections of this code?

Formatted ... [13]
Formatted ... [14]
Commented [DMS 244]: Maybe a happy medium?

Formatted ... [15]
Formatted ... [16]
Commented [JD45]: I see this as being the hardest part
of this section, if we don’t have a bond in place, this may
require legal action to recover the funds required for these
improvements.

Formatted ... [17]
Formatted ... [18]
Commented [DMS 246]: Maybe something like this?

Formatted ... [19]
Formatted ... [20]
Formatted ... [21]
Formatted ... [22]
Commented [JD47]: We don’t use Mylar for as-builts
anymore, typically it is just a paper copy wet stamped.

Formatted ... [23]

~==~=-=-=--=--~~--=--=--=----=~--=--=--=--

== -==~==~==~=-=-c==--=---==--=---==-=1____='.:==-~-===-~~~ . i~----J, 
===~-=;=======-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-=-- 11' 

1\1 

f\~---~ 
\ I\ \~------7 

I 

r-
I _c= I 

I I 

_c= 
r-

\ I 
l c= 

_c= 
c= 



subdivision engineer or surveyor prior to being submitted to the City.

F. Qualified Contractors: All public improvements shall be constructed by contractors that are
qualified and appropriately licensed by the State of Nevada to perform the work.

3-3-45: PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE:

A. Forms of Guarantee: Prior to execution of a performance agreement pursuant to Section 3-3-45
and prior to approval of the final map by the City CouncilCity Council, the subdivider/developer shall
provide the Ccity with a performance guarantee for the completion of all required subdivision
improvements in one of the following forms, subject to approval by the Ccity:

1. Performance Bond: A performance or surety bond in an amount deemed sufficient by the
City to cover, but in no event less than, the full cost of the required improvements, engineering
inspections, and incidental expenses, and the replacement and repair of any existing streets, utilities
or other improvements which may be damaged during the construction of required subdivision
improvements. A bond submitted to the Ccity pursuant to this Subsection shall be executed by a
surety company authorized to do business in the State of Nevada, shall be approved by the City
Attorney as to form, and shall have a length of term not exceeding twenty-four (24) months from the
date of final plat recordation.

2. Deposit of Funds: A deposit of cash with the Ccity, or a certified check or negotiable bonds
made payable to and deposited with the City of Elko or to an escrow agent or trust company
approved by the City Attorney, in an amount deemed sufficient by the Ccity to cover, but in no event
less than, the full cost of the required improvements, engineering inspections, and incidental
expenses, and the replacement and repair of any existing streets, utilities or other improvements
which may be damaged during the construction of required subdivision improvements.

3. Irrevocable Letter of Credit: An irrevocable letter of credit in favor of the City issued by a
financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in an amount
deemed sufficient by the City to cover, but in no event less than, the full cost of the required
improvements, engineering inspections, and incidental expenses, and the replacement and repair of
any existing streets, utilities or other improvements which may be damaged during the construction
of the subdivision improvements.

4. Combinations: A subdivider/developer may, at the sole discretion of the Ccity, provide the
Ccity with a performance guarantee consisting of a combination of the forms of guarantee listed in
this subsection, so long as the combination provides the City with at least the same level of
protection against default as one of the listed forms of guarantee.

B. No Release of Funds from or Reduction of Performance Guarantee: Once a performance
guarantee has been delivered to the Ccity, the Ccity shall not thereafter release any funds from or
reduce the amount of the performance guarantee except upon written certification by the City that all
required subdivision improvements have been completed in conformance with the performance
agreement; provided, in no event shall the release of funds exceed the amount of the performance
guarantee.

C. Penalty in Case of Default: In the event the subdivider/developer fails to complete all required
subdivision improvements in accordance with terms of the performance agreement, the City may, in
its sole discretion, complete the work at its own expense and thereafter reimburse itself for the cost
and expense thereof from the performance guarantee.

D. Maintenance Guarantee: In addition to the performance guarantee, the subdivider/developer shall

Formatted ... [24]

Formatted ... [25]

Formatted ... [26]

Formatted ... [27]

Formatted ... [28]

Formatted ... [29]

Formatted ... [30]

Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic

Commented [JD48]: Should a reduction of funds be
limited to the deposit of funds?

Formatted ... [31]

Formatted ... [32]

Formatted ... [33]

E4 

--------, 
----------'--~ ---------- \ 



provide the City with a maintenance guarantee to ensure the maintenance, adequacy and condition
of all improvements required by the performance agreement for a period of not less than one (1)
year. The maintenance guarantee may be in any form permitted in Section 3-3-44(A) for a
performance guarantee and shall be in an amount equal to not less than ten percent (10%) of the
total cost of the required subdivision improvements.

E. Improvement District Financing Through Special Assessments: If not all of the properties abutting
a public street within any given block are under the control of the subdivider/developer, and the
street abutting those properties is not fully improved in accordance with the requirements of this
Chapter, the subdivider/developer may petition the City CouncilCity Council for the creation of an
improvement district for the construction of the required improvements and for the special
assessment of the cost thereof against abutting properties in accordance with Chapter 268 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes; provided, however, that the subdivider/developer shall thereupon enter
into an agreement with the City pursuant to which it agrees to be responsible for any difference
between the cost of such improvements and the maximum amount which the City can specially
assess against the property to be subdivided, and to furnish any necessary waivers to permit
assessment of the entire cost of such improvements. Any such agreement pursuant to the preceding
sentence shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney.

3-3-44: AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS:

A. Provisions Ofof Agreement: Prior to certification of final plat approval by the mayor, the subdivider
shall have executed and filed an agreement between himself and the city providing that:

1. All required subdivision improvements will be completed within a specified period of time to the
satisfaction of the city. The specified period of time shall not exceed two (2) years.

2. In the event that such improvements are not completed within the specified period, the city may, at
their option, complete or cause to be completed such work and recover from the subdivider full cost
and expenses therefor.

3. The subdivider/developer shall provide engineering plans for all improvements.

4. The engineering plans and all required improvements shall be approved by the city engineering
department.

B. Additional Provisions: The aforesaid agreement may also provide for:

1. Construction of improvements in predetermined stages.

2. The testing of materials and the inspection of improvements to ensure these improvements meet the
city construction standards. The cost of inspection testing and quality control shall be paid by the
developer.

3. An extension of construction period under certain specified conditions.

Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic
Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Not Bold,
Not Italic

! I 
[;] 

- l 
-

~ 
r -) 

I 



4. Progress payments to the subdivider from any deposit which the subdivider may have made, or
reduction in bonds, not exceeding ninety percent (90%) of the value of improvements completed and
approved, as determined by the city. engineer.

C. Modifications, Extensions: At the written request of the subdivider, terms, provisions and time
frames associated with an executed agreement to install required subdivision improvements may
be modified or extended by the city councilCity Council upon demonstration of just cause
pursuant to applicable policies as adopted by resolution of the city councilCity Council. The
subdivider shall, at the time of filing the written request, pay a filing fee to the city in an amount
established by resolution of the city councilCity Council.

D. Inspection Costs: The subdivider is responsible for providing and paying the cost of inspection,
testing and surveying of subdivision improvements. If it is determined that the subdivider is not
providing adequate inspection and testing through a qualified engineer licensed to work in the
state, then the city shall have the right to stop work and/or hire a qualified engineer or firm to
provide adequate inspection and testing. The subdivider shall be responsible for reimbursing the
city for these costs upon demand and prior to final acceptance of subdivision improvements.

E. As Built Drawings: The subdivider, or the subdivider's engineer, shall provide as built drawings of
all subdivision improvements to the city engineering department. The as built drawings shall be
in both digital and papermylar form. All mylars paper copies shall be "wet stamped" by the
subdivision engineer, or surveyor, prior to being submitted to the city.

F. Qualified Contractors: All public improvements shall be constructed by licensed contractors
qualified to construct the work. Contractors shall be licensed in the state. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

3-3-45: PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE:

A. Forms Of of Guarantee: Prior to certification of final plat approval by the mayor, the subdivider
shall have provided the city a financial guarantee of performance for the completion of required
subdivision improvements, in one or a combination of the following forms as determined by the
city:

1. Performance Bond: Performance or surety bond in an amount deemed sufficient by the city engineer
to cover, but in no case be less than, the full cost of required improvements, engineering
inspections, incidental expenses and replacement and repair of any existing streets and utilities or
other improvements which may be damaged during construction of required improvements. Such
bond shall be executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the state, must be
approved by the city attorney as to form, and have a length of term not exceeding twenty four (24)
months from the date of final plat recordation.



2. Deposit Of Funds: Deposit of cash, certified check or negotiable bonds, made payable to the city
finance director, or to a responsible escrow agent or trust company approved by the city attorney, in
the same amount and for the same purpose as heretofore provided for a performance bond.

3. Irrevocable Letter Of Credit: Irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial institution insured under
the federal deposit insurance corporation (FDIC) establishing funds for the construction of the
subdivision improvements from which the city may draw. An agreement to install public
improvements as required in section 3-3-44 of this chapter shall be executed by the city, the
developer and the financial institution prior to the city's acceptance of an irrevocable letter of credit
as a form of security. The irrevocable letter of credit shall be in the same amount and for the same
purpose as heretofore provided for the performance bond.

4. Improvement District Financing: In cases where all properties abutting a public street within any
given block are not under the control of the subdivider, and the street abutting such properties is not
fully improved in accordance with the requirements of this chapter, the subdivider may petition the
city to construct the required improvements and to assess the cost thereof against abutting
properties in accordance with local practice pertaining to special assessments; provided, however,
that the subdivider shall be responsible for any differences between the cost of such improvements
and the amount which can be legally assessed by the city against the property to be subdivided, and
shall furnish any necessary waivers to permit assessment of the entire cost of such improvements.
Any such agreement shall be in a form approved by the city attorney.

B. Penalty In Case Of Default: In the event that the subdivider fails to complete all required
subdivision improvements in accordance with terms of his agreement with the city, the city may
have such work completed and, in order to reimburse itself for the cost and expense thereof,
may appropriate the deposit of cash, funds established by an irrevocable letter of credit or
negotiable bonds, or take such steps as may be necessary to secure performance under the
bond.

C. One Year Maintenance: The subdivider shall guarantee the adequacy of street and utility
improvements for a period of not less than one year.

1. Payments: No job progress payments from cash, funds established by an irrevocable letter of credit
or negotiable bond deposits, nor any release of performance bonds, shall be made by the city except
upon certification by the city engineer and approval by the city councilCity Council.

2. Amount: The subdivider shall provide the city with a maintenance bond, funds established by an
irrevocable letter of credit or a deposit of funds in an amount not less than ten percent (10%) of the
total cost of the required public improvements as a one year maintenance guarantee. (Ord. 745, 4-
24-2012)

3-3-50: PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

In accordance with the statutes of the state to provide for the acquisition and development of park,
playground and recreational facilities as are reasonably necessary to serve the residents of new
subdivisions and development within the jurisdiction of the city, the planning commissionPlanning
Commission and city councilCity Council may require the dedication of land, payment in lieu of



dedication, or residential tax, in accordance with the recreation and open space element of the duly
adopted general plan of the city. (Ord. 226, 12-9-1975)

3-3-60: PARCEL MAPS:

A. Required: A person who proposes to divide any land into four (4) or fewer lots, shall file a parcel
map application with the City and upon approval by the City with in the office of the county
recorder, unless this requirement is not required pursuant to NRS.waived. No survey may be
required if the requirement of a parcel map is waived.

B. For any parcel map, any public improvement may be required, but not more than would be
required if the proposed property division were a subdivision. See section 3-3-43 of this chapter,
required public improvements.

Lot Design: For parcel maps, the governing body shall may require such street public
improvements grading and drainage provisions as are reasonably necessary for lot access and
drainage needs. It may also require such lot design as is determined necessary by the city to
ensure reasonably necessary and such as, but not limited to, off site grading, parcel
ingress/egress site access, street alignment, surfacing and width, water quality and water
drainage, water supply and sewerage provisions and off-site public improvements as are
reasonably necessary and consistent with the existing use property use and surrounding of any
land uses. zoned for similar use which is within six hundred sixty feet (660') of the proposed
parcel. If the proposed parcels are less than one acre, the governing body may require additional
improvements which are reasonably necessary and consistent with the use of the land if it is
developed as proposed.

If the proposed parcels are located in areas where public improvements do not exist, the
governing body may require public improvements necessary for the health and safety of the
community and require dedication of rights-of- ways and/or easements necessary to achieve
specific public objectives related to the subject tract and other details regarding the proposed
parcels.

Lot width, depth and area shall comply with requirements of the zoning requirements appropriate
for the location and character of development proposed, including the requirements stipulated in
3-2-26, and for the type and extent of public improvements being installed.  However, where
steep topography, unusual soil conditions or drainage problems exist or prevail, the planning
commissionPlanning Commission may require increased lot width, depth and/or area exceeding
the minimum requirements of the particular zoning district.

It shall be the responsibility of the subdivider to have prepared by an engineer registered in the
state, a complete set of construction plans, satisfactory to the city, for construction of all required
public improvements. Such plans shall be based on and be prepared in conjunction with the final
plat. Construction plans shall have been approved by the city prior to recordation of the final plat.

C. Second Or or Subsequent Parcel Maps: When considering whether to approve, conditionally
approve or disapprove a second or subsequent parcel map involving land that has been divided

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Commented [BT49]: To Ensure what?

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic
Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

( ) 

l 
l 

=1-=-=-=-=--_-_ =_ ======--- ---
t 
[ 
L -
[ -

L 

' 
L__ 

I 



by a parcel map which was recorded within the five (5) years immediately preceding the
acceptance of the second or subsequent parcel map as a complete application, the following
criteria shall be considered:

1. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the disposal of
solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or public sewage disposal and, where applicable,
individual systems for sewage disposal;

2. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in quantity for the
reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision;

3. The availability and accessibility of utilities;

4. The availability and accessibility of public services, such as schools, police protection, transportation,
recreation and parks;

5. Conformity with the zoning ordinances and master plan, except that if any existing zoning ordinance
is inconsistent with the master plan, the zoning ordinance takes precedence;

6. General conformity with the governing body's master plan of streets and highways;

7. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new streets or
highways to serve the subdivision;

8. Physical characteristics of the land such as floodplain, slope and soil;

9. The recommendations and comments of those entities reviewing the tentative map pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes sections 278.330 through 278.348, inclusive; and

10. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the availability and
accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of fires, including fires in wild
lands.

For any other second or subsequent parcel map, any reasonable public improvement may be
required, but not more than would be required if the parcel were a subdivision. See section 3-3-43 of
this chapter, required public improvements.

D. Review:

1. The city councilCity Council may give the city planning personnel the authority to approve a parcel
map, or waive the requirement of a parcel map or survey for a parcel map, without further action by
the planning commissionPlanning Commission or city councilCity Council, unless the parcel map
includes an offer of dedication of street right- of- way to the city or is associated with the request to
modify subdivision ordinance standards or regulations. The planning personnel shall review the
parcel map, if required, and within forty five (45) days after filing, shall approve, conditionally
approve or disapprove such map.

2. A parcel map which includes an offer of dedication of street right- of- way to the city or a modification
of subdivision ordinance standards or regulations shall be referred to the planning

Commented [BT50]: NRS 278.464allows 60 days in
counties less than 700,000.  Should we be consistent?



commissionPlanning Commission and the city councilCity Council for review, consideration and
formal acceptance of the offer of dedication and/or any modification of standards or regulations. The
commission shall consider the parcel map within forty five (45) days after filing. The city councilCity
Council shall consider the parcel map no later than thirty (30) days after action by the planning
commissionPlanning Commission.

E. Appeal: If the applicant disagrees with any decision of the planning personnel concerning the
parcel map, or if the parcel map is disapproved, the applicant has thirty (30) days in which to file
an appeal with the planning commissionPlanning Commission. The planning
commissionPlanning Commission shall make a determination within forty five (45) days from the
date the appeal was filed. If the planning commissionPlanning Commission denies the appeal,
the applicant may appeal to the city councilCity Council within thirty (30) days of such denial and
the city councilCity Council shall render its decision within forty five (45) days after the filing of
this appeal with the city clerk.

F. Exceptions: A parcel map is not required when the land division is for the express purpose of:

1. Creation or realignment of a public right- of- way by a public agency;

2. Creation or realignment of an easement;

3. Adjustment of the boundary line or the transfer of land between two (2) adjacent property owners
which does not result in the creation of any additional parcels;

4. Purchase, transfer or development of space within an apartment building or an industrial or
commercial building;

5. An order of any court dividing land as a result of an operation of law;

6. Creation of a lien, mortgage, deed, trust or any other security instrument;

7. Creation of a security or unit of interest in any investment trust regulated under the laws of this state
or any other interest in an investment entity;

8. Convey an interest in oil, gas, minerals or building materials which are severed from surface
ownership of real property;

9. Filing a certificate of amendment for the correction of an error or omission on a plat, survey or map,
or if the correction does not change the location of a survey monument or property line.

G. Survey Not Required: If a survey is not required for the preparation of a parcel map, the map
must be prepared by a registered land surveyor, but the his certificate upon the map may include
substantially the following:

This map was prepared from existing information (identifying it and stating where filed or

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic



recorded), and the undersigned assumes no responsibility for the existence of monuments or
corrections of other information shown on or copied from any such prior document.

H. Fee: The applicant shall, at the time of filing the parcel map, pay a filing fee to the city in an
amount established by resolution of the city councilCity Council. and included in the appendix to
this code.

I. Information Required: The parcel map shall ould contain the following information and meet the
following requirements:

1. The parcel map shall be legibly drawn in black, waterproof India ink on tracing cloth or produced by
the use of other materials of a permanent nature generally used for such purpose in the engineering
profession. The size of each sheet shall be twenty four inches by thirty two inches (24" x 32"). A
marginal line shall be completely drawn around each sheet leaving an entirely blank margin of one
inch (1") at the top, bottom and right edges, and of two inches (2") at the left edge along the twenty
four inch (24") dimension.

2. A parcel map shall indicate the owner of any adjoining land or right- of- way if owned by the person
dividing the land.

3. If a survey is required, the parcel map shall also show:

a. All monuments found, set, reset, replaced or removed, describing the claim, size and location and
other data relating thereto;

b. Bearing or witness monuments, basis of bearings, bearing and length of line and scale of map;

c. Name and legal description of tract or grant in which the survey is located and ties to adjoined tracts;

d. Memorandum of oaths;

e. Signature of surveyor;

f. Date of survey;

g. Signature of the owner or owners of the land to be divided;

h. Any easements granted or dedications made;

i. Any other data necessary for the intelligent interpretation of various items in the location of the points,
lines and areas shown; and

j. Provision and date for installation of all required improvements.

4. The following certificates shall appear on a parcel map before it can be recorded:

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic



a. A certificate for execution by the clerk of each approving governing body stating that the body
approved the map;

b. A certificate by the surveyor responsible for the parcel map giving the date of the survey on which
the map is based and stating that the survey was made by him or under his direction and setting
forth the name of the owner who authorized him to make the survey, and that the parcel map is true
and complete as shown. The certificate shall also state that the monuments are of the character and
occupy the positions indicated or that they will be set in such positions at such time as agreed upon
under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes chapter 278. The certificate shall also state that
monuments are or will be sufficient to enable the survey to be retraced;

c. A certificate signed and acknowledged by all parties having any record title in the land subdivided,
evidencing their grant of permanent easements for utilities installations and access, as designated
on the map;

d. A statement approving such easements, signed by each public utility company or agency in whose
favor the easements are created or whose utility services are to be required for the platted parcel;

e. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to obtain approval of serving utility companies as to the
location of any utility easements which are to be shown on the parcel map.

5. The following data shall accompany a parcel map at the time it is submitted:

a. Name, address and telephone number of the persons requesting approval of the parcel map and the
owner or owners of the land;

b. Name, address and telephone number of the person who prepared the map;

c. Legal description of the original parcel. It shall be sufficient to give recorders book and page of deed
and assessor's parcel number;

d. Proposed use of each parcel;

e. Source of water supply and proposed method of sewage disposal for each parcel;

f. A copy of all survey computations shall accompany the parcel map;

g. A vicinity map.

6. The subdivider shall file six (6) copies of the parcel map with the city at the time of filing. (Ord. 293,
8-26-1980)

J. Recording: A parcel map approved pursuant to this section and section 3-3-70 of this chapter,
shall be recorded in the office of the county recorder within two (2) years after the date when the
map was approved or deemed approved. (Ord. 624, 10-26-2004)

K. Prohibitions of Parcels: Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic



1. Proposed parcels that are determined to be undevelopable by the city.
2. Proposed parcels determined by the city as an attempt eliminate frontage and required

public improvements.
1.3.Proposed parcels determine detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the community.

3-3-70: MODIFICATION OF STANDARDS:

A. Permitted: Where, in the opinion of the planning commissionPlanning Commission, there exists
extraordinary conditions of topography, land ownership, or adjacent development, or other
circumstances not provided for in this chapter, the city councilCity Council may modify the
provisions of this chapter, or any other provision in this code, in such manner and to the
minimum extent necessary to carry out the intent of this chapter.

B. Complete Neighborhood Plan: In the case of a plan and program for a complete neighborhood,
the city councilCity Council may modify the provisions of this chapter in such manner as it deems
necessary and desirable to provide adequate space and improvements for the circulation,
recreation, light, air and service needs of the tract when fully developed and populated, and may
require such legal provisions as may be necessary to assure conformity to and achievement of
such plan.

C. Additional Necessary Requirements: In modifying the standards or requirements of this chapter,
as outlined heretofore, the city councilCity Council may make such additional requirements as
are necessary in its judgment to secure substantially the objectives of the standards or
requirements so modified. (Ord. 768, 1-22-2013)

3-3-75: REVERSIONS TO ACREAGE:

A. Application: Except as otherwise provided in Nevada Revised Statutes section 278.4925, an
owner or governing body desiring to revert any recorded subdivision map, parcel map, map of
division into large parcels, or part thereof, to acreage or to revert the map or portion thereof, or to
revert more than one map recorded under the same tentative map if the parcels to be reverted
are contiguous, shall submit a written application accompanied by a map of the proposed
reversion which contains the same survey dimensions as the recorded maps or maps to the
planning Planning department. The application must describe the requested change.

B. Review: At its next meeting, or within a period of not more than thirty (30) days after the filing of
the map of reversion, whichever occurs later, the city councilCity Council shall review the map of
reversion and approve, conditionally approve or disapprove the map.



C. Applicability Of Fees: Except for the provisions of this section, Nevada Revised Statutes sections
278.4955, 278.496 and 278.4965, and any provision or local ordinance relating to the payment
of fees in conjunction with filing, recordation or checking of a map of the kind offered, no other
provision of Nevada Revised Statutes sections 278.010 through 278.630, inclusive, applies to a
map made solely for the purpose of reversion of a former map or for reversion of any division of
land to acreage.

D. Recording: Upon approval of the map of reversion, it must be recorded in the office of the county
recorder. The county recorder shall make a written notation of the fact on each sheet of the
previously recorded map affected by the later recording, if the county recorder does not maintain
a cumulative index for such maps and amendments. If such an index is maintained, the county
recorder shall direct an appropriate entry for the amendment.

E. Street oOr Easement Included: Requirement for submitting a map of reversion and for presenting
a map of reversion for recording must conform with provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes
sections 278.4955, 278.496 and 278.4965. If the map included the reversion of any street or
easement owned by a city, a county or the state, the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes
section 279.480 must be followed before approval of the map.

F. Fee: The owner shall, at the time of filing the map of reversion, pay a filing fee to the city in an
amount established by resolution of the city councilCity Council. (Ord. 548, 11-28-2000)

3-3-80: PROHIBITION AGAINST SALE IN VIOLATION:

No person, firm, corporation or other legal entity shall hereafter sell or offer for sale any lot, piece or
parcel of land which is within a "subdivision", as defined in this chapter, until after a plat thereof has
been recorded in accordance with provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 226, 12-9-1975)

3-3-85: MERGERS AND RESUBDIVISION OF LAND:

A. Permitted: An owner or governing body that owns two (2) or more contiguous parcels may merge
and resubdivide the land into new parcels or lots without reverting the preexisting parcels to
acreage pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes section 278.490.

B. Recording Required: Parcels merged without reversion to acreage pursuant to this section must
be resubdivided and recorded on a final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels,
as appropriate, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes sections 278.320 through
278.4725, inclusive, and any applicable local ordinances. The recording of the resubdivided
parcels or lots on a final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate,
constitutes the merging of the preexisting parcels into a single parcel and the simultaneous
resubdivision of that single parcel into parcels or lots of a size and description set forth in the
final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate.

Commented [BT51]: I know this is straight from NRS, but
city code should probably not be setting requirements of
county staff.



C. Street Easements And and Utility Easements: With respect to a merger and resubdivision of
parcels pursuant to this section, the owner or governing body conducting the merger and
resubdivision shall ensure that street easements and utility easements, whether public or private,
that will remain in effect after the merger and resubdivision, are delineated clearly on the final
map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate, on which the merger and
resubdivision is recorded.

D. Security Credit: If a governing body required an owner or governing body to post security to
secure the completion of improvements to two (2) or more contiguous parcels and those
improvements will not be completed because of a merger and resubdivision, conducted pursuant
to this section, the governing body shall credit on a pro rata basis the security posted by the
owner or governing body toward the same purposes with respect to the parcels as merged and
resubdivided. (Ord. 548, 11-28-2000)

3-3-90: VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES:

Any person, firm, corporation or other legal entity who violates any of the provisions of this chapter
shall, upon conviction therefortherefore, be punished as provided in title 1, chapter 3 of this code.
Each day that a violation is permitted to exist shall constitute a separate offense and shall be
punishable as such hereunder. The imposition of any sentence shall not exempt the offender from
compliance with all requirements of this chapter. (Ord. 261, 6-27-1978)



QUINLAN™ March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 

Zoning Bul let in 
i n  t h i s  i s s u e :  

Preemption/Marijuana-Township zoning ordinance prohibits out- 
door cultivation of medical marijuana 2 

Use/Constitutionality of Regulation/Second Amendment- 
Individual is convicted of possessing a firearm within 1000 feet of 
a public park, which is prohibited under state statute 5 

Preemption/Manufactured Home Park-City enforces zoning code 
in manufactured home park 9 

Zoning News from Around the Nation 1 1  

!i�t?f.: THOMSON REUTERS® 
Mat #42078494 



March 25, 20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 Zoning Bul let in 

Preemption/Marijuana-Township 

zoning ordinance prohibits outdoor 

cultivation of medical marijuana 

Cultivators of medical mari juana argue that 
ordinance is preempted by the Mich igan Medical 
Mar ihuana Act 

Citation: Charter Township of York v. Miller, 2018 WL472187 (Mich. 
Ct. App. 2018) 

------- Contributors ------- 

Corey E. Burnham-Howard 

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear 
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750- 
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 6 1 0  Opperman 
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123,  fax (651)  687-7551. Please outline the specific ma 
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or 
format of the use. 

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in 
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication 
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu 
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes 
sional advice and this publ ication is not a substitute for the advice of an 
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser 
vices of a competent attorney or other professional. 

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 6 1 0  Op 
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul , MN 55164-0526. For subscription 
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing, 
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753. 

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bulletin, 61 O Opperman 
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. 

6 1 0  Opperman Drive 
P.O. Box 64526 

St. Pau I ,  MN 55164-0526 
1-800-229-2084 

email : west.customerservice@thomsonreuters.com 
ISSN 0514-7905 

·� 2018  Thomson Reuters 
All Rights Reserved 

Quinlan™ is a Thomson Reuters brand 

2 f 2018  Thomson Reuters 

6!!5}: THOMSON REUTERS "' 
·-:::-·· 



Zoning Bul letin March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 

MICHIGAN (01 / 18/ 18 )-This  case addressed the issue of whether 
the Mich igan Medical  Marihuana Act (MCL § §  333 .26421  to 
333.26430) permitted outdoor medical marijuana growing, and, if so, 
whether it preempted a township's zoning regulation prohibiting out 
door growing in residential areas. 

The Background/Facts: David Mil ler and Donald Mil ler resided at 
Donald's home in a residential zoning distr ict in York Township (the 
"Township"). Both were qual ified medical marijuana patients under 
Michigan law. Katherine Nul l  ("Null") had formerly been in a long 
term relationship with David.  Nul l  was David's registered medical 
marijuana primary caregiver under Michigan law. In 2014,  at Nul l ' s  
direction, David constructed a medical marijuana structure in Donald's 
backyard "for containing the cu l t ivat ion of medical marijuana" for 
patients connected to Nul l  through registration under the Michigan 
Med ica l  Mar ihuana  Act ( "MMMA") ,  MCL § §  3 3 3 . 2 6 4 2 1  to 
333.26430. 

At some point, the Township learned that the Millers and Nul l  (col 
lectively, the "Defendants") had bu i l t  their medical marijuana facil ity 
outdoors, and that the Defendants had failed to comply with Township 
zoning and construction regulations in doing so. In the Township, medi 
cal marijuana caregivers were required to comply with the Township's 
Zoning Ordinance § 40.204, which restricted home occupations and 
home-based businesses. Zoning Ordinance § 40.204 permitted medical 
marijuana caregivers to operate as a "home occupat ion" if they 
complied with the MMMA and certain specified restrictions. Among 
other things, § 40.204 required that all medical marijuana be contained 
ins ide the house in residential zoned areas, and prohibited medical 
marijuana caregivers from having or growing any medical marijuana 
outside the house on properties zoned residential . The ordinance also 
required permits for modificat ion of any portion of the house for 
cultivation, growing, or harvesting of marijuana. 

The Defendants failed to comply  w i th  the Townsh ip ' s  Zoning 
Ordinance § 40.204 because they grew medical marijuana outside and 
not entirely within Donald's house. The Defendants also failed to obtain 
a construction permit for the medical marijuana outdoor growing facil 
ity, and failed to get permits before ins ta l l ing related electrical and 
watering systems. 

Instead of enforcing the Zoning Ordinance regulations against the 
Defendants, the Township filed a declaratory judgment action. The 
Township asked the trial court to determine the val idity of its zoning 
regulations as applied "to the cultivation and use of medical marijuana 
in zoned residential locations and subdivisions." Specifically, the court 
was asked to determine whether the MMMA permitted outdoor medi 
cal marijuana growing, and, if so, whether the MMMA preempted the 

t 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 3 



March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 Zoning Bulletin 

Township's zoning regulation prohibiting outdoor growing in  residen 
tial areas. 

The MMMA governs medical marijuana use in Michigan. It al lows 
the "medical use" of marijuana, inc luding its "cu l t ivat ion ." Specifi 
cally, it permits registered caregivers to cultivate 1 2  marijuana plants 
for each qualifying patient in an "enclosed, locked facil ity" including 
outdoor growing, as specified in MCL 333.26423(d). 

The trial court ruled that the Township's Zoning Ordinance's restric 
t ion on outdoor growing of marijuana directly conflicted with the MM 
MA's specific permission of outdoor marijuana cult ivation.  The trial 
court ruled that the Township could not exclude outdoor marijuana 
cultivation because the MMMA permitted doing so. 

The Township appealed. On appeal, the Township argued that it had 
broad zon ing authority under Mich igan ' s  Zoning Enabl ing Act 
("MZEA") to adopt ordinances to regulate medical marijuana and re 
strict registered caregiver 's marijuana growing to indoors in  areas 
zoned residential .  

DECISION: Judgment of Circuit court affirmed. 

The Court of Appeals of Michigan disagreed with the Township, and 
held that the Township 's  Zoning Ordinance's restr ict ion on outdoor 
growing of mar i juana cou ld  not be enforced because it  d i rec t ly  
conflicted with the MMMA's specific permission of outdoor marijuana 
cult ivation. 

The court explained that a municipal "ordinance that purports to pro 
h ib i t  what a state statute permits is void." In other words, when a local 
regulation directly conflicts with a state statute by prohibiting what the 
state statute permits, the state statute preempts the local regulation, said 
the court .  Furthermore, the court  exp la i ned  that contrary to the 
Township's argument, the zoning authority g iven to mun ic ipa l i t i es  
under the MZEA did not save the Township 's  ordinance from 
preemption. 

Again, the court noted that the MMMA "permit[ted] and thereby au 
thorize[d] registered caregivers to grow medical marijuana for their 
patients both indoors and outdoors without fear of imposit ion of penal 
ties by a local government." Thus, the court found that the Township's 
home occupation Zoning Ordinance § 40.204 "p la in ly  purport[ed] to 
prohibit the outdoor growing of medical marijuana that the MMMA 
otherwise permit [ ted] ."  Consequently, the court concluded that the 
Township's Zoning Ordinance§ 40.204 was preempted by the MMMA 
and void. 

See also: Ter Beek v. City of \tVvoming, 297 Mich. App. 446, 823 
N. W2d 864 (2012) ,  judgment aff'd, 495 Mich. 1 ,  846 N. W2d 531 
(2014). 

4 £ 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 

Case Note: 

The trial court had also held that the Defendant's enclosed, locked facility 

must comply with the MMMA (MCL § 333.26423(d)), construction regula 

tions, and the Township's construction permit requirements. The Court of Ap 

peals of Michigan agreed. 

Case Note: 

In its decision, the Court of Appeals of Michigan made note that although 

municipalities did not have the authority under the MMMA to adopt orcli 

n ances that restrict registered caregivers' MMMA-given rights and privi 

leges, Michigan's Medical Marijuana Facilities Licensing Act does specifi 

cally grant municipalities "authority to adopt local ordinances including 

ioning regulations that restrict the location, number, and type of facilities 

within its boundaries." (See MCL 333.27205.) 

Use/Constitutionality of Regulation/ 
Second Amendment-Individual is 
convicted of possessing a firearm 
within 1000 feet of a publ ic park, 
which is prohibited under state 
statute 

I n d i v i d u a l  c h a l l e n g e s  t h e  statutory f i r e a r m  
r e s t r i c t i o n  as u n c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  u n d e r  t h e  S e c o n d  
A m e n d m e n t  

Citation: People v. Chairez, 2018 IL 121417  (Ill., Feb. I, 2018) 

ILLINOIS (02/1 / 18 )-This  case addressed the issue of whether a 
provision of an I l l ino is  statute governing unlawful use of a weapon 
(720 ILCS 5/24-l(a)(4), (c ) ( l .5 ) ) ,  prohibiting possession of a firearm 
within 1000 feet of a public park was unconstitutional under the Second 
Amendment. 

The Background/Facts: In April 20 13 ,  Ju l io  Chairez ("Chairez") 
pied guilty in circuit court to possessing a firearm within 1000 feet of a 

f 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 5 



March 25, 2 0 1 8  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 Zoning Bul let in 

publ ic park. Section 24- l (a) (4) ,  ( c ) ( l . 5 )  of I l l i no i s '  unlawful use of a 
weapon ("UUW") statute (720 ILCS 5/24-l(a)(4), ( c ) ( l . 5 ) )  prohibited 
an individual from carrying or possessing a firearm wi th in  I  000 feet of 
a public park. In November 20 1 5 ,  Chairez filed a post-conviction peti 
tion, seeking to vacate his conviction on the basis that the statute was 
unconst i tut ional  under the Second Amendment to the United States 
Constitution (U.S.  Const., amend. II) .  

The Second Amendment to the United States Constitut ion provides 
that "[a] wel l  regulated Mi l i t ia ,  being necessary to the security of a free 
State, the right of the people to keep and bear Arms sha l l  not be 
infringed." (U.S .  Const. , amend. I I . )  That r ight is "fully applicable to 
the States" through the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States 
Constitution (U.S. Const. ,  amend. XIV). 

In his petition, Chairez argued that an indiv idual  who is barred from 
carrying a firearm within 1000 feet of the many locations listed in sec 
t ion 24- 1  (c)( 1 . 5 )  of the UUW statute ( inc lud ing  publ ic  parks) is es 
sential ly barred from carrying a firearm in  publ ic .  As such, he argued 
that section 24-1 (c)( 1 . 5 )  was essential ly a blanket prohibit ion on carry 
ing a gun in public, in  violation of the Second Amendment. 

The circuit court agreed, holding that section 24-1  (a)(4), (c)( 1 . 5 )  of 
I l l i no i s '  UUW statute was unconstitutional because a 1000-foot firearm 
restriction was "not a reasonable regulation of the [S]econd [A]mend 

- ment," but rather was effectively a "near comprehensive ban" on carry 
ing a firearm in publ ic .  

The State of I l l i no i s  (the "State") appealed. The State argued that the 
restriction on carrying a firearm with in I  000 feet of a publ ic park was 
not an unconstitutional blanket prohibition, but rather was a reasonable 
regulation that prevented people from carrying firearms only in certain 
proscribed areas. 

DECISION: Judgment of circuit court affirmed in relevant part. 

The Supreme Court of I l l i no i s  held that section 24- 1  (a)(4), (c)( 1 . 5 )  
of I l l i no i s '  UUW statute, which prohibited possession of a firearm 
within I  000 feet of a public park was facial ly ( i .e . ,  on its face; based on 
the language of the statute alone and not just its applicabil ity) unconsti 
tut ional  in  v io lat ion of the Second Amendment to the United States 
Constitution. 

In so hold ing,  the court: ( I )  conducted "a textual and historical anal 
ys is  of the [S]econd [A]mendment 'to determine whether the chal   
lenged law impose[d] a burden on conduct that was understood to be 
within the scope of the [S]econd [A]mendment's protection at the time 
of ratification; '  " and (2) having found that the I 000-foot prohibit ion 
was within the scope of the Second Amendment's protection, applied 
"the appropriate level of heightened means-ends scrutiny and consid 
er[ed] the strength of the government's just ification for restricting or 
regulating the exercise of [S]econd [A]mendment rights." 

6 f 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 

Apply ing the first step of its analysis, the court explained that the 
United States Supreme Court had determined that there is an "individ 
ual right to possess and carry weapons on the case of confrontation," 
based on the Second Amendment, but that such a right is "not 
un l imi ted ."  The court also explained that the United States Court of 
Appeals, Seventh Circuit ,  (which has jurisdict ion over I l l i no i s )  had 
found a blanket prohibit ion on carrying firearms in publ ic  in I l l i no i s  
was unconstitutional under the Second Amendment, but had also stated 
that state bans on guns "merely in particular places" might be constitu 
tional if the weight of analysis showed a great publ ic benefit on such a 
ban. The Supreme Court of I l l i no i s ,  itself, had held that the Second 
Amendment "protects an individual 's  right to carry a ready-to-use gun 
outside the home, subject to certain regulations." 

To determine whether the offense of possessing a firearm with in 
I  000 feet of a public park (as set forth under section 24-1 (a)( 4 ), ( c)( 1 . 5 )  
of the UUW statute) " impermiss ib ly encroache[d] on conduct at the 
core of the [S]econd [A]mendment," the court appl ied a "s l id i ng"  
scrutiny scale. Under such scrutiny, explained the court, "the closer in 
proximity the restricted activity is to the core of the [S]econd [A]mend 
ment right and the more people affected by the restriction, the more 
rigorous the means-end review." 

App ly ing  that scrut iny here, the court found that the I  000-foot 
firearm restriction "directly implicate[d] the core right" to the "carriage 
of weapons in public for self-defense, thereby reaching the core of the 
[S]econd [A]mendment." The court found that the firearm restriction 
here not only "cover[ed] a vast number of publ ic areas across the state, 
i t  encompass[ed] areas . . .  where an i nd i v idua l  enjoys [S]econd 
[A]mendment protection, i .e . ,  public ways." Moreover, the court found 
that the restriction at issue affected the "entire law-abiding population 
of I l l ino is ."  Al l  of that, concluded the court, required an "elevated in 
termediate scrutiny," under which the State bore the "burden of show 
ing a very strong public-interest justification and a close fit between the 
government's means and its end, as wel l  as proving that the 'pub l ic ' s  
interests are strong enough to justify so substantial an encumbrance on 
indiv idual  Second Amendment r ights . ' "  

Here, the State c la imed a compell ing interest in pub l ic  safety was 
served by reducing firearm possession with in 1000 feet of a pub I ic 
park. Specifical ly ,  the State noted the large number of ch i ldren who 
frequent public parks, and contended that a I 000-foot firearm restric 
t ion ·  around pub l ic  parks would extend the distance where a shooter 
might fire a weapon, thus protecting children and others. 

Whi le the court acknowledged that preventing crime and protecting 
chi ldren were "important publ ic concerns," the court found that the 
State failed to provide evidentiary support for its claims that prohibit- 

f 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 7 



March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 Zoning Bul let in 

ing firearms within 1000 feet of a public park would reduce the risks to 
children and others. In other words, the court found that the State had 
"speculated" that the proximity of firearms within I  000 feet threatened 
the health and safety of those in public parks, but had failed to provide 
"a v a l i d  e x p l a n a t i o n  for how the law actually achieves its goal of 
protecting c h i l d r e n  and vulnerable populations from gun v i o l e n c e . "  
With such failure to justify the restriction on gun possession w i t h i n  
1000 feet of a public park, the court concluded that the State failed to 
bear its "burden" of justifying such a "substantial an encumbrance on 
individual Second Amendment rights"-and that therefore the restric 
tion was facially unconstitutional.  

Having found the UUW provision under which Chairez was con 
victed to be unconstitutional,  the court affirmed the circuit court's judg 
ment vacating Chairez's Class 3 felony conviction.  

See also:  District of Columbia v. Heller, 554 U.S. 570, 128 S. Ct. 
2783, 171  L. Ed. 2d 637 (2008). 

See also: Moore v. Madigan, 702 F3d 933, 942 (Zth Cir. 2012). 

See also: Ezell v. City of Chicago, 651 F3d 684 (7th Cit: 2011  ) .  

Case Note: 

The Supreme Court of Illinois also concluded that the unconstitutional provi 

sion of the UUW, prohibiting possession of a firearm within 1000 feet of a 

public park, was severable from the remaining portions of the UUW. The stat 

ute had also identified several other specific locations from which possession 

of a firearm within 1000.feet of such locations was prohibited (e.g. "on any 

public way within 1, 000 feet of the real property comprising any school, . . . 

courthouse, public transportation facility, or residential property owned, 

operated, or managed by a public housing agency or leased by a public hous 

ing agency as part of a scattered site or mixed-income development." (720 Ill. 

Comp. Stat. § 24-1 ( c )( 1 .5) )). Having found the unconstitutional portion of the 

statute (i .e . ,  prohibiting possession of a firearm within 1000 feet of a public 

park) severable from the rest of the statute (which had not also been chal 

lenged as unconstitutional), the court held that the remaining specific location 

regulations were capable of being executed. 

8 � 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bulletin March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 

Preemption/Manufactured Home 
Park-City enforces zoning code in 
manufactured home park 

Park residence contends federal and state law 
preempts zoning code enforcement in 
manufactured home parks 

Citation: Eich v. City of Burnsville, 2018 WL 3 l 3087 ( Minn. Ct. App. 
2018) 

MINNESOTA (01/8/18)-This case addressed the issue of whether 
a ci ty's enforcement of its zoning code with in a manufactured home 
park was preempted by the federal National Manufactured Housing 
Construction and Safety Standards Act and/or Minnesota's Manufac 
tured Home Bui ld ing Code. 

The Background/Facts: In May 20 1 5 ,  the City Code Inspector for 
the City of Burnsv i l l e  (the "City") inspected a manufactured home 
park, Rambush Estates. The City Code Inspector thereafter issued zon 
ing code violation notices related to nonconforming structure setbacks, 
awnings, and location of trash containers. In response, Kathryn Eich 
("Eich") ,  a  resident of Rambush Estates commenced a class action 
against the City seeking damages and injunctive relief. Among other 
th ings ,  Eich argued that the Ci ty 's  enforcement of its zoning code 
with in Rambush Estates was preempted by federal and state law. 

Eich pointed to the federal National Manufactured Construction and 
Safety Standards Act (the "Act") and Minnesota's Manufactured Home 
Bu i ld ing Code (the "MHBC"). The federal Act preempts states and po 
l i t ical subdivisions-like the City, here-from enacting "any standard 
regarding the construction or safety applicable to the same aspect of 
performance of such manufactured home which is not identical to the 
Federal manufactured home construction and safety standard." Stan 
dards promulgated under the Act by the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development ("HUD") prohibit local regulations that " impa ir [ ]  
the Federal superintendence of the manufactured home industry as 
establ ished by the Act." In other words, the Act expressly prohibits 
states and municipal it ies from regulating the "construction or safety" 
of manufactured homes in any manner that is not identical to federal 
HUD standards. The MHBC incorporates those identical federal stan 
dards concerning the safety and construction of manufactured homes. 

Ultimately, the district court concluded that the City's zoning code 
enforcement within Ram bush Estates was: ( 1 )  expressly preempted by 

t 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 9 



March 25, 20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 Zoning Bul letin 

the Act; and (2) was expressly and field preempted by the MHBC. The 
district court ruled that the enforcement of the City code in manufac 
tured home parks was preempted and that the City was permanently 
enjoined form enforcing any City code within Rambush estates. 

The City appealed, seeking the ability to enforce its City code within 
Rambush Estates. On appeal, the City argued that it was expressly au 
thorized by state law to enforce its codes within manufactured home 
parks when the codes were not inconsistent with federal or state laws. 

The Court's DECISION: Judgment of district court reversed. 

Reversing the district court, and agreeing with the City, the Court of 
Appeals of Minnesota held that neither federal nor state laws ( i .e . ,  the 
Act and the MHBC) preempted the City zoning code within Rambush 
Estates. 

In so holding, the appellate court explained that federal or state laws 
may preempt local laws in three ways: " ( 1 )  express preemption, where 
a federal or state statute exp l ic i t ly  defines  the extent to which  it  
preempts local law; (2) field preemption, where a local law attempts to 
regulate conduct in a field that the federal or state legislature intended 
federal or state law to exclusively occupy; and (3) conflict preemption, 
where a local law permits what a federal or state statute forbids or vice 
versa." 

Here, the appellate court found that the district court had failed to 
explain why particular City code provisions were found to be inconsis 
tent with the federal Act. The appellate court noted that the distr ict  
court had stated that the City's "code enforcement conflicts . . .  [by] 
imposing fines inconsistent with Congress's objective to maintain af 
fordability of this  vital form of housing as expressed in [the Act] and 
adopted by the State of Minnesota ." The appellate court disagreed, 
finding the district court "erred in its interpretation of the Act." The ap 
pellate court noted that the federal Act did not preempt enforcement of 
a l l  codes, but only preempted enforcement of codes that attempted to 
regulate construction or safety standards that were inconsistent with 
the Act's standards. In other words, the appellate court found that the 
Act did "not preempt the [C]ity from enforcing its [C]ity code within 
Rambush Estates because the Act [was] l imited to consumer protec 
t ion,  and the [C] i ty code [did] not purport to regulate wi th in  that 
construction or safety standards context." In fact, the appellate court 
found that none of the Ci ty 's  regulated items-of carports, awnings, 
zoning setbacks, trash screening,  and exterior storage-within a 
manufactured home park related to the construction or safety of the 
manufactured home itself. Therefore, the appellate court concluded 
that the Act did not expressly preempt the relevant City code provi 
sions, of which Eich had challenged enforcement. 

Since the MHBC adopted the identical federal standards of the Act, 

I  
I  
I  
I  
I  
I  
I  
I  
I  

i  
I  
I  
!  
!  

1 0  f  2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in March 25, 20 18  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 

the appellate court concluded that, "[f]or the same reasons that federal 
law does not expressly preempt the [C]ity from enforcing its zoning 
and property maintenance codes within Rambush Estates, the MHBC 
does not expressly preempt the [Cjity 's zoning and property mainte 
nance codes from being enforced within Rambush Estates." Moreover, 
the appellate court found that a provision in the code-compliance sec 
t ion of the MHBC expressly authorized local code enforcement that is 
outside the context of construction and safety. Specifically, that provi 
s ion provides: "Nothing in this section shall be construed to inhibit  the 
application of zoning, subdivision, architectural, or [a]esthetic require 
ments . . . .  "  )(See Minn. Stat. § 327 .32, subd. 5 . )  

The appellate court further found that, contrary to the district court's 
ho ld ing,  Minnesota statutes did not field preempt the City's  zoning 
code enforcement in manufactured home parks. Rather, noted the ap 
pellate court, Minnesota statutes explicitly protect city authority within 
manufactured home parks: Minn. Stat. § 327 .32, subd. 5,  specifies that 
a city is permitted to apply "zoning, subdivision, architectural, or [a]es 
thetic requirements" within a manufactured home park, and Minn .  Stat. 
§ 327.26, subd. 2 (2016) ,  expl ic i t ly permits cit ies to enforce ordinances 
relating to the safety and protection of people with in a manufactured 
home park. Thus, the court concluded that s ince state law exp l ic i t ly  
authorizes munic ipal i t ies to regulate within manufactured home parks, 
state law has not fully occupied the field of manufactured-home-park 
regulation, and the distr ict  court erred in  ho ld ing the contrary and 
conc lud ing that the City could not enforce its zoning and property 
maintenance codes with in Rambush Estates. 

Case Note: 

Eich had also brought as-applied due-process claims. However, the court 

found that those claims were "moot with respect to injunctive relief" 

Zoning News from Around the 
Nation 

CALIFORNIA 

In an effort to meet the "current hous ing cr is is ,"  Cal ifornia State 
Senator Scott Wiener has introduced the Transit Zoning B i l l ,  SB 827. 
The b i l l  "would allow new housing near major transit hubs to be bu i l t  
up to eight stories tal l ,  overriding local zoning restrictions." The bi l l  
would "set statewide standards for height, density and el iminate any 

� 2 0 1 8  Thomson Reuters 1 1  



March 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 6 Zoning Bul let in 

mandates for required parking when it comes to future projects bui l t  in 
the state near transit s tops ."  Wiener argues that "I inking denser 
development with transit" wi l l  "add more affordable, sustainable units 
to a state desperately in need." 

Source: Curbed; www.curbed.com 

Source: Long Beach Post,· https://lbpost.com 

I N  D I A N A  

In early February, the Indiana House of Representatives passed 
House B i l l  1 289 .  The bi l l  would l imi t  local bans and regulations of 
"natural resources development ," i nc lud ing  m in ing  and t imber 
harvesting. The bi l l  is now pending before the Senate Committee on 
Natural Resources. 

Source: Courier & Press; www.courierpress.com 

T E N N E S S E E  

Pending in the Tennessee General Assembly, Senate Bi l l  1086 would 
"prohibit local governments from using zoning powers to determine 
the extent to wh ich  short-term rentals should be a l lowed in  the i r  
communit ies ." Among other things, the b i l l  would prohibit municipal i  
t ies from: prohibit ing the use of property as a short-term rental un i t ;  
and restricting the use of or otherwise regulating a short-term rental 
un i t  based on the short-term rental u n i t ' s  c lass ifica t ion ,  use,  or 
occupancy. 

Source: Brentwood Home Page; https://brentwoodhomepage.com 

Source: Senate Bill J 086; vvww.capitol.tn.gov 

1 2  f  2018  Thomson Reuters 


	05-01-18 Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	04-03-18 Draft Minutes.pdf (p.5-18)
	Item I.A.1. PP 3-18 Riverside Villas Condominiums.pdf (p.19-156)
	Item I.A.2. ZOA 1-18 IC District.pdf (p.157-164)
	Item I.A.3. Rez 3-18 Kimber.pdf (p.165-185)
	Item I.A.4. Rezone 4-18 JoyGlobal-Nethertons.pdf (p.186-212)
	Item I.B.1. Initiate Amendment to Subdivision Code.pdf (p.213-261)
	Zoning Bulletin - March 25, 2018.pdf (p.262-273)



